
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
PLANNING COMMISSION/ 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

June 26, 2018 

Ontario City Hall 
303 East "B" Street, Ontario, California 91764 

6:30 PM 

WELCOME to a meeting of the Ontario Planning/Historic Preservation 
Commission. 
All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located at 303 E. B 
Street, Ontario, CA  91764. 
• Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on a particular item should fill out a green

slip and submit it to the Secretary.

• Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  Speakers will be alerted when their time is up.
Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be permitted.

• In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects
within the Commission’s jurisdiction.  Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those
items.

• Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the chambers will not be permitted.  All
those wishing to speak including Commissioners and Staff need to be recognized by the Chair
before speaking.

• The City of Ontario will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a
public meeting. Should you need any type of special equipment or assistance in order to
communicate at a public meeting, please inform the Planning Department at (909) 395-2036, a
minimum of 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.

• Please turn off all communication devices (phones and beepers) or put them on non-audible
mode (vibrate) so as not to cause a disruption in the Commission proceedings.

ROLL CALL 

DeDiemar       Delman          Downs   Gage __     Gregorek __     Reyes __     Willoughby __ 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   June 26, 2018 

-2-

SPECIAL CEREMONIES 

1) Presentation to Holt Melrose, LLC for the project including Wendy’s, Auto Zone,
and an Industrial building.

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1) Agenda Items

2) Commissioner Items

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission on any matter that is not 
on the agenda may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission values your comments, the 
Commission cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the 
forthcoming agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one summary motion in the order 
listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Commission votes 
on them, unless a member of the Commission or public requests a specific item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar for a separate vote. In that case, the balance of the items on the Consent Calendar 
will be voted on in summary motion and then those items removed for separate vote will be heard. 

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of May 22, 2018, approved as 
written.   

A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-052: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-052) to 
construct a 1,255,382 square foot industrial building on 57.68 acres of land, for property 
generally located along the southeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue, 
within Planning Area 1 (PA-1) of the  Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan. The 
environmental impacts of this project were analyzed in the EIR (SCH# 2015061023) 
prepared for the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan (File No. PSP15-001) that 
was certified by the City Council on October 3, 2017. All adopted mitigation measures of 
the related EIR shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by 
reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport (ONT) and Chino Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of both the ONT Airport and Chino Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plans. (APNs: 0218-292-05 and 0218-311-11); submitted by Colony 
Commerce Center LLC. 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   June 26, 2018 

-3-

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

For each of the items listed under PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, the public will be provided an 
opportunity to speak. After a staff report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At 
that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case. Members of 
the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak. The Planning Commission may ask the 
speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided. The question period will not count 
against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to 
summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of 
the hearing and deliberate the matter. 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND VARIANCE REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PVAR18-001: A Variance to deviate from the minimum Development Code standards 
for parking setbacks along an arterial street, from 20 feet to 13 feet, for an existing senior 
living facility (Inland Christian Home, Inc.), on 8.74 acres of land located at 1950 S. 
Mountain Avenue, within the Medium Density Residential (MDR-18) zoning district. 
The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing 
Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines  The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be an 
existing land use and is not subject to the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; (APN: 1014-461-12); 
submitted by Inland Christian Home, INC.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15301

2. File No. PVAR18-001  (Variance)

Motion to Approve/Deny

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 
FOR FILE NO. PDEV15-034: A Development Plan to construct a non-stealth wireless 
telecommunications facility (monopole) totaling 656 square feet on 25.8 acres of land, 
generally located southwest of Airport Drive and Wineville Avenue in an SCE easement, 
within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt 
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APNs: 0238-241-10) submitted by Verizon Wireless.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15303 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   June 26, 2018 
 
 

-4- 

2. File No. PDEV15-034  (Development Plan)  
 

Motion to Approve/Deny 
 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 
FOR FILE NO.  PDEV17-021:  A Development Plan to attach a non-stealth wireless 
telecommunications facility to an existing Southern California Edison (SCE) tower, 
including the construction of a 400 square foot equipment enclosure, on property located 
at 3252 East Riverside Drive, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district. Staff has 
determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, 
Existing Facilities) and Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area 
of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent 
with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). 
(APN: 0218-151-45); submitted by T-Mobile. 

 
1. CEQA Determination  

 
No action necessary – Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15301 & § 15303 
 

2. File No. PDEV17-021  (Development Plan) 
 
Motion to Approve/Deny  
 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW 
FOR FILE NO. PMTT17-003: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT17-003/TTM 
20081) to subdivide 44.98 into 76 numbered lots and 62 lettered lots for residential and 
commercial uses, public/private streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common open 
space purposes for a property located on northeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and 
Haven Avenue, within the Mixed Use District Planning Area 6A (Regional Commercial 
and Stand Alone Residential Overlay) of the Rich Haven Specific Plan. The 
environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The 
Rich Haven Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2006051081) in conjunction with File No. PSP05-
004 that was adopted by the City Council on December 4, 2007 and an Addendum to The 
Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) prepared in conjunction 
with File No. PGPA06-001 and adopted by City Council on January 27, 2010. This 
application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts.  All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and 
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 218-211-02 and 
218-211-05) submitted by Brookcal Ontario LLC.  

 
 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   June 26, 2018 
 
 

-5- 

1. CEQA Determination  
 
No action necessary – use of addendum to previous EIR 
      

2. File No. PMTT17-003  (Tentative Tract Map)  
 

Motion to continue to the July 24, 2018 meeting 
 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND AIRPORT LAND USE 

COMPATIBILITY REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PALU18-004: An amendment to the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP) to: 1) Update 
airport ownership references from Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) to Ontario 
International Airport Authority (OIAA); 2) Eliminate LAWA's proposal to reconfigure 
the ONT runway system by shifting both runways south and east of their present position 
(Exhibit 1-6: Simplified Airport Diagram) and rely on the existing runway system 
(current Airport Layout Plan) for the ONT ALUCP; and 3) Update Policy Maps 2-1: 
Airport Influence Area, 2-2: Safety Zones, 2-3: Noise Impact Zones, 2-4: Airspace 
Protection Zones and 2-5: Overflight Notification Zones to reflect impacts from the 
existing runway configuration and eliminate the composite approach that protects 
existing and LAWA’s proposed runway reconfigurations. The geographic scope of the ONT 
ALUCP is the Airport Influence Area (AIA), which includes portions of the Cities of Ontario, 
Fontana, Upland, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino, Pomona, Claremont and unincorporated 
portions of San Bernardino, Riverside and Los Angeles Counties. The environmental impacts 
of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File No. PADV07-008, for 
which a Negative Declaration (SCH# 2011011081) was adopted by the Ontario City 
Council on April 19, 2011. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. Submitted by: City of Ontario, Planning Department. City Council action is 
required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination  

 
No action necessary – use of previous Negative Declaration 
      

2. File No. PALU18-004  (Land Use Compatibility Amendment) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND REVIEW FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL 

MAP FILE NO. PMTT17-011 AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN FILE NO. PDEV17-
057: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT17-011/TPM 19738) to subdivide 119.31 
acres of land into 9 parcels in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-
057) to construct two industrial buildings totaling 2,217,016 square feet.  The project site 
is bounded by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Cucamonga Creek Channel to the east, 
Merrill Avenue to the south, and Carpenter Avenue to the west, located within the 
General Industrial land use district of the West Ontario Commerce Center Specific Plan. 
The environmental impacts of this project were analyzed in the West Ontario Commerce 
Center Specific Plan (File No. PSP16-002) EIR (SCH#2017041074), that is scheduled for 
adoption by the City Council on June 19, 2018. This application is consistent with the 







-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING 

MINUTES 

May 22, 2018 

CONTENTS PAGE 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ................................................................................................   2 

ANNOUNCEMENTS............................................................................................................   2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ..........................................................................................................   2 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

A-01. Minutes of April 24, 2018 ..........................................................................................   2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

B. File No. PUD17-004 ..................................................................................................  2 

C. File No. PDEV17-011 ................................................................................................  3 

D. File No. PMTT17-012  ..............................................................................................  5 

E. File Nos. PMTT17-017 & PDEV13-029  ..................................................................  6 

F. File Nos. PCUP18-015 & PDEV17-051  ...................................................................  7 

G. File No. PDA17-004  ................................................................................................. 10 

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION ........................................................ 11 

NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION  ............................................................ 11 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT ........................................................................................................ 12 

ADJOURNMENT   .......................................................................................................... 12 

Item A-01 - 1 of 12



-2-

CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING 

MINUTES 

May 22, 2018 

REGULAR MEETING: City Hall, 303 East B Street 
Called to order by Chairman Delman at 6:30 PM 

COMMISSIONERS 
Present: Chairman Delman, Vice-Chairman Willoughby, DeDiemar, Gage, 

Gregorek, and Reyes 

Absent: Downs 

OTHERS PRESENT: Development Director Murphy, Planning Director Wahlstrom, City 
Attorney Rice, Senior Planner Batres, Senior Planner Noh, 
Assistant Planner Aguilo, Engineer Bryan Lirley, Building Official 
Pedro Rico, and Planning Secretary Berendsen 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Gage. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Ms. Wahlstrom stated that there were additional items in front of the Commissioners relating to 
agenda Items C and F. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of April 24, 2018, approved as written. 

It was moved by Gage, seconded by Gregorek, to approve the Planning 
Commission Minutes of April 24, 2018, as written.  The motion was carried 5 to 
0. 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

Item A-01 - 2 of 12



 
 

-3- 

REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PUD17-004: A Planned Unit Development establishing land 
use designations, and development standards and guidelines to facilitate the development 
of an 8-unit apartment project on 0.29 acres of land, located at 214 North Vine Avenue 
and 422 West B Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) 
of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); 
(APNs: 1048-572-13 and 1048-572-11) submitted by AB Holdings, LLC. City Council 
action is required. 

 
C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-011: A Development Plan to construct an 8-unit apartment 
project on 0.29 acres of land, located at 214 North Vine Avenue and 422 West B Street, 
within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The project is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1048-572-
13 and 1048-572-11) submitted by AB Holdings, LLC 

 
Assistant Planner, Jeanie Aguilo, presented the staff report. She described the location and the 
surrounding area. She described the 8 units proposed, including the parking, architectural design 
and textures, access and landscaping. She stated that staff is recommending the Planning 
Commission recommend approval of File No. PUD17-004, and approve File No. PDEV17-011, 
pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject 
to the conditions of approval.  

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification if the driveway for building A was deep enough for a car to 
park and if so was it included in the parking numbers. 

 
Ms. Aguilo stated it is 18 feet deep and is not included in the parking numbers. 

 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification regarding fractional parking. 

 
Ms. Aguilo stated that for the one bedroom unit, 1.75 parking spaces are required and the .75 
was included in the on-street parking. 

 
Mr. Gage questioned if the fractional parking portion needed a Variance.  

 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated the PUD allows for this type of parking provision and that all the parking 
is provided on site in covered garages, except for one guest parking spot and the .75 needed for 
the one bedroom unit, which both are included in the on-street parking. She stated that they were 
able to use the downtown parking tool to verify there was adequate parking available. 
 

Item A-01 - 3 of 12



 
 

-4- 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Brad Robertson, representing AB Holdings, appeared and stated he was available to answer any 
questions. 

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification of how the project would be managed. 

 
Mr. Robertson stated these units will be for lease and that AB Holdings takes pride in the 
ownership and the units will be managed in-house and be well taken care of. 

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification if any of these units were for low income housing or would they 
be standard rental rates. 

 
Mr. Robertson stated these will all be standard rental rates. 

 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification on who would be regulating what automobiles are being parked 
within the garages, so that the garages don’t get filled up and they use more on-street parking. 

 
Mr. Robertson stated the city requires storage space in excess of the garage, and each unit has a 
laundry and additional storage within the garage. He stated AB Holdings would manage the 
parking and they won’t allow for derelict cars to be parked on-site. 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification that there is additional storage space built into the garage 
area. 

 
Mr. Robertson stated yes, they had included the minimum square footage required for storage 
within the garage. 

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony 
 

Mr. Gage stated this is a challenging site to put units here and he is glad to hear there is storage 
in each unit, which helps to keep the use of the garages for parking. 

 
Mr. Reyes stated the design and landscaping looks nice and he is glad we are filling in these 
areas in the city. He stated that in the future he would like to see collaboration with the city to 
bring this type of quality project for low income families to qualify for. 

 
Mr. Willoughby concurred with Mr. Gage’s comments and stated he likes the design and use of 
materials and that it will be a nice addition to this downtown area.  

 
Mr. Delman stated he likes this infill project and would like to see more like them. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of 
a resolution to approve the Planned Unit Development, File No., PUD17-004, 
subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, 
Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; 

Item A-01 - 4 of 12



 
 

-5- 

ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 
 

It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to adopt a resolution to approve 
the Development Plan, File No., PDEV17-011, subject to conditions of 
approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, 
and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion 
was carried 6 to 0. 
 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW 
FOR FILE NO. PMTT17-012: A Tentative Parcel Map (TT 19910) to subdivide 0.52 
acre of land into 3 lots, located at 419 East Maitland Street, within the MDR-11 (Low-
Medium Density Residential - 5.1 to 11.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is 
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1049-343-
16) submitted by CRC Investments, LLC.  

 
Assistant Planner, Jeanie Aguilo, presented the staff report. She described the location, 
surrounding area, and the lot sizes being proposed. She stated that staff is recommending the 
Planning Commission approve File No. PMTT17-012, pursuant to the facts and reasons 
contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval.  

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding the existing house on the site, if it is remaining or being 
demolished. 

 
Ms. Aguilo stated it would be demolished.  

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on the sewer and water being provided to the lots.  

 
Ms. Aguilo stated they will connect to existing lines. 

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Mr. Alcazar appeared. 
 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony 

 
There was no Planning Commission deliberation. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Willoughby, to adopt a resolution to 
approve the Tentative Parcel Map, File No., PMTT17-012, subject to conditions 
of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, 
and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion 
was carried 6 to 0. 

Item A-01 - 5 of 12



 
 

-6- 

 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP & 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PMTT17-017 (PM 19919) 
AND PDEV13-029: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT17-017/PM 19919) to 
consolidate 30-lots into 1-parcel in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV13-029) to add 35,368 square feet to an existing 30,124 square foot industrial 
building for property on 4.9 acres of land, located at 617 E. Sunkist within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, 
In-Fill Development Projects) & Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APN: 1049-232-21) submitted by Agrigold Joint Venture. 

 
 Senior Planner, Luis Batres, presented the staff report. He described the location and surrounding 

area, and the proposed addition to the property. He described the screen wall, additional parking, 
the new trash structure, the widening of driveways, landscaping, the architecture and elevations. 
He stated the lots are being consolidated to meet the city requirement of buildings not crossing 
property lines. He stated that staff is recommending the Planning Commission approve File Nos. 
PMTT17-017 & PDEV13-029, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and 
attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on the existing structures improvements. 

 
Mr. Batres stated there would only be painting done to match the proposed addition. 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if the existing chain link fencing is being replaced. 

 
Mr. Batres stated all would be replaced with the metal decorative fencing, except along the 
railroad spur on the west property line. 

  
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if the railroad spur serves this building. 

 
Mr. Batres stated no.  

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification if the 10 foot setback, on the northern side, meets the 
requirements for this area. 

 
Mr. Batres stated yes 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on what water retention provisions are being proposed. 

 
Mr. Batres stated yes and that the basin is accommodating for the new addition drainage. He 
stated a water quality plan needs to be submitted before permits will be issued and described 
other improvements required for the project that are included in the conditions of approval. 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on handicapped depressions at the corners. 

 

Item A-01 - 6 of 12



 
 

-7- 

Mr. Batres stated yes they are being required to be completed. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Steven Ibarra, the representative, appeared and stated he has some issues with the engineering 
and wants to work with them regarding the clarification of these issues, without holding up the 
process. 

  
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding the improvements being done to get existing to look 
more like what is being proposed. 

 
Mr. Ibarra stated that yes just the paint to match and the ban that wraps around the whole facility. 

 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification on the issues with engineering.  

 
Mr. Ibarra stated he just wanted clarification.  

 
Mr. Delman wanted to know if this item should be continued so that the applicant can work with 
engineering. 

 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated that being that it is only clarification the applicant is seeking, there is no 
reason to continue the item. 

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony 
 

Mr. Reyes stated he drove by the site and is glad to see the major street improvements along the 
perimeter streets and the landscaping that will enhance the streets. He stated this is a fitting 
project for the area. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Reyes, seconded by Gregorek, to adopt a resolution to approve 
the Tentative Parcel Map, File No. PMTT17-017, and the Development Plan, 
File No. PDEV13-029, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, 
DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; 
RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 
 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FILE 
NO. PCUP18-015, AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDEV17-051: A Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP18-015) to establish three (3) 
drive-thru restaurants (1,800 square-foot, 3,000 square-foot and 3,320 square-foot) in 
conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-051) to construct a 94,782 
square-foot commercial development on 10.06 acres of land located within the Retail 
district of Planning Area 10B of The Avenue Specific Plan, located at the southwest 
corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Haven Avenue. The environmental impacts of this 
project were previously analyzed in The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) 
that was certified by the City Council on December 19, 2006. This project introduces no 
new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to 

Item A-01 - 7 of 12



 
 

-8- 

be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0218-412-02) submitted by Frontier Real Estate 
Investments. 

 
 Senior Planner, Henry Noh, presented the staff report. He described the project site and 

the surrounding area. He described the building area, parking, landscape coverage ratio 
and the ingress and egress, improvements required and the promotion of pedestrian 
mobility that is incorporated within the plan, to connect the surrounding residential areas. 
He stated the proposed concept includes reaching two customers bases, the retail and the 
entertainment, with unique food use areas. He described the unique landscape amenities 
proposed, the proposed elevations and the architectural ideas and textures and the story 
they tell, related to the history of the area. He stated murals are to provide articulation on 
the buildings. He stated that if in the future a tentative parcel map is proposed, a shared 
parking agreement would be required at that point. He stated that staff is recommending 
the Planning Commission approve File Nos. PCUP18-015 & PDEV17-051, pursuant to 
the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolutions, and subject to 
the conditions of approval.  
 

Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on the parking reduction.  
 

Mr. Noh stated the part of the conditions of approval is that a minimum percentage would be 
retail tenants so that they would meet the shared parking analysis.  

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on the conceptual landscape plan for the area behind the major 
retail building. 

 
Mr. Noh stated there would be a 10 foot landscape planter area and the wall.  

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Gavin Reid, from Frontier Real Estate Investments, the developer for the site, appeared and 
spoke. He stated it has been a pleasure working with all the staff and he is very excited about this 
project and there is a strong interest in leasing for this project. 

 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification regarding parking shortage. 

  
Mr. Reid stated they have done other shared parking analysis and try to be conservative and he is 
comfortable this is going to function successfully.  

 
Mr. Gage wanted to know if the tenants be comfortable with a future shared parking agreement 
and if there would be assigned parking. 

 
Mr. Reid stated that he didn’t have an answer at this time but it is something they will have to 
work through regarding the future shared parking agreement. He stated they will put CC&Rs in 
place for the parking as required by engineering. 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know the tenant interest. 

 
Mr. Reid stated they are working with the major tenant Stater Bros. and he expects to be 75 

Item A-01 - 8 of 12



 
 

-9- 

percent pre-leased in the next couple of weeks. 
 

Mr. Willoughby stated the community will be happy to have a grocery store and the design will 
fit in nicely for the area. 

 
Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification regarding the fast food tenants   

 
Mr. Reid stated Dunkin donuts and nothing else at this time. 

 
Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification on if shops 1 & 2 would be food or retail, and would it be 
more fast food or sit-down restaurants. 

 
Mr. Reid stated the intent is one hundred percent food, with the idea of more of a bar scene with 
outside patio areas.  

 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on what is the marketing concept being used to secure leases.  

 
Mr. Reid stated that what is really driving this project is the housing growth in the area and 
working with Brookfield and they feel this is an amenity to the community. He stated there is a 
two prong customer demand for the everyday retail customer and the entertainment customer, 
and the idea is to increase the amount of time they spend at the center by creating the 
instagrammable moments, and more intimate experiences. He stated those are the thoughts 
behind the landscaping and elevations.  

  
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on areas 1 and 2 and the type of tenants they are looking for 
there and if the landscape area with the amphitheater would be used for some sort of 
entertainment. 

 
Mr. Reid stated yes, that the idea is to get high-end tenants in those areas, especially those 
located closer to the landscaped area and have entertainment. He stated they want to make sure it 
is attractive and maybe even close some of the area down and have a farmer’s market area.  

 
Ron Graybill, appeared and stated he is the 2nd family to live in the community and he is a 
representative for the people who will be using this area. He stated this is a lot of good 
information and would like Mr. Noh or Frontier Real Estate Investments to come and share this 
information at their community meeting and ask the community for input on the design. 

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony 
 

Mr. Gage stated he really loves this project and the quality of the design and architecture. He 
stated this is really in everyone’s interest as it upgrades the center and attracts good businesses. 
He stated even though it is deficient in the parking by 47 spaces, he is willing to trade off for the 
upscale architecture and the center as a whole is a plus.  

 
Mr. Gregorek stated he is pleased with the architecture and the old dairy aspect which brings in 
the history of the area.  He stated he is glad the Stater Bros. and restaurants will be closer for 
people in the community and is comparable to what other cities in the area offer.  

 
Ms. DeDiemar stated she is very pleased, interested and excited about the mural being 

Item A-01 - 9 of 12



 
 

-10- 

incorporated in the design. She asked the applicant to consider contacting the newest agency 
within the city; Community, Life and Culture, to see about getting a local artist to execute the 
mural.  

 
Mr. Reyes stated he loves all the site amenities and this is those golden corners that lead into 
Ontario, and this is the kind of projects we need to be looking at in these areas within the city. 

 
Mr. Delman stated he thinks this will be a great project. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to 
approve the Conditional Use Permit, File No., PCUP18-015, and the 
Development Plan, File No. PDEV17-051, subject to conditions of approval. 
Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and 
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was 
carried 6 to 0. 
 

G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDA17-004:  A Development Agreement (File No. PDA17-
004) between the City of Ontario and Colony Commerce Center LLC, to establish the 
terms and conditions for the potential development of up to 1,379,501 square feet of 
industrial development on 57.58 acres of land generally located on the southeast corner of 
Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue at 9467 East Merrill Avenue, within Planning 
Area 1 of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan. The environmental impacts 
of this project were analyzed in the EIR (SCH# 2015061023) prepared for the Colony 
Commerce Center West Specific Plan (File No. PSP15-001) that was certified by the City 
Council on October 3, 2017. All adopted mitigation measures of the related EIR shall be 
a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport 
(ONT) and Chino Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies 
and criteria of both the ONT Airport and Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans. 
(APNs: 0218-292-05 and 0218-311-11); submitted by Prologis LP. City Council 
Action Required.  

 
 Senior Planner, Luis Batres, presented the staff report. He stated that staff is recommending the 

Planning Commission recommend approval of File No. PDA17-004, pursuant to the facts and 
reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of 
approval.  

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on the number of buildings this included. 

 
Mr. Batres stated this is one building.  

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Tyson Chave, with Prologis, appeared and thanked the staff for all their hard work. 
 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony 

Item A-01 - 10 of 12



 
 

-11- 

 
Mr. Gage wanted to know if the size of this building will be a record within the city. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gage, seconded by Reyes, to recommend adoption of a 
resolution to approve the Development Agreement, File No., PDA17-004, 
subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, 
Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; 
ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 

  
MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
Old Business Reports From Subcommittees 

 
Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee did not meet. 
 
Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet. 

 
Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet. 
 
New Business 
 

 Mr. Reyes stated that Ramone’s Cactus Patch Restaurant was changing uses and wanted to thank 
staff and photographer for coming out and help preserve the historic aspects that were found 
there. 

 
 Mr. Gage wanted clarification regarding the portables that are at the historic school on 6th Street.  

 
 Ms. Wahlstrom stated this is a temporary situation as they do improvements within the school for 

approximately two years and then they will relandscape the front of the school. 
 

  Mr. Murphy stated the plans are that the front are will be an expanded parking lot and drop off 
area, to eliminate all the excess street parking and traffic. 

 
 Mr. Gage and Mr. Delman shared about the California Preservation Foundation Conference in 

Palo Alto. 
 

NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
 
• Wendy’s Drive Thru – 590 E. Holt Blvd. 
• Auto Zone – 570 E. Holt Blvd. 
• Industrial Building – 231 South Pleasant Ave. 

 
Mr. Reyes stated this project is a good example of what is to come within the city and the 
Wendy’s modern design looks so good and the whole complex is well landscaped. 
 
Mr. Willoughby stated hats off to the staff for a great project, using mixed uses. 

Item A-01 - 11 of 12



 
 

-12- 

 
Mr. Reyes stated the lighting is all natural in the industrial building, from the sky lights. 
 
Mr. Delman stated this is a great project that will really spice up downtown.  
 

It was moved by DeDiemar, seconded by Reyes, to approve the Nomination for 
Special Recognition.  The motion was carried 6 to 0. 

 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated the monthly reports are in their packet. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Willoughby motioned to adjourn, and the motion carried.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 
PM. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

Item A-01 - 12 of 12



Case Planner:  Luis E. Batres Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 6/18/18 Approval Recommend 
ZA 

Submittal Date:  11/7/18 PC 6/26/18   Final 
Hearing Deadline:  CC 

SUBJECT: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-052) to construct a 1,255,382 square 
foot industrial building on 57.68 acres of land, for property generally located along the 
southeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue, within Planning Area 1 (PA-1) 
of the  Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan (APN: 0218-292-05 and 
0218-311-11); Submitted by Colony Commerce Center LLC. 

PROPERTY OWNER: The Joseph and Doleen Borba Administrative Trust 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission approve File No. PDEV17-
052, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached 
resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 57.68 acres of land located along 
the southeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue within the Planning Area 1 
land use designation of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan, and is depicted 
in Figure 1: Project Location, below. The project site has been recently utilized for 
farming and agricultural purposes. The development will be composed of two parcels that 
will be consolidated into one parcel. The 
site is bounded to the east by the 
Cucamonga Creek Flood Control 
Channel, vacant land to the north and 
south, and industrial development within 
the City of Chino to the west. The site 
currently slopes from north to south at just 
over 1 percent. 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

Background — On June 18, 2018, the 
Development Advisory Board reviewed 
the subject application and 
recommended that the Planning 
Commission approve the proposed 
project, subject to departmental 
conditions of approval included with this 
report. 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
June 26, 2018 

Figure 1: Project Location 

Site

Item A-02 - 1 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 of 16 

The applicant is requesting approval to construct an industrial building totaling 1,255,382 
square feet on 57.68 acres within Planning Area 1 of the Colony Commerce Center West 
Specific Plan. The Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan and Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) were approved by City Council on October 3, 2017. The Colony 
Commerce Center West Specific Plan established the land use designations, 
development standards, and design guidelines for 123.17 acres, which includes the 
potential development of 2,951,146 square feet of industrial development (see Figure 2: 
Specific Plan Land Use Summary Table).  
 

 
 

Figure 2: Specific Plan Land Use Summary Table 
 
Site Design/Building Layout — Planning Area 1 of the Specific Plan has a maximum 
development intensity of 1,379,501 square feet at a maximum Floor Area Ration (FAR) 
of 0.55. The proposed 1,255,382 square foot building, will be situated along the center of 
the site, with a FAR coverage (FAR) of 0.53. The Ontario Development Code requires 
Planning Commission approval for projects that exceed an FAR of 0.45. The proposed 
building has been designed to feature three potential offices pods. One office will be 
located at the northwest corner of the building, a second at the southwest corner and a 
third, at the northeast corner of the building. The building will provide setbacks of 259-
feet along Merrill Avenue, 68-feet along the eastern property line (Cucamonga Creek 
Flood Control Channel), 174-feet along Carpenter Avenue, and 135-feet along the south 
property line. The building and the site screen walls for the truck courts have been 
designed and carefully situated, to minimize public visibility of the loading areas located 
along the north and south sides of the building (see Figure 3: Site Plan). To ensure 
adequate screening to the building loading areas, a 14-foot tall tilt-up screen wall will be 
provided. The screen wall will be designed to complement the architecture of the building.   
  

Item A-02 - 2 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 of 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
Site Access/Circulation — The circulation plan for the Colony Commerce Center West 
Specific Plan reinforces the goal of moving vehicles, pedestrians, cyclists, and public 
transit, safely and efficiently through and around the project. Access to the project site will 
be provided by four driveways. Three on Carpenter Avenue and one on Merrill Avenue. 
The goal of the circulation system is to separate truck traffic from car traffic to the largest 
extent possible. 
 
Carpenter Avenue has been designed and will be widened to a two-lane, local industrial 
street (70-foot right-of-way). Carpenter Avenue will be improved with a four foot wide curb, 
adjacent landscape parkway and a five foot wide sidewalk. Merrill Avenue has been 
designed and will be widened to a four-lane collector (108-foot right-of-way) road. The 
Merrill Avenue frontage will be improved with a 7-foot parkway, 5-foot sidewalk, and a 23-
foot landscape edge. Pedestrian access into the development will be provided through 
six foot wide sidewalks along Carpenter and Merrill Avenue. 
 
The Merrill and Carpenter Avenue intersection is proposed to be a signalized intersection 
and will be required to be installed as part of the proposed development. The intersection 
at Merrill Avenue and Hellman Avenue is also proposed to be signalized, however, the 
signal improvement will not be completed until development along the north side of Merrill 
Avenue occurs. 

Figure 4: Site Plan 

Figure 3: Site Plan 

Item A-02 - 3 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 of 16 

Parking — As demonstrated in the table below, the specific plan requires the project to 
provide 638 parking spaces and 54 trailer parking spaces. The project proposes two 
parking layout alternatives to provide flexibility for a future tenant. As demonstrated in the 
parking table below, Alternative 1 proposes a total 340 parking spaces, which is 298 
parking spaces less than the requirement. However, in the event that a future tenant 
requires 638 parking spaces or more, parking Alternative 2 could be implemented to add 
up to 1,125 additional parking spaces within the north truck court area of the building. The 
additional truck area parking spaces and the 340 standard parking spaces, provided 
within the western parking lot, would total 1,500 parking spaces (see Figures 4 & 5: 
Alternative Site Plan 1-Parking Layout & Alternative Site Plan 2-Parking Layout). 
The Development Code (Division 6.03, Section 6.03.020) allows for a reduction in parking 
if an alternate off-street parking plan, demonstrates that additional parking spaces can be 
provided on-site, as necessary, to accommodate future land use changes or 
intensifications in land use. The alternative parking plan approach has been successfully 
implemented on other industrial projects in the City. Staff is in support of the proposed  

 
 
Alternative 1 parking layout, with the condition that the applicant/owner must provide all 
required parking within six (6) months of being notified by the City that the additional 
parking is required by tenant(s). 
 
 
 
 
 

PARKING TABLE SUMMARY  
 

Type of Use Building  
Area 

 
Dock 
Doors 

 
Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

TOTAL 
 

Proposed Parking Alternative 1 

Warehouse / 
Distribution 1,255,382 

 One space per 1,000 SF (0.001/SF) for 
portion of GFA <20,000 SF, plus 0.5 space 
per 1,000 SF (0.0005/SF) for GFA > 20,000 
SF; 

638 340 

 
-298 

Trailer Truck 
Parking   213 1 space for every 4 dock high doors 54 394   +340 

Proposed Parking Alternative 2 

Warehouse / 
Distribution 1,255,382 

 One space per 1,000 SF (0.001/SF) for 
portion of GFA <20,000 SF, plus 0.5 space 
per 1,000 SF (0.0005/SF) for GFA > 20,000 
SF; 

638 1,500 

 
+862 

Trailer Truck 
Parking  213  54 140 +86 

Item A-02 - 4 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 of 16 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Future Parking Area  

Future Parking Area 

Figure 4: Alternative Site Plan 1-Parking Layout 

Figure 5: Alternative Site Plan 2-Parking Layout 

Item A-02 - 5 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 of 16 

Architecture — The project is proposing a tilt-up Contemporary Architecture style. The 
project is proposing a development which exemplifies high-quality architecture promoted 
by the Ontario Development Code and the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan 
(see Figure 6: Typical Office Storefront, Exhibit A: Building Elevations & Exhibits 
B & C: Building Perspectives). Special attention has been given to the use of colors, 
massing, building forms, materials and architectural details. This is exemplified through 
the use of: 
 

• Extensive use of glazing on storefronts and along the upper portion of the 
buildings towers; 

• Articulation in building foot print and building roof lines; 
• Incorporation of playful reveal patterns and use of colors; 
• Architectural towers at building corners and key locations along the north 

west, south and east elevations; 
• Architectural steel fins along the upper portion of the office storefronts and 

middle towers; 
• Decorative aluminum canopies over the front office entry areas; 
• Decorative sconce light fixtures, and 
• Use of stainless steel aluminum storefront framing to accentuate the office 

storefront areas. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Figure 6: Typical Office Storefront 

Item A-02 - 6 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 of 16 

Landscaping — The proposed project will provide a 10.06% (240,204 sq. ft.) landscape 
coverage, which is consistent with the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan 
requirement of 10% (238,623 sq. ft.) landscape coverage. Landscaping will be provided 
in the form of a 27-foot landscape setback along Carpenter Avenue, 66-foot average 
landscape setback along Merrill Avenue (minimum 26-feet), 52-foot average landscape 
setback along the east property line (minimum 6-feet), and a 38-foot average landscape 
setback along the south property line (9.88’ minimum). New landscaped parkways will be 
provided along Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue. In addition to the landscape areas 
on the site, portions of the north and south truck courts will be utilized as infiltration areas 
(underground retention systems) to comply with the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) requirement (see Figure 7: Landscape Plan). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Landscaping in the form of ground cover, shrubs and trees will also be provided along the 
interior parking lot areas of the development, to further enhance the project. The front 
office entry areas have been designed with large attractive plaza areas. The plaza areas 
will feature decorative scored paving, up/down lighting and enhanced landscaping. 
Decorative scored paving will also be provided along the entry driveways. In addition, 
three leisure patio areas have also been incorporated adjacent to the office areas, for 
staff and guest to enjoy. The patio areas measure an average of 25-feet by 30-feet. The 
leisure areas have been designed with decorative paving, accent planting, raised 
planters, accent shade trees and decorative weather resistant outdoor furniture. 

Figure 7: Landscape Plan 

Item A-02 - 7 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 of 16 

Utilities— To serve the proposed industrial development, the project will be required to 
construct infrastructure improvements per the Colony Commerce Center West Specific 
Plan requirements. Some of the improvements will include the following: 
 

• Install new fire hydrants on Carpenter Avenue and Merrill Avenue; 
• Install a master planned storm drain line in Merrill Avenue and the connection to 

the Cucamonga Creek Channel; 
• Install a main line and service water line on Carpenter Avenue; 
• Install a service recycled water line; 
• Install a traffic signal system at the Merrill Avenue/Carpenter Avenue intersection; 
• Install street lights along Carpenter Avenue and Merrill Avenue; 
• Install a storm drain on Carpenter Avenue; 
• Design and construct a fiber optic system; 
• Underground existing overhead utilities; and 
• Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) to address NPDES 

requirements. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-

Sustaining Community in the New Model Colony 
 

[2] Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 
 

[3] Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

Item A-02 - 8 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 of 16 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision 
 

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 
Land Use Element: 
 
 Goal LU1: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and price ranges 

that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live and work in 
Ontario and maintain a quality of life. 
 

 LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses and 
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where 
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and visitors have a wide spectrum of 
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario.  
 

 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 
 
 Goal LU3: Staff, regulations and processes that support and allow flexible 

response to conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of 
life. 
 

 Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where 
people choose to be. 
 

 CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

 CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development 
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique, 
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the 
region. 
 

 CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of 
equal or greater quality. 
 

Item A-02 - 9 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 of 16 

 CE2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic 
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards. 
 

 S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 

 
 S4-4 Truck Traffic. We manage truck traffic to minimize noise impacts on 

sensitive land uses. 
 
 S4-5 Road Design. We design streets and highways to minimize noise 

impacts. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 
 Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and 

commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct. 
 

 CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to 
convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and 
proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting; 
and 

• Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality, 
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style. 

 
 CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 

design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials and construction techniques. 

Item A-02 - 10 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 of 16 

 CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and 
use of lighting. 

 
 CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials 

and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and 
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits. 
 

 CD2-10 Surface Parking Areas. We require parking areas visible to or used 
by the public to be landscaped in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off 
capture and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field. 
 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 CD3-2 Connectivity Between Streets, Sidewalks, Walkways and Plazas. 
We require landscaping and paving be used to optimize visual connectivity between 
streets, sidewalks, walkways and plazas for pedestrians. 
 

 CD3-3 Building Entrances. We require all building entrances to be 
accessible and visible from adjacent streets, sidewalks or public open spaces. 
 

 CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics, 
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings. 
 

 Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, 
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional 
public and private investments. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD5-2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 

 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

Item A-02 - 11 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 of 16 

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport (ONT) 
and has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the 
ALUCP for ONT.  The project site is also located within the Airport Influence of Chino 
Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California 
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of 
Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The environmental impacts of this project were analyzed 
in the EIR (SCH# 2015061023) prepared for the Colony Commerce Center West Specific 
Plan (File No. PSP15-001) that was certified by the City Council on October 3, 2017. This 
application is consistent with the EIR and introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. All adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval and are 
incorporated herein by reference.  
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 
 

Item A-02 - 12 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 13 of 16 

 
Exhibit A— Building Elevations 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

West Elevation 

North Elevation 

South Elevation 

East Elevation 

Item A-02 - 13 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 14 of 16 

Exhibit B: Color Perspective-Northeast Corner 
 

 
 
 
  

Item A-02 - 14 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 

Page 15 of 16 

Exhibit C: Color Perspective-Northwest Corner 

Item A-02 - 15 of 58



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 

Page 16 of 16 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Vacant & Agriculture Industrial 
Planning Area 1 

(PA-1) 
Industrial 

North Vacant & Agriculture & 
Single Family Home Industrial SP(AG) 

NA 

South Vacant & Agriculture Industrial 
Planning Area 2 

(PA-2) 
Industrial 

East Flood Control Channel Open Space-Non 
Recreation SP(AG) N/A 

West 
Industrial 

City of Chino Industrial Industrial N/A 

General Site & Building Statistics: 

Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard 
Meets 
Y/N 

Project Area: 57.68 acres  
(net 54.78 acres) 

1 acre Yes 

Building Area: 1,255,382 sq. ft. N/A Yes 

Floor Area Ratio: 53% 55% (Max.) Yes 

Building Height: 50 feet 55 feet (Max.) Yes 

Item A-02 - 16 of 58



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV17-052, A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT  A 1,255,382 SQUARE FOOT 
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING ON 57.68 ACRES OF LAND, FOR PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED  ALONG THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
MERRILL AVENUE AND CARPENTER AVENUE, WITHIN PLANNING 
AREA 1 (PA-1) OF THE COLONY COMMERCE CENTER WEST 
SPECIFIC PLAN, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—
APN: 0218-292-05 & 0218-311-11. 

WHEREAS, Colony Commerce Center LLC ("Applicant") has filed an Application 
for the approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV17-052, as described in the title of 
this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 57.68 acres of land generally located along 
the southeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue within the Planning Area 1 
land use designation of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is developed with a single 
family home and vacant/agricultural land. The property to the east is developed with the 
Cucamonga Creek Flood Control Channel. The property to the south is within the 
industrial land use designation (Planning Area 2) of the Colony Commerce Center West 
Specific Plan and has been entitled to be developed with two industrial buildings. The 
property to the west is developed with industrial buildings, which are located within the 
City of Chino; and 

WHEREAS, the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan is composed of 
123.17 acres of land which includes the potential development of 2,951,146 square feet 
of industrial development; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed building has been designed to feature three potential 
offices pods. One office will be located at the northwest corner of the building, a second 
at the southwest corner and a third, at the northeast corner of the building; and 

 WHEREAS, the building will provide setbacks of 259-feet along Merrill Avenue, 
68-feet along the eastern property line (Cucamonga Creek Flood Control Channel), 174-
feet along Carpenter Avenue, and 135-feet along the south property line. The building
and the site screen walls for the truck courts have been designed and carefully situated,
to minimize public visibility of the loading areas located along the north and south sides
of the building; and

Item A-02 - 17 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the project proposes two parking layout alternatives to provide 
flexibility for a future tenant. Alternative 1 proposes a total 340 parking spaces, which is 
298 parking spaces less than the requirement.  However, in the event that a future tenant 
requires 638 parking spaces or more, parking Alternative 2 could be implemented to add 
up to 1,125 additional parking spaces within the north truck court area of the building. The 
additional truck area parking spaces and the 340 standard parking spaces, provided 
within the western parking lot, would total 1,500 parking spaces. This is a surplus of 862 
parking spaces and 86 trailer parking spaces from what is required. The Development 
Code (Division 6.03, Section 6.03.020) allows for a reduction in parking if an alternate off-
street parking plan, demonstrates that additional parking spaces can be provided on-site, 
as necessary, to accommodate future land use changes or intensifications in land use; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSP15-001, Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan for 
which an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) SCH#2015061023 was adopted by the City 
Council on October 3, 2017, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental 
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed; and 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible 
environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element 
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 

Item A-02 - 18 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 3 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and 
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and 
future airport activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 

WHEREAS, the project is subject to the requirements of the related Development 
Agreement, File No. PDA17-004.  

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018, the Development Advisory Board of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB18-035, recommending the Planning Commission 
approve the Application; and 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date; 
and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision 
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the previous Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH#2015061023) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and 
information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting documentation, the 
Planning Commission finds as follows: 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
an Environmental Impact Report, certified by the City of Ontario City Council on October 
3, 2017, in conjunction with File No. PSP15-001; and 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of
the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 

Item A-02 - 19 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 4 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and
the Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the
Planning Commission; and 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation 
measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not 
Required. Based on the information presented to the Planning Commission, and the 
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the 
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, 
as the Project: 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects; and 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the 
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and. 

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the 
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or 

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or  

Item A-02 - 20 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 5 

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects 
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the decision making body for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based on 
the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at 
the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available 
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility 
Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts 
of current and future airport activity. As the decision making body for the Project, the 
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained 
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] 
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones 
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed 1,255,382 
square foot industrial building on 57.68 acres of land, is located within the Industrial land 

Item A-02 - 21 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 6 

use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and  Planning Area 1 of the the Colony 
Commerce Center West Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed development is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP), under the 
following goals and policies: 

a. Policy LU1-5, which goal is to coordinate land uses, infrastructure,
and transportation planning to achieve a jobs-housing balance; and

b. Policy LU1-6, which states that we incorporate a variety of land uses
and building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a
complete community.

Furthermore, the design and proposed improvement of the development are consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to 
providing “a high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and 
developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2); and 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, 
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in 
which the site is located. The proposed 1,255,382 square foot industrial building on 
57.68 acres of land has been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of 
Ontario Development Code and Planning Area 1 of the Colony Commerce Center West 
Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (industrial), 
as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of 
off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls 
and obstructions. The proposed development has been designed to maximize the subject 
property, in addition, the proposed development will comply with all the setbacks, parking 
and landscape requirements for the zone. The proposed project is not requesting any 
Variances, therefore, it complies with all the Specific Plan development requirements. In 
addition, all the City departments such as traffic, police , engineering, utilities, planning 
and building and safety have reviewed the proposed development and they are in support 
of the project, subject to the attached conditions of approval; and 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum 
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have 
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required 

Item A-02 - 22 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 7 

certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been 
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific 
Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general 
welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the 
project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in 
full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The 
Ontario Plan, and the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan. In addition, an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared for the project under File No. PSP15-
001, and all the mitigation measures for any impacts were identified and adopted by City 
Council on October 3, 2017. No new impacts are anticipate as a result of the proposed 
development; and 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable 
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed 1,255,382 square foot 
industrial building on 57.68 acres has been reviewed for consistency with the general 
development standards and guidelines of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific 
Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and 
parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, 
parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the particular land use being proposed. As a result of this review, the Planning 
Commission has found the project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions 
of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described 
in the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan. 

SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 

Item A-02 - 23 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 8 

at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of June 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 

Richard D. Delman 
Planning Commission Chairman 

ATTEST: 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

Item A-02 - 24 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 9 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the 
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was 
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their 
regular meeting held on June 26, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

Item A-02 - 25 of 58



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-052 
June 26, 2018 
Page 10 

ATTACHMENT A: 

File No. PDEV17-052 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 

Item A-02 - 26 of 58



Meeting Date: 

File No: 

Related Files: 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

June 26, 2018

PDEV17-052

PSP15-001

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-052) to construct a 1,255,382 square foot
industrial building on 57.68 acres of land, for property generally located along the southeast corner of Merrill
Avenue and Carpenter Avenue, within Planning Area 1 (PA-1) of the Colony Commerce Center West
Specific Plan. APN(s): 0218-292-05 and 0218-311-11; submitted by ProLogis LP.

Prepared By: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner �
Phone: 909.395.2431 (direct)�
Email: Lbatres@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New

Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development

identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2.1 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

Item A-02 - 27 of 58



Item A-02 - 28 of 58



Item A-02 - 29 of 58



Item A-02 - 30 of 58



Item A-02 - 31 of 58



ONTARIO 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

(Environmental, Traffic/Transportation Division, Ontario Municipal Utilities Company 
Information Technology and Management Services Department conditions incorporated herein) 

[gJ DEVELOPMENT 0 PARCEL MAP OTRACT MAP 
PLAN 
OTHER 0 FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES 

PROJECT FILE NO. PDEV17-052 

RELATED FILE NO{S). 

[gJ ORIGINAL O REVISED: _;_; _ 

CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO: 

CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO: 

DAB MEETING DATE: 

PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION: 

LOCATION: 

APPLICANT: 

REVIEWED BY: 

APPROVED BY: 

Last Revised: 6/12/2018 

Bryan Lirley, P.E. (909) 395-2137JL.. 

Luis Batres, (909) 395-2431 

June 26, 2018 

PDEV17-052, a Development plan to 
construct one Industrial building 
totaling 1,255,517 square feet on 
approximately 54.78 acres of land within 
the Colony Commerce Center West 
Specific Plan

Southeast 
 

corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue 
Prologis LP. 

6. ;,.,z -, I% 
Date 

(p-(1.. �,b 
Date 

Item A-02 - 32 of 58



Project File No PDEV 17-052 
Projl'Ct Engineer: Bryan Lirlcy. P E. 
Date: 06/26/18 

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE 
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED IN HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF 
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT PROJECT APPROVAL, ISSUANCE OF 
PERMITS AND/OR OCCUPANCY CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT. 

1. PRIOR TO FINAL MAP Check When 
Complete 

D 1.01 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way, described below: D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

_____ feet on----------------------------

Property line comer 'cut-back' required at the intersection of---------------
and. __________________ _ 

1.02 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s): 0 

1.03 Restrict vehicular access to the site as follows: 0 
1.04 Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s): D 
1.05 Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or O 

easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all 
common access areas and drive aisles. 

1.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to the O 
project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready for 
recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall provide for, but not be limited to, 
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility for all common access improvements, 
common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and landscaping improvements and drive 
approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements established in the Water Quality Management 
Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair 
responsibility for public improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located 
within open space/easements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City 
shall only restore disturbed areas to current City Standards. 

1.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified O 
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http.'/ltceplumecleanup.coml), the property 
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume "Disclosure 
Letter". Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure 
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and 
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board at httpilgeotracker waterboards ca.govlprofile_reporl?g/obal_id=T10000004658.

1.08 File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment O 
processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Management Services 
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement. 

(1) --------------

(2) -------------

1.09 Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with D 
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements. 

l..ist Rcvist!d 6'12 12018 Page 2 of 16 

Item A-02 - 33 of 58



ProJt.'Ct File No. POEV 17-052 
Pmjt'Ct Engineer: Bryan Lirley. P.E. 

Date: 061261 I 8 -
D 

D 

D 

D 

.. ___ . 

1.10 Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City's approved cost O 
estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City's website: www.ci.ontario.ca.us) or as 
specified in writing by the applicant's Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of Record and 
approved by the City Engineer, whichever is greater. 

1.11 Provide a preliminary title report current to within 30 days. D 

1.12 File an application. together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities D 
District (CFO) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982. The application 
and fee shall be submitted a minimum of three (3) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and 
the CFO shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits, 
whichever occurs first. The CFO shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for 
various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be 
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the 
sole lead agency in the formation of any CFO. Contact Management Services at (909) 395-2353 to 
initiate the CFO application process. 

1.13 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: 0 

D 1) Provide evidence of final cancellation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this tract, prior
to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been approved by the City 
Council. 

D 2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm
Water Treatment Equivalents). 

D 3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MOD Availability).

D 1.14 Other conditions:----------------------------- D 

2. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMITS, APPLICANT SHALL:

D 

D 

[8J 

D 

D 

D 

A. GENERAL
( Permits Includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment )

2.01 
D 

Record Parcel Map/Tract Map No. ____ pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance 
with the City of Ontario Municipal Code. 

2.02 Submit a duplicate photo mylar of the recorded map to the City Engineer's office. O 

2.03 Note that the subject parcel is a recognized parcel in the City of Ontario O 
per Deed to Dave Akkerman & Angeline Alta Akkerman, Recorded Oct. 24, 1945 in Book 1838, 
Page 81, Official Records, San Bernardino County. 

2.04 Note that the subject parcel is an ·unrecognized' parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a O 
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the existence of the 
parcel prior to the date of, __________ _ 

2.05 Apply for a: D Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey; D Lot Line Adjustment O 

D Make a Dedication of Easement.

2.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R's), as applicable to the O 
project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready 
for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&R's shall provide for, but not be limited to, 
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common access improvements, common 
facilities, parking areas, utilities and drive approaches in addition to maintenance requirements 
established in the Water Quality Management Plan ( WQMP), as applicable to the project. 

Las1 Revised 6/1212018 Page3 of 16 

Item A-02 - 34 of 58



Project File No. PDEV 17-052 
Project Enginec,: Bl)·an Lirlcy. P E. 
Date: 06 26//J 8 

2.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the O 
specified boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http://tceplumecleanup.coml), the 
property developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume 
"Disclosure Letter". Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate 
Transfer Disclosure requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may 
include notifications in the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other 
documents related to property transfer and disclosures. Additional information on the plume is 
available from the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board at 
http://geotracl<er.waterboards.ca.gov/pronle_report7g/obal_id=T10000004658. 

2.08 Submit a soils/geology report. 0 

2.09 Other Agency PermiUApproval: Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of O 
approval of the project from the following agency or agencies: 

D State of California Department of Transportation (Caitrans)
D San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD)
[:8J San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD) ) • for any improvements

affecting the Cucamonga Creek Channel or adjacent storm drains owned by said 
jurisdiction. 

D Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
D Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for sewer/water service
t8J United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) • for any improvements affecting the

Cucamonga Creek Channel or adjacent storm drains owned by said jurisdiction. 
D California Department of Fish & Game
[:8J Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) • Recycled Water connection/relocation
t8J Other: City of Chino - for any Improvements encroaching into the City of Chino

� 2.10 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way, in fee simple, described below: 

1. South side of Merrill Avenue to achieve the ultimate half street width of 54 feet from the
intersection of Merrill Avenue/Carpenter Avenue to the easterly project limits.

2. East side of Carpenter Avenue to achieve the ultimate half street width of 33 feet from
the southerly project limits to the intersection of Merrill Avenue/Carpenter Avenue.

3. Additional 23' on the south side of Merrill Avenue for neighborhood edge.

Property line corner 'cut-back' required at the intersection of: 

1. Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue.

D 2.11 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the following easement(s): _______________ _ 

� 2.12 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: 

[gJ 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bernardino County Health Department to the 
Engineering Department and the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) for the 

Last Rt'vised 6'121.1018 Page 4 of 16 

D 

D 

D 

Item A-02 - 35 of 58



l'roj<>ct File No. PDEV 17-052 
Project Engineer: Bryan Lirky. P. E. 
Date: 061 26/18 

2.13 

2.14 

2.15 

2.16 

destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in 
accordance with the San Bernardino County Health Department guidelines. 

181 2) Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed 
temporary use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as 
grading, dust control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the 
City of Ontario and pay any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement. 

181 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no 
case shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top 
of a maximum 3-foot high retaining wall. 

Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the 
public improvements required herein valued at 100% of the approved construction cost 
estimate. Security deposit shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code. 
Security deposit will be eligible for release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion 
and acceptance of said public improvements. 

The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed 
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and 
around the project site. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey 
Office. 

Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. Storm Drain Development 
Impact Fee, approximately $2,169,835, shall be paid to the Building Department. Final fee shall 
be determined based on the approved site plan. 

Other conditions: 
1. The applicant/developer shall vacate the existing southern 25' of Merrill Access Road

located between the project site and APN 0218-261-24 ("Not A Part"). If the existing
overhead utilities within Merrill Access Road are located on the applicant/developer's
portion of the vacated roadway, they shall be undergrounded per the City of Ontario's
Ordinance.

2. The applicant/developer shall acquire the property line comer 'cut-back' at the
southeast corner of Carpenter Avenue and Merrill Avenue per City of Ontario Standard
Drawing No. 1301.

3. The applicant/developer shall acquire right-of-way necessary along Merrill Avenue and
Carpenter Avenue adjacent to "Not A Part" APN 0218-261-24 to construct full half-street
improvements on the south and east side including, but not be limited to, curb and 
gutter, signing and striping and traffic signal.

Last Revised 611212018 Page 5 of 16 

D 

D 

D 

D 

Item A-02 - 36 of 58



P1uJ�-ct File No. PDEVJ 7-052 
Project Engineer: Bryan Lirlcy. P. E. 
Date· 06/26/18 

B. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
(See attached Exhibit 'A' for plan check submittal requirements.) 

[gJ 2.17 Design and construct full public improvements in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal 
Code, current City standards and specifications, master plans and the adopted specific plan for 
the area, if any. These public improvements shall include, but not be limited to, the following 
(checked boxes): 

Improvement Merrill Avenue Carpenter Remington County Line 
Avenue Avenue Channel 

[8J New; 42 ft. New; 24ft. New; ft. D New;_ft. 
from C/L (1) East of C/L <1> from C/L from C/L 

D Replace D Replace D Replace D Replace 
Curb and Gutter damaged damaged damaged damaged 

D Remove D Remove D Remove D Remove 
and replace and replace and replace and replace 

[8J Replacement [8J Replacement 
[8J New; 40 ft. [8J New; 22 ft. Replacement olacement

AC Pavement along project east of C/L along Owiden_ Widen __ 
(see Sec. 2.F) frontage, frontage, additional feet additional feet 

including pavm't including pavm't along frontage, along frontage, 
transitions transitions including pavm't including pavm't 

transitions transitions 

[8J New 
PCC Pavement D Modify 
(Truck Route 

Only) existing existing 

New New 

Drive Approach D Remove D Remove 
and replace and replace 
replace replace 

[8J New<1)

Sldewalk D Remove 
and replace 
New New 

ADA Access D Remove D Remove 
Ramp and replace and replace 

[8J Trees <1> D Trees 
Parkway [8J Landscaping D 

(w/i rrigation) 

Raised 
Landscaped

Median 

New/ New/ New/ New/ 
Fire Hydrant Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade 

D Relocation D Relocation D Relocation D Relocation 

Last Revised 6/1212018 Page 6 of 16 

D 

Item A-02 - 37 of 58



Project File No PDEV 17-052 
Projc'Ct Engincc1: Bryan Lirlcy. P E. 
Date 06 /26Vl8 

Sewer 
(see Sec. 2.C) 

Water 
(see Sec. 2.D) 

Recycled Water 
(see Sec. 2.E) 

Traffic Signal 
System 

(see Sec. 2.F) 

Traffic Signing 
and Striping 
(see Sec. 2.F) 

Street Light 
(see Sec. 2.F) 

Bus Stop Pad or 
Tum-out 

(see Sec. 2.F) 

Storm Drain 
(see Sec. 2G)

Fiber Optics 
(see Sec. 2K) 

Overhead Utilities 

Removal of 
Improvements 

Other 
Improvements 

[2:1 Main <2> 
D Lateral 

�Main 
D Service 

IX! Main 
[2:1 Service 

�New 
D Modify 

existing 

�New 
D Modify 

existing 

�New 
D Relocation 

0New 
D Modify 

existing 
�Main 
� Lateral 

IX! Conduit I
Appurtenances 

LJ Underground 
D Relocate 

IX! Widen south 
side of bridge to 
ultimate width 

161 Main !XI Main 
[gl Lateral D Lateral 

�Main �Main 
[gl Service D Service 

LJ Main LJ Main 
D Service D Service 

!XI New LJ New 
D Modify D Modify 

existing existing 

�New 
D Modify 

LJNew 
D Modify 

existing existing 

lQJ New LJ New/ 
D Relocation Upgrade 

D Relocation 

LJ New LJ New 
D Modify D Modify 

existing existing 
LJ Main LJ Main 
D Lateral D Lateral 

IX! Conduit I LJ Conduit/ 
Appurtenances Appurtenances 

� Underground LJ Underground 
D Relocate D Relocate 

Removal of 
existing 
pavement that Is 
not constructed 
to ultimate depth 

Specific notes for improvements listed in item no. 2.17, above: 

LJ Main 
D Lateral 

�Main 
D Service 

LJ Main 
D Service 

LJ New 
D Modify 

existing 

LJNew 
D Modify 

existing 

LJ New/ 
Upgrade 

D Relocation 

LJ New 
D Modify 

existing 
LJ Main 
D Lateral 

LJ Conduit/ 
Appurtenances 

LJ Underground 
D Relocate 

1. The applicant/developer will be required to construct curb and gutter and roadway
improvements (parkway improvements will not be required)adjacent to "Not a Part",
APN 0218-261-24.

Last Re'"ised 6112 120 18 

2. The applicant/developer shall install all master planned utilities to be placed under new
roadway designed to the ultimate condition.

Page 7 or 16 

Item A-02 - 38 of 58



Projecl F1k No POEV 17-052 
P1ojc.'CI Enginc<.'r: Bryan Lirley. 
P.E. Dal<': 06/26/18

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

� 

D 

2.18 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following street(s): D 

2.19 Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing number D 
1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design. Minimum 
limits of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter. 

2.20 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide O water service D 
D sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CVWO and Applicant shall 
provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CVWD fees have been paid. 

2.21 Overhead utilities shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City's Municipal D 
Code (Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892). 

2.22 Other conditions: D 

C. SEWER

2.23 A ___ inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in D 
(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: ) 

2.24 Design and construct a sewer main extension. A sewer main is not available for direct D 
connection. The closest main Is approximately 3,100 feet away. 

2.25 Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject D 
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area. 
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of the model. Based on the 
results of the analysis, Applicant may be required to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public 
sewer system, including, but not limited to, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new 
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to another sewer. 

2.26 Other conditions: D 
1. Carpenter Trunk Sewer: Install the Sewer Master Plan Carpenter Trunk Sewer from just

north of Merrill Avenue and southerly to connect to the Eastern Trunk Sewer at Moon
Place. Carpenter Trunk Sewer at minimum consists of: Installing a 24-lnch main in
Carpenter Avenue from just north of Merrill Avenue to Remington Avenue; and,
installing a 24-inch sewer main in Remington Avenue from Carpenter to Moon Place;
and, installing a 24-lnch sewer main in Moon Place from Remington Avenue to connect
with IEUA's Eastern Trunk Sewer along the County Line.

2. Onsite Sewer Svstem and Plumbing: The Onsite Sewer System shall be privately
maintained by the property owner and shall meet the following requirements:

a. The Onsite sewer system and building plumbing shall be designed in such a
way that the sanitary wastewater flows leave the building separately from non
sanitary wastewater flows (Industrial, process, or kitchen, etc.) and the line for
non-sanitary wastewater flows can be upgraded in the future to have
pretreatment equipment and devices on it, as required by a Wastewater
Discharge Permit.

b. Each connection from the Onsite Sewer System to the Public Sewer System
shall have a monitoring manhole prior to the point of connection with the
public sewer system.

3. Wastewater Discharge: Each Occupant of the building, or units, shall apply for a
Wastewater Discharge Permit for their establishment, and shall comply with all the
requirements of their Wastewater Discharge Permit. Requirements of Wastewater
Discharge Permit may include, but not limited to including: possibly installing a
monitoring manhole, clarifier, or other sewer pretreatment equipment.

Last Rcvi�cd 6 1 12/2018 Page 8 of 16 

Item A-02 - 39 of 58



Project file No. PDEVI 7-052 
Project Enginc,-r 81) an lirle). P E 
Date: 06 26 18 

D 

[81 

D. WATER

2.27 A ___ inch water main is available for connection by this project in ------------
(Ref: Water plan bar code: ) 

2.28 Design and construct a water main extension. A water main is not available for direct 
connection. The closest main is approximately 2,600 feet away. 

D 

D 

[81 2.29 Other conditions: D 

D 

1. The proposed project is required to have a minimum of two separate points of 
connection to the 925 PZ potable water system. In order to meet minimum fire flow,
one point of connection will be at Archibald & Merrill and the second at Archibald & the
County Line Channel/Bellegrave Avenue. Applicant/developer is responsible for 
acquiring all necessary easements from the owner of APN's 0218-311-07 & 08.

a. Install a 12-inch 925PZ Potable Water main fn Merrill Avenue connecting from
existing 12-inch 925PZ Potable Water main In Archibald Avenue and extending
to Carpenter Avenue. 

b. Install a 12-inch 925PZ Potable Water main In Carpenter Avenue connecting 
from Merrill Avenue to Remington Avenue.

c. Install a 12-inch 925PZ Potable Water main in Remington Avenue connecting 
from existing 12-inch 925PZ Potable Water main In Archibald Avenue and 
extending to Carpenter Avenue.

E. RECYCLED WATER

2.30 A ___ inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in D 
(Ref: Recycled Water plan bar code: ) 

2.31 Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main D 
does exist in the vicinity of this project. 

2.32 Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main D 
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant 
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection 
shall be borne solely by the Applicant. 

2.33 Submit two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering D 
Report (ER), for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to 
the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval. 

Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3) 
months. Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2687 regarding this 
requirement. 

D 2.34 Other conditions: D 

1. Install a 12-inch 930PZ Potable Water main in Merrill Avenue connecting from existing 
12-inch 930PZ Recycled Water main in Archibald Avenue and extending to Carpenter 
Avenue.

2. Relocate existing IEUA 30-inch 800PZ Recycled Water Main in Carpenter Avenue from 
just south of south project boundary, along Carpenter Project frontage, to just north of 
Merrill Avenue.

3. City Ordinance 2689: This development shall comply with City Ordinance 2689 and 
make use of recycled water for all approved uses, including but not limited to
landscaping Irrigation.

4. Recycled Water Service Requirements: The applicant shall comply with each of the 
following requirements in order to receive Recycled Water Service service:

Last Rc,·i�cd 6/1212018 Page 9 of 16 

Item A-02 - 40 of 58



P1oj�-c1 Fik No. PDEVI 7-052 
P1c,jec1 Engineer: Bl)•an Lirlcy, P E 
OJII." 06/26/ 18 

D 

Prior to Building Permits Issuance: 

a. Provide two hard copies and the digital files (in PDF and AutoCAD format) for
both on-site and off-site utility plans, including landscape and irrigation
improvements.

Prior to Occupancy Release/Finalizing: 

b. Pass start-up and cross-connection test successfully.
c. Provide evidence demonstrating the training of on-site supervisor or deslgnee

as determined in the ER.

F. TRAFFIC/ TRANSPORTATION

2.35 Submit a focused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the D 
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues as required by 
the City Engineer: 
1 . On-site and off-site circulation 
2. Traffic level of service (LOS) at 'build-out' and future years
3. Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer

2.36 New traffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer D 
account number # 2-20-044-3877. 

2.37 Other conditions: D 
1. The proposed driveways on the "Not a Part" parcel shall be designed and constructed

in accordance with City of Ontario Standard Drawing No. 1204 for Commercial Driveway
Approach to accommodate the appropriate design vehicles for the site.

2. Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue shall be signed "No Stopping Anytime".

3. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct street
improvements along project frontage in accordance with conditions issued by City's
Land Development Division. These, and all other street improvements required herein,
shall include, but not be limited to, concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, LED street
lights, signing and striping, parkway landscaping, and, where designated,
"neighborhood edge" and/or multi-purpose trail.

4. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to acquire the necessary right of way,
design and construct a traffic signal at Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue. The
traffic signal modification shall address the relocation of any equipment Including
video detection, CCTV, interconnect cable and conduit, battery back-up, emergency
vehicle preemption systems and bicycle detection to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. All new signal equipment shall be installed at Its ultimate location.

5. If, at the time of construction of PDEV17-052, the intersection of Carpenter and Merrlll
Avenue has not been improved to its "ultimate" configuration, Applicant/Developer
shall design and construct Intersection Improvements at the intersection of Carpenter
and Merrill Avenue to facilitate turning movements and trucks. This shall include:

a. Westbound left-turn pocket with appropriate length and pavement transitions;
b. Eastbound left-turn pocket with appropriate length and pavement transitions;
c. Any other improvements identified in the Traffic analysis.
d. Acquisition of all right-of way necessary to achieve above.

6. Driveways shall be constructed in accordance with Standard Drawing No. 1204 for
Commercial Drive Approach.

7. The Applicant/Developer's engineer-of-record shall meet with City Engineering staff
prior to starting traffic signal, signing and striping and/or street lighting design to

Last Revised 6112120 18 Page IO of 16 

Item A-02 - 41 of 58



Project File No. PDEV 17-052 
Project Engineer: Bryan L1rlcy. P. 
E. Date: 06/26/18 

D 

D 

D 

D 

� 

D 

discuss items such as signal phasing, striping layout and tie-ins to existing or future 
street light circuits. 

8. The applicant/developer shall widen the southern half of the existing Merrill Avenue
bridge at the Cucamonga Creek Channel crossing to its ultimate width.

G. DRAINAGE /HYDROLOGY

2.38 A ___ inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in--------
(Ref: Storm Drain plan bar code: ) 

D 

2.39 Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer O 
registered i n  the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San 
Bernardino County Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional 
drainage facilities, including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may 
be required to be designed and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this 
study. 

2.40 An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist O 
downstream of the project. Design and construct a storm water detention facility on the project site. 
100 year post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80% of pre
development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and improvement plans. 

2.41 Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to the O 
Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration of historical 
drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the project. 

2.42 Comply with the City of Ontario Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2409). The O 
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as indicated 
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100 year frequency storm. 
The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program. 

2.43 Other conditions: 0 
1. The applicant/developer shall construct the master planned storm drain lines in Merrill

Avenue along the project frontage and the connection to the Cucamonga Creek
Channel.

2. The applicant/developer shall either connect directly to the Cucamonga Creek Channel
or coordinate with the developer to the south in order to accommodate this projects on
site runoff flows.

H. STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES)

2.44 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit - Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of 
surface water (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality 
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB) 
and a 404 Permit from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USAGE). The groups of water 
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain 
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County 
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels. 
If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant's 
engineer shall be submitted. 
Contact information: USAGE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB (951) 782-4130. 

2.45 Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the 
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted, 
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at: 
http://www.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp. 

2.46 Other conditions: 

D 

D 

D 

Last Revised 611212018 Page 11 or 16 

Item A-02 - 42 of 58



Project rile No. PDEV17-052 
Project Engineer: 81) ,m Lirlcy. P. E 
Datt·: 06/261 18 

J. SPECIAL DISTRICTS

[8J 2.47 File an application, together with an initial payment deposit (if required), to establish a O
Community Facilities District (CFO) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community facilities District Act 
of 1982. The application and fee shall be submitted a minimum three (3) months prior to final 
subdivision map approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map 
approval or issuance of bulldlng permits, whichever occurs first. The CFO shall be established 
upon the subject property to provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax 
shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be 
collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the sole lead agency in the 
formation of any CFO. Contact the Management Services Department at (909) 395-2353 to 
initiate the CFO application process. 

D 2.48 Other conditions: 0 

K. FIBER OPTIC
2.49 Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City's conduit and fiber optic O

system per the City's Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the 
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall 
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. Conduit infrastructure shall 
interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit system at the 
nearest OntarioNet hand hole. Generally located along the Merrill and Carpenter Avenue 
project frontage. 

2.50 Refer to the City's Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines. Contact the O 
Information Technology Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement. 

L. Solid Waste

1:8:1 2.51 Onsite solid waste shall be designed in accordance with the City's Solid Waste Manual location D
at: 
http://www.ontarioca.gov/municipal-utilities-company/solid-waste 

2.52 Other conditions: 
1. Solid Waste Handling Plan (SWHP): A SWHP and Report shall be submitted with

Precise Grading Plan for review and approval of Ontario Municipal Utility Company. The
SWHP shall follow the SWHP Guidance Document available from OMUC and shall have
at minimum all the following elements:

a. SWHP Content and Format: The Solid Waste Handling Plan shall demonstrate
compliance with the Services Standards in the City's Solid Waste Planning
Manual (available online at: http://www.ontarioca.gov/municipal-utilities
company/solid-waste) and shall contain, at a minimum, the following elements:
i. A statement identifying the Service Requirements being used (e.g. Single

Family Detached with automated cans, Multi-family/ Commercial with bins,
etc.) and describing the solid waste handling operation (for instance, will
there be scouting services, etc.)

ii. A table utilizing the metrics of the Planning Manual and calculating the
volume (gallons or cubic yards), quantity, and service schedule for each
type of can and bin required for each Service Category (refuse, recycled,
organics, etc.).

Last Revised 6112/2018 Page 12 of 16 

Item A-02 - 43 of 58



Project File No PDEV 17-052 
Proje<:t Engine,.,-: Bryan Lirley. P E. 
Date: 06/26/ 18 

Last Rt:\'iscd 6/12/2018 

iii. An Engineering Site Plan drawn to scale that shows :

• A detail of the Solid Waste Vehicle with dimensions and annotation that
states the minimum turning radii and path of travel widths actually being
used on the plan.

• The Solid Waste Vehicle turning movements and paths of travel in each

direction of travel and at all intersections. All paths of travel shall be 15
feet wide minimum.

• All parking stalls and parallel parking spaces along all streets, alleys, or
aisles.

Page 13 of 16 

Item A-02 - 44 of 58



Projcc1 File No. PDEV17-052 
Projecl Engincc, .. Bryan Lirlry. P.E. 
Dale: 06 26, 18 

3. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

3.01 Set new monuments in place of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed as a 
result of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City 
of Ontario standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

3.02 Complete all requirements for recycled water usage. 

� 1) Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California 
Department of Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and 
the subject site is approved for the use of recycled water. 

� 2) Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water 
improvements and passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon 
availability/usage of recycled water. 

� 3) Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in 
accordance with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water. 

3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed 
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been 
preserved, revised, adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey 
needed to comply with these Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California 
Professional Land Survey Act. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City 
Survey Office. 

3.04 NMC Projects: For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial 
streets, the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that 
intersection. Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks, 
acceptable methodology and required submittals. 

3.05 Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. 

3.06 Submit electronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, studie 
and 
reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.). 

Last Revised 6ll212018 Page 14 of 16 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

Item A-02 - 45 of 58



Project File No. PDEV I 7-052 
Proj�ct Engnu:cr: Bryan L1rky. P.E. 
Date. 06 26/ 18 

EXHIBIT 'A' 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

First Plan Check Submittal Checklist 

Project Number: PDEV 17-052, 

The following items are required to be Included with the first plan check submittal: 

1. [81 A copy of this check list

2. [81 Payment of fee for Plan Checking

3. 183 One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer's wet signature and stamp.

4. 183 One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval

5. 183 Two (2) sets of Potable and Recycled Water demand calculations (include water demand calculations
showing low, average and peak water demand In GPM for the proposed development and proposed water
meter size).

6. 183 Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

7. 181 Three (3) sets of Private Street Improvement plan with street cross-sections

8. 181 Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (Include water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)

9. 183 Four (4) sets of Recycled Water Improvement plan (Include recycled water demand calculations showing
low, average and peak water demand In GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size
and an exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water meter) 

10. [81 Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan

11. [81 Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan

12. 181 Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan

13. [81 Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan

14. [81 Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

15. [81 Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must show existing
and ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location includlng centerline dimensions, wall to 
wall clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work repaired per Standard
Drawing No. 1306. Include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

16. [81 Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications with
modified Special Provisions. Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic Signal
Specifications.

17. [81 Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved
Preliminary WQMP (PWQMP).

18. [81 One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study

19. 181 One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report

20. 0 Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee

Last Revised 6112'20 I 8 Page I 5 of 16 

Item A-02 - 46 of 58



Proj,'Ct File No PDEV 17-052 
Projc'CI Engineer: Bryan Lirky. P E. 
Date: 06/26/18 

21. D Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map

22. t8l One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map

23. t8l One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days)

24. D One {1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations

25. t8l One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (leglble copies): referenced improvement plans (full
size), referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18"x26"}, Assessor's Parcel map (full size,
11"x17"), recorded documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc.

26. t8l Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic submittal) for
recycled water use

27. D Other:----------------

Last Revised 6' 12/W I 8 Page 16 of 16 

Item A-02 - 47 of 58



Item A-02 - 48 of 58



Item A-02 - 49 of 58



Item A-02 - 50 of 58



Item A-02 - 51 of 58



Item A-02 - 52 of 58



Item A-02 - 53 of 58



Item A-02 - 54 of 58



Item A-02 - 55 of 58



Item A-02 - 56 of 58



Item A-02 - 57 of 58



Item A-02 - 58 of 58



Case Planner:  Alexis Vaughn Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 
ZA 

Submittal Date:  2/23/18 PC 6/26/18 Final 
Hearing Deadline:  N/A CC 

SUBJECT: A Variance to deviate from the minimum Development Code standards for 
parking setbacks along an arterial street, from 20 feet to 13 feet, for an existing senior 
living facility (Inland Christian Home, Inc.), on 8.74 acres of land located at 1950 S. 
Mountain Avenue, within the Medium Density Residential (MDR-18) zoning district; (APN: 
1014-461-12); submitted by Inland Christian Home, INC. 

PROPERTY OWNER: Inland Christian Home, INC. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission approve File No. PVAR18-
001, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached 
resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is 
comprised of 8.74 acres of land located at 
1950 S. Mountain Avenue, within the 
MDR18 (Medium-Density Residential) 
zoning district, and is depicted in Figure 
1: Project Location. The project site is 
currently developed with a continuing 
care retirement community. The 
properties to the north and south of the 
project site are zoned MDR18, and are 
currently developed with multi-family 
residential uses. The properties to the 
west of the project site are zoned AR2 
(Residential-Agricultural), and are 
currently developed with single-family 
homes. The properties to the east of the 
project site are MDR18 and LDR5 (Low-
Density Residential), and are developed 
with multi-family housing and a church, 
respectively. 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
June 26, 2018 

Figure 1: Project Location 

Item B - 1 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 of 12 

[1] Background — The site was developed with a senior housing and continuing care 
retirement community in the 1980s (See Exhibit A – Project Location Map). Inland 
Christian Home, a non-profit organization, offers an assortment of residential options for 
seniors, including independent and assisted living, skilled nursing, memory care, adult 
daycare and in-home care.  
 
On February 23, 2018, the Applicant applied for a Variance (PVAR18-001) to deviate from 
the minimum Development Code standard for parking setbacks, from 20 feet to 13 feet 
at the front property line (See Exhibits B and C regarding existing and proposed site 
plans). Due to the existing configuration of the campus and required circulation/drive 
aisles for emergency vehicle access, options to provide additional parking for the facility 
are limited. Thus, the Applicant has proposed a reduction in the front landscaping setback 
as described in order to provide added convenience and accommodate additional parking 
for visitors and staff of the adjacent skilled nursing facility.  

 
[2] Site Design/Building Layout — No changes to the existing buildings are proposed. 
 
[3] Site Access/Circulation — The site is accessed by three existing driveways along 

the east property line of the site. No changes are proposed to any of the drive approaches; 
however, one of the drive aisles leading from the center drive approach toward the north 
end of the site will be altered slightly to accommodate the project’s new parking.  

 
[4] Parking — The project will alter an existing 11-stall parking lot to add 15 new stalls, 

for a total of 26 parking stalls in the immediate project area (See Exhibit D – Scope of 
Work Detail) and 267 parking stalls overall. Overall, the site currently provides 252 
parking spaces on-site to accompany 221 total living units on the campus. The campus 
includes 71 apartments (16 one-bedroom, 53 two-bedroom, and 2 studios), 41 cottages 
(15 one-bedroom and 26 two-bedroom), 32 assisted living and 18 memory care (one-bed 
sleeping rooms), and 59 skilled nursing beds.  

 
The project will allow the campus to provide off-street parking pursuant to the “Senior 
Citizen Housing – Market-Rate Development” parking standards specified in the 
Development Code. The off-street parking calculations for the project are as follows: 

Type of Use 
Number of 
Dwelling 

Units 
Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

Senior Citizen Housing – 
Income Qualified 
Development 

221 
One resident space per dwelling, plus, 
guest/visitor parking spaces pursuant to the 
Multiple-Family Residential standards 
(below). 

221  

Guest/Visitor 
> 100 

dwelling 
units 

One space per 6 dwellings. 37  

TOTAL   258 267 

Item B - 2 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 of 12 

The facility currently has a deficit of six parking spaces per today’s Development Code 
standards; however, with the addition of the proposed 15 new parking spaces, the 
campus would have a surplus of nine parking spaces. Per the Code, there is no maximum 
limit as to the number of parking spaces that may be provided for residential uses, and 
any additional parking over the requirement may be provided as a matter of right. Further, 
the availability of additional parking provides added convenience to both visitors and 
skilled nursing staff of the facility. 
 

[5] Landscaping — The campus provides a variety of landscaped courtyards and 
recreational uses interior to the facility, with a landscaped front setback along Mountain 
Avenue. Overall, the campus provides 130,456 square feet of landscaping, which is 
approximately 34% landscape coverage of the 8.74-acre lot. Per the current Development 
Code standards, multi-family facilities are required to provide 500 square feet of total open 
space per residential unit, which the facility more than covers with turf areas alone. In 
addition to the turf areas, other open-space amenities have been provided, such as a 
gazebo, an outdoor play court (shuffleboard), and benches along a meandering pathway 
between buildings. Additionally, the average depth of landscaping along the entire project 
site’s frontage is 26.6 feet, as a large stretch of the site enjoys upwards of 38 feet of 
landscape setbacks, excluding the parkway. 
 
The proposed project will result in an overall loss of 2,286 square feet of landscaping to 
accommodate the additional parking spaces, within an area currently made up of grass 
and mature Canary Island Pine street trees. While the street trees are to remain protected 
in place, the proposed project will also replace the parkway turf grass with drought-
tolerant landscaping adjacent to the scope of work area (2,714 square feet), as well as 
introduce a few small landscape fingers where they previously did not exist (total of 138 
square feet). The applicant will work with staff in plan check to finalize the drought-tolerant 
planting palette. 

 
[6] Variance - The Variance request to deviate from the minimum Development Code 

standard for parking setbacks, from 20 feet to 13 feet at the front property line, is needed 
in order to provide additional parking for facility. Currently, the site is deficient by six 
parking spaces per today’s Development Code standards; however, with approval of the 
requested Variance, the project would provide a surplus of nine parking spaces. The 
additional parking spaces will provide an added amenity and convenience to both visitors 
of and skilled nursing staff for the facility. With the requested parking setback reduction 
of 13 feet, the project will still provide an average parking landscape setback of 26.6 feet 
along the entire Mountain Avenue frontage of the project.  Staff believes that the Variance 
request is consistent with The Ontario Plan (TOP) Goal LU3, which promotes flexibility in 
order to respond to special conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision. 
In acting on a Variance request, the Planning Commission must consider and clearly 
establish certain findings of fact, which are prescribed by State law and the City’s 
Development Code. The following facts and findings have been provided as basis for 
approval of the requested variance: 

Item B - 3 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 of 12 

(1) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 
regulation would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship 
inconsistent with the objectives of the development regulations contained in this 
Development Code. The 8.74-acre site is fully developed with a senior living facility, 
including open space requirements and paths of travel. The current configuration of the 
buildings and amenities creates constraints to the provision of additional on-site parking 
spaces. In addition, no parking is allowed on Mountain Avenue. Currently, the site is 
deficient by six parking spaces per today’s Development Code standards; however, with 
approval of the requested Variance, the project would provide a surplus of nine parking 
spaces. The additional parking spaces will provide an added amenity and convenience 
to both visitors of and skilled nursing staff for the facility. Further, the project site will still 
meet the minimum open space requirements per the Development Code, an average 
landscape setback of 26.6 feet and allow for adequate access for emergency vehicles. In 
addition, TOP Policy Plan Goal LU3 allows for flexible response to conditions and 
circumstances in order to achieve the Vision. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the 
Development Plan’s front parking setback would result in practical difficulty inconsistent 
with the objectives of the development regulations contained in the Development Code 
and TOP. 
 

(2) There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the property involved, or to the intended use of the property, that do 
not apply generally to other properties in the vicinity and in the same zoning 
district. The continuing care retirement community is unique in that it provides an array 
of housing and care options for seniors throughout the project site, including apartments, 
cottages, assisted living and memory care rooms, and skilled nursing beds. The skilled 
nursing facility is located toward the front entry of the project site and directly adjacent to 
the proposed project scope of work area. Therefore, parking was provided in front of this 
portion of the complex in order to accommodate visitors and nursing staff, whereas 
parking spaces for residents of the more independent living facilities are provided interior 
or to the rear of the site. Other multifamily residential properties nearby within the MDR18 
zone are primarily condominium or apartment uses with the provision of garages or 
carports for parking. Further, the majority of the properties in the neighborhood of the 
project site, along Mountain Avenue, currently enjoy reduced building setbacks in relation 
to today’s Development Code standards (an average of 20 feet rather than the required 
30 feet for arterial streets). In addition, the church directly across the street from the 
project site currently enjoys an approximate five-foot parking setback to the front property 
line. Lastly, on-street parking along the subject property’s street frontage is limited to 
emergency parking only, which further restricts parking options for this site. 
 

(3) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 
regulation would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other 
properties in the same zoning district. The requested relief from the minimum front 
parking setback will allow for greater design flexibility and will serve to equalize 
development rights between the applicant and owners of property in the same zoning 

Item B - 4 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 of 12 

district, located within the area of the project site. The unique nature of the facility, in that 
it provides a variety of senior housing types within the complex, creates additional 
challenges to providing ample parking to serve distinctive needs around the site. 
Furthermore, the majority of the nearby properties enjoy reduced building setbacks, and 
the church directly across the street from the project site enjoys a five-foot parking setback 
at the front property line. Therefore, the strict interpretation and enforcement of the front 
parking setback would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by owners of other 
properties within the same zoning district or general vicinity of the subject site. 
 

(4) The granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or welfare, or be materially injurious to properties or improvements 
in the vicinity. A thorough review and analysis of the proposed Variance and its potential 
to adversely impact properties surrounding the subject site was completed by staff. As a 
result of this review, certain design considerations will be incorporated into the project as 
conditions of approval to mitigate identified impacts to an acceptable level, including the 
use of landscape planters at the ends of the parking spaces to promote vehicle and 
pedestrian safety. 
 

(5) The proposed Variance is consistent with the goals, policies, plans 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, and the purposes of any applicable specific plan 
or planned unit development, and the purposes of this Development Code. The 
proposed Project is located with the Medium Density land use district of the Policy Plan 
Land Use Map, and the MDR18 (Medium-Density Residential) zoning district. The 
development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be 
constructed and maintained are consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of 
the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 

[2] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 

Land Use Element: 
 

 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 

Item B - 5 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 of 12 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of 
life. 
 

 CE1-6 Diversity of Housing. We collaborate with residents, housing 
providers and the development community to provide housing opportunities for every 
stage of life; we plan for a variety of housing types and price points to support our 
workforce, attract business and foster a balanced community. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials 
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and 
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits. 
 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and 
has been evaluated and found to be an existing land use and is not subject to the policies 
and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The application is a project pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and 
an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts. On the 
basis of the initial study, which indicated that all potential environmental impacts from the 
Project were less than significant or could be mitigated to a level of insignificance, a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared pursuant to CEQA, the State CEQA 
Guidelines and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines. Furthermore, to ensure that 
the mitigation measures are implemented, a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
has been prepared for the Project pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15097, which 
specifies responsible agencies/departments, monitoring frequency, timing and method of 

Item B - 6 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 

verification and possible sanctions for non-compliance with mitigation measures. The 
environmental documentation for this project is available for review at the Planning 
Department public counter. 
 
The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, 
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical 
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond 
that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 

Item B - 7 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 of 12 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Multi-Family Residential  Medium Density (11.1-
25 DU/Acre) 

MDR18 (Medium-
Density Residential: 

11.1 – 18.0 DU/Acre) 
N/A 

North Multi-Family Residential Medium Density (11.1-
25 DU/Acre) 

MDR18 (Medium-
Density Residential: 

11.1 – 18.0 DU/Acre) 
N/A 

South Multi-Family Residential Medium Density (11.1-
25 DU/Acre) 

MDR18 (Medium-
Density Residential: 

11.1 – 18.0 DU/Acre) 
N/A 

East Multi-Family 
Residential, Church 

Medium Density (11.1-
25 DU/Acre), Low 
Density (2.1 – 5 

DU/Acre) 

MDR18 (Medium-
Density Residential: 

11.1 – 18.0 DU/Acre), 
LDR5 (Low-Density 

Residential: 2.1 – 5.0 
DU/Acre) 

N/A 

West Single-Family 
Residential Rural (0-2 DU/Acre) 

AR2 (Residential – 
Agricultural: 0 – 2.0 

DU/Acre) 
N/A 

 
General Site & Building Statistics 

Item Required Min./Max. Provided (Ranges) Meets 
Y/N 

Project area (in acres): N/A 8.74 N/A 

Parking setback (in FT): 20 FT 13.5 FT N 
 
  

Item B - 8 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 of 12 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP (FULL FACILITY) 
 

 

Item B - 9 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 of 12 

Exhibit B—EXISTING SITE PLAN 
 

 
  

Item B - 10 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 of 12 

Exhibit C—PROPOSED SITE PLAN 
 

 
 

  

Item B - 11 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 

Exhibit D—SCOPE OF WORK DETAIL 
 

 

Item B - 12 of 31



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PVAR18-001, A 
VARIANCE TO DEVIATE FROM THE MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT CODE 
STANDARDS FOR PARKING SETBACKS ALONG AN ARTERIAL 
STREET, FROM 20 FEET TO 13 FEET, FOR AN EXISTING SENIOR 
LIVING FACILITY (INLAND CHRISTIAN HOME, INC.), ON 8.74 ACRES 
OF LAND LOCATED AT 1950 S. MOUNTAIN AVENUE, WITHIN THE 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR-18) ZONING DISTRICT, AND 
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: 1014-461-12. 

 
 

WHEREAS, INLAND CHRISTIAN HOME, INC. ("Applicant") has filed an 
Application for the approval of a Variance, File No. PVAR18-001, as described in the title 
of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 8.74 acres of land generally located near 
the southwest corner of Mountain Avenue and Francis Street, at 1950 S. Mountain 
Avenue within the MDR18 (Medium-Density Residential) zone, and is currently developed 
with a continuing care retirement community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties to the north and south of the project site are zoned 
MDR18 (Medium-Density Residential), and are currently developed with multi-family 
residential uses. The properties to the west of the project site are zoned AR2 (Residential-
Agricultural), and are currently developed with single-family homes. The properties to the 
east of the project site are MDR18 and LDR5 (Low-Density Residential), and are 
developed with multi-family housing and a church, respectively; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Variance proposes to deviate from the minimum parking setback 
along the front property line, from 20 feet to 13 feet. As the project site was developed in 
the 1980s and there is limited option to provide additional parking to serve the needs of 
the complex, the Variance to reduce the above-mentioned setback will permit the facility 
to provide additional convenience to the facility’s visitors and skilled nursing staff, while 
still meeting overall landscaping and open space standards for the complex, as well as 
required emergency vehicle access. Requiring the additional setback would impact the 
project site’s ability to meet current Development Code standards in terms of required 
parking spaces; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 

Item B - 13 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is exempt from the policies and criteria set forth in the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only 
to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
(2) The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to 

Section 15301 (1, Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the 
operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of 
existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical 
features, involving negligible (less than 10,000 square feet) or no expansion; and 

Item B - 14 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

 
(4) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment 

of the Planning Commission. 
 

SECTION 2: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility 
Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts 
of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained 
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] 
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones 
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 3: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 
regulation would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship 
inconsistent with the objectives of the development regulations contained in this 
Development Code. The 8.74-acre site is fully developed with a senior living facility, 
including open space requirements and paths of travel. The current configuration of the 
buildings and amenities creates constraints to the provision of additional on-site parking 
spaces. In addition, no parking is allowed on Mountain Avenue. Currently, the site is 
deficient by six parking spaces per today’s Development Code standards; however, with 
approval of the requested Variance, the project would provide a surplus of nine parking 
spaces. The additional parking spaces will provide an added amenity and convenience 
to both visitors of and skilled nursing staff for the facility. Further, the project site will still 

Item B - 15 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
meet the minimum open space requirements per the Development Code, an average 
landscape setback of 26.6 feet and allow for adequate access for emergency vehicles. In 
addition, TOP Policy Plan Goal LU3 allows for flexible response to conditions and 
circumstances in order to achieve the Vision. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the 
Development Plan’s front parking setback would result in practical difficulty inconsistent 
with the objectives of the development regulations contained in the Development Code 
and TOP. 
 

(2) There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the property involved, or to the intended use of the property, that do 
not apply generally to other properties in the vicinity and in the same zoning 
district. The continuing care retirement community is unique in that it provides an array 
of housing and care options for seniors throughout the project site, including apartments, 
cottages, assisted living and memory care rooms, and skilled nursing beds. The skilled 
nursing facility is located toward the front entry of the project site and directly adjacent to 
the proposed project scope of work area. Therefore, parking was provided in front of this 
portion of the complex in order to accommodate visitors and nursing staff, whereas 
parking spaces for residents of the more independent living facilities are provided interior 
or to the rear of the site. Other multifamily residential properties nearby within the MDR18 
zone are primarily condominium or apartment uses with the provision of garages or 
carports for parking. Further, the majority of the properties in the neighborhood of the 
project site, along Mountain Avenue, currently enjoy reduced building setbacks in relation 
to today’s Development Code standards (an average of 20 feet rather than the required 
30 feet for arterial streets). In addition, the church directly across the street from the 
project site currently enjoys an approximate five-foot parking setback to the front property 
line. Lastly, on-street parking along the subject property’s street frontage is limited to 
emergency parking only, which further restricts parking options for this site. 
 

(3) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 
regulation would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other 
properties in the same zoning district. The requested relief from the minimum front 
parking setback will allow for greater design flexibility and will serve to equalize 
development rights between the applicant and owners of property in the same zoning 
district, located within the area of the project site. The unique nature of the facility, in that 
it provides a variety of senior housing types within the complex, creates additional 
challenges to providing ample parking to serve distinctive needs around the site. 
Furthermore, the majority of the nearby properties enjoy reduced building setbacks, and 
the church directly across the street from the project site enjoys a five-foot parking setback 
at the front property line. Therefore, the strict interpretation and enforcement of the front 
parking setback would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by owners of other 
properties within the same zoning district or general vicinity of the subject site. 
 

Item B - 16 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

(4) The granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or welfare, or be materially injurious to properties or improvements 
in the vicinity. A thorough review and analysis of the proposed Variance and its potential 
to adversely impact properties surrounding the subject site was completed by staff. As a 
result of this review, certain design considerations will be incorporated into the project as 
conditions of approval to mitigate identified impacts to an acceptable level, including the 
use of landscape planters at the ends of the parking spaces to promote vehicle and 
pedestrian safety. 

 
(5) The proposed Variance is consistent with the goals, policies, plans 

and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, and the purposes of any applicable specific plan 
or planned unit development, and the purposes of this Development Code. The 
proposed Project is located with the Medium Density land use district of the Policy Plan 
Land Use Map, and the MDR18 (Medium-Density Residential) zoning district. The 
development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be 
constructed and maintained are consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of 
the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan. 
 

SECTION 4: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 5: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 6: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 7: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
  

Item B - 17 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of June, 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Richard D. Delman 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

Item B - 18 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 
I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular 
meeting held on [insert meeting date], by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item B - 19 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PVAR18-001 
June 26, 2018 
Page 8 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PVAR18-001 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 
 
 

Item B - 20 of 31



 
 
Meeting Date: June 26, 2018 
 
File No: PVAR18-001 
 
Project Description: A Variance to deviate from the minimum Development Code standards for parking 
setbacks along an arterial street, from 20 feet to 13 feet, for an existing senior living facility (Inland Christian 
Home, Inc.), on 8.74 acres of land located at 1950 S. Mountain Avenue, within the Medium Density 
Residential (MDR-18) zoning district; (APN: 1014-461-12); submitted by Inland Christian Home, INC. 
 
Prepared By: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2416 (direct) 
Email: avaughn@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Variance approval shall become null and void one year following the effective date 
of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, and diligently 
pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director, except that a 
Variance approved in conjunction with a Development Plan shall have the same time limits as said 
Development Plan. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any 
other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific 
conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 21 of 31



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(c) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 
 

2.5 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 
15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the operation, repair, 
maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, 
facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible (less than 10,000 square 
feet) or no expansion, and is consistent with the following conditions: 
 

Item B - 22 of 31



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PVAR18-001 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

(i) The project is in an area where all public services and facilities are 
available to allow for maximum development permissible in the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of 
The Ontario Plan; and 

(ii) The area in which the project is located is not environmentally sensitive. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.7 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.9 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) [Insert additional condition] 
 

(b) [Insert additional condition] 
 

(c) [Insert additional condition] 
 

Item B - 23 of 31



Item B - 24 of 31



Item B - 25 of 31



Item B - 26 of 31



Item B - 27 of 31



Item B - 28 of 31



Item B - 29 of 31



Item B - 30 of 31



Item B - 31 of 31



Case Planner: Jeanie Irene Aguilo Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 06/18/2018 Approved Recommend 
ZA 

Submittal Date:  10/13/2015 PC 06/26/2018 Final 
Hearing Deadline:  CC 

SUBJECT: A Development Plan to construct a non-stealth wireless telecommunications 
antenna (monopole) and equipment enclosure within a 656-square foot lease area on 
approximately 25.8 acres of land generally located on the south side of Airport Drive, west 
of Wineville Avenue, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district (APN: 0238-241-10); 
submitted by Verizon Wireless. 

PROPERTY OWNER: Southern California Edison 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission approve File No. PDEV15-
034 pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached 
resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is an SCE-owned utility corridor comprised of 25.8 
acres of land located on the south side of Airport Drive, west of Wineville Avenue, within 
the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district, and is depicted in Figure 1: Project Location, 
below. The surrounding area is characterized by continuation of the SCE-owned utility 
corridor to the north and south, and industrially-zoned property to the east and west, with 
a mix of manufacturing and warehouse/distribution uses. 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

[1] Background — The Applicant is
requesting approval of a Development 
Plan to construct a 55-foot tall non-stealth 
wireless telecommunication antenna 
(monopole) and equipment enclosures 
within a 656 square foot lease area 
enclosed by an 8-foot high decorative 
perimeter block wall (see Exhibit B – Site 
Plan and Exhibit C-1 – Enlarged Site 
Plan, attached). 

On June 18, 2018, the 
Development Advisory Board reviewed 
the subject application, and 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
June 26, 2018 

Figure 1: Project Location 

PROJECT SITE 

Item C - 1 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 of 12 

recommended that the Planning Commission approve the proposed project, subject to 
conditions. 
 

[2] Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed telecommunications facility will be 
located along the westerly side of the SCE Utility Corridor, approximately 2,100 south of 
Airport Drive. The maximum height allowed in the zone for a single-carrier 
telecommunication facility is 55-feet, and 65-feet for collocated facilities. Therefore, the 
height of the proposed wireless telecommunications antenna array, at 55 feet, is in 
compliance with the Development Code’s maximum height restrictions for single-carrier 
facilities (see Exhibits D-1 – Elevations and D-2 – Elevations, attached). 
 

The proposed Verizon wireless telecommunications facility will enhance their 
wireless telephone coverage east of Interstate 15, which is currently deficient (see Exhibit 
E – Propagation Map, Predicted Coverage). 
 

[3] Site Access/Circulation/Parking — The proposed telecommunications facility will 
be accessed from Airport Drive via an existing dirt access road currently used by SCE for 
transmission tower access. A parking area for telecommunications facility maintenance 
will be provided immediately east of the equipment enclosure. A metal gate will be 
integrated into the enclosure’s perimeter wall design, to allow access into the facility from 
the parking area. The new facility will not create a significant new source of vehicle or 
truck traffic. In accordance with the Development Code, the project will provide one 
parking space on site, which will be used one to two times per month, when maintenance 
engineers visit the site. 
 

[4] Architecture/Landscaping — The proposed project is consistent with the design 
guidelines established by the City’s Development Code, and will blend into the existing 
backdrop of SCE transmission towers and surrounding industrial development. 
Furthermore, although the project will be located over 2,000 feet south of Airport Drive, 
proposed scrub oak trees will be planted along the project’s Airport Drive street frontage, 
functioning as a buffer to assist in screening of the telecommunications facility from view 
of the street (see Exhibit C-2 – Enlarged Site Plan). 
 

[5] Signage — Pursuant to Development Code requirements, an informational sign 
(measuring 2 feet x 2 feet), which includes the carriers information and an emergency 
contact number, will be installed outside the facility enclosure. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
  

Item C - 2 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 of 12 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 

 
[2] Policy Plan (General Plan) 

 
Land Use Element: 

 
 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 

 
 LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be 

aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where 
people choose to be. 
 

 CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of 
equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and 
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of 
our existing viable neighborhoods. 
 

 CD1-2 Growth Areas. We require development in growth areas to be 
distinctive and unique places within which there are cohesive design themes. 
 

 CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential 
and non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in 
accordance with our land use policies. 
 

Item C - 3 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 of 12 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics, 
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings. 
 

 Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, 
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional 
public and private investments. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and 
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, 
New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which 
consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or 
structures as well as the installation of small new equipment and facilities in small 
structures. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 

Item C - 4 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 of 12 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site: Electric Utilities/ 
SCE Easement 

OS-NR 
(Open Space/Non-

Residential) 
UC (Utilities Corridor) N/A 

North: Electric Utilities/ 
SCE Easement 

OS-NR 
(Open Space/Non-

Residential) 
UC (Utilities Corridor) N/A 

South: Electric Utilities/ 
SCE Easement BP (Business Park) California Commerce 

Center Specific Plan SCE Easement 

East: 
Warehouse 

(World Pack USA, 
LLC) 

IND (Industrial) IH (Heavy Industrial) N/A 

West: Manufacturing 
(CH Biotech LLC) IND (Industrial) Pacific Gate/East Gate 

Specific Plan N/A 

Item C - 5 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 of 12 

Exhibit A — PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

  

Item C - 6 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 

Exhibit B — PROJECT SITE PLAN  

 

Item C - 7 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 of 12 

Exhibit C-1 — ENLARGED SITE PLAN 

 

Item C - 8 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 of 12 

Exhibit C-1 — ENLARGED SITE PLAN  

 

Item C - 9 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 of 12 

Exhibit D-1 — ELEVATIONS 

  

 

Item C - 10 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 of 12 

  

Exhibit D-2 — ELEVATIONS  

Item C - 11 of 32



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 

 

Exhibit E — PROPAGATION MAP, PREDICTED COVERAGE 
 

 

Item C - 12 of 32



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV15-034, A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A NON-STEALTH WIRELESS 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS ANTENNA (MONOPOLE) AND EQUIPMENT 
ENCLOSURE WITIN A 656-SQUARE FOOT LEASE AREA ON 
APPROXIMATELY 25.8 ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED ON 
THE SOUTH SIDE OF AIRPORT DRIVE, WEST OF WINEVILLE AVENUE, 
WITHIN THE UC (UTILITIES CORRIDOR) ZONING DISTRICT, AND 
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: 0238-241-10. 

 
 

WHEREAS, VERIZON WIRELESS ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the 
approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV15-034, as described in the title of this 
Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 25.8 acres of land located on the south side 
of Airport Drive, west of Wineville Avenue, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district, 
and is presently improved with SCE transmission facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the UC (Utilities 
Corridor) zoning district, and is improved with SCE transmission facilities. The property 
to the east is within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district, and is improved with an 
industrial warehouse (World Pack USA, LLC). The property to the south is within the 
Business Park land use designation of the California Commerce Center Specific Plan, 
and is improved with SCE transmission facilities. The property to the west is within the 
Industrial land use designation of the Pacific Gate/East Gate Specific Plan, and is 
developed with a manufacturing facility (CH Biotech LLC); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting approval of a Development Plan to 
construct a 55-foot tall non-stealth wireless telecommunication antenna (monopole) and 
equipment enclosures within a 656 square foot lease area enclosed by an 8-foot high 
decorative perimeter block wall; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018, the Development Advisory Board reviewed the 
subject application, and recommended that the Planning Commission approve the 
proposed project, subject to conditions of approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed telecommunications facility will be located along the 
westerly side of the SCE Utility Corridor, approximately 2,100 south of Airport Drive. The 
maximum height allowed in the zone for a single-carrier telecommunication facility is 55-
feet, and 65-feet for collocated facilities. Therefore, the height of the proposed wireless 
telecommunications antenna array, at 55 feet, is in compliance with the Development 
Code’s maximum height restrictions for single-carrier facilities; and 

Item C - 13 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Verizon wireless telecommunications facility will 
enhance their wireless telephone coverage east of Interstate 15, which is currently 
deficient; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed telecommunications facility will be accessed from 
Airport Drive via an existing dirt access road currently used by SCE for transmission tower 
access. A parking area for telecommunications facility maintenance will be provided 
immediately east of the equipment enclosure. A metal gate will be integrated into the 
enclosure’s perimeter wall design, to allow access into the facility from the parking area. 
The new facility will not create a significant new source of vehicle or truck traffic. In 
accordance with the Development Code, the project will provide one parking space on 
site, which will be used one to two times per month, when maintenance engineers visit 
the site; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the design guidelines 
established by the City’s Development Code, and will blend into the existing backdrop of 
SCE transmission towers and surrounding industrial development. Furthermore, 
proposed scrub oak trees will be planted along the project’s Airport Drive street frontage, 
functioning as a buffer to assist in screening of the telecommunications facility from view 
of the street; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element 
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 

Item C - 14 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and 
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and 
future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018, the Development Advisory Board of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB18-033, recommending the Planning Commission 
approve the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
(2) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction 
or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the 
construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; 
installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; and the conversion 
of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 
made in the exterior of the structure. 

 

Item C - 15 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

 
(4) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment 

of the Planning Commission. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the decision-making body for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based on 
the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at 
the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available 
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.  
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility 
Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts 
of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained 
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] 
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones 
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 

Item C - 16 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is 
located within the OS-NR (Open Space/Non-Residential) land use district of the Policy 
Plan Land Use Map, and the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

 
(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining 

sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, 
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in 
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the 
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the UC (Utilities Corridor) 
zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (non-
stealth wireless telecommunications facility), as-well-as building intensity, building and 
parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-
site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the 
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum 
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have 
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required 
certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been 
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project 
will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony 
with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the 
Vision, and City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development 
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable 
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the 
Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building 
intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and 
guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (non-stealth 
wireless telecommunications facility). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory 
Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines 
described in the Development Code. 
 

Item C - 17 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
  

Item C - 18 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of June 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Richard D. Delman 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

Item C - 19 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 8 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 
I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular 
meeting held on June 26, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item C - 20 of 32



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV15-034 
June 26, 2018 
Page 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PDEV15-034 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 
 
 

Item C - 21 of 32



 
 
Meeting Date: June 18, 2018 
 
File No: PDEV15-034 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a non-stealth wireless telecommunications 
facility (monopole) totaling 204 square feet on approximately 25.8 acres of land generally located southwest 
of Airport Drive and Wineville Avenue in an SCE easement, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district 
(APN: 0238-241-10); submitted by Verizon Wireless. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 

Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 22 of 32



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, 
such as tanks, transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of 
view from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low 
garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of 
the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities 
or structures as well as the installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures. 
 

Item C - 23 of 32



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV15-034 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
  

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

Item C - 24 of 32



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
6/7/18 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 
Phone: 

(909) 395-2237 
 
D.A.B. File No.:                                           

 PDEV 15-034 Rev 2           
Case Planner: 

Jeanie Aguilo 
Project Name and Location:  

Verizon 
SCE easement, Kettering and Airport Dr 
Applicant/Representative: 

Spectrum Services inc. Brett Smith 
4405 E Airport Dr ste 100 
Ontario, Ca 91761 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 4/10/18) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
 Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

 

1. Dri-water product is no longer manufactured. Please change Irrigation legend, details and 
notes to items #2-5 below. Add Oooze tube tree irrigator detail, below on page 2 and tree 
planting detail attached, in place of driwater detail 2, L2 

2. Contractor to Install 1- 25 gallon Ooze tube tree irrigator per tree. 800·951·8123 
http://engineeredwatering.com/vcom/ and water tree during planting. 

Install only 1 emitter (4 emitters provided in kit) near the base of the tree highest elevation so 
its drips toward the root ball. The area for the ooze tube bags must no more than 2% slope. 

3. The contractor shall re-fill tubes 1x every 2 weeks for 2 months, then 1x a month per month for 
4 months. Contract must include the months of July, August, and September. 

4. Contractor shall check emitter each refill and add a second emitter if the first one becomes 
plugged. 

5. At the end of the 9 months call this department for inspection and remove the Ooze tubes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 25 of 32

http://engineeredwatering.com/vcom/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Item C - 26 of 32



Item C - 27 of 32



Item C - 28 of 32



Item C - 29 of 32



Item C - 30 of 32



Item C - 31 of 32



Item C - 32 of 32



Case Planner: Denny D. Chen Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 6/18/2018 Approved Recommend 
ZA 

Submittal Date:  12/20/2017 PC 6/26/2018 Final 
Hearing Deadline:  CC 

SUBJECT: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-021) to attach a non-stealth wireless 
telecommunications facility to an existing Southern California Edison (SCE) tower, 
including the construction of a 400 square foot equipment enclosure, on property located 
at 3252 East Riverside Drive, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district. (APN:  0218-
151-45); submitted by T-Mobile.

PROPERTY OWNER: Southern California Edison (SCE) Company 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission approve File No. PDEV17-
021, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached 
resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of approximately 12 acres of land 
located at 3252 East Riverside Drive, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district, and 
is depicted in Figure 1: Project Location, below. To the north of the project site the 
property is within the Creekside Specific Plan and zoned Non-Recreational Open Space 
and developed with the SCR utility 
corridor. To the south the property is 
zoned OS-NR (Open Space/Non-
Residential) and it is owned by SCE 
for the operation of SCE transmission 
towers. To the east of the properties 
are located within Planning Area 1A 
(Single Family Residential) and 
developed with a plant nursery. The 
properties to the east are located 
within the Archibald Ranch community 
and developed with single family 
homes. 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

[1] Background — The Applicant is
requesting approval of a Development 
Plan (File No. PDEV17-021) to 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
June 26, 2018 

Figure 1: Project Location 

Item D - 1 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 of 15 

construct a 65-foot tall non-stealth wireless telecommunications facility attached to an 
existing SCE transmission tower, with an accompanying 400 square foot equipment 
enclosure.  The T-Mobile facility will be attached to the transmission tower at a height of 
65-feet. The existing SCE tower is 132 feet tall and the site is owned by Southern 
California Edison (SCE) Company, for the operation & maintenance of SCE’s 
transmission towers (See Exhibit D – Elevations).  

 
On June 18, 2018, the Development Advisory Board reviewed the subject 

application, and recommended that the Planning Commission approve the proposed 
project. 
 

[2] Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed telecommunications facility will be 
located on the west side of the SCE Utility Corridor, approximately 145 feet from Riverside 
drive to the north. The maximum height allowed in the UC (Utilities Corridor) zone, for a 
free standing collocated telecommunication facility is 65-feet. The proposed mounting 
height of the telecommunication antennas, at a height of 65-feet, will be in compliance 
with the Development Code’s maximum allowable height. The existing SCE tower can 
accommodate additional telecommunication carriers (colocation), provided they don’t 
exceed a height of 65 feet.  
 
The proposed location provides an opportunity for the carrier (T-Mobile) to provide and 
increase telecommunication coverage to existing and future residential zoned properties 
to the west, north, and east of the project site  (See Exhibits E & F - PROPAGATION 
MAPS, EXISTING AND PREDICTED COVERAGE). 
 

The new wireless communications facility will include three antenna sectors that 
will be attached to the existing SCE tower. Two antenna sectors will be attached on the 
north side of the tower and the third antenna sector will be attached on the south side. All 
ground mounted equipment will be enclosed and screened from public view by a 7-foot 
tall, split-face masonry block wall enclosure. The enclosure will be located within a 400 
square feet area under the SCE tower (Exhibit C – ENLARGED SITE PLAN). 
 

[3] Site Access/Circulation/Parking — Access to the wireless facility will be taken from 
an existing driveway on Riverside Drive, through a non-exclusive 10-foot wide access 
road. To comply with Ontario Development Code’s parking requirements for wireless 
telecommunication facilities, one parking space will be provided, just south of the 400 
square foot lease area. The parking space will only be used when the facility is serviced. 
The new wireless facility will not create a significant new source of vehicle or truck traffic 
to the site. 
 

[4] Architecture — The proposed project is consistent with the design guidelines set 
forth in the Ontario Development Code. The proposed non-stealth telecommunications 
facility design is compatible with the current use of the site and will blend in with the 

Item D - 2 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 of 15 

existing SCE tower. All ground mounted equipment will be enclosed and screened from 
public view by a 7-foot tall, split-face masonry block wall enclosure. 

 
 [5] Landscaping – The existing street frontage along the south side of Riverside Drive, 

approximately 470 feet long, is currently improved with temporary curb and  5-foot wide 
asphalt sidewalk. To enhance the site, as well as screen the equipment enclosure from 
public view, the applicant is proposing to landscape approximately 10-feet of Riverside 
frontage in front of existing chain link fence located along the property line. The additional 
landscaping will include six new trees, shrubs, mulch ground cover, and an irrigation 
system. The plant pallet will include 15-gallon trees and 5-gallon shrubs, such as Western 
Redbud trees and Silverberry shrubs (Exhibit G – PROPOSED LANDSCAPING). 

 
[6] Signage — Pursuant to Development Code requirements, an informational sign 

(measuring 2 feet x 2 feet), which includes the carriers information and an emergency 
contact number, will be installed outside the facility enclosure. The informational sign shall 
also include the contact information for the landscape maintenance company. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 

 
[2] Policy Plan (General Plan) 

 
Land Use Element: 

 
 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 

 
 LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be 

aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where 
people choose to be. 
 

 CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 

Item D - 3 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 of 15 

 CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development 
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique, 
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the 
region. 
 

 CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of 
equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct. 
 

 CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to 
convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and 
proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting; 
and 

• Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality, 
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style. 

 
 CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 

design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials and construction techniques. 
 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics, 
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings. 
 

Item D - 4 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 of 15 

 Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, 
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional 
public and private investments. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport (ONT), 
and has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the 
ALUCP for ONT. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, 
Existing Facilities) and Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of construction and location of limited 
numbers of new, small facilities or structures as well as the installation of small new 
equipment and facilities in small structures. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 

Item D - 5 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 of 15 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site 
Southern California 

Edison 
(SCE Easement) 

OS-NR 
(Open Space/Non-

Residential) 

UC 
(Utilities Corridor) N/A 

North Residential 
OS-NR 

(Open Space/Non-
Residential) 

Creekside Specific 
Plan 

Non-Recreational 
Open Space 

South 
Southern California 

Edison 
(SCE Easement) 

OS-NR 
(Open Space/Non-

Residential) 

UC 
(Utilities Corridor) N/A 

East Plant Nursery  

LDR/OS-NR 
(Low Density 

Residential/Open 
Space/Non-
Residential) 

West Haven Specific 
Plan 

Residential  
(Planning Area 1A) 

West Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR 
(Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR-5 
(Low Density 

Residential 2.1 to 5 
du/acre) 

N/A 

Item D - 6 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 of 15 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Item D - 7 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 of 15 

Exhibit B—PROJECT SITE PLAN 

 

Item D - 8 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 of 15 

Exhibit C—ENLARGED SITE PLAN 

 

(N) Parking 
Area 

Item D - 9 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 of 15 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS 

 

Item D - 10 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 of 15 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS (Continued) 

 

Item D - 11 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 of 15 

Exhibit E—PROPAGATION MAP, EXISTING COVERAGE 

 
 

Item D - 12 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 13 of 15 

Exhibit F—PROPAGATION MAP, PREDICTED COVERAGE 

 
 
 

Item D - 13 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 14 of 15 

Exhibit G – PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New Shrubs & Mulch Area  

Existing Driveway 

10 Feet 

New Tree 

Item D - 14 of 35



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File Nos.: PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 15 of 15 

 
 

Exhibit G – PROPOSED LANDSCAPING (Continued) 
 

 
 

New Trees – South of Riverside Drive 

10 Feet 

Item D - 15 of 35



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV17-021, A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO ATTACH A NON-STEALTH WIRELESS 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY TO AN EXISTING SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA EDISON (SCE) TOWER, INCLUDING THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 400 SQUARE FOOT EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE, 
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3252 EAST RIVERSIDE DRIVE, WITHIN 
THE UC (UTILITIES CORRIDOR) ZONING DISTRICT, AND MAKING 
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: 0218-151-45. 

 
 

WHEREAS, T-MOBILE ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the approval of a 
Development Plan, File No. PDEV17-021, as described in the title of this Resolution 
(hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to an approximately 12-acres site of land 
generally located south of Riverside Drive, between Turner Avenue and Haven Avenue, 
at 3252 East Riverside Drive, within the UC (Utilities Corridor), and is presently improved 
with Southern California Edison (SCE) transmission tower; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the Creekside 
Specific Plan and is developed with an existing SCE easement. The property to the east 
is within Planning Area 1A (Single Family Residential) of the West Haven Specific Plan 
and is developed with a commercial plan nursery. The property to the south is within the 
UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district and is developed with SCE transmission towers. The 
property to the west is within the LDR5 (Low Density Residential) zoning district, and is 
developed with single family residential homes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant is requesting approval of a Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV17-021) to construct and operate a non-stealth telecommunications facility attached 
to an existing SCE transmission tower at a height of 65-feet with an accompanying 400-
square foot equipment enclosure; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018 the Development Advisory Board reviewed the 
subject application and recommended that the Planning Commission approve the 
proposed project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed T-Mobile facility will be attached to the existing 
transmission tower at a height of 65-feet. The existing SCE tower is 132 feet tall and the 
site is owned by Southern California Edison (SCE) Company, for the operation & 
maintenance of SCE’s transmission towers; and 
 

Item D - 16 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

WHEREAS, the maximum height allowed in the UC (Utilities Corridor) zone for a 
free standing collocated telecommunications facility is 65-feet. The proposed 65-feet 
height of the telecommunication antennas will be in compliance with the Development 
Code’s maximum allowable height; and 
 

WHEREAS, access to the proposed wireless facility will be taken from an existing 
driveway on Riverside Drive through a non-exclusive 10-foot wide access road easement. 
To comply with the Ontario Development Plan parking requirements, one parking space 
will be provided, just south of the 400 square foot lease area. The proposed non-stealth 
design is compatible with the current use of the site and will not interfere with the 
surrounding area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element 
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and 
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and 
future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 

Item D - 17 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2018, the Development Advisory Board of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB18-034, recommending the Planning Commission 
approve the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
(2) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) 
and Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. Class 1, Existing Facilities consists of the following: 
 

 The project is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable zoning 
designation and regulations. 

 The project has no value as habitat for endangered, rare of threatened species. 
 The project will be adequately served by all required utilities and public 

services. 
 The project will not result in significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 

quality, or water quality.  
 The project will not result in damage to a historical resource. 
 The project will not include major exterior/interior alterations involving such 

things as interior partitions, plumbing, and electrical conveyances; and 
 

Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures consists of the construction 
and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; installation of small 
new equipment and facilities in small structures; and the conversion of existing small 

Item D - 18 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are made in the 
exterior of the structure; and 
 

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

 
(4) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment 

of the Planning Commission. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the decision making body for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based on 
the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at 
the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available 
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility 
Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts 
of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained 
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] 
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones 
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 

Item D - 19 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed project is 
located within the OS-NR (Open Space/Non-Residential) land use district of the Policy 
Plan Land Use Map, and the UC (Utilities Corridor) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining 
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, 
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in 
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the 
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the UC (Utilities Corridor) 
zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (non-
stealth wireless telecommunications facility), as-well-as building intensity, building and 
parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-
site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the 
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum 
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have 
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required 
certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been 
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project 
will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony 
with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the 
Vision, and City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development 
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable 
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the 
Development Code that are applicable to the proposed project, including building 
intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking dimensions, design and landscaping, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the proposed non-stealth telecommunications facility. As a result of this review, 
the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development 
standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

Item D - 20 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
RECOMMENDS THE CITY APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to 
each and every condition set forth in the Department reports attached hereto as 
“Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
  

Item D - 21 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 26TH  day of June 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Richard D. Delman 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

Item D - 22 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 8 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 
I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular 
meeting held on June 26TH, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item D - 23 of 35



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV17-021 
June 26, 2018 
Page 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PDEV17-021 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 
 
 

Item D - 24 of 35



 
 
Meeting Date: June 26, 2018 
 
File No: PDEV17-021 
 
Related Files: None 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to attach a non-stealth wireless telecommunications facility 
to an existing Southern California Edison (SCE) tower, including the construction of a 400 square foot 
equipment enclosure, on property located at 3252 East Riverside Drive, within the UC (Utilities Corridor) 
zoning district.  (APN:  0218-151-45); submitted by T-Mobile.  
 
Prepared By: Denny D. Chen, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: dchen@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 

Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 25 of 35



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-021 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department and Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 

 
(b) One parking space must be designated for the project. 

 
2.6 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 

Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

(a) An informational sign which includes carrier information and emergency contact 
number shall be installed on the facility. The specific sign size and location specifications shall be consistent 
with the requirements of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Sign shall also include the 
contact information for the landscape Maintenance Company. 
 

2.7 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities), which consists of: 
 

 The project is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable zoning designation 
and regulations. 

 The project has no value as habitat for endangered, rare of threatened species. 
 The project will be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 The project will not result in significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or 

water quality.  
 The project will not result in damage to a historical resource. 
 The project will not include major exterior/interior alterations involving such things as 

interior partitions, plumbing, and electrical conveyances; and 
 
Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures as well 
as the installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 

Item D - 26 of 35



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-021 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
  

2.8 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.9 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) All antennas and equipment mounted on the existing SCE (Southern California 
Edison) tower shall be painted to match the existing tower. 

 
(b) T-Mobile shall obtain and maintain a City Business License for the operation of the 

new wireless telecommunications facility. 
 

(c) An informational sign which includes carrier information and emergency contact 
number shall be installed on the facility. The specific sign size and location specifications shall be consistent 
with the requirements of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). An additional sign shall also 
include the contact information for the landscape Maintenance Company.  
 
 

Item D - 27 of 35



Item D - 28 of 35



Item D - 29 of 35



Item D - 30 of 35



Item D - 31 of 35



Item D - 32 of 35



Item D - 33 of 35



Item D - 34 of 35



Item D - 35 of 35



Item E -1 of 1



Case Planner:  Lorena Mejia Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 
ZA 

Submittal Date:  June 4, 2018 PC 6/26/18 Recommend 
Hearing Deadline:  n/a CC 7/17/18 

SUBJECT: An amendment (File No. PALU18-004)  to the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP) to: 1) Update airport ownership references 
from Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) to Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA); 
2) Eliminate LAWA's proposal to reconfigure the ONT runway system by shifting both
runways south and east of their present position (Exhibit 1-6: Simplified Airport Diagram)
and rely on the existing runway system (current Airport Layout Plan) for the ONT ALUCP;
and 3) Update Policy Maps 2-1: Airport Influence Area, 2-2: Safety Zones, 2-3: Noise
Impact Zones, 2-4: Airspace Protection Zones and 2-5: Overflight Notification Zones to
reflect impacts from the existing runway configuration and eliminate the composite
approach that protects existing and LAWA’s proposed runway reconfigurations. The
geographic scope of the ONT ALUCP is the Airport Influence Area (AIA), which includes
portions of the Cities of Ontario, Fontana, Upland, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino,
Pomona, Claremont and unincorporated portions of San Bernardino, Riverside and Los
Angeles Counties. Submitted by: City of Ontario, Planning Department. City Council
action is required.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission recommend approval of File 
No. PALU18-004 to the City Council, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the 
staff report and attached resolution. 

PROJECT SETTING: Ontario International Airport (ONT) is centrally located within the 
City of Ontario within southwestern San Bernardino County.  ONT is classified as a 
primary commercial service airport, owned and operated by the Ontario International 
Airport Authority (OIAA).   

The geographic scope of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) is the Airport 
Influence Area (AIA), the area in which current or future airport-related noise, safety, 
airspace protection and/or overflight factors may affect land uses or impose restrictions 
on those uses.  The AIA includes portions of the Cities of Ontario, Fontana, Upland, 
Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino, Pomona, and Claremont, the Counties of 
Riverside and Los Angeles and unincorporated portions of San Bernardino County.  The 
Airport Influence Area for ONT is depicted in Figure 1 (on page two of this report) and 
Policy Map 2-1 of the ONT ALUCP.   

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
June 26, 2018 

Item F - 1 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 of 12 

 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 
[1] Alternative Process Background — In most counties, the responsibility for the 

preparation and adoption of airport land use compatibility plans falls to the county airport 
land use commission (ALUC).  However, State law also provides for what is referred to 
as an “Alternative Process” wherein a county does not have to form an ALUC and the 
required compatibility planning responsibilities fall to local jurisdictions.  The Alternative 
Process within San Bernardino County was established in 1995 by resolutions of the 
County Board of Supervisors and the city councils of cities affected by airports.  Ontario 
City Council adopted the Alternative Process through Resolution No. 95-34 consistent 
with state law. The California Division of Aeronautics approved the San Bernardino 
County Alternative Process in 1996.  The approval of the Alternative Process designated 
the City of Ontario as the local jurisdiction responsible for airport land use compatibility 
planning for ONT.   

 
On April 19, 2011 the Ontario City Council adopted the Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan for Ontario International Airport (ONT ALUCP). The 2011 ONT ALUCP identified 
ONT impacts for noise, airspace and overflight that extended beyond Ontario City Limits 
which required processes to be established for mediating disputes with impacted 
jurisdictions to fulfill State Public Utilities Code Section 21670.1(c)(2).  The ONT ALUCP 
outlined policies for plan preparation, adoption, amendments and mediating disputes and 
was implemented through a Cooperation Agreement. The Cooperation Agreement 

 
Figure 1: Project Location 

Item F - 2 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 of 12 

established the Ontario International Airport – Inter Agency Collaborative (ONT-IAC) that 
was adopted by all impacted San Bernardino County agencies (City of Chino, City of 
Fontana, City of Montclair, City of Ontario, City of Rancho Cucamonga, City of Upland 
and San Bernardino County) in mid-2012. 
 

[2] ONT ALUCP Document Background — State law dictates that airport land use 
compatibility plans have a 20 year horizon and be based upon an Airport Master Plan 
(AMP) or an Airport Layout Plan (ALP). The 2011 ONT ALUCP incorporated the future 
growth forecasts proposed by the previous airport owner operator, Los Angeles World 
Airports (LAWA) airport master plan efforts. The activity forecasts LAWA generated prior 
to the discontinuation of the AMP, explored the “no project” and “proposed project” 
scenarios, which could potentially be seen by 2030 depending upon the ultimate 
configuration of the airport’s runway. LAWA’s AMP efforts were not completed or adopted, 
and an ALP drawing was prepared showing the existing and potential future runway 
configurations proposed by LAWA and served as the basis of the ALUCP for ONT.  The 
ALP drawing showing both runway configurations was approved by the California Division 
of Aeronautics in July of 2009.   
 
On May 30, 2018 the City of Ontario received a letter from the OIAA requesting the ONT 
ALUCP be based on the most recently approved Airport Layout Plan (ALP) instead of the 
alternative runway configurations proposed by LAWA. In response to this request, 
proposed changes were made and forwarded to the ONT-IAC Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) for review and a meeting was held on June 21, 2018 to review the 
proposed changes.  
 

[3] ONT ALUCP Amendment — The proposed redlined amendment of the ONT 
ALUCP document are included as part of “Attachment A” within this amendment’s 
Resolution and includes the following changes: 

 
a) Update airport ownership references from Los Angeles World Airports 

(LAWA) to Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA). 
 

• The ONT transfer from LAWA to OIAA was completed in late 2016. As 
a result the LA/ONT name references for the airport were eliminated 
from the document and changed to ONT throughout the document. 
Language to page 1-4 of the document regarding the OIAA formation 
and ownership transfer were added. References of LAWA throughout 
the document were removed and replaced with the OIAA. 

 
b) Eliminate LAWA's proposal to reconfigure the ONT runway system by 

shifting both runways south and east of their present position (Exhibit 1-6: Simplified 
Airport Diagram) and rely on the existing runway system (current Airport Layout Plan) for 
the ONT ALUCP.  

Item F - 3 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 of 12 

 
• Exhibit 1-6 (Simplified Airport Diagram) was removed and replaced 

with ONT’s current Airport Layout Plan (See Figure 2: ONT Airport 
Layout Plan) that only shows the existing runway configurations.   
 

• The document changes include the removal of all text referencing the 
reconfiguration of the runways and the “proposed project” scenario. All 
relevant text and visual references within Chapter 1 and 2 exhibits and 
maps were also removed. 

 
c) Update Policy Maps 2-1: Airport Influence Area, 2-2: Safety Zones, 2-3: 

Noise Impact Zones, 2-4: Airspace Protection Zones and 2-5: Overflight Notification 
Zones to reflect impacts from the existing runway configuration and eliminate the 
composite approach that protects existing and LAWA’s proposed runway 
reconfigurations. 

 

 

Figure 2: ONT Airport Layout Plan 

Item F - 4 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 of 12 

• The policy maps were updated to eliminate the composite approach 
and will only reflect the existing runway system and “no project” 
scenario.  As a result the Safety Zones, Noise Impact Zones, Airspace 
Protection Zones and Overflight Notification Zones were 
geographically reduced. The following is an explanation of each 
compatibility factor (Safety, Noise, Airspace Protection and Overflight) 
that is followed by its corresponding existing and proposed policy map. 

 
[4] Safety Zones — The safety compatibility policies of the ALUCP apply only 

to the City of Ontario since the safety zones are located solely within Ontario’s city 
limits.   The five safety zones around ONT affect both the intensity of development 
(i.e., number of people allowed per acre of land) and total permissible floor area of 
any future building developed.  The safety zones also place restrictions on new 
residential land uses from being developed within the affected areas along with special 
land uses, such as schools.  The existing and proposed five safety zones are depicted 
Figures 3 and 4 below and can be found in Chapter 2 of ALUCP (Map 2-2: Safety 
Zones). The proposed amendment will reduce the footprint of the safety zones on the 
east, west and south side of ONT.  

 
Figure 3: Existing Safety Zone Policy Map 

 

Item F - 5 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 of 12 

 
Figure 4: Proposed Safety Zone Policy Map 

 
 
[5] Noise Impact Zones — The purpose of noise compatibility policies is to avoid the 

establishment of new noise-sensitive land uses within portions of the ONT AIA that will 
be exposed to significant levels of aircraft noise.  The noise impact zones depicted on the 
following page represent the “no project” scenario reflecting the existing runway 
configuration with a 2030 forecast.  The “proposed project” scenario reflecting the ultimate 
runway configuration with a 2030 forecast were removed as part of this update.    To 
minimize noise-sensitive development in noisy areas around ONT, new development will 
be evaluated in accordance with the policies set forth in the ALUCP.   Land uses that are 
considered to be noise-sensitive are detailed within the ALUCP but the general plan land 
use designation of most concern is the development of new residential land uses within 
the 65 CNEL noise contour, which the ALUCP places restrictions on and prohibits in some 
areas. The existing and proposed noise impact zones are depicted in Figures 5 and 6 on 
the following page and can be found in Chapter 2 of the ALUCP (Map 2-3: Noise Impact 
Zones). The proposed amendment will reduce the footprint of the noise impact zones on 
the east, west north and south side of ONT.  

 
 

Item F - 6 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 

 
Figure 5: Existing Noise Impact Zones Policy Map 

 

 
Figure 6: Proposed Noise Impact Zones Policy Map 

Item F - 7 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 of 12 

[6] Airspace Protection — Airspace protection compatibility policies seek to prevent 
creation of land use features that can be hazards to aircraft in flight and have the potential 
for causing an aircraft accident to occur.  Such hazards may be physical such as a 
building being built to high or lands uses on the ground that may cause visual or electronic 
hazards.  The factors considered in setting airspace protection policies in include: Federal 
Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77; the United States Standard for Terminal Instrument 
Procedures (TERPS); the One-Engine Inoperative (OEI) obstacle identification surface; 
and local topography which are detailed further within the ALUCP. 
 

To determine the allowable heights of future objects, the underlying ground 
elevation is compared with the elevation of the controlling portions of the FAR Part 77, 
TERPS, and OEI surfaces. The existing and proposed policy maps are depicted below in 
Figures 7 and 8 and can be found in Chapter 2 of the ALUCP (Map 2-4: Airspace 
Protection Zones). The proposed amendment will not further reduce the footprint of the 
airspace protection zone areas but may affect allowable heights that are calculated on a 
project location basis.  
 

 
Figure 7: Existing Airspace Protection Policy Map 

 
 
 

 

Item F - 8 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 
Figure 8: Proposed Airspace Protection Policy Map 

 
[7] Overflight — Noise from individual aircraft operations, can be intrusive and 

annoying in locations beyond the limits of the noise impacts zones.  Sensitivity to aircraft 
overflights varies from one person to another.  The purpose of overflight compatibility 
policies is to help notify people about the presence of overflights near airports so that they 
can make more informed decisions regarding acquisition or lease of property in the 
affected areas.  Overflight compatibility is particularly important with regard to residential 
land uses.   

 
The loudness of individual aircraft noise events is a key determinant of where 

airport proximity and aircraft overflight notification is warranted.  The FAA has determined 
that overflight exposure is not significant where aircraft are flying at an altitude of 3,000 
feet or more above ground level.  The existing and proposed boundary of the overflight 
area for ONT, is depicted Figures 9 and 10 on the following page and can be found in 
Chapter 2 of the ALUCP (Map 2-5: Overflight Notification Zones). The map is drawn to 
encompass locations where aircraft approaching and departing the airport typically fly at 
an altitude of 3,000 feet or less, together with locations underlying the airspace protection 
and height notification surfaces. The proposed amendment will reduce the footprints of 
the Avigation Easement and Recorded Overflight Notification Zones.  

Item F - 9 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 of 12 

 
Figure 9: Existing Overflight Policy Map 

 

 
Figure 10: Proposed Overflight Policy Map 

Item F - 10 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 of 12 

ALUCP AND GENERAL PLAN LAND USE CONSISTENCY: State Law requires 
General Plans and Specific Plans must be made consistent with adopted airport 
compatibility plans.  Government Code Section 65302.3 requires that General Plans and 
any applicable Specific Plans “shall be consistent with” the Compatibility Plan and is 
reiterated in local agencies’ obligations under the Alternative Process (Public Utilities 
Code Section 21670.1(c)(2)(D)).    General Plans do not need to be identical with the 
ALUCP in order to achieve consistency.  Affected jurisdictions’ General Plans must do 
the following: (1) address compatibility planning issues, either directly or through 
reference to a zoning ordinance or other policy document; and (2) must avoid direct 
conflicts with the (ALUCP) development policies and criteria.   

The consistency requirement pertains only to future land use development.  
Nothing in state law or the ALUCP requires that already existing development be removed 
or modified to eliminate incompatibilities that may already exist.  Furthermore, General 
Plans and Specific Plans can show such land uses as continuing even though they would 
be nonconforming with the ALUCP criteria.  Conflicts of this type do not constitute 
inconsistencies between a General Plan or Specific Plan and the ALUCP.   

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Pursue City’s Goals and Objectives by Working with Other Governmental 

Agencies 
 

[2] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 

Land Use Element: 
 

 Goal LU5: Integrated airport systems and facilities that minimize negative 
impacts to the community and maximize economic benefits. 
 

 LU5-1 Coordination with Airport Authorities:  We collaborate with FAA, 
Caltrans Division of Aeronautics, airport owners, neighboring jurisdictions, and other 
shareholders in the preparation, update and maintenance of airport-related plans. 
 

 LU5-2 Airport Planning Consistency:  We coordinate with airport authorities 
to ensure The Ontario Plan is consistent with state law, federal regulations and/or 
adopted master plans and land use compatibility plans for the ONT and Chino Airport. 

 

Item F - 11 of 335



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PALU18-004  
June 26, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 

 LU5-3 Airport Compatibility Planning for ONT:  We create and maintain the 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for ONT. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
reviewed in conjunction with File No. PADV07-008, for which a Negative Declaration 
(State Clearinghouse No. 2011011081) was adopted by the Ontario City Council on April 
19, 2011. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
 
 

Item F - 12 of 335



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE FILE NO. PALU18-004, AN AMENDMENT TO THE ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ONT 
ALUCP) TO: 1) UPDATE AIRPORT OWNERSHIP REFERENCES FROM 
LOS ANGELES WORLD AIRPORTS (LAWA) TO ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (OIAA); 2) ELIMINATE LAWA'S 
PROPOSAL TO RECONFIGURE THE ONT RUNWAY SYSTEM BY 
SHIFTING BOTH RUNWAYS SOUTH AND EAST OF THEIR PRESENT 
POSITION (EXHIBIT 1-6: SIMPLIFIED AIRPORT DIAGRAM) AND RELY 
ON THE EXISTING RUNWAY SYSTEM (CURRENT AIRPORT LAYOUT 
PLAN) FOR THE ONT ALUCP; AND 3) UPDATE POLICY MAPS 2-1: 
AIRPORT INFLUENCE AREA, 2-2: SAFETY ZONES, 2-3: NOISE IMPACT 
ZONES, 2-4: AIRSPACE PROTECTION ZONES AND 2-5: OVERFLIGHT 
NOTIFICATION ZONES TO REFLECT IMPACTS FROM THE EXISTING 
RUNWAY CONFIGURATION AND ELIMINATE THE COMPOSITE 
APPROACH THAT PROTECTS EXISTING AND LAWA’S PROPOSED 
RUNWAY RECONFIGURATIONS. THE GEOGRAPHIC SCOPE OF THE 
ONT ALUCP IS THE AIRPORT INFLUENCE AREA (AIA), WHICH 
INCLUDES PORTIONS OF THE CITIES OF ONTARIO, FONTANA, 
UPLAND, MONTCLAIR, RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CHINO, POMONA, 
CLAREMONT AND UNINCORPORATED PORTIONS OF SAN 
BERNARDINO, RIVERSIDE AND LOS ANGELES COUNTIES, AND 
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF. 

 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the approval 
of an amendment to the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for Ontario International 
Airport, File No. PALU18-004, as described in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Resolution No. 95-34 established the City of Ontario as the 
responsible agency for land use compatibility planning for Ontario International Airport; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the geographic scope of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

(ALUCP) is the Airport Influence Area (AIA), the area in which current or future airport-
related noise, safety, airspace protection and/or overflight factors may affect future land 
uses or necessitate restrictions on those uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Airport Influence Area which include portions of the Cities of 

Ontario, Fontana, Upland, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino, Pomona and 

Item F - 13 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Claremont, portions of Riverside and Los Angeles Counties and unincorporated portions 
of San Bernardino; and 
 

WHEREAS, the basic function of the project is to promote compatibility between 
Ontario International Airport and the land uses that surround it and the main objective of 
the project is to avoid future compatibility conflicts rather than to remedy existing 
incompatibilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project is aimed at addressing future land uses and development, 

not airport activity and the project does not place any restrictions on the present and future 
role, configuration, or use of the airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 19, 2011 the Ontario City Council adopted the Airport Land 

Use Compatibility Plan for Ontario International Airport (ONT ALUCP) that was based 
upon a Simplified Airport Diagram emphasizing both the existing and anticipated ultimate 
configurations of the runway system generated by Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) 
the previous airport owner/operator; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 30, 2018 the City of Ontario received a letter from the current 

ONT airport owner and operator, the OIAA (Ontario International Airport Authority) 
requesting the ONT ALUCP be based on the most recently approved Airport Layout Plan 
(ALP) instead of the alternative runway configurations proposed by LAWA; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment includes updating airport ownership 
references from LAWA to OIAA; the elimination of LAWA's proposal to reconfigure the 
ONT runway system and rely only upon the existing runway system (current Airport 
Layout Plan) for the ONT ALUCP; and update Policy Maps 2-1: Airport Influence Area, 2-
2: Safety Zones, 2-3: Noise Impact Zones, 2-4: Airspace Protection Zones and 2-5: 
Overflight Notification Zones to reflect impacts from the existing runway configuration; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. File No. PADV07-008, for which a Negative Declaration (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2011011081) was adopted by the Ontario City Council on April 19, 
2011, and this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental 
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed; and 

Item F - 14 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make 
recommendation to the City Council on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the 
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and 
considered the information contained in the previous Negative Declaration and supporting 
documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Negative 
Declaration and supporting documentation, the Planning Commission finds as follows:  

 
(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with 

the Negative Declaration, previously adopted by the City of Ontario Council on April 19, 
2011, in conjunction with File No. PADV07-008. 
 

(2) The previous “ND” contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous “ND” was completed in compliance with CEQA and the 
Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and 
 

(4) The previous “ND” reflects the independent judgment of the Planning 
Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental 
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous “ND”. 

Item F - 15 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed ALUCP Amendment will protect the public health, 
safety, and welfare by ensuring the orderly expansion of airports. The proposed 
ONT ALUCP amendment will ensure the orderly expansion of ONT by protecting the 
current runway configuration system shown in the most recently approved Airport Layout 
Plan dated March 7, 2018.  
 

(2) The proposed ALUCP Amendment will minimize the public’s exposure 
to excessive noise and safety hazards within areas around the airport to the extent 
that these areas are not already devoted to incompatible uses. The proposed ONT 
ALUCP amendment will minimize the public’s exposure to excessive noise and safety 
hazards within areas around ONT by protecting the current runway configuration system 
shown in the most recently approved Airport Layout Plan dated March 7, 2018.  
 

(3) The proposed ALUCP Amendment is consistent with the goals and 
policies of the general plan. The proposed ONT ALUCP amendment is consistent with 
the policies of The Ontario Plan, specifically policy LU5-3 Airport Compatibility Planning 
for ONT that requires the City Ontario to create and maintain the Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan for ONT. 
 

(4) The proposed ALUCP Amendment is reasonable and beneficial, and 
in the interest of good planning practice. The proposed amendment is reasonable and 
beneficial in the interest of good planning practices since it will continue to protect the 
orderly expansion of the airport and allow surrounding land uses to be developed 
consistently with the future planned growth of ONT. The proposed amendment will 
eliminate the need to limit land uses based upon a future runway configuration that has 
been deemed unnecessary by the owner/operator of ONT.   
 

SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends the City Council APPROVES the herein described Application, as shown in 
“Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 

Item F - 16 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario shall 
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of June 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Richard D. Delman 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

Item F - 17 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the 
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was 
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their 
regular meeting held on June 26, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item F - 18 of 335



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PALU18-004 
June 26, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PALU18-004 
 

Ontario International Airport  
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP)  

Document 
 
 

 
 

Item F - 19 of 335



LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL  
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN 

CITY OF ONTARIO AIRPORT COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

 ADOPTED APRIL 19, 2011  - AMENDED JULY 2018 

 

Item F - 20 of 335



ADOPTED BY ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL  

APRIL 19, 2011 

ORDINANCE NO. 2935 

EFFECTIVE DATE   

MAY 19, 2011  

AMENDMENT  

JULY 17, 2018 

 
Prepared for:  

City of Ontario 
Planning Department  

 
 
 

Jerry L. Blum 
Planning Director 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, CA 91764 

 
Principal Planner 
Cathy Wahlstrom 

 
Project Manager 
Lorena Mejia 

 
 

Prepared by: 

Mead & Hunt, Inc. 
 
 
 
 

133 Avia on Boulevard, Suite 100  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
www.meadhunt.com 

 
Project Manager 

Maranda Thompson 
 

In associa on with:  

Dudek  
 
 

Harris Miller Miller & Hanson, Inc. 
 
 
 

Technology Associates  
Interna onal Corpora on 

 
 

 
Funded by : 

Federal Avia on Administra on (FAA) 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Sec on 160 of Vision 100 
Century of Avia on Reauthoriza on Act  

  

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL  

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN 

City Council 

Paul S. Leon, Mayor 

Debra Dorst‐Porada , Mayor pro Tem 

Alan D. Wapner, Council Member 

Sheila Mautz, Council Member 

Jim W. Bowman, Council Member 

 

Chris Hughes, City Manager 

O o Krou l, Development Agency Director  

 

Planning Commission 

Bob Gregorek, Chairman 

Richard Delman, Commissioner 

Rick Gage, Commissioner 

Barbara Hartley, Commissioner 

Fausto Reyes, Commissioner 

 

Item F - 21 of 335



ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL  
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The City of Ontario would like to thank the Technical Advisory Committee for their time, participation and technical 
assistance with development of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for LA/Ontario International Airport.  The 
City also thanks the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for allocating the grant funds which made the 
development of this plan possible.   

ADOPTED APRIL 19, 2011 

C    O  
Jerry L. Blum, Planning Director 

Sco  Murphy, Assistant Planning Director 

Cathy Wahlstrom, Principal Planner 

Barbara Paine, Principal Planner 

Chuck Mercier, Senior Planner 

Richard Ayala, Senior Planner 

Lorena Mejia, Associate Planner 

Louis Abi‐Younes, City Engineer 

Nabil Kassih, Assistant City Engineer 

Tom Danna, Traffic Engineer 

John Andrews, Redevelopment Director 

Sigfrido Rivera, Housing Manager 

Peter Witherow, IT Applica ons Manager 

Robert De Casas, Senior System Analyst 

Dale Wishner, IT Systems Manager 

 

ALUCP P  C  S ‐C  
Richard Delman, Planning Commissioner 

Fred Nelsen, Vice Chair 

 
F  A  A  (FAA) 
Margie Drilling , Avia on Planner, Los Angeles ADO 

 

CALTRANS, D    A  
Terry Barrie, Chief, Office of Avia on Planning 

Ron Bolyard, Associate Avia on Land Use Planner 

Chris Ferrell, Associate Avia on Land Use Planner 

 

L  A  W  A  (LAWA) 
Jess L. Romo, Airport Manager 

Paula McHargue, Supervising Transporta on Planner II 

Eileen Schoetzow , Forecas ng and Analysis 

Sheryl Thomas Perkins, Senior Government Affairs Representa ve 

 

S  B  C  
Mike N. Williams, A.A.E., Director of Airports 

Jim Squire, Deputy Director 

Christney Barilla, Land Use Services Director Representa ve 

 

C    C  
Chris Lovell, Principal Planner  

C    F  
Debbie Brazill,  Deputy City Manager 

Don Williams, Director of Community Development 

Charles Fahie, Senior Planner 

C    M  
Steve Lustro, Community Development Director 

Michael Diaz, City Planner  
 

C    R  C  
James R. Troyer,  Planning Director  
Donald Granger, Senior Planner 

 

C    U  
Karen Peterson, Planning Manager 

Jeff Bloom, Community Development Director 
 

C    R  

Ed Cooper, Airport Land Use Commission Director 

Ron Goldman, Planning Director  

John Guerin, Principal Planner 
 

M    H , I . 

Maranda Thompson,  Project Manager, Avia on Services 

Ken Brody, Senior Project Planner 

Keith Downs, Senior Planner 

Corbe  Smith, Airport Planner 

Todd Eroh, Senior Technician 

 

D  

Shawn Shamlou, Environmental Manager 

Lisa Lubeley, GIS Manager 

 

H  M  M    H , I . 

Robert Behr, Senior Noise Consultant 

 

T  A  I  C ‐

 

Pat Atchison, GIS Tool Manager 

Item F - 22 of 335



 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment)  i 

FOREWORD  ..................................................................................................................................................... I 

CHAPTER 1:  BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY 
  AIRPORT COMPATIBILITY PLANNING .............................................................................................................. 1-1 

   Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 1-1 

   ALUCP Five-Step Development Process ....................................................................................... 1-1 

  THE ONT COMPATIBILITY PLAN .................................................................................................................... 1-2 

   Function of the Compatibility Plan .................................................................................................. 1-2 

   Airport Influence Area ..................................................................................................................... 1-2 

   Effective Date and Adoption of the Compatibility Plan .................................................................. 1-2 

  THE “ALTERNATIVE PROCESS” ...................................................................................................................... 1-3 

   State Law Requirements ................................................................................................................. 1-3 

   San Bernardino County Alternative Process .................................................................................. 1-3 

  METHODOLOGY FOR CREATING THE ONT COMPATIBILITY PLAN ..................................................................... 1-4 

   ONT Master Plan Status ................................................................................................................. 1-4 

   Planning for Future Runway Modifications ..................................................................................... 1-4 

   Future and Existing Activity Forecasts ........................................................................................... 1-5 

   Future and Existing Airfield Configurations .................................................................................... 1-5 

  LAND USE PLAN CONSISTENCY .................................................................................................................... 1-6 

   State Law Requirements  ................................................................................................................ 1-6 

   Consistency Options ...................................................................................................................... 1-7 

  BACKGROUND INFORMATION ......................................................................................................................... 1-8 

   Definitions for this Compatibility Plan ............................................................................................. 1-8 

   Table and Map Descriptions .......................................................................................................... 1-9 

 CHAPTER 1 EXHIBITS 

   EXHIBIT 1-1 Airport History and Development Summary ............................................................... 1-11 

   Exhibit 1-2 Airport Features .......................................................................................................... 1-13 

   Exhibit 1-3 Airport Activity Data Summary ..................................................................................  1-15  

   Exhibit 1-4 ONT AIA Information .................................................................................................. 1-17 

   Exhibit 1-5 Simplified Airport Diagram AcceptanceOIAA ALP Update Letter ............................ 1-19 

  CHAPTER 1 MAP EXHIBITS 

   Simplified Airport DiagramONT ALP .................................................................................. Exhibit 1-6 

   Runway Protection Zones: West ......................................................................................... Exhibit 1-7 

   Compatibility Factors: Safety .............................................................................................. Exhibit 1-8 

Item F - 23 of 335



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ii LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

   Compatibility Factors: Noise ............................................................................................... Exhibit 1-9 

   Compatibility Factors: Existing Airspace.......................................................................... Exhibit 1-10 

   Compatibility Factors: Future Airspace ............................................................................ Exhibit 1-11 

   Compatibility Factors: Composite Airspace ..................................................................... Exhibit 1-12 

   Modeled Flight Routes .................................................................................................. Exhibit 1-1311 

   Flight Track Altitude: All Operations (Composite) ........................................................ Exhibit 1-1412 

   Flight Track Altitude: Normal Operations (Arrival) ....................................................... Exhibit 1-1513 

   Flight Track Altitude: Normal Operations (Departure) ................................................. Exhibit 1-1614 

   Flight Track Altitude: Santa Ana Conditions (Arrival) ................................................... Exhibit 1-1715 

   Flight Track Altitude: Santa Ana Conditions (Departure) ............................................. Exhibit 1-1816 

   Existing Land Use ......................................................................................................... Exhibit 1-1917 

   City of Ontario General Plan ......................................................................................... Exhibit 1-2018 

   General Plan Land Use: Other Jurisdictions ............................................................Exhibit 1-21A19A 

   General Plan Land Use: Jurisdictions Legend ........................................................Exhibit 1-21B19B 

CHAPTER 2: PROCEDURAL AND COMPATIBILITY POLICIES 
 CHAPTER OVERVIEW .................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

  Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

  Section Descriptions ....................................................................................................................... 2-1 

  Criteria Table Descriptions  ............................................................................................................ 2-2 

  Compatibility Policy Map Descriptions ........................................................................................... 2-2 

 SECTION 1:  SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE COMPATIBILITY PLAN ............................................................... 2-3 

  1.1  Geographic Scope ............................................................................................................. 2-3 

  1.2  Applicability of the Compatibility Plan ............................................................................... 2-3 

  1.3  Limitations of the Compatibility Plan .................................................................................. 2-4 

 SECTION 2:  ALUCP IMPLEMENTATION RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE ALTERNATIVE PROCESS ...................... 2-6 

  2.1  Overview of ALUCP Implementation Responsibilities for Affected Agencies ................... 2-6 

  2.2  Specific Responsibilities of LAWAOIAA ............................................................................ 2-7 

  2.3  ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process ............................................................................. 2-7 

 SECTION 3:  CITY OF ONTARIO ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES  ...................................................................... 2-8 

  3.1  Preparation, Adoption and Amendment of the Compatibility Plan .................................... 2-8 

  3.2  ALUCP Implementation Administration.............................................................................. 2-9 

 SECTION 4:  MEDIATION BOARD ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PROJECT DISPUTE PROCESS ....................... 2-9 

  4.1  Mediation Board Purpose and Composition ...................................................................... 2-9 

  4.2  Mediation Board Project Dispute Process ....................................................................... 2-10 

Item F - 24 of 335



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment)  iii 

  4.3  Overruling Mediation Board Decisions ............................................................................ 2-11 

 SECTION 5: EVALUATING LAND USE CONSISTENCY ..................................................................................... 2-12 

  5.1  Evaluating Consistency of New Development ................................................................. 2-12 

  5.2  Evaluation Tools ............................................................................................................... 2-12 

 SECTION 6:  COMPATIBILITY POLICIES ......................................................................................................... 2-14 

   6.1 Safety Policies .................................................................................................................. 2-14 

  6.2  Noise Policies ................................................................................................................... 2-20 

  6.3  Airspace Protection Policies ............................................................................................ 2-24 

  6.4  Overflight Policies ............................................................................................................ 2-29 

  6.5  Special Compatibility Policies .......................................................................................... 2-32 

 CHAPTER 2 TABLES 

  Table 2-1 Major Land Use Actions ..............................................................................................  2-39 

  Table 2-2 Safety Criteria ............................................................................................................... 2-41 

  Table 2-3 Noise Criteria ................................................................................................................ 2-47   

 CHAPTER 2 POLICY MAPS 

  Airport Influence Area ............................................................................ Compatibility Policy Map 2-1 

  Safety Zones .......................................................................................... Compatibility Policy Map 2-2 

  Noise Impact Zones............................................................................... Compatibility Policy Map 2-3 

  Airspace Protection Zones .................................................................... Compatibility Policy Map 2-4 

  Overflight Notification Zones ................................................................. Compatibility Policy Map 2-5 

APPENDICES 

 APPENDIX A – STATE LAWS RELATED TO AIRPORT LAND USE PLANNING ....................................................  A-1 

  Public Utilities Code......................................................................................................................   A-3 

 Government Code ......................................................................................................................   A-20 

  Education Code  .........................................................................................................................   A-29 

 Public Resources Code ..............................................................................................................   A-33 

 Business Professions Code ........................................................................................................   A-34 

  Civil Code  ...................................................................................................................................   A-35 

 Legislative History Summary ......................................................................................................   A-40 

 APPENDIX B - FEDERAL AVIATION REGULATIONS PART 77 ............................................................................. B-1 

   Exhibit B1 – FAR Part 77 Imaginary Surfaces .............................................................................. B-14 

  Exhibit B2 – FAR Part 77 Notification Form .................................................................................. B-15 

  Exhibit B3 –FAR Part 77 Online Submittal Process ...................................................................... B-16 

 

Item F - 25 of 335



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

iv LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

  
 APPENDIX C - AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY CONCEPTS ....................................................................... C-1 

   Table C1 – Safety Zone Aircraft Accident Risk Characteristics .................................................. C-15 

  Figure C1 – Noise Footprints of Selected Aircraft ........................................................................ C-16 

  Figure C2 –General Aviation Accident Distribution Contours, All Arrivals................................... C-18 

  Figure C3 –General Aviation Accident Distribution Contours, All Departures ............................ C-19 

 APPENDIX D - METHODS FOR DETERMINING CONCENTRATIONS OF PEOPLE ................................................... D-1 

   Table D1 – Occupant Load Factors  .............................................................................................. D-6 

 APPENDIX E - SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS ................................................................................... E-1 

   Table E1 – General Plan Consistency Checklist ............................................................................ E-3 

  Table E2 – Sample Airport Overlay Zone Components ................................................................. E-4 

  Table E3 – Sample Avigation Easement ........................................................................................ E-5 

  Table E4 – Sample Overflight Notification ...................................................................................... E-7 

  Table E5 – Sample Project Submittal Information .......................................................................... E-8 

 APPENDIX F - LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN DOCUMENTS ................ F-1 

 APPENDIX G - GLOSSARY ............................................................................................................................. G-1  

                APPENDIX H – ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW/INITIAL STUDY ................................................................................. H-1 

 APPENDIX I – GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION CONSISTENCY ANALYSIS ............................................ I-1 

 APPENDIX J – HIGH TERRAIN ZONE & EXISTING AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION STUDY ........................................... J-1 

 

 
 

  
 

Item F - 26 of 335



 
FOREWORD 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) I 

Aviation is an important industry in the State of California. It plays a significant role in the local and 
regional economy. Airports provide a means of transportation, business development, recreational 
aviation opportunities and educational venues to the citizens of the State, as well as visitors to the 
region. Communities in close proximity of an airport benefit from its economic value but are also 
subject to airport impacts such as noise and safety. Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans are 
documents that address airport impacts and provide implementation techniques to ensure the 
development of compatible land uses around airports.  

This Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Compatibility Plan) addresses land use impacts around 
LA/Ontario International Airport.  The document is organized into two chapters and a set of 
appendices. Chapter 1 identifies the background data and methodology utilized for the basis of this 
Compatibility Plan and Chapter 2 identifies the procedural policies and compatibility criteria for 
implementing this Plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 27 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY 

Chapter 1 

 

Item F - 28 of 335



CHAPTER 1 

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLGY 
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 1–1 

AIRPORT COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Introduction 
The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code, Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Compatibility Plan) be prepared for all public-use airports in the 
state to:  

“protect the public health, safety, and welfare by ensuring orderly expansion of airports and the adoption of land use 
measures that minimize the public’s exposure to excessive noise and safety hazards within areas around public 
airports to the extent that these areas are not already devoted to incompatible land uses.” 

State law also requires local land use plans and individual development proposals to be consistent with 
policies set forth in Compatibility Plans.  Compatibility Plans must have 20-year horizons, taking into 
consideration regional growth projections and future airport expansion plans that would increase 
airport activity and associated impacts.  Compatibility Plans are tailored to each airport’s specific land 
use impacts and issues.  The statutes also require that local jurisdictions preparing Compatibility Plans 
“rely upon” the compatibility guidance provided by the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook 
published by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Division of Aeronautics in 
January 2002. 

Five-Step Compatibility Planning Process 
The development of the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan followed this five-
step process.  

 Step 1:  Initiate Process and Gather Data 
Conduct preliminary work needed to initiate the compatibility planning process such as 
identifying the responsibilities of the City of Ontario in preparing the Compatibility Plan, 
gathering pertinent airport data such as an airport master plan or airport layout plan, 
and identifying/notifying the different stakeholders. 

 Step 2:  Delineate the Airport Influence Area 
Define the areas that need to be considered for airport land use compatibility planning 
by examining the four factors of compatibility that include safety, noise, airspace 
protection and overflight consistent with the California Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook (Handbook). 

 Step 3:  Identify Compatibility Concerns 
Examine the level of compatibility in the community by evaluating existing land uses 
and land use plans against compatibility concerns. 

 Step 4:  Develop Compatibility Policies 
Examine the various policies and regulatory documents available (e.g. California 
Handbook, Public Utilities Code, FAA guidance) to guide in the development of 
compatibility policies that will be part of the airport land use compatibility plan. 
 
 

Item F - 29 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y  
 

1–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 

 Step 5:  Establish Implementation Strategies 
Identify and adopt strategies for implementing the compatibility plan, making local 
land use plans consistent with the Compatibility Plan and processing consistency reviews 
of future development proposals.  

THE ONT COMPATIBILITY PLAN 

Function of the Compatibility Plan 
The basic function of the Compatibility Plan for LA/Ontario International Airport (ONT) is to promote 
compatibility between ONT and the land uses that surround it.  As required by state law, the 
Compatibility Plan provides guidance to affected local jurisdictions with regard to airport land use 
compatibility matters involving ONT.  The Compatibility Plan is separate and distinct from the 
jurisdictions’ other land use policy documents—their general plans, specific plans, and zoning 
ordinances—yet all of the documents are expected to be made consistent with each other through 
incorporation of the compatibility policies into their land use policy documents. 

The main objective of the Compatibility Plan is to avoid future compatibility conflicts rather than to 
remedy existing incompatibilities.  Also, the Compatibility Plan is aimed at addressing future land uses 
and development, not airport activity.  The Compatibility Plan does not place any restrictions on the 
present and future role, configuration, or use of the airport. 

Airport Influence Area 
The central component of this Compatibility Plan is the set of procedural 
and compatibility policies outlined in Chapter 2.  These policies set limits 
on future land uses and development near the airport in response to noise, 
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future 
airport activity.  The geographic extent of these four types of impacts 
together constitutes the ONT Airport Influence Area (AIA).  The ONT 
AIA encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside and Los 
Angeles Counties.  However, this Compatibility Plan applies only to 
jurisdictions within San Bernardino County; specifically, the County of San 
Bernardino and the Cities of Chino, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, Rancho 
Cucamonga, and Upland, together with any special district, community 
college district, or school district that exists or may be established or 
expanded into the AIA.  The Compatibility Plan does not apply to state-owned, federal or tribal lands.  

The Compatibility Plan has been prepared in coordination with the applicable jurisdictions listed above 
and representatives of Caltrans Division of Aeronautics and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
Los Angeles Airports District Office.   

Effective Date and Adoption of the Compatibility Plan 
The provisions of the Compatibility Plan will take effect upon the plan’s adoption by the City of Ontario.  
Other affected entities within San Bernardino County have options as to how to incorporate pertinent 
Compatibility Plan provisions into their respective local plans and policies or to dispute portions of the 
plan, but they cannot simply opt out of the process (Public Utilities Code Section 21670.1 (c)). 

Note: The compatibility 
policies set forth herein, 
specifically in Chapter 2, are 
relevant to Los Angeles and 
Riverside County jurisdictions 
and Los Angeles and 
Riverside County Airport Land 
Use Commissions. These 
agencies are encouraged to 
adopt these policies for their 
portions of the ONT AIA, but 
are not required to. 

Item F - 30 of 335



  B A C K GR O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentFebruary 2011 Public Draft) 1–3 

THE “ALTERNATIVE PROCESS”  

State Law Requirements  
In most counties, the responsibility for the preparation and adoption of compatibility plans falls to the 
county airport land use commission (ALUC).  State law also provides for what is generally referred to 
as an “Alternative Process” wherein a county does not have to form an ALUC and the required 
compatibility planning responsibilities fall to local jurisdictions.  San Bernardino County and its cities 
elected to follow the Alternative Process when this option became available as a result of the 1994 
legislation (Assembly Bill 2831). 

Specific requirements for implementation of the Alternative Process are set forth in Public Utilities 
Code Section 21670.1(c)(2) as follows: 

“…[the] county and the appropriate affected cities having jurisdiction over an airport, subject to the review 
and approval by the Division of Aeronautics of the department, shall do all of the following: 

(A) Adopt processes for the preparation, adoption, and amendment of the airport land use 
compatibility plan for each airport that is served by a scheduled airline or operated for the 
benefit of the general public. 

(B) Adopt processes for the notification of the general public, landowners, interested groups, and 
other public agencies regarding the preparation, adoption, and amendment of the airport land 
use compatibility plans. 

(C) Adopt processes for the mediation of disputes arising from the preparation, adoption, and 
amendment of the airport land use compatibility plans. 

(D) Adopt processes for the amendment of general and specific plans to be consistent with the 
airport land use compatibility plans. 

(E) Designate the agency that shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and amendment of 
each airport land use compatibility plan.” 

Paragraph (3) of Section 21670.1(c) goes on to say that: 

“The Division of Aeronautics of the department shall review the processes adopted pursuant to paragraph 
(2), and shall approve the processes if the division determines that the processes are consistent with the 
procedure required by this article and will do all of the following: 

(A) Result in the preparation, adoption, and implementation of plans within a reasonable amount of 
time. 

(B) Rely on the height, use, noise, safety, and density criteria that are compatible with airport 
operations, as established by this article, and referred to as the Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook, published by the division, and any applicable federal aviation regulations, including, 
but not limited to, Part 77 (commencing with Section 77.1) of Title 14 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations. 

(C) Provide adequate opportunities for notice to, review of, and comment by the general public, 
landowners, interested groups, and other public agencies.” 

 

San Bernardino County Alternative Process 

Use of the Alternative Process within San Bernardino County was established in 1995 by resolutions of 
the County Board of Supervisors and the city councils of cities affected by airports.  Specifically the 
Ontario City Council adopted the Alternative Process through Resolution No. 95-34 utilizing the 
Airport Environs Section of the General Plan as the basis for airport land use compatibility planning 
(see Appendix F).  The California Division of Aeronautics approved the San Bernardino County 

Item F - 31 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y  
 

1–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 

Alternative Process in 1996.  The approval of the Alternative Process designated the City of Ontario as 
the local jurisdiction responsible for leading the compatibility planning process for ONT. 

The policies in Chapter 2 of this Compatibility Plan clarify and amend the process previously established 
by Ontario City Council Resolution No. 95-34 to include participation by the other agencies within San 
Bernardino County having jurisdiction over portions of the AIA established by this Compatibility Plan.  
Participation by these agencies will be accomplished through the ONT Inter-Agency Notification 
Process and creation of a Mediation Board.  The roles and responsibilities of the participating agencies 
and the Mediation Board are described in Chapter 2. The matrix below identifies the 
jurisdictions/entities that may be subject to the ONT Alternative Process. 

METHODOLOGY FOR CREATING THE ONT COMPATIBILITY PLAN 
State law (Public Utilities Code Section 21675(a)) dictates that airport land use compatibility plans be 
based upon an Airport Master Plan (AMP) or an Airport Layout Plan (ALP).  Where an AMP is not 
available or is outdated, an ALP drawing can serve as the basis for compatibility planning, subject to the 
approval of the California Division of Aeronautics.  An ALP is a drawing showing existing facilities and 
planned improvements.  A typical AMP includes an ALP, but also provides textual background data, a 
discussion of forecasts, and an examination of alternatives along with detailed description of the 
proposed development.  ALP’s and AMP’s are prepared for and adopted by the entity that owns 
and/or operates the airport.  Most large, publicly owned airports have an AMP, but many smaller or 
private airports do not. 

ONT Master Plan Status 
ONT has never had an adopted AMP that can serve as the basis for this Compatibility Plan.  In 2002, Los 
Angeles World Airports (LAWA) initiated a master planning effort for ONT.  A tentative proposal of 
the AMP involved reconfiguration of the runway system, shifting both runways south and east of their 
present positions.  This reconfiguration is was regarded necessary to enable the runway system to 
accommodate the volume of aircraft operations associated with the numbers of airline passengers and 
air cargo expected to use the airport by 2030.  Before the new AMP could be completed and adopted, 
however, the nationwide economic downturn, coupled with local factors, resulted in a substantial 
decline in activity at ONT.  With this decline, the urgency for completion of the AMP largely 
disappeared and, consequently, LAWA suspended work on the plan development in late 2008. 

In August 2012 the City of Ontario and San Bernardino County formed the Ontario International 
Airport Authority (OIAA) by enacting a Joint Powers Agreement. The OIAA provides overall direction 
for the management, operations, development and marketing of ONT.  The final transfer of ONT 
from LAWA to OIAA was approved in late 2016. OIAA has since reevaluated LAWA’s proposal for 

Applicability 
Matrix 

San 
Bernardino 
County 1 

Riverside 
County 2 

Los 
Angeles 
County 

Federal 
Agencies 

Native 
American 
Tribes 

Special Entities 3 of 
San Bernardino 
County 

       Required x     x 
Informational  x x x x  
1  The Cities within San Bernardino County that are required to participate in the Alternative Process include: Ontario, Rancho 

Cucamonga, Chino, Montclair, Fontana and Upland. 
2  The County of Riverside having unincorporated lands within the noise impacted areas of LA/Ontario International Airport has 

elected to participate in the compatibility planning process for the Airport on a discretionary basis. 
3   See definition for “Special Entity” on page 1-9 of this Chapter. 

Item F - 32 of 335



  B A C K GR O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentFebruary 2011 Public Draft) 1–5 

separating and lengthening the runways and runway modifications as unnecessary and requested the 
ONT ALUCP be based on the FAA approved 2018 ALP (see Exhibit 1-5 and 1-6).  
 
 Planning for Future Runway Modifications 
The discontinuation of the ONT AMP efforts left the compatibility planning project without a clearly 
defined AMP to use as its basis.  Without an AMP, the Compatibility Plan could be based on the existing 
runway configuration or the modified configuration that was developed as part of LAWA’s master 
planning efforts. Both LAWA and the City of Ontario expect the new AMP to eventually move 
forward with a modified runway system either as indicated on the internal draft plan or similar to it.  
Not considering the modified runways in the Compatibility Plan could potentially enable new 
development to occur in a manner that would be in conflict with the future airport configuration.  
Meanwhile, the existing runways also need to be protected until such time as they are no longer in use.  
Accounting for dual sets of runways in the Compatibility Plan makes the plan more complicated, but it is 
the approach that provides the best assurance of compatibility between the airport and new land use 
development, both in the near and long terms. Representatives of the California Division of 
Aeronautics, Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), LAWA and City of Ontario are in concurrence 
with this approach. 

Therefore, for the purposes of this Compatibility Plan, a Simplified Airport 
Diagram of the airport layout has been prepared emphasizing the features 
having implications for land use compatibility in both the near and long term.  
The Simplified Airport Diagram takes into account both the existing and 
anticipated ultimate configurations of the runway system, runway protection 
zones (RPZ), setback requirements lateral to the runways and the airport property boundary.  In 
accordance with state law, the Simplified Airport Diagram has been approved by the Division of 
Aeronautics as the basis for this Compatibility Plan (see Exhibit 1-5 and 1-6). 

Future and Existing Activity Forecasts 
The activity forecasts LAWA generated prior to the discontinuation of the AMP, explored several 
possible scenarios that the airport could experience.  The Compatibility Plan is specifically focusing on 
two ultimate forecasts that were prepared.  Thethe “no project” and “proposed project” scenarios, as 
defined in the preliminary ONT AMP., represent the two levels of airport activity which could 
potentially be seen by 2030 depending on the ultimate configuration of the airport. 

The “no project” forecast assumes that the airport configuration would remain as it is today.  This lack 
of airfield change would limit the airport to approximately 343,000 annual aircraft operations.  The 
preliminary ONT AMP anticipated that this level of demand would be reached by 2030. 

The “proposed project” forecast is based on the ultimate reconfiguration of the airport.  In this 
configuration, the airfield will be able to accommodate approximately 465,000 operations.  This 
forecast assumes roughly 33.4 million passengers and 3.26 million tons of air cargo enplaned and 
deplaned annually.  The forecast of 33.4 million passengers is based on the assumption that any 
terminal expansion would be restricted to the north side of the airport provided that the airfield is 
capable of accommodating it. 

It is important to note that tThe 3.26 million tons of air cargo expected within the planning period 
includes both the off-airport United Parcel Service (UPS) activity, and the 1.6 million tons of air cargo 
served by the on-airport cargo facilities.  UPS maintains a large sorting facility south of the airport with 
a through-the-fence access point.  The UPS aircraft land and take off on the ONT runways but UPS 
cargo is loaded and unloaded at the private UPS site. 

Note: The Runway Protection 
Zones are confined within the 
City of Ontario. 

Item F - 33 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y  
 

1–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 

Future and Existing Airfield Configurations 
The airport’s present runway system consists of two parallel runways (8L/26R and 8R/26L) oriented 
east and west.  Runway 8L-26R is 12,200 feet in length, while Runway 8R-26L is 10,200 feet long. 
Runway 8L has a displaced threshold of 997 feet.  Both runways are equipped with High-Intensity 
Runway Lights (HIRLs) and centerline lights.  All runway ends are served by straight-in instrument 
approaches.  Runway 26L has the lowest approach minimums with a straight-in ILS approach having a 
200 foot vertical ceiling.  The airport is served by an air traffic control tower which operates twenty-
four hours a day. 

The only published noise abatement procedure for the airport requires Runway 8L for departures and 
Runway 26L for arrivals between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. when weather conditions permit.  This noise 
abatement procedure is also known a contra-flow.  The contra-flow procedures are aimed at reducing 
the number of nighttime overflights of the residential neighborhoods west of the airport. 

The most recent official ONT ALP drawing is one dated February 17, 2009March 7, 2018.  LAWA has 
submitted this ALP to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and it is pending approval.  It shows 
the runway system in its existing configuration.  Also, all runway ends, except Runway 8L, are shown 
having the largest size of runway protection zone (RPZ); specifically, 2,500 feet long, 1,000 feet inner 
width, and 1,750 feet outer width.  This size RPZ is associated with a runway having approach visibility 
minimums lower than ¾ mile and capable of serving all sizes of aircraft.  The existing ALP also shows 
two RPZs west of the Runway 8L threshold. The approach RPZ begins 200 feet from the landing 
threshold and is 2,500 feet long, with a 1,000 foot inner width, and a 1,750 foot outer width. The 
departure RPZ begins 200 feet from the physical end of the runway and is 1,700 feet long, with a 500 
foot inner width, and a 1,010 foot outer width. 

An ALP showing the future runway configuration was part of the 
discontinued AMP.  That drawing, which shows both runways being 
shifted south and east of their current alignments, has been made 
available for the compatibility planning project, and a conceptual 
version was made public through a Notice of Preparation of a Draft 
Environmental Impact Report for the discontinued ONT AMP.  The 
relocated runway position provides a separation of 800 feet between the 
two runways, compared to 700 feet currently.  This increased separation 
and southward shift will allow for the construction of dual taxiways on 
the north and a center taxiway between the two runways.  The 
additional taxiway on the north and a center taxiway would aid in 
circulation and efficiency.  These facilities will allow the airport to 
accommodate the forecast increase in operations without significant 
delays.  Additionally, all four runway ends would have precision 
instrument approach capabilities and the ALP shows the RPZs 
accordingly. 

LAND USE PLAN CONSISTENCY 

State Law Requirements  
General Plans and Specific Plans must be made consistent with adopted airport compatibility plans.  
Several sections of state law establish the relationship between Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans 
and county and city General and Specific Plans.  In particular, Government Code Section 65302.3 
requires that General Plans and any applicable Specific Plans “shall be consistent with” the 

Note: FAA recommends placing 
Building Restriction Lines (BRLs) 
on ALPs to identify suitable 
building area locations on airports.  
(FAA Advisory Circular 150/5300-
13, Section 210). The BRL shown 
on the Simplified Airport Diagram 
(Exhibit 1-6) identifies the 
approximate locations where 
buildings of 35 feet in height or 
taller would be suitable based on 
FAR Part 77, Subpart C, criteria. 
The BRL does not account for the 
topography of the site and, thus, is 
depicted for informational purposes 
only and does not constitute 
ALUCP policy. 

Item F - 34 of 335



  B A C K GR O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentFebruary 2011 Public Draft) 1–7 

Compatibility Plan. This requirement is reiterated in local agencies’ obligations under the Alternative 
Process (Public Utilities Code Section 21670.1(c)(2)(D)). 

A second point to emphasize is that the consistency requirement pertains only to future land use 
development.  Nothing in state law or the Compatibility Plan requires that already existing development 
be removed or modified to eliminate incompatibilities that may already exist.  Furthermore, General 
Plans and Specific Plans can show such land uses as continuing even though they would be 
nonconforming with the Compatibility Plan criteria.  Conflicts of this type do not constitute 
inconsistencies between a General Plan or Specific Plan and the Compatibility Plan. 

Consistency Options 
General Plans do not need to be identical with Compatibility Plans in order to achieve consistency with 
them a General Plan must do two things: 

• It must specifically address compatibility planning issues, either directly or through reference 
to a zoning ordinance or other policy document; and 

• It must avoid direct conflicts with the Compatibility Plan development policies and criteria. 

Compatibility planning issues can be reflected in a General Plan in one, or a combination, of several 
ways: 

 Incorporate Policies into Existing General Plan Elements—One method of achieving the 
necessary planning consistency is to modify existing General Plan elements.  For example, 
airport land use noise policies could be inserted into the noise element, safety policies could be 
placed into a safety element and the primary compatibility criteria and associated maps plus the 
procedural policies might fit into the land use element.  With this approach, direct conflicts 
would be eliminated and the majority of the mechanisms and procedures necessary to ensure 
compliance with compatibility criteria could be fully incorporated into the local jurisdiction’s 
General Plan. 

 Adopt a General Plan Airport Element—Another approach is to prepare a separate airport 
element of the General Plan.  Such a format may be advantageous when the community’s 
General Plan also needs to address on-airport development and operational issues.  Modification 
of other plan elements to provide cross-referencing and eliminate conflicts would still be 
necessary. 

 Adopt Compatibility Plan as Standalone Document—A jurisdiction selecting this option 
would simply adopt as a local policy document the relevant portions of the compatibility plan—
specifically, the policies and maps.  Applicable background information could be included as 
well if desired.  Changes to the community’s existing General Plan would be minimal.  Policy 
reference to the Compatibility Plan would need to be added and any direct land use or other 
conflicts with compatibility planning criteria would have to be removed.  Limited discussion of 
compatibility planning issues could be included in the General Plan, but the substance of most 
compatibility policies would appear only in the stand-alone document. 

 Adopt an Airport Overlay Zone— Affected jurisdictions can adopt an airport overlay zone for 
the areas of impact and make reference to them within their respective General Plans or Specific 
Plans.  The airport overlay zone would act as added layer of standards/restrictions over the 
existing zoning land use designation. Other than where direct conflicts need to be eliminated 
from the local plans, implementation of procedural and compatibility policies would be 
accomplished solely through the zoning ordinance.  Policy reference to airport compatibility in 
the General Plan could be as simple as mentioning support for the compatibility planning 
process indicated in the compatibility plan and stating that policy implementation is by means of 

Item F - 35 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y  
 

1–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 

the overlay zone.  (An outline of topics which could be addressed in an airport overlay zone is 
included in Appendix E.) 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This Compatibility Plan is a stand-alone document that addresses airport land use compatibility issues for 
ONT.  Although, this is the first stand-alone document created, the City of Ontario performed airport 
compatibility planning for the areas around ONT by implementing policies of the 1992 General Plan, 
Airport Environs Section.  The City of Ontario’s newly adopted 2010 General Plan refers to this 
Compatibility Plan for guidance on compatibility planning matters.   

Definitions for this Compatibility Plan 
1. Action: A proposed General Plan, Specific Plan, policy document, or individual development 

project subject to review under the ONT Alternative Process defined in this chapter.  
Also, an airport master plan, airport layout plan, and certain types of airport 
improvements proposed by LAWA OIAA for ONT which would require amendment of 
the Airport Permit.   

2. Aeronautics Act:  Except as indicated otherwise, the article of the California Public Utilities 
Code (Sections 21670 et seq.) pertaining to airport land use commissions and airport land 
use compatibility planning. 

3. Affected Agency:  Any county, city, or special district having lands within the ONT Airport 
Influence Area (AIA).  Consistent with state law, each county within the State of 
California is responsible for its own airport land use compatibility planning efforts.  Thus, 
the policies of this Compatibility Plan apply only to the affected agencies of San Bernardino 
County.  However, since the AIA extends beyond the limits of San Bernardino County, 
information about the airport impacts extending into Riverside and Los Angeles Counties 
is provided for informational purposes.  That is, the affected agencies of Riverside and 
Los Angeles Counties may use the information and compatibility policies provided herein 
at their discretion. 

(a) Affected Agencies in San Bernardino County: 

 Cities of Ontario, Chino, Fontana, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, and 
Upland.  

 San Bernardino County, as the jurisdiction having control over 
unincorporated San Bernardino County lands within the AIA. 

 Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA),  a department of the City of Los 
Angeles, as Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA), the owner and 
operator of LA/Ontario International Airport. 

 Special entities including school districts, community college districts, and 
special districts whose boundaries include lands within the San Bernardino 
County portion of the AIA. 

(b) Affected Agencies outside San Bernardino County: 

 Riverside County, as the jurisdiction having control over unincorporated 
Riverside County lands within the AIA. 

Item F - 36 of 335



  B A C K GR O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentFebruary 2011 Public Draft) 1–9 

 The City of Eastvale and any future city that may be incorporated within the 
affected portion of Riverside County. 

 Riverside County Airport Land Use Commission. 

 Cities of Pomona and Claremont, each of which has jurisdiction over 
portions of the AIA within Los Angeles County. 

 The Los Angeles County Airport Land Use Commission.  

4. Airport:  LA/Ontario International Airport (ONT), a commercial airport in the City of Ontario 
that is owned and operated by Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA)Los 
Angeles World Airports (LAWA). 

5. Airport Influence Area (AIA):  An area, as delineated in Map 2-1 (see Chapter 2), in which 
current or future airport-related noise, overflight, safety, or airspace protection factors 
may significantly affect land uses or necessitate restriction on those uses.   

6. Aviation-Related Use:  Any facility or activity directly associated with the air transportation of 
persons or cargo or the operation, storage, or maintenance of aircraft at an airport or 
heliport.  Such uses specifically include runways, taxiways, and their associated protection 
areas defined by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), together with aircraft 
aprons, hangars, fixed base operations facilities, terminal buildings, etc. 

7. Alternative Process:  State law provides for what is generally known as the “Alternative 
Process” wherein counties do not have to form an Airport Land Use Commission 
(ALUC).  Instead, the County and affected cities having jurisdiction over an airport are 
responsible for compatibility planning efforts.   

8. Compatibility Plan:  This document, the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan. 

9. Local Jurisdiction:  Any county or city within the ONT AIA. 

10. Major Land Use Action:  Actions related to proposed land uses for which compatibility with 
airport activity is a particular concern.  These types of actions are listed in Table 2-1 of 
Chapter 2.  Minor actions (e.g., ministerial acts) are not subject to compatibility reviews. 

11. Special Entity:  Special districts, school districts, and community college districts owning 
property or having boundaries within the San Bernardino County portions of the Airport 
Influence Area. 

Table and Map Descriptions 

The exhibits at the end of this chapter illustrate the different compatibility factors and other data which 
were used to evaluate and guide the creation of the ONT compatibility policies and maps that are part 
of Chapter 2.  

Table Descriptions 

 Airport History & Development Summary — Exhibit 1-1 provides a historical timeline of 
airport events and facility improvements. 

 Airport Features Summary — Exhibit 1-2 provides a tabular summary of the airfield features 
at ONT.  

Item F - 37 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y  
 

1–10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (February 2011 Public DraftJuly 2018 Amendment) 

 Airport Activity Data Summary — Exhibit 1-3 summarizes future “no project” and 
“proposed project” aircraft activity data as developed by LAWA for the discontinued AMP. 

 Airport Environs Information — Exhibit 1-4 provides a summary of land use policies for 
neighboring jurisdictions, as well as the status of local plans. 

 Simplified Airport Diagram Acceptance OIAA ALP Update Letter ― Exhibit 1-5 
provides a copy of the acceptance letter issued by the California Division of Aeronautics 
regarding the Simplified Airport Diagram which was approved on July 21, 2009 OIAA letter 
requesting the ONT ALUCP be based on the 2018 FAA approved ALP. 

Map Descriptions 

 Simplified Airport DiagramONT ALP — Exhibit 1-6 is the simplified airport diagram which 
shows the airfield area highlighting the existing and future runway configuration, Runway 
Protection Zone (RPZ) and airport property.  The simplified airport diagram was accepted by 
California Division of Aeronautics in July of 2009ONT 2018 FAA approved Airport Layout 
Plan. 

 Runway Protection Zones: West — The Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA)OIAA 
employs the use of approach/departure RPZs for Runway 8L. However, the Federal Aviation 
Administration’s (FAA’s) standard RPZ for runways with instrument approach minimums of 
less than ¾ mile is larger and would extend further beyond the airport property.  The FAA’s 
standard RPZ (1,000 feet inner width by 2,500 feet length by 1,750 feet outer width) would 
begin 200 feet beyond the west end of Runway 8L. Exhibit 1-7 displays the established 
approach/departure RPZs for Runway 8L as depicted in LAWA’s OIAA’s Airport Layout Plan 
dated February 17, 2009March 7, 2018.  The FAA’s standard RPZ is also shown for comparative 
purposes. 

 Compatibility Factors: Safety — The area of safety concern is depicted in Exhibit 1-8 using 
the generic safety zones for a large air carrier runway. These safety zones are taken from the 
California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002) published by the California Division 
of Aeronautics.  Consistent with the Handbook, Zone 1 is adjusted to match the RPZs reflected 
in the Simplified Airport Diagram (see Exhibit 1-6). 

 Compatibility Factors: Noise — Two sets of nNoise contours are shown in Exhibit 1-9. 
These two sets of contours reflect the “no project” and “proposed project” activity levels of 
343,100 and 465,000 annual aircraft operations respectively. 

 Compatibility Factors: Airspace — Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77 airspace 
surfaces for ONT are depicted in Exhibits 1-10 Existing Airspace, 1-11 Ultimate Airspace, and 1-12 
Composite Airspace. The height notification surface boundary is based on the combination of the 
existing and future runway configurations. 

 Modeled Flight Routes — Exhibit 1-13 1-11 depicts the flight tracks which were modeled 
while creating noise contours for the airport.  The flight envelope is shown to visualize the 
standard flight routes to and from the airport, including those that are infrequently flown. 

 Flight Track Altitudes: Arrivals and Departures — Radar tracks by altitude and a flight track 
envelope are included for Exhibits 1-14 12 through 1-1816. The radar tracks shown reflect 
several days’ worth of aircraft operations at ONT. The radar tracks were recorded during times 
or normal east to west operation as well as contra-flow operations. These tracks did not, 
however, record many instances of west to east operations which occur when the Santa Ana 

Item F - 38 of 335



  B A C K GR O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentFebruary 2011 Public Draft) 1–11 

winds are blowing. The flight envelope is provided to help visualize the areas that are commonly 
overflown by aircraft. 

 Existing Land Use — The existing land uses for the areas within the vicinity of the airport are 
shown in Exhibit 1-1917.  

 General Plan Land Use: City of Ontario — The General Plan Policy Plan was adopted in 
January 2010 as depicted in Exhibit 1-2018.  

 General Plan Land Use: Other Jurisdictions — Exhibit 1-21a 19a displays the neighboring 
jurisdictions’ adopted General Plan land use designations.  The land use legends are shown in 
Exhibit 1-21b19b. 

Item F - 39 of 335



 B A C K G R OU N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1    
 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–11
  

 
 

Exhibit 1-1 

Airport History and Development  Summary 
 

Situated in the southwest corner of San Bernardino County along the southern edge of the San Gabriel 
Mountains, ONT originated in 1923 as a dirt landing strip east of its current location serving the agricultural 
uses of the region.  Throughout the years the airport has seen significant changes. 

 In 1929, the City of Ontario purchased additional land for the airport and it became known as Ontario 
Municipal Airport.    

 In 1942, with the escalation of World War II, two concrete runways were constructed along with an 
air traffic control tower and an instrument landing system.  

 In 1946, in recognition of the transpacific cargo flights originating from the airport, Ontario Municipal 
Airport was renamed Ontario International Airport.  

 During the 1950s, Lockheed, Douglas and Northrop all had facilities at the airport throughout the 
postwar economic boom.   

 In 1967, the Los Angeles City Department of Airports co-signed a joint powers agreement with the 
City of Ontario and the airport became part of Los Angeles' regional airport system.  

 In 1985, the City of Los Angeles became the official title holder for the airport.  

 In 1998, service at the new terminal complex began. 

 In 1999, the new ground transportation center opened, including six on-airport car rental companies. 

 In 2006, the Runway 8L-26R reconstruction and lengthening project was completed. 

 Today, the airport is managed by Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA)the Ontario International 
Airport Authority (OIAA).  The airport is currently served by a multitude of airlines, including several 
dedicated cargo airlines.  The airport frequently sees activity from all sizes of aircraft ranging from 
small general aviation aircraft to 747-400s. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Item F - 40 of 335



 C H A P TE R  1   B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y    
 

1–12  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011)
  

 
This page was left intentionally blank.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 41 of 335



 B A C K G R OU N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1    
 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–11
  

 

Item F - 42 of 335



 B A C K G R OU N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1    
 

  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–13                                                   
 

Exhibit 1-2 

Airport Features 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 Airport Ownership:   

• Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) 
 Year Opened as Public-Use Airport: 1929 current lo-

cation; 1923 landing strip east of current location 
 Property Size: 

• 1,741 acres  
 Airport Classification:  Commercial Service - Primary 
 Airport Elevation:  944 ft. MSL  

AIRPORT PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 Airport Master Plan:  none 

• Planning effort discontinued December 2008 
 Airport Layout Plan Drawing: 

• Approved September 12March 7, 2018, 2003 by FAA 
• Revision dated February 17, 2009 pending approval  

RUNWAY/TAXIWAY DESIGN 
(both runways except as indicated) 
 Airport Reference Code:  D-V  
 Critical Aircraft:  Boeing 747 
 Dimensions: 

• Runway 8L-26R:  12,200 ft. long, 150 ft. wide 
• Runway 8R-26L:  10,200 ft. long, 150 ft, wide 

 Pavement Strength (main landing gear configuration): 
• 30,000+ lbs. (single wheel) 
• 200,000 lbs. (dual wheel) 
• 560,000 lbs. (dual-tandem wheel) 
• 850,000 lbs. (double dual-tandem wheel) 

 Average Gradient: 
• Runway 8L-26R:  0.2% (rising to the west) 
• Runway 8R-26L:  0.1% (rising to the west) 

 Runway Lighting: 
• High-Intensity Runway Lights (HIRL) 
• Centerline Lights 

 Primary Taxiways:   
• Full-length parallel Taxiway N on north side 
• Full-length parallel Taxiway S on south side 
• Partial parallel Taxiway M between runways  

BUILDING AREA 
 Terminal Area: 

• North side of airfield  
 General Aviation:  

• Southwest end of airfield 
 Other Facilities: 

• Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) 
• U.S. Border Patrol 
• UPS (on adjacent property) 

 Services: 
• Fuel:  100LL, Jet A, Military Fuel (upon request) 
• Other:  airfreight, avionics, cargo, charter, aircraft 

rental and sales 

TRAFFIC PATTERNS AND APPROACH PROCEDURES 
 Airplane Traffic Patterns: 

• Runways 8R and 26R:  Right traffic 
• Runways 8L and 26L:   Left traffic 

 Typical Pattern altitude: 
• 2,000 ft. MSL 
• Large aircraft 2,500 ft. MSL   

 Instrument Approach Procedures (lowest minimums): 
• Runway 8L (ILS): 
 Straight-in:  200 ft. ceiling, 2,400 ft. Runway Visual 
 Range (RVR) (1/2 mile) 

• Runway 26R (ILS): 
 Straight-in:  200 ft. ceiling, 2,400 ft. RVR (1/2 mile) 

• Runway 8R (GPS): 
 Straight-in:  284 ft. ceiling, 5,000 ft. RVR (1 mile) 

• Runway 26L (ILS): 
 Straight-in:  200 ft. ceiling, 1,800 ft. RVR (1/3 mile) 
 Cat II and III provide lower minimums with special 
 certification   

 Visual Approach Aids: 
• 26R:  4-light PAPI on left 
• 8R:  Pulsating/steady burning VASI on left 
• 26L:  4-light PAPI on right 

 Operational Restrictions / Noise Abatement Procedures: 
• Chino Noise Mitigation Measures (May 15, 1991); detailed 

information available at City of Chino (see Exhibit 1-14) 
• Runway 8 departures and Runway 26 arrivals between 

10:00 pm and 7:00 am  

APPROACH PROTECTION 
 Runway Protection Zones (RPZ): 

• Runway 8L Approach RPZ (Existing):  Mostly on-airport, 
southwest corner off-airport 

• Runway 8L Departure RPZ (Existing):  Mostly on-airport, 
southwest corner off-airport 

• Runway 8R (Existing):  ¾ on-airport, southwest corner off-
airport 

• Runway 8L (Ultimate):  On-airport, future easement or 
property acquisition 

• Runway 8R (Ultimate):  On-airport, future easement or 
property acquisition 

• Runways 26R & 26L (Existing & Ultimate):  On airport  
 Approach Obstacles:  

• Runway 8L (Existing):  Road 600’ from Runway end, 250’ 
right of centerline, clearance slope 20:1  

• Runway 26R (Existing):  Pole 2050’ from Runway end, 
400’ right of centerline, clearance slope 46:1 

• Runway 26L (Existing):  Pole 2050’ from Runway end, 
400’ left of centerline, clearance slope 46:1   

PLANNED FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 Airfield: 

• Relocate both runways south and east 
• Construct additional taxiways, including center parallel 

taxiway 
 Property: 

• Easement or acquisition of remaining RPZ area 
 

Item F - 43 of 335



C H A P TE R  1    B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y    
 

 

1–14                                                   LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted 
April 19, 2011)   

 
 

This page was left intentionally blank.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 44 of 335



 B A C K G R OU N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y   C H AP T E R  1    
 

  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–13                                                   

 
 
 

Item F - 45 of 335



 B A C K G R OU N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y    C H A P TE R  1    
  

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1-15 

 
 
 

Exhibit 1-3 

Airport Activity Data Summary  
 

AIRPORT MASTER PLAN ACTIVITY  
                                        Current a   2030        2030 b                                                  
 

Aircraft Operations              152,870         N/A         
465,000h 
Air Passengers (millions)            6.9             N/A              33.4 

Air Cargo (thousand tons)          605            N/A            3,260d 
        Total 
 

NOISE CONTOUR ACTIVITY e 
                                          Current   2030      2030  
                                   2006          (No Proj) c    (Pro-
ject) c  
Total Operations 
 Annual    133,590      343,000h     
465,000h 
 Average Day                    366             940    1,274 
  
Distribution by Aircraft Type e 
 Air Carrier                              52%            60%            63% 
 Air Cargo                               27%           21%            23% 
 General Aviation                    21%            19%      14% 
      Military                                   <1%            <1%         <1% 
                

 

RUNwAY USE DISTRIBUTION f 
                                               Day      Evening       Night                                                                
Takeoffs – 2006                                        
 All Aircraft                          
  Runway 8L           3%             2%               41%      
  Runway 8R                    2%             2%              41%  
          Runway 26L                34%           44%               19%                   
       Runway 26R                62%    52%                0% 
Landings – 2006                       
 All Aircraft                           
  Runway 8L                   3%              3%                2%                                   
           Runway 8R                   2%              1%                2% 
           Runway 26L               40%            35%           55% 
           Runway 26R               56%      61%             41%                                                  
Takeoffs – 2030 (No Proj.)             
 All Aircraft                           
  Runway 8L                   2%              2%              10%      
  Runway 8R                   2%               2%              24% 
           Runway 26L                31%            46%              32%      
  Runway 26R               65%            50%              35% 
Landings – 2030 (No Proj.)                
 All Aircraft                           
  Runway 8L                     3%             3%           2%      
  Runway 8R                    1%             2%           2% 
           Runway 26L                 34%           40% 56%             
       Runway 26R                 62%          56%          40% 
Takeoffs – 2030 (Proj.)             
 All Aircraft                           
  Runway 8L                      2%            2%              12%      
  Runway 8R                     2%            2%              26% 
           Runway 26L                  21%          35%          27%      
  Runway 26R                 74%          62%              35% 
Landings – 2030 (Proj.)              
 All Aircraft                             
  Runway 8L                      3%            3%           2%      
  Runway 8R                     2%            1%          3% 
           Runway 26L                  27%          27%          44%      
  Runway 26R                 68%          69%          51% 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes 
a Source:  FAA Terminal Area Forecast—Operations data is consistent with LAWA information. 
b Source:  HNTB Technical Memorandums, Ontario International Airport Master Plan Unconstrained Forecast (November 2005) 

and LA/Ontario International Airport Facility Constraints Analysis (December 2007) and SCAG 2008 RTP. 
c  No Project (No Proj.)—Assumes existing runway configuration is maintained.  
    Proposed Project (Project)—Assumes reconfigured runways. 
d  Air cargo tonnage includes both off-airport UPS activity and 1.6 million tons by on-airport cargo facilities. 
e Source:  Integrated Noise Model (INM) study prepared by HNTB Corporation, June 2008. INM data does not include touch-and-go 

or helicopter operations. INM aircraft types manually categorized into basic aircraft categories of air carrier, air cargo, etc. 
f  Source:  HNTB Technical Memorandum, Noise Contours for LA/ONT Environmental Impact Report (June 2008). 
g  Percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 
h  Annual operations rounded to the nearest thousand. 

Item F - 46 of 335



 C H A P TE R  1   B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H OD O L OG Y     
 

 

1-16                                                          LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amend-
mentAdopted April 19, 2011)  

 
This page was left intentionally blank. 

 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 47 of 335



 B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  ME T H O D O L OG Y     C H AP T E R  1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–17 

 
 

Exhibit 1-4 

ONT Airport Influence Area Information 
 

AIRPORT SITE 
 Location 

• Southwestern San Bernardino County 
• Within city limits of Ontario 
• 35 miles east of central Los Angeles 
• <1 mile south of Interstate 10  
• 2  miles west of Interstate 15 

 Nearby Terrain 
• Airport situated on valley floor south of San Gabriel 

Mountains and Mt. San Antonio (10,049’ MSL) 
 

ONT AIA AFFECTED JURISDICTIONS 
 City of Ontario 

• Airport within city limits of Ontario 
 Other Jurisdictions (distance from nearest point of run-

way to city/county limits) 
• Chino 3 miles southwest 
• Fontana 3 miles east 
• Montclair 3 miles west 
• Rancho Cucamonga 1.5 miles north 
• Upland 2 miles northwest 
• Unincorporated lands of San Bernardino County 4 miles 

east and 3 miles west 
• Unincorporated lands of Riverside County 2 miles 

southeast 
 

EXISTING LAND USES WITHIN ONT’S IMMEDIATE VICINITY 
 City of Ontario General Character 

• Highly developed in all directions; industrial uses to 
south and east; residential uses to west; city center 2 
miles northwest 

 Runway Approaches 
• West (Runway 8):  Residential and industrial uses 
• East (Runway 26):  Industrial and commercial uses; 

landfill to southeast 
 
 
 

AFFECTED AGENCIES GENERAL PLAN STATUS 
 City of Ontario 

• Ontario General Plan adopted January 2010 
 City of Chino 

• General Plan adopted in July 2010 
 City of Fontana 

• General Plan adopted October 2003 
 City of Montclair 

• General Plan adopted in 1999 
 City of Rancho Cucamonga 

• General Plan adopted May 2010 
 City of Upland 

• General Plan adopted June 1982; revised in 2001 
• Update in progress 

 County of San Bernardino 
• General Plan adopted March 2007 
• Update in progress 

 County of Riverside 
• General Plan adopted October 2003 
• Update in progress 

 

GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS WITHIN AIA 
 City of Ontario  

• North: Mixed-use areas allowing commercial-residential 
uses  

• South and East:  Industrial 
• West:  Industrial and residential 

 City of Chino 
• Within CNEL 60 dB noise contour 
• West:  Residential  

 City of Fontana 
• Within CNEL 70 - 60 dB noise contours 
• East:  Industrial and residential  

 City of Montclair 
• Within CNEL 60 dB noise contour 
• West:  Commercial, industrial, and residential  

 City of Rancho Cucamonga 
• Within FAR Part 77 Horizontal and Conical surfaces 
• Northwest:  Residential, industrial, and mixed-use 

 City of Upland 
• Within FAR Part 77 Conical surface 
• Northeast:  Industrial, residential, and school 

 County of Riverside 
• Within FAR Part 77 Horizontal and Conical surfaces & 

60 dB noise contour 
• Southwest:  Industrial, commercial and rural desert 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Item F - 48 of 335



C H A P TE R  1     B A C K GR OU N D  A N D  ME T H OD O LO G Y  
 

1–18 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 

 
 

 

Exhibit 1-4 
ONT Airport Influence Area Information, continued 

 

ESTABLISHED AIRPORT COMPATIBILITY MEASURES 1 
 Ontario General Plan (2010) 

• Collaborate with all stakeholders in the preparation, up-
date and maintenance of airport related plans. (LU5-1) 

• Coordinate with airport authorities to ensure The Ontario 
Plan is consistent with airport law, adopted airport plans, 
and airport land use compatibility plans for ONT and 
Chino airports. (LU5-2) 

• Work with agencies to mitigate impacts and hazards re-
lated to airport operations. (LU5-3) 

• Comply with state statutes regarding City-administered 
Airport Land Use Commission for ONT. (LU5-4) 

• Support and promote ONT to accommodate 30 million 
annual passengers and 1.6 million tons of cargo per 
year, as long as the impacts associated with that level of 
operations are planned for and mitigated. (LU5-5) 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 

Item F - 49 of 335



 B A CK G R O U ND  A N D M E T HO D O LO G Y   C H AP T E R 1  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 1–19 

 

Exhibit 1-5 

Simplified Airport Diagram Acceptance LetterOIAA ALP Update Letter 
 

 

Item F - 50 of 335



C H AP T E R  1   BA C KG R O UN D A N D M E T HO DO LO G Y 
 

 

1–20 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted 19, 2011) 

 
 
 

 

 

Exhibit 1-5, Simplified Airport Diagram Acceptance Letter, continued 

Item F - 51 of 335



Item F - 52 of 335



8L

8R

Existing Departure
Runway Protection Zone

500' x 1,700' x 1,010'
40:1 Departure Slope

Existing
Runway Protection Zone
1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'
34:1 Approach Slope

(SEE NOTE 5)

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

State St.

Airport Rd.

W
al

ke
r A

ve
.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

C
uc

am
on

ga
 a

ve
.

Standard FAA
Runway Protection Zone
1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'
40:1 Departure Slope

997'
Displ. Threshold

Existing Approach
Runway Protection Zone
1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'
50:1 Approach Slope

E. Mission Blvd.

Parcels

Boundary Lines
Airport Property Line

LEGEND

Property Ownership
OIAA

C
:\

U
se

rs
\1

86
99

\A
p

p
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p
\A

cP
ub

lis
h

_9
28

8\
O

N
T-

R
P

Z
 s

tu
d

y 
ar

ea
 m

ap
.d

w
g

   
   

 J
un

 1
3,

  2
01

8 
- 

11
:3

6a
m

Exhibit 1-7

Runway Protection Zone
West

(July 2018 Amendment)

Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan

Existing Runway

1" = 600'
· County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and

County of Riverside TLMA (2009).

Base  Map Sources:
0 FEET

600'

1,200'

Existing Runway Protection Zone

Standard FAA Runway Protection Zone

NOTES
1. City of Ontario building & zoning code controls this area.

Allowable land uses are found in the City of Ontario
General Plan, dated 2010 and Development Code with
reference to Federal Aviation Regulations, Vol. XI Part 77
Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace.

2. The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA)
employs the use of approach/departure RPZs for Runway
8L.  The Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA’s)
standard RPZ for runways with instrument approach
minimums of less than ¾ mile is larger and extends
further beyond the airport property.  The FAA’s standard
RPZ (1,000 feet inner width by 2,500 feet length by 1,750
feet outer width) begins 200 feet beyond the west end of
Runway 8L.

City of Ontario

Private

Prepared By:                                  www.meadhunt.com

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY CHAPTER 1

Runway 8L-26R

Item F - 53 of 335



E. Holt Blvd.

O n t a r i o

O n t a r i o

R
iv

er
si

de
 C

ou
nt

y

County

4
4

3

3

3

3
3

2
211

5

5

S
an

  B
er

na
rd

in
o

O n t a r i o

R a n c h o   C u c a mo n g a

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

H
av

en
 A

ve
.

M
ill

ik
en

 A
ve

.

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

E. Mission Blvd.

Pomona Fwy.

Inland Empire Blvd.

Jurupa Ave.

Fourth St.

Sixth St.

E. Holt Blvd.
U.P.R.R.

Airport Dr.

Interstate 10

E. Mission Blvd.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

Interstate 10

C
:\

U
se

rs
\1

86
99

\A
p

p
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p
\A

cP
ub

lis
h

_9
28

8\
O

N
T-

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
.d

w
g

   
   

 J
un

 1
3,

  2
01

8 
- 

12
:0

6p
m

1" = 3,000'

Exhibit 1-8

Compatibility Factors:
Safety

Legend

Airport Property Line
Boundary Lines

City Limits

Notes
1. Generic Large Air Carrier Safety Zones source: California

Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002).
The generic safety zones translate nationwide aircraft
accident distribution pattern data into a set of distinct
zones with regular geometric shapes and sizes. These
safety zones are shown for both the existing and ultimate
runway configurations.

2. The "No Project" forecast assumes that aircraft activity
would be constrained due to the current airfield
configuration.

3. Adjusted Zone 1 to match runway protection zones (RPZ)
as follows:

0 FEET 6,000'

3,000'

Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan 

· County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and
County of Riverside TLMA (2009).

Base  Map Sources:

Existing Runways
Street

County Line

Safety Zones

Existing
Runway 8L Approach: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 8L Departure: 500' x 1,700' x 1,010'

Runway 26R: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 8R: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 26L: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

No

1,
00

0'

4,000'6,000'

1,
00

0'

3

1
5

5
2

3

4

1,
00

0'

15 100 1,
50

0'

1
Generic Large Air Carrier

Safety Zones

Project

RPZ begins 200' from
runway ends

RPZ begins 200' from
displaced threshold

Prepared By:                                  www.meadhunt.com

U p l a n d
C

 h
 i 

n 
o

Runway 8L-26R

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY CHAPTER 1

2

26 R
26 L8R

8L

July 2018 Amendment

Item F - 54 of 335



Cable Airport

Chino Airport

San Bernardino County
Riverside County

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y

S
an

 B
er

na
rd

in
o 

C
ou

nt
y

F o n t a n a

C h i n o   H i l l s

N o r c o

R i v e r s i d e

U n i n c o r p.

U
 n

 i 
n 

c 
o

 r
 p

.

C l a r e m o n t

M o n t c l a i rP o m o n a

U n i n c o r p.

C h i n o

F o n t a n a

U n i n c o r p o r a t e d

U n i n c o r p o r a t e d

R a n c h o   C u c a m o n g aU p l a n d

U
ni

nc
o

rp
.

O n t a r i o

Chino Ave. 

Schaefer Ave.

Edison Ave.

Eucalyptus Ave.

Merrill Ave.

Schleisman Rd.

C
yp

re
ss

 A
ve

.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

H
am

ne
r A

ve
.

Pomona Fwy.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

E. Mission Blvd.

Interstate 10

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

H
av

en
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

M
ill

ik
en

 A
ve

.

Interstate 10

C
he

rr
y 

A
ve

.

E
tiw

an
da

 A
ve

.

M
ul

lb
er

ry
 A

ve
. A
lm

on
d 

A
ve

.

Arrow Blvd.

Fourth St.

Jurupa Ave.

Bellgrave Ave.

Hwy.  60

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
A

ve
.

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

Walnut Ave.

E. Holt Blvd.

C
en

tra
l A

ve
.

Foothill Blvd.

16th St.
Foothill Fwy.

Highway 210

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

Riverside Dr.

Mission Blvd.

State St.

C
:\

U
se

rs
\1

86
99

\A
p

p
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p
\A

cP
ub

lis
h

_9
28

8\
O

N
T-

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
.d

w
g

   
   

 J
un

 1
3,

  2
01

8 
- 

3:
32

p
m

Exhibit 1-9

Compatibility Factors:
Noise

1" = 8,000'

Legend

Airport Property Line
Boundary Lines

City Limits

Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan 

· County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and
County of Riverside TLMA (2009).

Base  Map Sources:

Existing Runways

Notes
1. Source:  HNTB Technical Memorandum to LAWA, Noise

Contours for LA/ONT Environmental Impact Report (June
13, 2008).

2. The "No Project" forecast assumes that aircraft activity
would be constrained due to the current airfield
configuration. The "Proposed Project" forecast is based
on the ultimate reconfiguration of the airport - both
runways shifting south and east of their current
alignments. Annual operations rounded to nearest
thousand.

No Project Noise Contours

343,000 Annual Operations

1

Street

16,000'FEET

8,000'

0

County Line

65-70 dB CNEL
70-75 dB CNEL

60-65 dB CNEL

75-80 dB CNEL

2

Prepared By:                                  www.meadhunt.com

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY CHAPTER 1

Runway 8L-26R
Runway 8R-26L

26 R
26 L

8R

8L

July 2018 Amendment

Item F - 55 of 335

AutoCAD SHX Text
}



Item F - 56 of 335



Item F - 57 of 335



Item F - 58 of 335



Item F - 59 of 335



Item F - 60 of 335



Item F - 61 of 335



Item F - 62 of 335



Item F - 63 of 335



Item F - 64 of 335



Item F - 65 of 335



Item F - 66 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

PROCEDURAL AND COMPATIBILITY POLICIES 

Chapter 2 

 

Item F - 67 of 335



CHAPTER 2 

PROCEDURAL AND 
COMPATIBILITY POLICIES 

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 AmendmentAdopted April 19, 2011) 2–1 

CHAPTER OVERVIEW 

Introduction 
Chapter 2 focuses on procedural policies, compatibility policies and 
compatibility criteria.  The procedural policies modify the Alternative Process 
previously established for LA/Ontario International Airport (ONT) in 1995.  
The modified Alternative Process provides for participation by all 
jurisdictions in San Bernardino County impacted by existing and future 
airport activity and for the optional participation of Riverside County.  
Representation by these jurisdictions will be accomplished through inter-
agency collaboration and the formation of a Mediation Board to mediate 
disputes. 

The compatibility criteria in this chapter provides the foundation for  
compatibility policies. Affected agencies will use the compatibility policies  and criteria to evaluate 
future airport and land use plans, as well as individual development proposals, for consistency with the 
ONT Compatibility Plan.   The compatibility policies address four types of airport land use impacts: 
safety, noise, airspace protection and overflight. 

Section Descriptions 
The content of each section contained within this chapter is described below. 

 Section 1:  Scope and Limitations of the Compatibility Plan 
This section provides details regarding the geographic extent of the airport influence area, 
the jurisdictions affected by airport impacts, the applicability of the Compatibility Plan to the 
affected agencies and the limitations of the plan. 

 Section 2:  ALUCP Implementation Responsibilities 
This section identifies the responsibilities of each agency in implementing the Compatibility 
Plan.  It also identifies the process by which projects are reviewed through the Alternative 
Process. 

 Section 3:  City of Ontario Roles and Responsibilities 
This section stipulates the roles and responsibilities of the City of Ontario in implementing 
the Compatibility Plan, facilitating the Alternative Process, and assisting affected jurisdictions 
with the Compatibility Plan implementation. 

 Section  4:  Mediation Board Roles, Responsibilities and Dispute Resolution Process 
This section stipulates the role and responsibilities of the Mediation Board, composition of 
the Board, and the procedures by which the Board will review disputed projects.  Procedural 
policies for overruling decisions of the Mediation Board is also included in this section. 
 

Note: State law provides for 
what is generally known as 
the “Alternative Process” 
wherein counties do not 
have to form an Airport Land 
Use Commission (ALUC).  
Instead, the county and 
affected cities having 
jurisdiction over an airport 
take on the compatibility 
planning responsibilities. 

 

Item F - 68 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 Section 5:  Evaluating Land Use Consistency 
This section  describes the evaluation tools (tables, maps, policies in Section 6) to be used by 
affected agencies in evaluating the consistency of land use proposals with the Compatibility 
Plan . 

 Section 6:  Compatibility Policies 
This section is divided into five sub-sections: safety, noise, airspace protection, overflight 
and special compatibility policies.  With the exception of special policies, each section 
contains general information regarding the factors considered in establishing the policies and 
delineating the compatibility zone boundaries. 

Criteria Table Descriptions 
The compatibility tables at the end of this chapter provide the following information: 

 Table 2-1:  Major Land Use Actions 
This table identifies types of development projects and land use actions that are subject to 
the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process. 

 Table 2-2:  Safety Criteria 
The safety criteria table provides a list of land use categories and identifies the acceptability 
of specific land uses within each of the five safety zones.  Intensity limits for nonresidential 
uses (i.e., maximum number of people per acre) and other safety considerations within each 
safety zone are also noted. 

 Table 2-3:  Noise Criteria 
The noise criteria table provides a list of land use categories and identifies the acceptability 
of specific land uses within each of the noise impact zones.  The interior noise level 
requirements within each zone are also noted for residential and nonresidential uses. 

Compatibility Policy Map Descriptions 
The geographic extent of each compatibility factor is depicted in the compatibility policy maps within 
this chapter. 
 Map 2-1:  Airport Influence Area (AIA) 

The AIA boundary encompasses the geographic extents of all the compatibility factors:  
safety, noise, airspace protection, and overflight. 

 Map 2-2:  Safety Zones 
This policy map displays a single set of safety zones reflecting the existing and ultimate 
runway configurations (i.e., shows the most restrictive set of safety zones).  The safety zones 
for ONT are based upon the generic safety zones provided in the California Airport Land Use 
Planning Handbook (January 2002).   

 Map 2-3:  Noise Impact Zones 
The noise impact zones represent a composite of two sets of project noise contours 
reflecting two forecast scenarios for 2030.  Thethe “No Project” scenario and assumes 
343,000 annual operations on the existing runways system. and the “Proposed Project” 
scenario reflects 465,000 annual operations on the ultimate runway configuration. 

 Map 2-4:  Airspace Protection Zones 
The airspace protection zones are a composite of the various  the airspace surfaces prepared 
in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulation Part 77, the United States Standard for 

Item F - 69 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–3 

Terminal Instrument Procedures (TERPS), and applicable obstruction clearance standards 
published by the Federal Aviation Administration.  The airspace surfaces reflect both the 
existing and ultimate runway configurations and have been merged into a single set of 
airspace protection zones. 

 Map 2-5:  Overflight Notification Zones 
The overflight notification zones were delineated by identifying the areas overflown by 
aircraft flying at altitudes of less than 3,000 feet above ground level.  The overflight 
notification zones also encompass the areas underlying the airport’s critical airspace surfaces. 

Section 1: SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE COMPATIBILITY PLAN 

1.1 Geographic Scope 
1.1.1 Airport Influence Area (AIA):  In accordance with state law, the ONT AIA 

encompasses all lands that could be negatively impacted by ONT’s present or future 
aircraft operations or land uses that could negatively affect ONT’s airport operations.  The 
AIA depicted in Map 2-1 encompasses the geographic extent of four types of 
compatibility impacts, referred to as compatibility factors.  They are: 

(a) Safety:  Areas where the risk of an aircraft accident poses heightened safety concerns 
for people and property on the ground. 

(b) Noise:  Locations exposed to potentially disruptive levels of aircraft noise. 

(c) Airspace Protection:  Places where height and certain other land use characteristics, 
particularly uses that attract birds, need to be restricted in order to protect the 
airspace required for operation of aircraft to and from the airport. 

(d) Overflight:  Locations where aircraft overflights can be intrusive and annoying to 
many people. 

1.1.2 Other Airport Impacts:  Other impacts sometimes created by airports (e.g., air pollution, 
automobile traffic, etc.) are not addressed in this Compatibility Plan and are not factors to be 
considered when reviewing a project for consistency with the compatibility criteria of this 
Compatibility Plan. 

1.2 Applicability of the Compatibility Plan 
1.2.1 Affected Local Jurisdictions:  The ONT AIA encompasses jurisdictions within San 

Bernardino, Los Angeles, and Riverside Counties.  Each jurisdiction is impacted 
differently as the geographic extents of the four compatibility factors vary in size and 
shape.  Exhibit Table 2A lists each jurisdiction within the AIA and indicates the type of 
impact they are affected by.  

1.2.2 Affected Agencies in San Bernardino County:  The Compatibility Plan shall apply to the 
following agencies in San Bernardino County: 

(a) Cities of Ontario, Chino, Fontana, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, and Upland are 
the local jurisdictions impacted by ONT. 

(b) San Bernardino County has jurisdictional control over unincorporated San 
Bernardino County lands within the AIA. 

Item F - 70 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

(c) Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) is a department of the City of Los Angeles 
andThe Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) is the owner and operator 
of ONT. 

(d) Special entities including school districts, community college districts, and special 
districts whose boundaries include lands within the San Bernardino County portion 
of the AIA. 

1.2.3 Jurisdictions of Los Angeles and Riverside Counties:  The ONT AIA extends beyond 
the San Bernardino County borders and into parts of adjacent Los Angeles and Riverside 
Counties.  For the jurisdictions of Los Angeles and Riverside Counties, the Compatibility 
Plan is informational only.  These jurisdictions are not subject to the requirements of this 
Compatibility Plan.  The County of Riverside has jurisdictional control over unincorporated 
lands within the noise-impacted areas of ONT and has elected to participate in the 
Alternative Process on a discretionary basis. 

 

Exhibit Table 2A:  Affected Jurisdictions 

Agency Safety Noise 
Airspace 

Protection 
Overflight Comments 

City of Ontario X X X X All policies apply 

City of Chino  X X X  

City of Fontana  X X X  

City of Montclair  X X X  

City of Rancho 
Cucamonga 

  X X  

City of Upland   X X  
County of San 
Bernardino 

 X X X  

County of Riverside   X X X 

Policies are informational; 
Participating in Alternative Process 
on discretionary basis  
(see Section 1.2.3) 

City of Pomona,  
Los Angeles County  

   X 
Policies are informational 
(see Section 1.2.3) 

City of Claremont,  
Los Angeles County  

   X 
Policies are informational 
(see Section 1.2.3) 

1.3 Limitations of the Compatibility Plan 
1.3.1 Airport Operations:  State law explicitly precludes airport land use commissions from 

having jurisdiction over the operation of any airport (Public Utilities Code Section 
21674(e)).  The same limitation also applies under the Alternative Process. 

(a) The City of Ontario, affected local jurisdictions, and the Mediation Board have 
no authority over the operation of ONT.  This authority rests with LAWA 
OIAA and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). 

(b) The only actions of OIAALAWA subject to the Alternative Process and the 
policies of this Compatibility Plan are the adoption or amendment of the airport 

Item F - 71 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–5 

master plan or airport layout plan, or approval of certain facility development 
plans that would have off-airport compatibility implications (e.g., runway 
alterations, improved instrument approach procedures), and approval of on-
airport development that is not an aviation related use (e.g., commercial or 
industrial facilities). 

1.3.2 Existing Land Uses:  The Compatibility Plan applies only to new development or future 
land uses within the AIA.  In accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 21674(a), the 
policies of this Compatibility Plan do not apply to existing land uses, whether or not they are 
consistent with the Compatibility Plan. 

(a) Qualifying Criteria:  A land use is considered to be “existing” when one or 
more of the below conditions has been met prior to the approval date of the 
Compatibility Plan by California Division of Aeronautics.  The determination as to 
whether a specific project meets the criteria below is made by the responsible 
jurisdiction or special entity involved. 

 The development and/or land use physically exists. 
 A vesting tentative parcel or subdivision map has been approved and all 

discretionary approvals have been obtained. 
 A development agreement has been approved and remains in effect. 
 A final subdivision map has been recorded. 
 A use permit or other discretionary entitlement has been approved and not yet 

expired. 
 A valid building permit has been issued. 
 Substantial investments in physical construction were made by the property 

owner prior to the approval date of this Compatibility Plan by the California 
Division of Aeronautics and such investments make it infeasible for the 
property to be utilized for anything other than its proposed use. Substantial 
investment is determined by the responsible agency.  

 Prior to the approval date of this Compatibility Plan by the California Division of 
Aeronautics, substantial public funds were expended for land acquisition of a 
project site and the responsible agency had publicly indicated support for a 
proposed development or development concept, even though all discretionary 
approvals had not yet been obtained by that date. 

(b) Existing Nonconforming Uses:  Existing land uses that are inconsistent with 
the Compatibility Plan are considered to be “nonconforming” land uses.  These 
uses are not subject to the Compatibility Plan unless changes to the use are 
proposed.  

 Any type of construction, renovation, or other redevelopment activity that would 
demolish 80% or more of the existing structure’s floor area would change the 
nonconforming status of the use and be subject to the Compatibility Plan and any 
other requirements set by the local jurisdiction.  

 A structure that has been fully or partially destroyed as a result of a flood, fire 
and or natural disaster may be rebuilt and re-occupied by the same 
nonconforming use and is only subject to requirements set by the local 
jurisdiction not the Compatibility Plan.  

Item F - 72 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Section 2: ALUCP IMPLEMENTATION RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE 
ALTERNATIVE PROCESS 

2.1 Overview of  ALUCP Implementation Responsibilities for Affected Agencies 
2.1.1 Adopt Compatibility Plan:  The City of Ontario is responsible for leading the 

preparation of  the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan and any 
future amendments in coordination with affected jurisdictions (see Section 3.1). Affected 
Agencies are responsible for adopting the Compatibility Plan or specific policies that apply 
to their portions of the AIA. The compatibility policies in Section 6 of this Compatibility 
Plan are structured in a manner that recognizes that the City of Ontario’s land use 
authority stops at its borders. As such, policies applicable only to the City of Ontario use 
the word “shall.”  Policies applicable to the other affected agencies, as well as the City of 
Ontario, use the word “should.” In the both instances, the policies are considered “shall”  
for the City of Ontario.  In accordance with the provisions of the Alternative Process, the 
other affected agencies are encouraged to adopt similar requirements for the portions of 
the AIA within their respective jurisdictions. 

2.1.2 Attain Consistency with the Compatibility Plan:  Consistent with state law, Affected 
Agencies are responsible for modifying their respective general plans, specific plans, 
zoning ordinances, and other policy documents to be consistent with the compatibility 
policies and criteria set forth in this Compatibility Plan or requesting a hearing before the 
ONT Mediation Board to resolve disputes.  

2.1.3 ALUCP Consistency Evaluations: Affected Agencies are responsible for conducting 
their own consistency evaluations for new development and/or major land use actions 
within their portions of the ONT AIA. Major Land Use Actions (Table 2-1), are subject 
to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process. 

2.1.4 ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process:   Each Affected Agency is required to notify 
the City of Ontario of proposed Major Land Use Actions within its portion of the AIA.  
The City of Ontario is then responsible for forwarding information regarding these 
proposed Major Land Use Actions to other Affected Agencies for comment. Major Land 
Use Actions are listed in Table 2-1 of this Chapter. The Inter-Agency Notification 
Process is discussed further in Section 2.3. 

2.1.5 Referencing the Compatibility Plan in CEQA Documents:  The California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires Affected Agencies to utilize the California 
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook and this Compatibility Plan as a technical resource for 
analyzing the environmental impacts of new projects located within the AIA. Projects 
situated within the AIA should be evaluated to determine if the project would expose 
people residing or working in the project area to excessive levels of airport-related noise 
or to airport-related safety hazards (Public Resources Code Section 21096).  

2.1.6 Establish a Process for Mediating Disputes: State law pertaining to the Alternative 
Process requires that a process be established for “the mediation of disputes arising from 
the preparation, adoption, and amendment” of an airport land use compatibility plan 
(Public Utilities Code Section 21670.1(c)(2)(C)).  This Compatibility Plan fulfills State Law 
requirements by establishing a Mediation Board. The roles, responsibilities, process and 
membership of the Mediation Board are described in detail in Section 4 of this chapter.  

Item F - 73 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–7 

2.2 Specific Responsibilities of Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA)the Ontario 
International Airport Authority (OIAA) 
2.2.1 Submit Certain Airport Actions Through Alternative Process:  The LA/Ontario 

International Airport compatibility zones delineated on Maps 2-2 through 2-5 are based 
upon the existing and ultimate airport configuration and projected aircraft activity 
summarized in Chapter 1.  If, at a future time, changes in the configuration or use of the 
airport are proposed and those changes could result in expansion of the airport’s impacts 
beyond the impacts identified in this Compatibility Plan, the proposed changes shall be 
subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process described in Section 2.3. 
Specifically, the following types of projects are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency 
Notification Process: 

(a) Airport Plans:  Adoption or amendment of the LA/Ontario International Airport 
Master Plan or Airport Layout Plan (Public Utilities Code Sections 21661.5 and 
21664.5). 

(b) Aviation-Related Development Proposals:  Any proposal for modification or 
expansion of airport facilities requiring amendment to the Airport Permit issued by 
the California Division of Aeronautics. Airport development projects include: 
 Proposal to acquire land for runway protection zones or airport development;  
 Construction of a new runway; 
 Extension or realignment of an existing runway; or 
 Expansion of the airport’s physical facilities. 

(c) Nonaviation-Related Development Proposals:  Any proposal for the 
construction of new nonaviation-related development (e.g., commercial or industrial) 
requiring action by the City of Ontario. 

2.3 ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
2.3.1 ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process:  Each Affected Agency and LAWA the 

OIAA shall participate in the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process for the purposes 
of providing technical assistance, information and oversight for the implementation of 
this Compatibility Plan.  

(a) Affected Agencies required to participate in the Inter-Agency Notification Process 
include LAWA OIAA and the Cities of Ontario, Chino, Fontana, Montclair, Rancho 
Cucamonga, Upland and the County of San Bernardino. The City Manager of each 
Affected Agency shall designate a department responsible for participating in the 
ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process.   

(b) The County of Riverside has elected to participate in the Inter-Agency Notification 
Process on a discretionary basis.  

(c)(b) Special entities as described in 1.2.2(d) are subject to the development criteria of 
this Compatibility Plan and shall participate in the Inter-Agency Notification Process 
by submitting Major Land Use Actions to the City of Ontario for consistency 
evaluations.  

2.3.2 Project Review Process: The ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process includes the 
steps listed below. 

Item F - 74 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

(a) For each project or land use action subject to the Alternative Process, the Submitting 
Agency shall complete a Project Comment Worksheet and forward it to the City of 
Ontario for forwarding to Affected Agencies. The Worksheet shall contain sufficient 
project details to enable Affected Agencies to comment upon the project’s 
consistency with the Compatibility Plan for ONT.  See Appendix E for the type of 
information that should be included in the Project Comment Worksheet. Items shall 
be submitted electronically to the City of Ontario (preferably in PDF format). 

(b) Commenting Agencies will have 15 calendar days to review and comment on the 
Submitting Agency’s Project Comment Worksheet. Agencies that do not respond 
within the 15-day period would be considered to have no comments and 
subsequently agree with the Submitting Agency’s consistency evaluation. 
Commenting Agencies shall limit their comments to issues related to the project’s 
consistency with the Compatibility Plan and forward their comments electronically to 
the City of Ontario.  

(c) If the Submitting Agency disagrees with the comments received on the Worksheet, 
staff of the Submitting Agency is encouraged to collaborate with staff of the 
commenting agency and/or commenting agencies to seek solutions that will bring 
the project into voluntary compliance with the Compatibility Plan. If the proposed 
project is revised in response to comments received on the Project Comment 
Worksheet, the Submitting Agency shall submit a revised Project Comment 
Worksheet in the manner provided in subdivision (a). If disagreements regarding 
consistency remain, the Submitting Agency or any Commenting Agency may request 
a Mediation Board hearing to mediate the dispute.  

(d) If no comments are submitted on the Project Comment Worksheet as provided in 
subdivision (b), or if comments are resolved as provided in subdivision (c), the 
Submitting Agency shall indicate in its own public notices that the project is within 
the ONT AIA and has undergone a consistency evaluation and found to be 
consistent with this Compatibility Plan. 

Section 3: CITY OF ONTARIO ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 Preparation, Adoption and Amendment of the Compatibility Plan 
3.1.1 Prepare and Adopt the Compatibility Plan:  The City of Ontario shall be the lead 

agency responsible for preparing the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan and any amendments that may subsequently be proposed. The City 
of Ontario shall also be responsible for coordinating these efforts with affected 
jurisdictions.   

3.1.2 Adoption Authority for the City of Ontario:  The Ontario City Council has the 
authority to adopt the Compatibility Plan or any amendments to the Plan as they apply 
to the City of Ontario.  

3.1.3 Adoption Authority for Affected Agencies:  Each Affected Agency has the 
authority to adopt the Compatibility Plan adopted by the City of Ontario or the specific 
policies that apply to their portions of the AIA.   

Item F - 75 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–9 

3.2 ALUCP Implementation Administration 
3.2.1 Mediation Board General Administration:  The City of Ontario shall perform 

general administrative duties for the Mediation Board including, but not limited to: 

(a) Arranging meeting places and schedules, preparing agendas, and recording 
meeting minutes. 

(b) Issuing required public notices for meetings of the Mediation Board. 

(c) Providing an annual report to the Mediation Board and California Division of 
Aeronautics on the compatibility planning actions reviewed over the course of 
the year. 

3.2.2 Administration of  the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process:  The City of 
Ontario shall coordinate with and assist Affected Agencies with implementing the 
relevant policies of the Compatibility Plan by: 

(a) Developing, maintaining and distributing the Project Comment Worksheet, 
when necessary; 

(b) Providing affected agencies with technical information and guidance regarding 
compatibility planning issues; 

(c) Serving as a clearinghouse for major airport and land use actions within the AIA 
and proposed on-site airport development; 

(d) Reviewing proposed major airport and land use actions for consistency with the 
policies set forth in this Compatibility Plan and preparing written consistency 
evaluations for transmittal to applicable Affected Agencies;  

(e) Soliciting input and comments from the Federal Aviation Administration, 
California Division of Aeronautics, pilot groups, and others regarding 
compatibility planning matters, when necessary; and 

(f) Encouraging Los Angeles and Riverside Counties to adopt compatibility 
planning policies and criteria for the portions of the ONT AIA located within 
their respective jurisdictions. 

Section 4: MEDIATION BOARD ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PROJECT 
DISPUTE PROCESS 

4.1 Mediation Board Purpose and Composition 
4.1.1 Function of Mediation Board:  The Mediation Board for ONT is a voting body 

established to formally address disputes that are not resolved at a staff level.  The 
Mediation Board will only review matters appealed to it by Affected Agencies. 

4.1.2 Membership of Mediation Board:  The Mediation Board shall be comprised of 
elected or appointed government officials of the participating agencies and two 
members representing the public.  The members representing the Affected Agencies 
shall have land use, planning, and/or public hearing experience (e.g., county 

Item F - 76 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

supervisor, city council member, planning/airport commissioner).   Members of the 
Mediation Board shall be appointed as follows: 

(a) City of Ontario:  Two members representing the City of Ontario, appointed by 
the Ontario City Council. 

(b) LAWAOIAA:  One member representing the Los Angeles World 
AirportsOntario International Airport Authority (LAWAOIAA), the 
LA/Ontario International Airport ManagerChief Executive Officer. 

(c) Public:  Two public representatives (at least one having aviation expertise), 
appointed by the Ontario City Council with recommendations from the other 
Affected Agencies. 

(d) Other Affected Agency:  Two members representing the agency with the 
disputed project, appointed by the agency’s governing body.  If the agency with 
the dispute is either the City of Ontario or LAWAthe OIAA, the two members 
shall not be appointed and the Mediation Board shall consist of a five-member 
board. 

4.1.3 Mediation Board Decisions:  When acting upon a disputed action (e.g., consistency 
evaluation or preparation, adoption or amendment of the Compatibility Plan) the 
Mediation Board shall: 

(a) Hold a public hearing on the action under consideration. 

(b) Provide the opportunity for public input.  

(c) Issue formal findings on the disputed action. 

(d) Make decisions by majority vote. 

4.2 Mediation Board Project Dispute Process 
4.2.1 Actions Open to Mediation:  State law pertaining to the Alternative Process 

requires that a process be established for “the mediation of disputes arising from the 
preparation, adoption, and amendment” of an airport land use compatibility plan 
(Public Utilities Code Section 21670.1(c)(2)(C)).  This Compatibility Plan allows 
mediation to occur over certain land use actions—specifically, general plan 
amendments, zoning ordinance modifications, airport development plans (Section 
2.2), or major land use actions.   

4.2.2 Convening the Mediation Board:  The Mediation Board shall convene on an as 
needed basis, to resolve disputed matters brought to it by an Affected Agency.  
Meetings shall be convened within 30 calendar days from the date the Affected 
Agency requests in writing a Mediation Board Hearing date to resolve a dispute.  
Additionally, the Board shall convene once per calendar year to receive an annual 
report from the Ontario Planning Director.  All meetings shall be publicly noticed 
consistent with Ontario’s public hearing procedures.  

4.2.3 Mediation Board Actions for Non-Airport Projects:  When deciding whether a 
proposed project is consistent with the Compatibility Plan, the Mediation Board has 
three action choices: 

Item F - 77 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–11 

(a) Consistent—Find that the proposed project is consistent with this Compatibility 
Plan. 

(b) Conditionally Consistent—Find that the proposed project is consistent with this 
Compatibility Plan subject to specified conditions or modifications. 

(c) Inconsistent—Find that the proposed project is inconsistent with this Compatibility 
Plan. 

 

4.2.4 Mediation Board Action Choices for Airport Proposals:  When making 
consistency determinations on a proposed planning and/or development action 
pertaining to LA/Ontario International Airport (ONT), the Mediation Board has four 
action choices: 
(a) Consistent—Find that the airport plan is consistent with this Compatibility Plan. 
(b) Conditionally Consistent—Find that the airport plan is consistent with this 

Compatibility Plan subject to specified conditions or limitations on the airport 
plans or use. 

(c) Inconsistent—Find that the airport plan is inconsistent with this Compatibility Plan. 
(d) Consistent Upon Compatibility Plan Revision—Modify the Compatibility Plan (after duly 

noticed public hearing) to reflect the assumptions and proposals in the airport 
plan—thereby making the airport plan consistent—or establish an intent to 
modify the Compatibility Plan at a later date. 

4.2.5 Overriding Considerations:  The compatibility criteria set forth in this Compatibility 
Plan are intended to be applicable to all locations within the ONT AIA.  However, 
there may be specific situations where a normally incompatible use can be considered 
compatible because of terrain, specific location, or other extraordinary factors or 
circumstances related to the site.  After due consideration of all the factors involved 
in such situations, the Mediation Board may find a normally incompatible use to be 
acceptable.  In reaching such a decision, the Mediation Board shall document the 
nature of the extraordinary circumstances that warrant the policy exception and make 
the following specific findings: 
(a) That the proposed project will neither create a safety hazard to people on the 

ground or aircraft in flight nor result in excessive noise exposure for the future 
occupants of the proposed use. 

(b) That the granting of a special condition exception is site specific and shall not be 
generalized to include other sites. 

4.3 Overruling Mediation Board Decisions 
4.3.1 General:  If the Mediation Board determines that a proposed project is inconsistent 

with the Compatibility Plan, the Submitting Agency shall be notified and the governing 
body of that agency has the option under state law to overrule the Mediation Board 
decision.  To do so, however, the Submitting Agency must make specific findings (see 
Section 4.3.2). 

4.3.2 Findings:  The agency must make specific findings that the proposed local action is 
consistent with the purposes of Article 3.5 of the California Public Utilities Code, as 

Item F - 78 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–12 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

stated in Section 21670.  Such findings may not be adopted as a matter of opinion, 
but must be supported by substantial evidence.  Specifically, the governing body of 
the Submitting Agency must make specific findings that the proposed project will 
not: 
(a) Impair the orderly, planned expansion of LA/Ontario International Airport 

(ONT); adversely affect the utility or capacity of the airport (such as by reducing 
instrument approach procedure minimums). 

(b) Expose the public to excessive noise and safety hazards. 

4.3.3 Notification and Voting Requirements:   
(a) The Submitting Agency must provide a copy of the proposed decision and 

findings to overrule the Mediation Board 45 days prior to the hearing date, to the 
City of Ontario and California Division of Aeronautics, as required by State law 
(Public Utilities Code Section 21676).  

(b) The governing body of the Submitting Agency must hold a public hearing on the 
matter.  The public hearing shall be noticed consistent with the Submitting 
Agency’s established procedures. 

(c) A decision by the governing body to overrule the Mediation Board must be 
made by a vote of at least two-thirds of the body’s members. 

(d) The Submitting Agency must include any comments received from any Affected 
Agency, Mediation Board, Division of Aeronautics, and the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) in the public record of any final decision to overrule the 
Mediation Board. 

Section 5: EVALUATING LAND USE CONSISTENCY 

5.1 Evaluating Consistency of New Development  
5.1.1 Evaluating Compatibility of Proposed Development:  The compatibility of 

proposed projects within the ONT AIA shall be evaluated in accordance with the 
specific safety, noise, airspace protection, overflight policies, and special compatibility 
policies set forth in Section 6, including the criteria listed in Table 2-2: Safety 
Criteria and Table 2-3: Noise Criteria, and the compatibility zones depicted in 
Maps 2-2 through 2-5.  

5.2 Evaluation Tools  
5.2.1 Safety and Noise Criteria Tables:  Table 2-2: Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: 

Noise Criteria list general land use categories and indicate each use as being either 
“normally compatible,” “conditionally compatible,” or “incompatible” depending 
upon the compatibility zone in which it is located.  When evaluating a proposed 
development, each land use component of a project shall be evaluated as separate 
developments and must meet the criteria for the respective land use category in 
Table: 2-2 Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: Noise Criteria. 

5.2.2 Evaluation Considerations: 

Item F - 79 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–13 

(a) Land uses not specifically listed in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: 
Noise Criteria shall be evaluated using the criteria for similar listed uses. 

(b) Multiple land use categories and the compatibility criteria associated with them 
may apply to a single project (e.g., mixed-use developments).  Each land use 
component shall individually satisfy the criteria for the respective land use 
category in Table: 2-2 Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: Noise Criteria (see 
Exhibit 2B). 

5.2.3 Land Use Compatibility Determinations: 
(a) Normally Compatible means that common examples of the use are compatible 

with the airport; uncommon examples of the use may require review to ensure 
compliance with compatibility criteria. 

(b) Conditionally Compatible means that the use is compatible if the listed 
conditions are met. 

(c) Incompatible means that the use should not be permitted under any 
circumstances. 

5.2.4 Policies Pertaining to Special Compatibility Concerns:  In addition to satisfying 
the compatibility criteria defined in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: Noise 
Criteria, land use actions must comply with the specific safety, noise, airspace 
protection, overflight and special compatibility policies set forth in Section 6. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 2B: Mixed-Use Development Example  

In this example, the proposed mixed-use development includes four distinct types of land uses.  Each land use 
component must be evaluated against the criteria for the respective land use category in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria 
and Table 2-3: Noise Criteria: 

 

Item F - 80 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–14 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Section 6: COMPATIBILITY POLICIES 

6.1 Safety  
6.1.1 Policy Objective:  The intent of the safety compatibility 

policies is to minimize the risks associated with an off-airport 
aircraft accident or emergency landing.  The policies focus on 
reducing the potential consequences of such events when they 
occur.  The potential risks to people and property within the 
ONT AIA and to people on board the aircraft are considered. 

6.1.2 Safety Affected Agency:  The safety compatibility policies and criteria of this section 
apply only to the City of Ontario since the safety zones are located solely within 
Ontario’s city limits.    

6.1.3 Factors Considered in Establishing Safety Zones:  The principal factors 
considered in setting the policies applicable within each safety zone are: 

(a) California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook:  The California Airport 
Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002) provides risk information, accident 
data, and analyses for air carrier airports.  The Handbook identifies the locations, 
delineated with respect to the airport runways, where aircraft accidents near air 
carrier airports have historically occurred and the relative concentration of 
accidents within these locations.  These concentrations represent likely future 
risk levels.  Furthermore, the Handbook recommends applying the most stringent 
land use controls to the areas with the greatest potential risks.  The safety zones 
utilized for ONT reflect the Handbook’s suggested zones for Large Air Carrier 
Runways.   

(b) Specific Airport Features:  The existing and ultimate runway configuration, 
approach categories, normal flight patterns, and aircraft fleet mix for ONT are 
factors reflected in the safety zone shapes and sizes. 

(c) Measures of Risk Exposure:  For the purposes of this Compatibility Plan, the 
risk that potential aircraft accidents pose to lands around ONT is defined in 
terms of the geographic distribution of where accidents are most likely to occur.  
Because aircraft accidents are infrequent occurrences, the pattern of accidents at 
any one airport cannot be used to predict where future accidents are most likely 
to happen around that airport.  Reliance must be placed on data about aircraft 
accident locations at similar airports nationally, refined with respect to 
information about the types and patterns of aircraft usage at the individual 
airport.  This methodology, as further described in Appendix C, is used to 
delineate the safety zones for ONT shown in Map 2-2: Safety Zones. 

6.1.4 Factors Considered in Setting Safety Policies:  To minimize risks to people and 
property on the ground, the safety compatibility criteria in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria 
set limits on: 

(a) Residential Uses:  The density of residential development is measured by the 
number of dwelling units per acre.  Consistent with the California Airport Land 
Use Planning Handbook (2002) guidelines, a greater degree of protection is 
warranted for residential uses. 

Note: See Section 6.3, 
Airspace Protection, for 
land use features that 
can pose hazards to 
aircraft in flight 

Item F - 81 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–15 

(b) Nonresidential Uses:  The intensity of nonresidential development is measured 
by the number of people per acre concentrated in areas most susceptible to 
aircraft accidents. 

6.1.5 Safety Zones for LA/Ontario International Airport:  The five safety zones 
depicted in Map 2-2: Safety Zones are a composite ofreflects the existing and 
ultimate airfield configurations, the methodology for this approach is explained in 
Chapter 1 of this Compatibility Plan: 

(a) Safety Zones 1 - 5:  A composite set of safety zones were created for ONT to 
reflect both the existing and ultimate airfield configurations. The safety zones for 
each configuration were combined to create one set of composite safety zones 
utilizing the most stringent conditions. The ultimate runway configuration shifts 
both runways south and east of their current alignments. 

(b) Safety Zone 1:  Safety Zone 1 reflects the airport’s established Runway 
Protection Zones (RPZs) as shown in the Airport Layout Plans prepared by Los 
Angeles World Airports (LAWA)the Ontario International Airport Authority 
(OIAA) and the Simplified Airport Diagram accepted by California Division of 
Aeronautics on July 2009 as the basis of this Compatibility Plan (see Exhibit 1-6 in 
Chapter 1).  

(c) Overlay Safety Zone 1A:  Overlay Safety Zone 1A was created to reflect the 
FAA’s standard RPZ (1,000 feet inner width by 2,500 feet length by 1,750 feet 
outer width) beginning 200 feet beyond the west end of Runway 8L.  (See 
Chapter 1 for additional RPZ discussion and Policy S5). 

6.1.6 Safety Standards for New Development:  To minimize risk-sensitive development 
in high-risk areas around ONT, the safety compatibility of new development shall be 
evaluated in accordance with the safety policies set forth in this section, including the 
criteria listed in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria and the safety zones depicted on Map 2-
2: Safety Zones.  Other policies may be applicable to uses of special concern (see 
Policy S4). 

SAFETY POLICIES 

S1 Residential Development:  New residential development is incompatible within all 
Safety Zones (1 through 5).  Policies S1a and S1b are exceptions to this policy, if 
applicable.  

S1a Single-Family Home:  The construction of a single-family home on a legal 
lot of record is allowed in Safety Zones 2, 3, and 4 if the use is permitted by 
the City of Ontario’s land use regulations.  See Policy SP2 with regard to 
development by right. 

S1b Second-Unit:  A second-unit as defined by state law is allowed within Safety 
Zones 2, 3 and 4 if the use is permitted by the City of Ontario’s land use 
regulations. 

Item F - 82 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–16 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

S1c Family Day Care:  In accordance with state law, a family day care home 
serving 14 or fewer children may be established in any dwelling by the policies 
of this Compatibility Plan. 

S1d Residential Mixed-Use Developments:  New mixed-use developments will 
locate the residential component outside of all safety zones. 

S2 Occupancy Limits For Nonresidential Development:  Table 2-2: Safety 
Criteria indicates the usage intensity (number of people per acre) limit for each 
safety zone. The usage intensity limits represent the safety criteria for new 
nonresidential development. The usage intensity limits measure intensity in two 
forms: 1) Sitewide average intensity which sets intensity limits for the entire project 
site; and 2) Single-acre intensity which sets intensity limits on any single acre within 
the project site (see Exhibit 2C for a graphical example).  As a condition of 
approval, all new nonresidential development within the Safety Zones shall comply 
with both forms of intensity limits as described further below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2C: Land Use Intensity Calculation Example 

In this example, both the sitewide and single-acre intensity of a proposed Research & Development (R&D) / 
warehouse facility is calculated using the common occupancy load factors [number of square feet per person] 
information in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria together with project-specific data.  The results are then compared with 
the maximum sitewide and single-acre intensity limits to determine consistency of the project with the safety criteria. 

 

Item F - 83 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–17 

Exhibit 2D: Intensity Limits 
The interrelationship between Intensity limit, 
normal occupancy load factor and Floor Area 
Ratio (FAR) is indicated in the two examples 
below. The examples reflect Zone 3 criteria: 
intensity limit of 100 people per acre, occupancy 
load factor of 200 square feet per person, and 
0.46 FAR. 
 
Example 1 
          200  square feet per person (occupancy 
load factor) 
x        100  people per acre (intensity limit) 
    20,000  square foot building  
÷  43,560  square feet per acre 
         0.46  FAR 
 
Example 2 
    43,560  square feet per acre 
x       0.46  FAR  
    20,000  square foot building  
÷       200  square feet per person (occupancy 
load factor) 
         100  people per acre (intensity limit) 

S2a Sitewide Average Intensity is calculated by determining the total number of 
people expected to be on the site at any given time under normal operating 
conditions and dividing by the total number of acres of the project site. 

S2b Single-acre Intensity of a proposed development is calculated by 
determining the total number of people expected to be within any one-acre 
portion of the site, typically the most intensively used building or part of a 
building. The 1.0-acre area calculations represent building footprints that are 
generally rectangular and not elongated in shape or, for buildings larger than 
1.0 acre, represent a portion of the building. 

S2c Usage Intensity calculations includes all people (e.g., employees, 
customers/visitors) who may be on the property at any single point in time 
during normal operating conditions, whether indoors or outdoors. Table 2-2: 
Safety Criteria indicates the 
normal occupancy load 
factor (number of square 
feet per person) and Floor 
Area Ratio (FAR) for many 
nonresidential uses. These 
numbers are interrelated 
with the intensity limits 
(number of people per acre) 
and can be used to calculate 
the usage intensity of a 
proposed project (see 
Exhibit 2D). Note that the 
safety criteria are the 
sitewide and single-acre 
intensity limits (number of 
people per acre). The 
occupancy load factors and 
FARs are provided as 
methods for calculating the 
intensity of a proposed 
project. 

 

1. Occupancy Load Factors: The occupancy load factors (minimum 
number of square feet per person) provided in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria 
vary from one land use to another. As shown in Exhibit 2C, the sitewide 
average usage intensity of a project having multiple uses can be calculated 
by: 
 Dividing the number of square feet of each component use by the 

number of square feet per person (occupancy load) for that use as 
indicated in Table 2-2; 

 Adding together the number of  people for each component use; and 
 Dividing the total number of people by the total number of acres of 

the project site to get the sitewide average intensity.  

Item F - 84 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–18 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 Where occupancy load factors are not indicated in the table or if the 
assumed occupancy load factor for a particular proposal or 
component thereof is not applicable to the project, then the number 
of occupants is estimated in another manner – for example, the 
number of seats and employees at a restaurant or the number of 
parking places times the vehicle occupancy for an industrial plant. 

2. Floor Area Ratios (FARs): The allowable FAR is indicated in Table 2-2: 
Safety Criteria for a particular safety zone and vary from one land use to 
another.  Each component use is calculated as occupying a share of the 
total project site equal to its percentage of the total floor area in the 
project.  Mathematically, this means that the FAR for each component use 
will be the same as the FAR for the entire building. 

3. Alternative Intensity Calculations:  An alternative method for 
measuring compliance with the usage intensity limits is acceptable.  For 
example, a method based upon the City’s parking space requirements may 
be used together with an assumed number of people per vehicle as a 
means of determining the number of occupants for uses that are vehicle 
oriented (this method would not be suitable for land uses where many 
users arrive by transit, bicycle, or other means of transportation).  

4. Mixed-Use Development: Each component use within a nonresidential 
mixed-use development shall comply with Table 2-2: Safety Criteria unless 
the use is ancillary (less than 10% of total building floor area).  

5. Ancillary Uses:  Up to 10% of the total floor area of a building may be 
devoted to an ancillary use of another type, including a use with a higher 
occupancy load factor that is shown as incompatible in Table 2-2: Safety 
Criteria. Ancillary uses may be excluded from the single-acre intensity 
calculations (but not the sitewide average intensity limits) provided that 
the ancillary use is neither: 
 An assembly room having more than 750 square feet of floor area 

(this criterion is intended to parallel Building Code standards) and a 
capacity of more than 50 people; nor 

 A children’s school (grades K–12), day care center or other risk-
sensitive use that is “incompatible” within the safety zone where the 
primary use is to be located. 

6. Uncommon Land Use Considerations:  If a particular development 
proposal is uncommon—that is, there would be more floor area per person 
and lower usage intensity—the local agency may consider that information 
in determining the safety compatibility of the proposal.  In considering any 
such exceptions, the local agency shall also take into account the potential 
for the use of a building to change over time.  A building could have 
planned low-intensity use initially, but later be converted to a higher-
intensity use.  Local agency permit language or other mechanisms to ensure 
continued compliance with the usage intensity criteria must be put in place.   

7. Parcels within Multiple Safety Zones:  For the purposes of evaluating 
consistency with the usage intensity criteria set forth in Table 2-2: Safety 

Item F - 85 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–19 

Criteria, any parcel that is 
split by safety zone 
boundaries shall be 
considered as if it were 
multiple parcels divided at the 
safety zone boundary line.  
However, the intensity of 
nonresidential development 
allowed within the more 
restricted portion of the 
parcel can (and is encouraged 
to) be transferred to the less 
restricted portion. This full or 
partial reallocation of intensity 
is permitted even if the 
resulting intensity in the less 
restricted area would then 
exceed the limits which would 
otherwise apply within that 
safety zone (see Exhibit 2E).  

S3 Land Use Event Exceptions:  The 
City of Ontario may make exceptions for “conditional” or “incompatible” land uses 
associated with rare special events (e.g., an air show at the airport) for which a facility 
is not designed and normally not used and for which extra safety precautions can be 
taken as appropriate. 

S4 Land Uses of Special Concern:  Certain types of land uses represent special safety 
concerns irrespective of the number of people associated with those uses.  Table 2-
2: Safety Criteria indicates the criteria applicable to these uses.  In some cases, these 
uses are not allowed in portions of the safety zones regardless of the number of 
occupants associated with the use.  In other instances, these uses should be 
avoided—i.e., allowed only if an alternate site outside of the safety zone would not 
work.  When allowed, special measures should be taken to minimize hazards to the 
facility and occupants if the facility were to be struck by an aircraft.  Land uses of 
particular concern and the nature of the concern are: 

S4a Land Uses Having Vulnerable Occupants:  These land uses are ones in 
which the majority of occupants are children, elderly, and/or disabled—
people who have reduced effective mobility or may be unable to respond to 
emergency situations.  These uses include: 
 Children’s schools (grades K–12).  
 Day care centers (facilities with 15 or more children, as defined in the 

California Health and Safety Code). 
 Hospitals, health care centers, and similar facilities, especially where 

patients remain overnight. 
 Nursing homes. 
 Inmate facilities. 

Exhibit 2E: Transferring Usage 
Intensity  

An example of transferring usage intensity to 
the less restrictive safety zone is provided 
below. 

Zone 3 intensity limit: 100 people per acre 

Zone 4 intensity limit: 160 people per acre 

Proposed intensity in Zone 3: 80 people per 
acre 

Proposed intensity in Zone 4: 100 people per 
acre 

* The proposed intensity for Zone 3 (80 
people per acre) is encouraged to be 
transferred to Zone 4 for a total of 180 
people per acre, even if it exceeds the Zone 4 
intensity limit of 160 people per acre. 

Item F - 86 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–20 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

S4b Hazardous Materials Storage:  Materials that are flammable, explosive, 
corrosive, or toxic constitute special safety compatibility concerns to the 
extent that an aircraft accident could cause release of the materials and thereby 
pose dangers to people and property in the vicinity.  Facilities in this category 
include: 
 Facilities such as oil refineries and chemical plants that manufacture, 

process, and/or store bulk quantities (tank capacities greater than 
6,000 gallons) of hazardous materials generally for shipment 
elsewhere. 

 Facilities associated with otherwise compatible land uses where 
hazardous materials are stored in smaller quantities primarily for on-
site use (tank capacities greater than 6,000 gallons). 

S4c Critical Community Infrastructure:  The damage or destruction of public 
infrastructure facilities  which would cause significant adverse effects to public 
health and welfare well beyond the immediate vicinity of the facility.  Among 
these facilities are: 
 Emergency services facilities such as police and fire stations. 
 Emergency communications facilities, power plants, and other utilities. 

S5 Overlay Safety Zone 1A:  New development proposed within Overlay Safety Zone 
1A is encouraged to locate buildings outside the overlay zone, when feasible, 
otherwise utilize the intensity limits of the underlying Safety Zone. 

S6 Avigation Easements:  The City of Ontario shall require dedication of an avigation 
easement as a condition for approval of all proposed development situated off-
airport within Safety Zones 1 through 5 in accordance with Policy SP1 (see Section 
6.5). The Safety Zones and this policy affect only the City of Ontario. 

6.2 Noise  
6.2.1 Policy Objective:  The purpose of noise compatibility policies is to avoid the 

establishment of noise-sensitive land uses in the portions of the ONT AIA that are 
exposed to significant levels of aircraft noise. 

6.2.2 Noise Affected Agencies:  The noise impact zones for ONT affect lands within the 
Cities of Chino, Fontana, Montclair, and Ontario and unincorporated areas of the 
Counties of San Bernardino and Riverside.  The noise compatibility policies and 
criteria of this section apply only to the jurisdictions and special entities (e.g., school 
districts) in San Bernardino County. 

6.2.3 Factors Considered in Establishing Noise Impact Zones:  The factors 
considered in setting the policies within each noise impact zone are: 

(a) Measures of Noise Exposure:  The magnitude of the airport-related noise to 
which properties near ONT are exposed must be measured in terms of 
Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL). 

(b) Noise Contours:  In accordance with state law, the planning time frame utilized 
in this Compatibility Plan extends at least 20 years into the future.  The noise 
contours depicted herein represent the greatest annualized noise impact, 

Item F - 87 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–21 

measured in terms of CNEL, anticipated to be generated by the airport over the 
planning time frame.   

6.2.4 Factors Considered in Setting Noise Policies:  The factors considered in setting 
the noise policies for this section and the criteria in Table 2-3: Noise Criteria are 
described below.  These factors must also be considered when conducting 
compatibility assessments of individual development projects.   

(a) Noise Regulations:  State regulations and guidelines, including noise 
compatibility recommendations in the California Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook (2002) provide the foundation for the noise policies. 

(b) Ambient Noise levels:  Ambient noise levels influence the potential 
intrusiveness of aircraft noise upon land uses within a community. Ontario is 
characterized as an urban community with higher ambient noise levels than that 
of a suburban community.   Highway and rail noise contribute significantly to the 
ambient noise levels in the community. 

(c) Noise-Sensitive Uses:  The extent to which noise would intrude upon and 
interrupt the activity associated with a particular use affects whether the use is 
compatible with a particular noise exposure. 

(d) Noise-Generating Uses:  Land uses with operating conditions that generate 
noise are typically more compatible with high external noise exposure than uses 
that are internally quiet. 

(e) Outdoor Uses:  The extent of outdoor activities associated with a particular land 
use, especially activities for which quiet is important, is a key determinant of 
noise exposure compatibility because the sound attenuation that a structure 
would provide does not exist. Outdoor activities are particularly susceptible to 
aircraft overflight noise in that sound walls and other devices that can serve as 
shields from highway, railroad, and other ground-level noises are not practical. 

(f) Sound Attenuation:  Indoor uses associated with a particular land use that 
would otherwise be incompatible may be made consistent with this Compatibility 
Plan with the application of sound attenuation standards in accordance with 
Policy N4. 

(g) Single-event noise levels:  Single-event noise levels are taken into account in 
Table 2-3: Noise Criteria with respect to the acceptability of highly noise-
sensitive land uses. Single-event noise levels are considered when assessing the 
compatibility of highly noise-sensitive land uses such as residences, schools, 
libraries, and outdoor theaters.  Susceptibility to speech interference and sleep 
disturbance are among the factors that make certain land uses noise sensitive.  
Single-event noise levels are especially important in areas that are regularly 
overflown by aircraft, but that do not produce significant CNEL contours 
(helicopter overflight areas are a particular example). Flight patterns for ONT 
must be considered in the review process.  Acoustical studies or on-site noise 
measurements could also be required to assist in determining the compatibility of 
sensitive uses. 

6.2.5 Noise Impact Zones for ONT:  The noise impact zones depicted in Map 2-3 were 
prepared for ONT in conjunction with the master planning efforts conducted by Los 

Item F - 88 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–22 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Angeles World Airports (LAWA) in the mid 2000s.  The noise exposure contours 
represent a composite of two sets of projected noise contours reflecting two forecast 
scenarios.  Thethe “No Project” scenario and reflects the existing runway 
configuration and a 2030 forecast of 343,000 annual operations.  The “Proposed 
Project” scenario reflects the ultimate runway configuration and a 2030 forecast of 
465,000 annual operations.  Aircraft activity data upon which the contours are based 
are summarized in Chapter 1 of this Compatibility Plan.  The City of Ontario, as the 
agency responsible for this Compatibility Plan, should periodically review the projected 
CNEL contours and, in conjunction with LAWAOIAA, update them as necessary to 
ensure that they continue to have a future time horizon of at least 20 years. 

6.2.6 Noise Standards for New Development:  To minimize noise-sensitive 
development in noisy areas around ONT, new development should be evaluated in 
accordance with the policies set forth in this section, including the criteria listed in 
Table 2-3: Noise Criteria and the noise impact zones depicted on Map 2-3: Noise 
Impact Zones. 

NOISE POLICIES 

N1 Residential Development:  New residential development is incompatible within the 
projected  CNEL 65 dB contour of ONT except as described in Policy N2 and SP3e.  

N2 Residential Development Exceptions:  The following types of residential 
developments are allowed within the CNEL 65 dB contour, if the structure is 
capable of attenuating exterior noise from all noise sources to an indoor CNEL of 45 
dB or less.  

N2a Multi-Family Residential:  Multi-family residential is allowed within the 
CNEL 65 dB contour if the development can achieve a density that is greater 
than 8 dwelling units per acre and incorporate interior common space and 
recreational facilities.  

N2b Caretaker’s Unit:  A caretakers unit that is ancillary to a primary use located 
within the projected CNEL 65 dB contour should be deemed compatible with 
this Compatibility Plan provided that there is no more than 1 dwelling unit.  

N2c Existing Residential Lots:  Exceptions are provided for existing residential 
lots (see Policy SP2 with regard to development by right). 

N2d Composite Industrial/Residential Use: A single-family residential use 
combined with an industrial land use should be deemed compatible within the 
projected CNEL 65 dB contour due to the high ambient noise levels 
generated by the industrial use.  However, new structures developed for 
residential purposes should achieve noise attenuating standards consistent 
with the California Building Code. 

N3 Non-residential Development:  New nonresidential development is incompatible 
in locations where the airport-related noise exposure would be highly disruptive to 
the specific land use.  The applicable criteria are indicated in Table 2-3: Noise 
Criteria.   

Item F - 89 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–23 

N4 Maximum Interior Noise Level:  To the extent that the criteria in Table 2-3: 
Noise Criteria and other policies herein permit the development, land uses with 
interior activities that may be easily disrupted by aircraft noise should be required to 
incorporate exterior-to-interior noise level reduction (NLR) design features for all 
new structures.  The land uses listed in Policies N4a and N4b are considered 
acceptable if proper sound attenuation standards are applied and the maximum 
interior noise level indicated in Policies N4a and N4b are not exceeded.  

N4a CNEL 45 dB Interior Noise Level 
 Any habitable room of single- or multi-family residences. 
 Hotels, motels, and other lodging. 
 Hospitals, nursing homes, and related uses where patients remain 

overnight. 
 Places of worship, meeting halls, theaters, and mortuaries. 
 Schools, libraries, and museums. 

N4b CNEL 50 dB Interior Noise Level 
 Offices and office areas of industrial facilities. 
 Eating and drinking establishments. 
 Retail centers and stores. 
 Miscellaneous other uses as listed in Table 2-3: Noise Criteria. 

N4c Noise Attenuation Criteria:  Where Table 2-3: Noise Criteria indicates 
that buildings associated with a particular land use must be capable of 
attenuating exterior noise to the specified maximum interior noise level, 
acoustical data documenting that the structure will be designed to comply with 
the criteria should be provided.  The noise impact zones depicted in Map 2-3 
should be used in calculating compliance with these criteria.  The calculations 
should assume that windows are closed. 

N4d Noise Attenuation Exceptions:  Exceptions to the interior noise level 
criteria set in Policy N4a may be allowed if evidence is provided that the 
indoor noise generated by the use itself exceeds the listed criteria. 

N4e Parcels with Multiple Noise Contour Ranges:  When a proposed building 
lies within multiple CNEL range zones (e.g., partly in 60-65 dB and partly in 
65-70 dB), the higher range zone should apply for the purposes of 
determining sound attenuation requirements unless less than 25% of the 
building floor area is within the least restrictive zone.  In such case, the lower 
range zone may be used.  See Exhibit 2F for graphical example. 

N5 Avigation Easements:  The City of Ontario shall require dedication of an avigation 
easement in accordance with Policy SP1 as a condition of approval for proposed 
noise-sensitive developments situated within the City of Ontario portion of the 
CNEL 65 dB.  Affected Agencies that have authority over lands elsewhere within 
CNEL 65 dB contour are encouraged to establish a similar requirement for 
development within their jurisdictions.  

 

Item F - 90 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–24 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3 Airspace Protection  
6.3.1 Policy Objective:  Airspace protection compatibility policies seek to prevent creation 

of land use features that can be hazards to aircraft in flight and have the potential for 
causing an aircraft accident to occur.  Such hazards may be physical, visual, or 
electronic. 

6.3.2 Affected Agencies:  Considering the topography within the AIA, the airspace 
protection zones for ONT primarily affect lands within the Cities of Ontario, Rancho 
Cucamonga, and Upland.  The Cities of Chino, Fontana, and Montclair and 
unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County are affected to a lesser extent.  
Portions of the airspace protection zones also extend into the Counties of Riverside 
and Los Angeles however Airspace protection policies are only informational. 

6.3.3 Factors Considered in Establishing Airspace Protection Zones:  The principal 
factors considered in setting the airspace protection zones are: 

(a) Federal Regulations: Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77, Objects 
Affecting Navigable Airspace, set the requirements for notice to the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) of certain proposed construction or alteration projects 
(Subpart B, Notice of Construction or Alteration) and establish standards for 
determining obstructions to navigable airspace (Subpart C, Obstruction Standards).  
The airspace protection zones for ONT also considered the United States Standard 
for Terminal Instrument Procedures (TERPS), the One-Engine Inoperative (OEI) 

Exhibit 2F: Interior Noise Limit Requirement Example 

In this example, the proposed buildings with less than 25% of the building floor area ratio in the 65 dB 
CNEL contour does not require noise insulation.  Interior noise limit requirements are provided for each 
land use category in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria. 

 

Item F - 91 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–25 

obstacle identification surface and other applicable obstruction clearance 
standards published by the FAA in Advisory Circular 150/5300-13, Change 15.  
Appendix B provides a copy of FAR Part 77. 

(b) Specific Airport Features:  The current and ultimate runway alignments with 
precision approaches to all runway ends, OEI obstacle identification surfaces 
associated with the existing and future departure procedures, and the TERPS 
surfaces for the existing approach procedures at ONT were also considered.  
The TERPS surfaces for the ultimate runway are not considered as the FAA 
establishes these surfaces for specific instrument approach procedures. 

(c) High Terrain Zone:  Objects in  high  terrain areas are closer to the airport’s 
airspace surfaces and thus have a greater potential of creating airspace hazards. 
In accordance with FAR Part 77, Subpart B, a proposed structure which would 
penetrate the Part 77 airspace surfaces would be considered an airspace 
obstruction and thus requires an aeronautical review by the FAA. However, 
Section 77.15 of the regulations stipulate that FAA review is not required for 
new structures that would penetrate the airport’s airspace surfaces if the 
proposed structure would be shielded by existing structures of a permanent and 
substantial character of equal or greater height. In 2010, the City of Ontario 
surveyed the heights of existing structures within the High Terrain Zone area to 
establish a height threshold for future objects (see Appendix J). The survey 
revealed that existing structures within the high terrain areas north of ONT have 
heights of up to 70 feet above ground.  This information is considered when 
delineating the High Terrain Zone described in Section 6.3.5(d).  

6.3.4 Factors Considered in Setting Airspace Protection Policies:  The factors 
considered in setting the airspace protection policies in this section are described 
below.  These factors should also be considered when conducting compatibility 
assessments of individual development projects.  The factors are: 

(a) Federal and State Regulations:  The airspace protection policies outlined in 
this section are based upon and intended to help implement the regulations 
enacted by the FAA and the State of California.  State airspace protection 
standards mostly mirror those of the FAA.  A key difference is that state law 
gives the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics and 
local agencies the authority to enforce the standards. 

(b) Flight Hazards:  The FAA has well-defined standards by which potential 
hazards to flight, especially airspace obstructions, can be assessed.  However, the 
FAA has no authority to prevent creation of such hazards.  That authority rests 
with state and local governments.  There are three categories of flight hazards: 
physical, visual, and electronic. 

 Height of structures and other objects situated near the airport are a primary 
determinant of physical hazards to the airport airspace. 

 Land use features that have the potential to attract birds and certain other 
wildlife to the airport area also need to be evaluated as a form of physical 
hazard. 

 Visual hazards of concern include certain types of lights, sources of glare, and 
sources of dust, steam, thermal plumes, or smoke. 

Item F - 92 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–26 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 Electronic hazards are ones that may cause interference with aircraft 
communications or navigation. 

(c) Airspace Obstructions:  The criteria for determining the acceptability of a 
project with respect to height are based upon the standards set forth in:  Federal 
Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, 
Subpart C, Obstruction Standards; the United States Standard for Terminal 
Instrument Procedures (TERPS); the One-Engine Inoperative (OEI) obstacle 
identification surface and other applicable airport design standards published by 
the FAA. 

(d) OEI and TERPS Surfaces:  The OEI and TERPS surfaces associated with the 
current instrument approach and departure procedures at ONT are a significant 
airspace protection factor.  In some locations, these surfaces establish height 
limitations lower than the FAR Part 77 surfaces used by the FAA in evaluating 
airspace obstructions.   

(e) Local Topography:  The topography underlying the airport’s airspace surfaces 
is a significant factor in determining the allowable height of a structure.  The 
terrain north of ONT slopes upwards towards the San Gabriel Mountains, 
thereby reducing the allowable heights of objects in those areas.  In the high 
terrain areas north of ONT, the heights of existing structures (natural or 
manmade) that are of a permanent and substantial character are considered in 
establishing the allowable heights of future objects. Appendix J documents the 
heights of existing structures within the High Terrain Zone. 

6.3.5 Airspace Protection Zones for ONT:  The airspace protection zones depicted in 
Map 2-4 were prepared for ONT in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulations 
(FAR) Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace; the United States Standard for 
Terminal Instrument Procedures (TERPS), the One-Engine Inoperative (OEI) 
obstacle identification surface and other applicable obstruction clearance standards 
published by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) in Advisory Circular 
150/5300-13, Change 15. 

(a) FAA Height Notification Surface:  Established in accordance with FAR Part 
77, Subpart B, this airspace surface extends outward and upward at a slope of 
100 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 20,000 feet from the airport runways. 

(b) Airspace Obstruction Surfaces:  Includes the controlling portions of the FAR 
Part 77, Subpart C, TERPS, and OEI surfaces extending out to a point where 
these surfaces terminate at the outer limits of the FAA Height Notification 
Surface. Objects which penetrate these surfaces are subject to airspace evaluation 
by the FAA and the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process. Objects which 
penetrate the Approach/Departure Surfaces which extend beyond the FAA 
Height Notification Surface require evaluation by the FAA but would not be 
subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process.  

(c) Allowable Heights:  To determine the allowable heights of future objects, the 
underlying ground elevation is compared with the elevation of the controlling 
portions of the FAR Part 77, TERPS, and OEI surfaces.  These are depicted as 
color bands in Policy Map 2-4, each color band represents a range of distance, 
measured in vertical feet, between the ground and overlying surface. 

Item F - 93 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–27 

(d) High Terrain Zone:  Based on a height survey conducted by the City of 
Ontario in 2010, existing objects within the high terrain areas north of ONT 
have heights of up to 70 feet (see Appendix J). Therefore, the High Terrain Zone 
is delineated to include portions of the FAR Part 77, Subpart C, airspace surfaces 
where the ground either penetrates or lies within 70 feet of the airspace surface.  

(e) Airspace Avigation Easement Area:  Includes portions of the FAR Part 77, 
Subpart C, approach and transitional airspace surfaces and the TERPS and OEI 
surfaces extending out to a point where these surfaces intersect the horizontal 
surface, which is situated 150 feet above the airport elevation of 944 feet MSL. 

6.3.6 Airspace Protection Standards for New Development:  The airspace protection 
compatibility of proposed land uses within the AIA of ONT should be evaluated in 
accordance with the policies in this section, including the existing and future airspace 
protection surfaces depicted in Map 2-4. 

AIRSPACE PROTECTION POLICIES 

A1 FAA Height Notification Surface:  Except as provided in Policy A2b, if a project 
contains proposed structures or other objects that would penetrate the FAA Height 
Notification Surface for ONT, the project proponent should submit notification of 
the proposal to the FAA, as required by the provisions of FAR Part 77, Subpart B, 
and by the California Public Utilities Code, Sections 21658 and 21659.  The FAA will 
conduct an “aeronautical study” of the object(s) and determine whether the object(s) 
would be of a height that would constitute a hazard to air navigation.  A copy of the 
completed FAR Part 77 notification form submitted to the FAA and the resulting 
FAA aeronautical study findings should be supplied to the local jurisdiction by the 
project proponent.  The results of the FAA aeronautical study should be taken into 
account by the local agency when conducting compatibility reviews of the proposed 
project.  A copy of the FAA notification form and online submittal procedures are 
provided in Appendix B.  A requirement for submitting notice to the FAA does not 
necessarily result in a requirement that the proposed object also be reviewed under 
the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process. Proposed objects are subject to the 
ONT process only as specified in Policy A2. The FAA notification requirements 
apply to the following: 

A1a Penetrations to the FAA Height Notification Surface:  With limited 
exceptions, the FAA requires notification  for all objects which penetrate the 
FAA Height Notification Surface, including structures, antennas, trees, mobile 
objects, and temporary objects such as construction cranes. 

A1b Structures in Excess of 200 feet:  The FAA requires that it be notified about 
any proposal to construct or alter a structure that would be taller than 200 feet 
above the ground level regardless of the structure’s proximity to ONT or any 
other airport.  

A1c FAR Part 77 Notification: FAA requires project proponents to submit 
notification of the proposal where required by the provisions of FAR Part 77, 
and by the California Public Utilities Code, Sections 21658 and 21659.  See 

Item F - 94 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–28 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Appendix B for FAA notification requirements and online submittal process 
of Form 7460-1, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration.  

A2 Airspace Obstruction Surfaces:  Except as provided in Policies A2a and A2b, no 
object should have a height that would result in a penetration of the Airspace 
Obstruction Surface depicted for ONT in Map 2-4. Any object that penetrates the 
Airspace Obstruction Surface and is located outside of the High Terrain Zone should 
satisfy the conditions set forth in Policy A2a.  These requirements apply to all 
objects including structures, antennas, trees, mobile objects, and temporary objects 
such as construction cranes. 

A2a Airspace Obstacle Criteria and Review Process:  Except as indicated in 
Policy A2b, a proposed object having a height that penetrates ONT’s airspace 
obstruction surfaces is subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
and should be allowed only if all of the following apply: 
 The FAA conducts an aeronautical study of the proposed object and 

determines that the object would not be a hazard to air navigation. 
 FAA or other expert analysis conducted under the auspices of the Los 

Angeles World Airports (LAWA)Ontario International Airport Authority 
(OIAA), as the airport owner, concludes that, despite being an airspace 
obstruction, the object would not cause any of the following: 

 An increase in the ceiling or visibility minimums of the airport for an 
existing or planned instrument procedure (a planned procedure is one 
that is formally on file with the FAA); 

 A reduction of the established operational efficiency and capacity of 
the airport, such as by causing the usable length of the runway to be 
reduced; or 

 A conflict with the visual flight rules (VFR) airspace used for the 
airport traffic pattern or en route navigation to and from the airport. 

 Marking and lighting of the object will be installed as directed by the FAA 
aeronautical study or the California Division of Aeronautics and in a 
manner consistent with FAA standards in effect at the time the 
construction is proposed (Advisory Circular 70/7460-1J, Obstruction 
Marking and Lighting, or any later guidance). 

 An avigation easement is dedicated in accordance with Policy SP1 to the 
LAWA OIAA as owner of the airport. 

 The proposed project complies with all policies of this Compatibility Plan 
related to noise and safety compatibility. 

A2b High Terrain Zone Exception:  The High Terrain Zone is confined to 
portions of Upland, Ontario and Rancho Cucamonga (Map 2-4). A proposed 
structure of up to 70 feet in height (subject to local agency zoning limits) is 
exempt from the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process, even if it 
penetrates the Part 77 airspace surfaces and thus constitute an airspace 
obstruction, as the object would be shielded by existing structures of a 
permanent and substantial character of equal or greater height. Submitting 
notice of the proposed project to the FAA for an airspace evaluation in 

Item F - 95 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–29 

accordance with FAR Part 77, Subpart B, is at the discretion of the project 
applicant. Dedication of an avigation easement is required in accordance with 
Policy SP1.  

A3 Flight Hazards:  Land uses that may cause visual, electronic, or wildlife hazards, 
particularly bird strike hazards, to aircraft in flight or taking off or landing at the 
airport should be prohibited within the AIA consistent with FAA rules and 
regulations. To resolve any uncertainties with regard to the significance of flight 
hazards, local agencies should consult with the FAA, California Division of 
Aeronautics, and/or ONT officials.  Specific characteristics to be avoided include: 

 Sources of glare (such as from mirrored or other highly reflective buildings 
or building features) or bright lights (including search lights and laser light 
displays). 

 Distracting lights that could be mistaken for airport lights. 
 Sources of dust, steam, or smoke that may impair pilots’ vision. 
 Sources of steam or other emissions that cause thermal plumes or other 

forms of unstable air. 
 Sources of electrical interference with aircraft communications or 

navigation. 
 Any proposed use that creates an increased attraction for wildlife and that 

is inconsistent with FAA rules and regulations including, but not limited to  
FAA Advisory Circulars 150/5200-33B, Hazardous Wildlife Attractants On or 
Near Airports and 150/5200-34A, Construction or Establishment of Landfills 
near Public Airports. Of particular concern are landfills and certain 
recreational or agricultural uses that attract large flocks of birds which 
pose bird strike hazards to aircraft in flight. 

A4 Avigation Easements:  In accordance with Policy SP1, the City of Ontario shall 
require dedication of an avigation easement as a condition of approval for proposed 
development that either penetrates the Airspace Obstruction Surfaces (see Policy 
A2a) or is situated within the High Terrain Zone (see Policy A2b) or Airspace 
Avigation Easement Area (see Policy SP1).   Affected Agencies that have the 
authority over other lands elsewhere within these airspace protection areas are 
encouraged to establish a similar requirement for new development within their 
jurisdictions.  

 

6.4 Overflight  
6.4.1 Policy Objective:  Noise from individual aircraft 

operations, especially by comparatively loud aircraft, can be 
intrusive and annoying in locations beyond the limits of the 
noise impacts addressed by the policies in Section 6.2.  
Sensitivity to aircraft overflights varies from one person to 
another.  The purpose of overflight compatibility policies is 
to help notify people about the presence of overflights near airports so that they can 
make more informed decisions regarding acquisition or lease of property in the 

Note: Overflight policies and 
criteria are informational for 
Riverside and Los Angeles 
Counties 

Item F - 96 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–30 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

affected areas.  Overflight compatibility is particularly important with regard to 
residential land uses. 

6.4.2 Affected Local Agencies:  The overflight zones for ONT affect the Cities of Chino, 
Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, and Upland and unincorporated 
areas of San Bernardino County.  Portions of the Cities of Claremont and Pomona in 
Los Angeles County and the unincorporated areas of Riverside County are also within 
the overflight zones.  The overflight policies of this section apply only to the 
jurisdictions and other entities in San Bernardino County. 

6.4.3 Factors Considered in Establishing Overflight Zones: 

(a) State Law:  State statutes (Business and Professions Code Section 11010 and 
Civil Code Sections 1102.6, 1103.4, and 1353) define an AIA as “the area in 
which current or future airport-related noise, overflight, safety, or airspace 
protection factors may significantly affect land uses or necessitate restrictions on 
those uses as determined by an airport land use commission.” 

(b) Measures of Overflight Exposure:  The loudness of individual aircraft noise 
events is a key determinant of where airport proximity and aircraft overflight 
notification is warranted.  The FAA has determined that overflight exposure is 
not significant where aircraft are flying at an altitude of 3,000 feet or more above 
ground level.  The boundary of the overflight area for ONT, as depicted on Map 
2-5, is drawn to encompass locations where aircraft approaching and departing 
the airport typically fly at an altitude of 3,000 feet or less, together with locations 
underlying the airspace protection and height notification surfaces. 

6.4.4 Factors Considered in Setting Overflight Compatibility Criteria:  Factors 
include: 

(a) Limitations of Local Agency Authority over Existing Uses:  To be most 
effective, overflight policies should apply to transactions involving existing land 
uses, not just future development.  However, local agencies have little authority 
to set requirements for existing development.  The intent of this policy is to 
define, on an advisory basis, the boundaries within which required real estate 
transfer disclosure under state law is appropriate.  Implementing the real estate 
transaction disclosure requirement is the responsibility of the property owner 
and real estate agent. The local agency is responsible only for providing a map to 
a property owner or real estate agent that defines the areas within which the real 
estate disclosure requirement should be applied.   

(b) Limitations of California Real Estate Transaction Disclosure Law:  State 
law applies to existing development, but not to all transactions.  Specifically, 
California state statutes (Business and Professions Code Section 11010 and Civil 
Code Sections 1102.6, 1103.4, and 1353) require that, as part of many residential 
real estate transactions, information be disclosed regarding whether the property 
is situated within an AIA.  The Business and Professions Code applies the 
disclosure requirement to the sale or lease of newly subdivided lands and 
condominium conversions and to the sale of certain existing residential property.  
The Civil Code applies the disclosure requirement to existing residential property 
transfers only when certain natural conditions (earthquake, fire, or flood hazards) 
warrant disclosure. 

Item F - 97 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–31 

(c) Need for Continuity of Notification to Future Property Owners and 
Tenants:  To the extent that this Compatibility Plan sets notification requirements 
for new development, the policy should ensure that the notification runs with the 
land and is provided to prospective future owners and tenants.  These types of 
notifications are described in Policy SP1, Avigation Easements and Policy O1, 
Recorded Overflight Notification. 

(d) Inappropriateness of Avigation Easement Dedication Solely for Buyer 
Awareness Purposes:  Avigation easements involve conveyance of property 
rights from the property owner to the party owning the easement and are thus 
best suited to locations where land use restrictions for noise, safety, or airspace 
protection purposes are necessary.  While avigation easements also provide a 
form of buyer awareness, property rights conveyance is not needed solely for 
buyer awareness purposes. 

6.4.5 Overflight Notification Zones for ONT:  The boundaries of the overflight 
notification zones around ONT are shown on Map 2-5 and include: 

(a) Avigation Easement Dedication:  The boundary identifies the high-risk, noise-
impacted, and critical airspace protection areas of ONT.  Although not strictly an 
overflight notification boundary, the Avigation Easement Dedication boundary is 
established in accordance with Policy SP1 and reflected on the Map 2-5. 

(b) Recorded Overflight Notification:  The boundary identifies the primary 
overflight area for the airport.  The policy boundary matches the CNEL 60 dB 
noise impact zone depicted on Map 2-3. The Recorded Overflight Notification 
boundary encompasses the traffic pattern areas where aircraft typically fly at 
altitudes of less than 2,500 feet above ground level. 

(c) Real Estate Transaction Disclosure:  The boundary, which reflects the ONT 
AIA, encompasses areas underlying the common aircraft traffic patterns where 
aircraft are typically flying at altitudes of 3,000 feet or less. The AIA also includes 
the areas underlying the Height Notification Surface and Airspace Obstruction 
Surfaces defined for ONT in Map 2-5. The policy boundary follows roads and 
government boundary lines where practical. 

6.4.6 Overflight Policies:  Unlike the function of the noise, safety, and airspace protection 
compatibility policies in this Compatibility Plan, the overflight compatibility policies set 
forth in this section do not restrict the manner in which land can be developed or 
used.  The policies in this section serve only to establish the language and 
recommended geographic coverage for notification about airport proximity and 
aircraft overflights to be given in conjunction with local agency approval of new 
development and with certain real estate transactions involving existing development. 

OVERFLIGHT POLICIES 

O1 Recorded Overflight Notification:  The City of Ontario shall require the recording 
of an overflight notification running with the land as a condition for approval of new 
residential development that falls within CNEL 60 dB noise contour, as depicted in 
Map 2-5.  Affected Agencies having authority over other lands elsewhere within this 

Item F - 98 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–32 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

noise contour are encouraged to establish a similar requirement. Other conditions 
include: 

O1a Notification Language:  The overflight notification should contain 
language dictated by state law with regard to real estate transaction disclosure 
(see Policy O2a) and should be formatted similar to the example shown in 
Appendix E. 

O1b Property Deed Recording:  The overflight notification should be evident to 
future purchasers of the property by appearing on the property deed. 

O1c Avigation Easement Exception:  A separate recorded overflight 
notification is not required where an avigation easement is provided in 
accordance with Policy SP1. 

O1d Nonresidential Exception:  Recording of an overflight notification is not 
required for nonresidential development unless the project is a mixed-use 
development containing residential uses on the same property. 

O2 Real Estate Transaction Disclosure:  Airport proximity disclosure information 
should be provided in accordance with state law (Business and Professions Code 
Section 11010 and Civil Code Sections 1102.6, 1103.4, and 1353. See Section 6.4.4 
(b) and Appendix A for information on these laws. 

O2a Disclosure Language:  State Law provides the following disclosure 
language:  

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY:  This property is presently 
located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an airport 
influence area.  For that reason, the property may be subject to some of 
the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport 
operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors).  Individual 
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person.  You 
may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with 
the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether 
they are acceptable to you. 

O2b Airport Influence Area:  Consistent with state law, as the entity authorized 
to prepare the Compatibility Plan for ONT, the City of Ontario in coordination 
with other affected jurisdictions deems airport proximity disclosure to be 
appropriate within the AIA identified on Maps 2-1 through 2-5.  The AIA 
boundary is identical on each map. 

O2c Responsibility of Local Jurisdictions:  Local jurisdictions should make 
available to property owners and the public a copy of Map 2-5: Overflight 
Zones depicting the AIA boundary in which the airport proximity disclosure 
is required. 

 

6.5 Special Compatibility  
6.5.1 Special Compatibility Policies:  These policies are intended to address unique land 

use concerns. 

Item F - 99 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–33 

SPECIAL COMPATIBILITY POLICIES 

SP1 Avigation Easement Dedication:  An avigation easement should be dedicated to 
the owner/operator of ONT for new development as specified in Policies SP1a and 
SP1b.  An example of an avigation easement is provided in Appendix E. 

SP1a Avigation Easement Dedication Requirements:  Within portions of the 
AIA inside the City of Ontario, avigation easement dedication shall be 
required for new development requiring discretionary as described below. 
Affected Agencies having authority over comparable affected portions of the 
AIA are encouraged to establish similar requirements. However,  an avigation 
easement dedication is not considered necessary for ministerial actions as 
defined by each jurisdiction. Map 2-5, depicts the locations where an 
avigation easement dedication would be appropriate.  
 Safety Zones:  All new development within Safety Zones 1 through 5 as 

depicted on Map 2-2. (Safety zones contained solely within the City of 
Ontario) 

 Noise Impact Zones:  Development of new noise-sensitive land uses within 
the CNEL 65 dB noise contour depicted on Map 2-3. Noise sensitive 
land uses include residential, schools(public and private), places of 
worship, hospitals and convalescent homes.  (The projected CNEL 65 
dB noise contour extends into portions of the Ontario, Fontana and 
unincorporated portions of San Bernardino County.) 

 Airspace Protection Zones:  All new development in locations beneath the 
critical portions of the approach and transitional surfaces to where these 
surfaces intersect with the horizontal surface.  (Located solely within the 
City of Ontario, see Airspace Avigation Easement Area on Map 2-4.)  

 High Terrain Zone:  All new development within the High Terrain Zone 
as depicted in Map 2-5.  (Applies to portions of the City of Ontario, 
Upland and Rancho Cucamonga.  

SP1b Avigation Easement Purpose:  The avigation easement should do the 
following: 
 Right of Flight:  Provide the right of flight in the airspace above the 

property. 
 Noise Impacts:  Allow the generation of noise and other impacts 

associated with aircraft overflight. 
 Physical Hazards:  Restrict the height of structures, trees and other objects 

in accordance with the policies in Section 6.3 and the airspace protection 
surfaces depicted on Map 2-4. 

 Obstruction Marking:  Permit access to the property, with appropriate 
advance notice, for the removal or aeronautical marking of objects 
exceeding the established height limit. 

 Other Airspace Hazards:  Prohibit electrical interference, glare, and other 
potential hazards to flight from being created on the property. 

Item F - 100 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–34 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

SP2 Development by Right:  Other than in Safety Zones 1 and 5 and within the 
projected CNEL 70 dB contour of the airport, nothing in these policies prohibits the 
types of development specified in Policies SP2a, SP2b, and SP2c.   

SP2a Residential Uses:  Construction of a single-family detached home, including 
a second unit as defined by state law, on a legal lot of record as of the date of 
adoption of this Compatibility Plan is acceptable if such use is permitted by 
local land use regulations. 

SP2b Existing Uses:  Construction of other types of uses is permitted if local 
agency approvals qualify the development as an existing land use (see Section 
1.3.2 for definition of an existing land use).  In accordance with Policies N4, 
sound attenuation should be required. 

SP2c Lot Line Adjustments:  Lot line adjustments are permitted provided that 
new developable parcels would not be created and the resulting density or 
intensity of the affected property would not exceed the applicable criteria 
indicated in the Table 2-2: Safety Criteria and Table 2-3: Noise Criteria. 

SP3 Infill:  Within the AIA, infill development of nonconforming land uses should be 
allowed to occur provided that the following conditions and restrictions are met: 

SP3a Safety Zone 1 Restriction:  No type of infill development should be 
permitted in Safety Zone 1 (the runway protection zones and within the 
runway primary surface). 

SP3b Safety Zones 1, 2 and 5 Residential Restriction:  Residential infill 
development should not be permitted within Safety Zones 1, 2, and 5.  See 
Policy S1 for exceptions. 

SP3c Safety Zone 3 and 4 Density Residential Restriction:  For infill residential 
development in Safety Zones 3 and 4, the average development density 
(dwelling units per acre) of the site should not exceed the median density 
represented by all existing residential lots that lie fully or partially within a 
distance of 1,000 feet from the boundary of the defined infill area.  

SP3d Nonresidential Development :  For nonresidential infill development, the 
average sitewide usage intensity (the number of people per acre) of the site’s 
proposed use should not exceed the lesser of the two intensity results (See 
Exhibit 2G for example) :  
 Option 1: The median intensity of all existing nonresidential uses that lie 

fully or partially within a distance of 1,000 feet from the boundary of the 
defined infill area; or  

 Option 2: Double the intensity permitted in accordance with the criteria 
for that location as indicated in Table 2-2: Safety Criteria.  

SP3e Residential Noise Restriction:  Residential infill development should not 
be allowed in areas exposed to exterior noise levels equal to or greater than 
CNEL 70 dB.  

SP3f Other Applicable Policies for Infill Development:  The single-acre 
intensity limits described in Policy S2 and listed in Table 2-2: Safety 
Criteria are applicable to infill development. Also, the sound attenuation and 

Item F - 101 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–35 

avigation easement dedication 
requirements set by Policies N4 
and SP1, respectively, should 
apply to infill development. 

 

SP4 Nonconforming Uses:  The policies 
within this Compatibility Plan do not 
apply to existing land uses even if those 
uses are not in conformance with the 
compatibility criteria set forth in this 
Compatibility Plan.  Local jurisdictions 
have limited ability to cause reduction or 
removal of incompatible land uses from 
the AIA. However, proposed changes to 
existing uses that would change or result 
in increased nonconformity with the 
compatibility criteria are subject to the 
provisions of this chapter and the 
requirements of the Alternative Process 
set forth in Section 2 of this Compatibility 
Plan. Specifically, proposed changes to 
existing nonconforming uses (including a parcel or building) are limited as follows: 

SP4a Residential uses:  A nonconforming residential land use may be continued, 
sold, leased, or rented without restriction or review. 

SP4b Nonconforming Single-family:  A nonconforming single-family dwelling 
may be maintained, remodeled, reconstructed (see Policy SP5a) or expanded 
in size.  The lot line of an existing single-family residential parcel may be 
adjusted.  Also, a new single-family residence may be constructed on an 
existing lot in accordance with Policy SP2.  The above noted property 
improvements may occur if improvements do not increase the number of 
units and lot line adjustments do not result in allowing for additional dwelling 
units.  Examples include: 
 Any remodeling, reconstruction, or expansion must not increase the 

number of dwelling units. For example, a bedroom could be added to an 
existing residence, but an additional dwelling unit could not be built on 
the parcel unless that unit is a secondary dwelling unit as defined by state 
and local laws. 

 A single-family residential parcel may not be divided for the purpose of 
allowing additional dwellings to be constructed.  

SP4c Nonconforming Multi-family (> 8 du/ac):  Nonconforming multi-family 
residential dwelling units may be maintained, remodeled, or reconstructed 
(see Policy SP5a).  The size of individual dwelling units may be increased, 
but additional dwelling units may not be added.  The sound attenuation and 
avigation easement dedication requirements set by Policies N4 and SP1, 
respectively, apply. 

Exhibit 2G 
Nonresidential Infill Calculation Examples 

Example 1: 

Option 1: Median intensity of existing 
nonresidential uses = 150 people per acre 

Option 2: Double the intensity permitted 
in Zone 3 = 100 x 2 = 200 people per acre 

* The intensity limit for the proposed 
development is 150 people per acre (the 
lesser of the two results) 

Example 2: 

Option 1: Median intensity of existing 
nonresidential uses = 225 people per acre 

Option 2: Double the intensity permitted 
in Zone 3 = 100 x 2 = 200 people per acre 

* The intensity limit for the proposed 
development is 200 people per acre (the 
lesser of the two results) 

Item F - 102 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–36 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

SP4d Nonresidential uses:  A nonconforming, nonresidential use may be 
continued, sold, leased, or rented without restriction or review. 
Nonconforming, nonresidential facilities may be maintained, altered, or, if 
required by state law, reconstructed (see Policy SP5).  However, any such 
work: 
 Should not result in expansion of either the portion of the site devoted 

to the nonconforming use or the floor area of the buildings; and 
 Should not result in an increase in the usage intensity (the number of 

people per acre) above the levels existing at the time of approval of this 
Compatibility Plan by California Division of Aeronautics. 

SP4e Schools:  Children’s schools (including grades K-12, day care centers with 
more than 14 children, and school libraries) may be continued, reconstructed 
(see Policy SP5), expanded with the following restrictions per State Law: 
 Land acquisition for new schools or expansion of existing schools is not 

permitted within the CNEL 65 dB contour as depicted in Map 2-3. Land 
acquisition for new schools or expansion of existing schools is not 
permitted in any safety zone (see Map 2-4). 

 Replacement or expansion of buildings at existing schools is also not 
allowed in any safety zone, except that in Safety Zone 4 an expansion 
that accommodates no more than 50 students is allowed.  This limitation 
does not preclude work required for normal maintenance or repair. 

SP4f Other Applicable Policies for Nonconforming Development:  As a 
condition of local agency approval, a proposed modification of an existing 
nonconforming development is subject to the sound attenuation and 
avigation easement dedication requirements set by Policies N4 and SP1, 
respectively.  

SP5 Reconstruction of Nonconforming Uses:  An existing nonconforming building, 
structure, or use that has been partially or completely destroyed as the result of a fire, 
flood or natural disaster may be rebuilt under the conditions listed in Policies SP5a 
through SP5c so long as it does not violate local ordinances. The requirements listed 
in this policy do not restrict normal maintenance and repairs as defined by the local 
jurisdiction. 

SP5a Residential:  Nonconforming residential uses may be rebuilt provided that 
the reconstruction does not result in more dwelling units than existed on the 
parcel at the time of the damage.  Addition of a secondary dwelling unit to a 
single-family residence is permitted if in accordance with state law and local 
zoning regulations. 

SP5b Nonresidential:  A nonconforming nonresidential development may be 
rebuilt provided that the reconstruction does not increase the floor area of 
the previous structure or result in an increased intensity of use (i.e., more 
people per acre). 

SP5c Reconstruction Requirements:  The reconstruction of nonconforming 
uses listed in Policies SP5a and SP5b should comply with the following 
requirements: 

Item F - 103 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2–37 

 A permit to rebuild the structure should be obtained by the local agency 
within twenty-four (24) months of the date the damage occurred. 

 New structures should incorporate sound attenuation features consistent 
with Policy N4 and California Noise Standards. 

 The property should be required to dedicate an avigation easement to 
the Los Angeles World AirportsOntario International Airport Authority 
(LAWAOIAA) as the airport proprietor, if required under Policy SP1. 

 The new structure should comply with FAR Part 77, TERPS, and 
applicable airport obstruction clearance standards published by the 
FAA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 104 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

2–38 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 
 

This page was left intentionally blank. 

Item F - 105 of 335



 P R OC E D U R A L  A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y P O L IC IE S   C H A P TE R  2  
 

 

 Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment)  2–39 

Table 2-1 

Major Land Use Actions subject to the  
ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
 

The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
if located anywhere within the Airport Influence Area (Applies to all Affected Jurisdictions):  
 Expansion or creation of the sphere of influence of a city or district (e.g., annexation or incorporation) 
 General Plan,  Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments 
 Major capital improvements (e.g., water, sewer, roads) that would promote urban development in undeveloped or 

agricultural areas to the extent that such uses are not reflected in a previously reviewed general plan or specific plan. 
 Any proposal for acquisition of a new site or expansion of an existing site by a special district, school district, or 

community college district. 
 Any proposal for construction or alteration of a structure (including antennae) taller than 200 feet above the ground.  

The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
only if they are located within a safety zone (Applies solely to the City of Ontario): 
 Any proposed land use within Safety Zone 1 that is not an aviation-related use. 
 Public agency acquisition of sites intended for institutional uses including hospitals, schools, jails or prisons. 
 Any discretionary development proposal for projects having a building floor area of 20,000 square feet or greater 

unless only ministerial approval (e.g., a building permit) is required. 
 Proposed development of airport property if such development is not an aviation-related use or has not previously 

been included in an airport master plan or community general plan reviewed under the Alternative Process.  

The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
only if they are located within a noise impact zone of 65+ dB CNEL (Applies to the City of Ontario, City of 
Fontana and unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County): 
 Residential development, including land divisions, consisting of five or more dwelling units or individual parcels. 
 Any nonresidential use having outdoor dining or gathering functions. 
 Public agency acquisition of sites intended for institutional uses including hospitals, schools, jails or prisons. 

The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process 
only if they are located within an airspace protection zone (Applies to all Affected Jurisdictions): 
 Any proposed object (including buildings, antennas, and other structures) having a height that requires review by the 

Federal Aviation Administration in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulations Part 77, Subpart B.  
 Any proposed object (including buildings, antennas, and other structures) that would penetrate the allowable height as 

defined by Map 2-4 or conflict with the Airspace Protection policies.  
 Any project having the potential to create electrical or visual hazards to aircraft in flight, including: 

• Electrical interference with radio communications or navigational signals. 
• Lighting which could be mistaken for airport lighting. 
• Glare in the eyes of pilots of aircraft using the airport. 
• Impaired visibility near the airport. 

 Any project (e.g., water treatment facilities, waste transfer or disposal facilities, parks with open water areas), plan 
(e.g., Habitat Conservation Plan) or proposal to acquire sites intended for lakes, ponds, wetlands, or sewer treatment 
ponds which would have the potential to cause an increase in the attraction of birds or other wildlife that can be 
hazardous to aircraft operations in the vicinity of an airport. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Item F - 106 of 335



C H A P TE R  2   P R O C E D U R A L  A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y P O L IC IE S  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

2–40 Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment) 
 

 
 

This page was left intentionally blank. 
 

Item F - 107 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S    C H A P TE R  2   
  

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2-41 
  

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

Outdoor Uses (limited or no activities in buildings) 
Natural Land Areas: desert, brush lands 3      1: Objects above runway elevation not 

allowed in Object Free Area (OFA)  
Water: flood plains, wetlands, lakes, 

reservoirs 3      1-5: Objects above runway elevation not 
allowed in Object Free Area (OFA) 

Agriculture (except residences and 
livestock): crops, orchards, vineyards, 
pasture, range land 3 

     
1-5: Not allowed in Object Free Area (OFA) 

Livestock Uses: feed lots, stockyards, 
breeding, fish hatcheries, horse stables 3       

Outdoor Major Assembly Facilities: 4 
spectator-oriented outdoor stadiums, 
amphitheaters, fairgrounds, zoos 

     
 

Group Recreation (limited spectator stands): 
athletic fields, water recreation facilities, 
picnic areas  

     
3,4: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended function 

Small/Non-Group Recreation: golf courses, 
tennis courts, shooting ranges 3      

2-4: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended function and 
intensity criteria met 

Local Parks: children-oriented neighborhood 
parks, playgrounds      

3-5: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended function and 
intensity criteria met 

Camping: campgrounds, recreational 
vehicle/ motor home parks      3,4: Allowed only if intensity criteria met 

Cemeteries (except chapels)       

Residential and Lodging Uses   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

Item F - 108 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S    
  

2-42  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 
 

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

 Residential (<8 d.u./acre): individual 
dwellings, townhouses, mobile homes, bed 
& breakfast inns 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

Residential (≥8 d.u./acre) 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

Long-Term Lodging  (>30 nights): extended-
stay hotels, dormitories   

 
 
 
 

   

 

Short-Term Lodging (≤ 30 nights): hotels, 
motels, other transient lodging (except 
conference/assembly facilities) 
  [approx. 200 s.f./person] 

  0.46 0.74  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated 

Congregate Care: retirement homes, 
assisted living, nursing homes, 
intermediate care facilities 

     
 

Educational and Institutional Uses       
Family day care homes (≤14 children) 5       
Children’s Schools: K-12, day care centers 

(>14 children); school libraries      
4: No new sites or land acquisition; Bldg 
replacement/expansion allowed for existing 
schools; expansion limited to ≤50 students 

Item F - 109 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S    C H A P TE R  2   
  

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2-43 
  

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

Adult Education classroom space: adult 
schools, colleges, universities                                   

  [approx. 40 s.f./person]   0.09 0.15  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated; also see 
individual components of campus facilities 
(e.g., assembly facilities, offices, 
gymnasiums) 

Community Libraries  
[approx. 100 s.f./person]   0.23 0.37  3, 4: FAR limits as indicated 

Major Indoor Assembly Facilities 4: 
auditoriums, conference centers, concert 
halls, arenas 

     
 

Large Indoor Assembly Facilities 4: movie 
theaters, places of worship, cemetery 
chapels, mortuaries  

  [approx. 15 s.f./person] 

  0.03 0.06  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated 

Indoor Recreation: gymnasiums, club 
houses, athletic clubs, dance studios 

  [approx. 60 s.f./person] 
  0.14 0.22  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated 

In-Patient Medical: hospitals, mental 
hospitals      

3, 4: No new sites or land acquisition; 
replacement/expansion of existing facilities 
limited to existing size 

Out-Patient Medical: health care centers, 
clinics  

   [approx. 240 s.f./person] 
  0.55 0.88  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated 

Penal Institutions: prisons, reformatories       
Public Safety Facilities: police, fire stations 

     

3-5: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended public 
function 
5: Allowed only if airport serving 

Commercial, Office, and Service Uses 
Major Retail: regional shopping centers, 

‘big box’ retail  
[approx. 110 s.f./person] 

  0.25 0.40  
3, 4: FAR limits as indicated; evaluate eating/ 
drinking areas separately if >10% of total 
floor area 

Local Retail: community/neighborhood 
shopping centers, grocery stores 

  [approx. 170 s.f./person] 
  0.39 0.62  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated; evaluate eating/ 
drinking areas separately if >10% of total 
floor area 

Item F - 110 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S    
  

2-44  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 
 

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

Eating/Drinking Establishments: 
restaurants, fast-food dining, bars  

[approx. 60 s.f./person] 
  0.14 0.22 0.22 

3-5: FAR limits as indicated 

Limited Retail/Wholesale: furniture, 
automobiles, heavy equipment, lumber 
yards, nurseries 

  [approx. 250 s.f./person] 

 0.34 0.57   

2, 3: FAR limits as indicated; design site to 
place parking inside and bldgs outside of 
zone if possible 

Offices: professional services, doctors, 
finance, civic; radio, television & 
recording studios, office space 
associated with other listed uses  

  [approx. 215 s.f./person] 

 0.30 0.49 0.79 0.79 

2-5: FAR limits as indicated 

Personal & Miscellaneous Services: 
barbers, car washes, print shops  

                       [approx. 200 s.f./person] 
 0.28 0.46 0.74 0.74 

2-5: FAR limits as indicated 

Vehicle Fueling: gas stations, trucking & 
transportation terminals      5: Allowed only if airport serving 

   Industrial, Manufacturing, and Storage Uses 
Hazardous Materials Production: oil 

refineries, chemical plants (≥ 6,000 
gallons) 

     
 

Heavy Industrial 

     

3, 4: Avoid bulk storage of hazardous 
(flammable, explosive, corrosive, or toxic) 
materials; permitting agencies to evaluate 
possible need for special measures to 
minimize hazards if struck by aircraft 

Light Industrial, High Intensity: food 
products preparation, electronic 
equipment 

  [approx. 200 s.f./person]  0.28 0.46 0.74  

2-4: FAR limits as indicated; avoid bulk 
storage of hazardous (flammable, explosive, 
corrosive, or toxic) materials; permitting 
agencies to evaluate possible need for 
special measures to minimize hazards if 
struck by aircraft 

Item F - 111 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S    C H A P TE R  2   
  

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2-45 
  

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

Light Industrial, Low Intensity:  machine 
shops, wood products, auto repair 
  [approx. 350 s.f./person] 

 0.48 0.80 1.29  

2-4: FAR limits as indicated 
5: Single story only; max. 10% in mezzanine 
2-5: Avoid bulk storage of hazardous 
(flammable, explosive, corrosive, or toxic) 
materials; permitting agencies to evaluate 
possible need for special measures to 
minimize hazards if struck by aircraft 

Research & Development 
  [approx. 300 s.f./person] 

  0.69 1.10  

3, 4: FAR limits as indicated; avoid bulk 
storage of hazardous (flammable, explosive, 
corrosive, or toxic) materials; permitting 
agencies to evaluate possible need for 
special measures to minimize hazards if 
struck by aircraft 

Indoor Storage: wholesale sales, 
warehouses, mini/other indoor storage, 
barns, greenhouses  

[approx. 1,000 s.f./person] 

     

2:  Single story only; max. 10% in mezzanine 

Outdoor Storage: public works yards, 
automobile dismantling       

Mining & Extraction 6       

Transportation, Communication, and Utilities 

Airport Terminals: airline, general aviation       
Rail & Bus Stations 

     
2: Allowed only if alternative site outside zone 
would not serve intended public function 
5: Allowed only if airport serving 

Transportation Routes: road & rail rights-
of-way, bus stops      1: Not allowed in Object Free Area 3 

Auto Parking: surface lots, structures      1: Not allowed in Object Free Area 3 
Communications Facilities: emergency      

communications, broadcast & cell towers 7      
3-5: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended public 
function; not allowed within ½ mile of runway 

Power Plants 7      3, 4: Primary plants not allowed; peaker 
plants only 

Item F - 112 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S    
  

2-46  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 
 

Table 2-2   

Safety Criteria 

Legend: Land Use Compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-46 of this table) 

Normally Compatible  
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (FAR) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 A yellow cell indicates a use that is conditionally compatible provided it satisfies the maximum intensity limits and/or other 
listed conditions.   
 Numbers in yellow cells indicate the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limit for the use. The FAR limit is based on the common 

occupancy load factor [approx. number of square feet per person] indicated for that use. The FAR and/or the common 
occupancy load factors can be used to calculate the intensity (number of people per acre) of the proposed development (see 
Policy S2c). Up to 10% of the total FAR of a building may be devoted to an ancillary use and excluded from the single-acre 
intensity calculations, but not the average sitewide intensity limits. 

 
Land Use Category 1 

Note:  Multiple land use categories and 
compatibility criteria may apply to a project 

Safety Zone 2 Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: The numbers below indicate zone in which 
condition applies. 1 2 3 4 5 

Max Sitewide Average Intensity (people/acre) 

Max Single-Acre Intensity (people/acre) 
applicable to all nonresidential development 

10 

20 

60 

120 

100 

250 

160 

400 

160 

400 

 Nonresidential development must satisfy both 
forms of intensity limits. 

 Maximum intensity criteria apply to Normally 
Compatible as well as Conditional land uses    

Electrical Substations 7 
     

2, 5: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended public 
function 

Wastewater Facilities: treatment, disposal 3 
     

2, 5: Allowed only if alternative site outside 
zone would not serve intended public 
function 

Solid Waste Disposal Facilities: landfill, 
incineration 3      2: Allowed only if alternative site outside zone 

would not serve intended public function 
Solid Waste Transfer Facilities, Recycle 

Centers 3       
                                                                     

Land Use  
Acceptability Interpretation/Comments 

Normally 
Compatible 

Normal examples of the use are compatible under the presumption that usage intensity criteria will be 
met.  Atypical examples may require review to ensure compliance with usage intensity criteria.  Noise, 
airspace protection, and/or overflight limitations may apply. 

Conditional 
Use is compatible if indicated Floor Area Ratio (FAR) and/or other listed conditions are met. 

Incompatible 
Use should not be permitted under any circumstances. 

Item F - 113 of 335



P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S    C H A P TE R  2   
  

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 2-47 
  

Notes 
1 Land uses not specifically listed shall be evaluated using the criteria for similar uses. 
2 Safety zones for ONT lie entirely within the limits of the City of Ontario. Avigation easement dedication required as 

condition of approval for all properties within safety zones. 
3 Although these uses may satisfy the Safety criteria, they may be inconsistent with the Airspace Protection criteria as 

these uses may attract birds or other wildlife that could pose hazards to flight (see Policy A3). 
4 A Major Assembly Facility is defined as having a capacity of ≥1,000 people, while a Large Assembly Facility has a 

capacity of 300 to 999 people. Source: International Building Code. 
5 Construction of a single-family home, including a second dwelling unit as defined by state law, allowed on a legal lot 

of record if such use is permitted by local land use regulations. A family day care home (serving ≤14 children) may 
be established in any dwelling. See Policy S1. 

6 These uses may generate dust or other hazards to flight.  See Policy A3 for applicable policies. 
7 Power lines or other tall objects associated with these uses may be hazards to flight. 
8 Common occupancy load factors source: Mead & Hunt, Inc. based upon information from various sources including 

the international building code. 

 

Item F - 114 of 335



 
P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  

  
 

 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment) 2-47 
 

Table 2-3  

Noise Criteria 

Legend:  Land use compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-50 of this table.) 

Normally Compatible 
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (45/50) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 Cells that are conditionally compatible that have a number, indicate the interior noise level standard condition for use 
consistency.   

 

Land Use Category 1 

 
Note:  Multiple land use categories and compatibility 
criteria may apply to a project 

Noise Impact Zones 
Exterior Noise Exposure 2 (CNEL dB) 

Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: Interior noise level limits shown in yel-
low cells also apply (See Policy N4) ≤ 60 60-

65 
65-
70 

70-
75 ≥ 75 

 
Outdoor Uses (limited or no activities in buildings) 

Natural Land Areas: desert, brush lands      Compatible at levels indicated, but noise 
disruption of natural quiet will occur 

Water: flood plains, wetlands, lakes, reser-
voirs       

Agriculture (except residences and live-
stock): crops, orchards, vineyards, pas-
ture, range land 

     
 

Livestock Uses: feed lots, stockyards, 
breeding, fish hatcheries, horse stables      Exercise caution with uses involving 

noise-sensitive animals 
Outdoor Major Assembly Facilities: specta-

tor-oriented outdoor stadiums, amphithea-
ters, fairgrounds, zoos 3 

     
Exercise caution if clear audibility by 
users is essential 

Group Recreation (limited spectator stands): 
athletic fields, water recreation facilities, 
picnic areas  

     
Exercise caution if clear audibility by 
users is essential 

Small/Non-Group Recreation: golf courses, 
tennis courts, shooting ranges      Exercise caution if clear audibility by 

users is essential 
Local Parks: children-oriented neighborhood 

parks, playgrounds      Exercise caution if clear audibility by 
users is essential 

Camping: campgrounds, recreational vehi-
cle/motor home parks       

Cemeteries (excluding chapels)      Compatible at levels indicated, but noise 
disruption of outdoor activities will occur 

Residential and Lodging Uses       
Residential (<8 d.u./acre): individual dwell-

ings, townhouses, mobile homes, bed & 
breakfast inns 4 

 45    
 

Residential (≥8 d.u./acre) 4 
 45 45   

 

Long-Term Lodging  (>30 nights): extended-
stay hotels, dormitories  45 45    

Short-Term Lodging (≤ 30 nights): hotels, 
motels, other transient lodging (except 
conference/assembly facilities) 

 45 45   
 

Item F - 115 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

 
2-48  Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment) 
 

Table 2-3  

Noise Criteria 

Legend:  Land use compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-50 of this table.) 

Normally Compatible 
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (45/50) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 Cells that are conditionally compatible that have a number, indicate the interior noise level standard condition for use 
consistency.   

 

Land Use Category 1 

 
Note:  Multiple land use categories and compatibility 
criteria may apply to a project 

Noise Impact Zones 
Exterior Noise Exposure 2 (CNEL dB) 

Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: Interior noise level limits shown in yel-
low cells also apply (See Policy N4) ≤ 60 60-

65 
65-
70 

70-
75 ≥ 75 

 
Congregate Care: retirement homes, assist-

ed living, nursing homes, intermediate care 
facilities  45 45   

 

Educational and Institutional Uses       
Family day care homes (≤14 children) 4  45     
Children’s Schools: K-12, day care centers 

(>14 children); school libraries  45     

Adult Education classroom space: adult 
schools, colleges, universities 

 45 45   

Applies only to classrooms; offices, la-
boratory facilities, gymnasiums, outdoor 
athletic facilities, and other uses to be 
evaluated as indicated for those land 
use categories 

Community Libraries  45     
Indoor Major Assembly Facilities: auditori-

ums, conference centers, concert halls, in-
door arenas 3 

 45 45   
 

Indoor Large Assembly Facilities: movie 
theaters, places of worship, cemetery 
chapels, mortuaries 3 

 45 45   
 

Indoor Recreation: gymnasiums, club hous-
es, athletic clubs, dance studios   50    

In-Patient Medical: hospitals, mental hospi-
tals  45 45    

Out-Patient Medical: health care centers, 
clinics  45 45 45   

Penal Institutions: prisons, reformatories  45 45    
Public Safety Facilities: police, fire stations   50 50   

Commercial, Office, and Service Uses 
Major Retail: regional shopping centers, ‘big 

box’ retail   50 50  Outdoor dining or gathering places in-
compatible above CNEL 70 dB 

Local Retail: community/neighborhood 
shopping centers, grocery stores   50 50  Outdoor dining or gathering places in-

compatible above CNEL 70 dB 
Eating/Drinking Establishments: restaurants, 

fast-food dining, bars   50 50  Outdoor dining or gathering places in-
compatible above CNEL 70 dB 

Limited Retail/Wholesale: furniture, automo-
biles, heavy equipment, lumber yards, 
nurseries 

  50 50  
 

Item F - 116 of 335



 
P R O C E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T I B IL IT Y  P O L IC IE S     C H AP T E R  2  

  
 

 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment) 2-49 
 

Table 2-3  

Noise Criteria 

Legend:  Land use compatibility  
(A detailed explanation of each land use acceptability category is provided on pg. 2-50 of this table.) 

Normally Compatible 
Land Use 

Conditional 
Land Use (45/50) 

Incompatible 
Land Use 

 

 Cells that are conditionally compatible that have a number, indicate the interior noise level standard condition for use 
consistency.   

 

Land Use Category 1 

 
Note:  Multiple land use categories and compatibility 
criteria may apply to a project 

Noise Impact Zones 
Exterior Noise Exposure 2 (CNEL dB) 

Criteria for Conditional Uses 
 

Note: Interior noise level limits shown in yel-
low cells also apply (See Policy N4) ≤ 60 60-

65 
65-
70 

70-
75 ≥ 75 

 
Offices: professional services, doctors, fi-

nance, civic; radio, television & recording 
studios, office space associated with other 
listed uses 

  50 50  
 

Personal & Miscellaneous Services: bar-
bers, car washes, print shops   50 50   

Vehicle Fueling: gas stations, trucking & 
transportation terminals    50 50  

Industrial, Manufacturing, and Storage Uses 
Hazardous Materials Production: oil refiner-

ies, chemical plants (≥6,000 gallons)       

Heavy Industrial       
Light Industrial, High Intensity: food products 

preparation, electronic equipment    50 50  

Light Industrial, Low Intensity:  machine 
shops, wood products, auto repair    50 50  

Research & Development   50 50   
Indoor Storage: wholesale sales, ware-

houses, mini/other indoor storage, barns, 
greenhouses 

     
 

Outdoor Storage: public works yards, auto-
mobile dismantling       

Mining & Extraction       

Transportation, Communication, and Utilities 
Rail & Bus Stations    50 50  
Transportation Routes: road & rail rights-of-

way, bus stops       

Auto Parking: surface lots, structures       
Communications Facilities: emergency 

communications, broadcast & cell towers       

Power Plants       
Electrical Substations       
Wastewater Facilities: treatment, disposal       
Solid Waste Disposal Facilities: landfill, in-

cineration       

Solid Waste Transfer Facilities, Recycle 
Centers       

 

Item F - 117 of 335



C H A P TE R  2    P R OC E D U R A L A N D  C O MP A T IB IL IT Y  P OL IC I E S  
 

 
2-50  Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (July 2018 Amendment) 
 

 

Land Use   
Compatibility Interpretation/Comments 

Normally 
Compatible 

Indoor Uses:  Either the activities associated with the land use are inherently noisy or standard con-
struction methods will sufficiently attenuate exterior noise to an acceptable indoor community noise 
equivalent level (CNEL); for land use types that are compatible because of inherent noise levels, 
sound attenuation must be provided for associated office, retail, and other noise-sensitive indoor 
spaces sufficient to reduce exterior noise to an interior maximum of CNEL 50 dB  

Outdoor Uses:  Except as noted in the table, activities associated with the land use may be carried out 
with minimal interference from aircraft noise 

Conditional  

Indoor Uses:  Building structure must be capable of attenuating exterior noise from all noise sources to 
the indoor CNEL indicated by the number in the cell (either 45 or 50)  

Outdoor Uses:  Caution should be exercised with regard to noise-sensitive outdoor uses; these uses 
are likely to be disrupted by aircraft noise events; acceptability is dependent upon characteristics of 
the specific use 5 

Incompatible 

Indoor Uses:  Unacceptable noise interference if windows are open; at exposures above CNEL 65 dB, 
extensive mitigation techniques required to make the indoor environment acceptable for performance 
of activities associated with the land use 

Outdoor Uses:  Severe noise interference makes the outdoor environment unacceptable for perfor-
mance of activities associated with the land use 

Notes 
1 Land uses not specifically listed shall be evaluated using the criteria for similar uses. 
2 For the purposes of these criteria, the exterior noise exposure generated by aircraft activity at ONT is defined by the 

projected noise impact zones illustrated on Map 2-3 of this Compatibility Plan. 
3 A Major Assembly Facility is defined as having a capacity of ≥1,000 people, while a Large Assembly Facility has a 

capacity of 300 to 999 people. Source: International Building Code. 
4 In accordance with Policies S1, N2, and SP2, construction of a single-family home, including a second dwelling unit 

as defined by state law, is allowed on a legal lot of record if such use is permitted by local land use regulations. A 
family day care home (serving ≤14 children) may be established in any dwelling.  

5 Noise-sensitive land uses are ones for which the associated primary activities, whether indoor or outdoor, are sus-
ceptible to disruption by loud noise events.  The most common types of noise-sensitive land uses include, but are not 
limited to, the following:  residential, hospitals, nursing facilities, intermediate care facilities, educational facilities, li-
braries, museums, places of worship, child-care facilities, and certain types of passive recreational parks and open 
space. 

 
 
 

Item F - 118 of 335



Item F - 119 of 335



Item F - 120 of 335



Item F - 121 of 335



1 
0 FEET 16,000' N 

1" = 8,000" 

Prepared By: Mead&l lunt 

Chino Airport 

�-

A.)

I. 
r-._..., ...

Base Map Sources: 
• County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and

County of Riverside TLMA (2009), 

PROCEDURAL AND COMPATIBILITY POLICIES CHAPTER 2 

LEGEND 

Boundary Unes 
------ Airport Property Line 
------county Line 

------City Limits 
------ Street 

Existing Runways � Runway 8l•26R 
5 Runway 8R-26L 

PoJicy Boundaries 1 

Airport Influence Area (portions extend 
beyond map view) 

Airspace Protection Zones 
FA.A Height Notification Surface 

- Airspace Obstruction Surfaces
Al±M High Terrain Zone
--- Airspace Avigation Easement Area

Allowable Heights in AGL  
Less than 701 

70' in the High Terrain Zone 
70' to 100' 

:==:::::: 100' to 150' 
150' to 200' 

.__ _ _, Greater than 200' 

NOTES 

1. See Section 6.3 for airspace protection policies.

2. Existing airport elevation is 944.0' above mean sea level
(MSL). Future airport elevation assumed at 944.0' MSL.
Actual to be determined.

3. Projects with Jurupa HIiis are not subject to the ONT
Inter-Agency Notification Process but may require FAA 
notification (see Section 6.3.Sb). 

Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan 

July 2018 Amendment 

Map 2-4 

Compatibility Policy Map: 

Airspace Protection Zones 

Item F - 122 of 335



Item F - 123 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDICES 

 

Item F - 124 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX A 

 

Item F - 125 of 335



APPENDIX A 

 STATE LAWS RELATED TO  
AIRPORT LAND USE PLANNING 

 

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–1 

Table of Contents 
   

(as of January 2010) 

Public Utilities Code 
 Sections 
  21670 – 21679.5 Airport Land Use Commission ........................................................... A–3 
      (complete article) 
  21402 – 21403 Regulation of Aeronautics .................................................................  A–16 
      (excerpts pertaining to rights of aircraft flight) 
  21655, 21658, 21659 Regulation of Obstructions ................................................................ A–17 
      (excerpts) 
  21661.5, 21664.5 Regulation of Airports ........................................................................ A–19 
      (excerpts pertaining to approval of new airports and  
       airport expansion) 

Government Code 
 Sections 
  65302.3   Authority for and Scope of General Plans ....................................... A–20 
      (excerpts pertaining to general plans 
       consistency with airport land use plans) 
  65943 – 65945.7 Application for Development Projects ............................................ A–21 
      (excerpts referenced in State Aeronautics Act) 
  66030 – 66031 Mediation and Resolution of Land Use Disputes ........................... A–26 
      (excerpts applicable to ALUC decisions) 
  66455.9   School Site Review .............................................................................. A–28 
      (excerpts applicable to ALUCs) 

Education Code 
 Sections 
  17215   School Facilities, General Provisions ................................................ A–29 
      (excerpts pertaining to Department of Transportation 
      review of elementary and secondary school sites) 
  81033   Community Colleges, School Sites .................................................... A–31 
      (excerpts pertaining to Department of Transportation 
      review of community college sites) 

Item F - 126 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

Public Resources Code 
 Sections 
  21096   California Environmental Quality Act, Airport Planning .............. A–33 
      (excerpts pertaining to projects near airports) 

Business and Professions Code 
 Sections 
  11010   Regulation of Real Estate Transactions, Subdivided Lands .......... A–34
      (excerpts regarding airport influence area disclosure 
       requirements) 

Civil Code 
 Sections 
  1103 – 1103.4 Disclosure of Natural Hazards upon Transfer of Residential 
      Property ........................................................................................ A–35 
  1353   Common Interest Developments ..................................................... A–39 
      (excerpts regarding airport influence area disclosure 
       requirements) 
 

Legislative History Summary 
  Airport Land Use Commission Statutes ...................................................................................... A–40 

Item F - 127 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–3 

AERONAUTICS LAW 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 

Division 9—Aviation 
Part 1—State Aeronautics Act 

Chapter 4—Airports and Air Navigation Facilities 
Article 3.5—Airport Land Use Commission  

 

21670.  Creation; Membership; Selection 
(a) The Legislature hereby finds and declares that: 

(1) It is in the public interest to provide for the orderly development of each public use airport in 
this state and the area surrounding these airports so as to promote the overall goals and 
objectives of the California airport noise standards adopted pursuant to Section 21669 and to 
prevent the creation of new noise and safety problems. 

(2) It is the purpose of this article to protect public health, safety, and welfare by ensuring the 
orderly expansion of airports and the adoption of land use measures that minimize the 
public’s exposure to excessive noise and safety hazards within areas around public airports to 
the extent that these areas are not already devoted to incompatible uses. 

(b) In order to achieve the purposes of this article, every county in which there is located an airport 
which is served by a scheduled airline shall establish an airport land use commission.  Every 
county, in which there is located an airport which is not served by a scheduled airline, but is 
operated for the benefit of the general public, shall establish an airport land use commission, 
except that the board of supervisors of the county may, after consultation with the appropriate 
airport operators and affected local entities and after a public hearing, adopt a resolution finding 
that there are no noise, public safety, or land use issues affecting any airport in the county which 
require the creation of a commission and declaring the county exempt from that requirement.  The 
board shall, in this event, transmit a copy of the resolution to the Director of Transportation.  For 
purposes of this section, “commission” means an airport land use commission.  Each commission 
shall consist of seven members to be selected as follows: 

(1) Two representing the cities in the county, appointed by a city selection committee comprised 
of the mayors of all the cities within that county, except that if there are any cities contiguous 
or adjacent to the qualifying airport, at least one representative shall be appointed therefrom.  
If there are no cities within a county, the number of representatives provided for by 
paragraphs (2) and (3) shall each be increased by one. 

(2) Two representing the county, appointed by the board of supervisors. 

(3) Two having expertise in aviation, appointed by a selection committee comprised of the 
managers of all of the public airports within that county. 

(4) One representing the general public, appointed by the other six members of the commission. 

(c) Public officers, whether elected or appointed, may be appointed and serve as members of the 
commission during their terms of public office. 

Item F - 128 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

(d) Each member shall promptly appoint a single proxy to represent him or her in commission affairs 
and to vote on all matters when the member is not in attendance.  The proxy shall be designated in 
a signed written instrument which shall be kept on file at the commission offices, and the proxy 
shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing member.  A vacancy in the office of proxy shall be 
filled promptly by appointment of a new proxy. 

(e) A person having an “expertise in aviation” means a person who, by way of education, training, 
business, experience, vocation, or avocation has acquired and possesses particular knowledge of, 
and familiarity with, the function, operation, and role of airports, or is an elected official of a local 
agency which owns or operates an airport. 

(f) It is the intent of the Legislature to clarify that, for the purposes of this article, that special districts, 
school districts and community college districts are included among the local agencies that are 
subject to airport land use laws and other requirements of this article. 

21670.1. Action by Designated Body Instead of Commission 
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, if the board of supervisors and the city 

selection committee of mayors in the county each makes a determination by a majority vote that 
proper land use planning can be accomplished through the actions of an appropriately designated 
body, then the body so designated shall assume the planning responsibilities of an airport land use 
commission as provided for in this article, and a commission need not be formed in that county. 

(b) A body designated pursuant to subdivision (a) that does not include among its membership at least 
two members having expertise in aviation, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 21670, shall, 
when acting in the capacity of an airport land use commission, be augmented so that body, as 
augmented, will have at least two members having that expertise.  The commission shall be 
constituted pursuant to this section on and after March 1, 1988. 

(c) (1) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b), and subdivision (b) of Section 21670, if the board of 
supervisors of a county and each affected city in that county each makes a determination that 
proper land use planning pursuant to this article can be accomplished pursuant to this subdivision, 
then a commission need not be formed in that county. 

(2) If the board of supervisors of a county and each affected city makes a determination that 
proper land use planning may be accomplished and a commission is not formed pursuant to 
paragraph (1), that county and the appropriate affected cities having jurisdiction over an 
airport, subject to the review and approval by the Division of Aeronautics of the department, 
shall do all of the following: 
(A) Adopt processes for the preparation, adoption, and amendment of the airport land use 

compatibility plan for each airport that is served by a scheduled airline or operated for the 
benefit of the general public. 

(B) Adopt processes for the notification of the general public, landowners, interested groups, 
and other public agencies regarding the preparation, adoption, and amendment of the 
airport land use compatibility plans. 

(C) Adopt processes for the mediation of disputes arising from the preparation, adoption, 
and amendment of the airport land use compatibility plans. 

(D) Adopt processes for the amendment of general and specific plans to be consistent with 
the airport land use compatibility plans. 

Item F - 129 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–5 

(E) Designate the agency that shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and 
amendment of each airport land use compatibility plan. 

(3) The Division of Aeronautics of the department shall review the processes adopted pursuant to 
paragraph (2), and shall approve the processes if the division determines that the processes are 
consistent with the procedure required by this article and will do all of the following: 
(A) Result in the preparation, adoption, and implementation of plans within a reasonable 

amount of time. 
(B) Rely on the height, use, noise, safety, and density criteria that are compatible with airport 

operations, as established by this article, and referred to as the Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook, published by the division, and any applicable federal aviation regulations, 
including, but not limited to, Part 77 (commencing with Section 77.1) of Title 14 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

(C) Provide adequate opportunities for notice to, review of, and comment by the general 
public, landowners, interested groups, and other public agencies. 

(4) If the county does not comply with the requirements of paragraph (2) within 120 days, then 
the airport land use compatibility plan and amendments shall not be considered adopted 
pursuant to this article and a commission shall be established within 90 days of the 
determination of noncompliance by the division and an airport land use compatibility plan 
shall be adopted pursuant to this article within 90 days of the establishment of the 
commission. 

(d) A commission need not be formed in a county that has contracted for the preparation of airport 
land use compatibility plans with the Division of Aeronautics under the California Aid to Airports 
Program (Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 4050) of Title 21 of the California Code of 
Regulations), Project Ker-VAR 90-1, and that submits all of the following information to the 
Division of Aeronautics for review and comment that the county and the cities affected by the 
airports within the county, as defined by the airport land use compatibility plans: 

(1) Agree to adopt and implement the airport land use compatibility plans that have been 
developed under contract. 

(2) Incorporated the height, use, noise, safety, and density criteria that are compatible with airport 
operations as established by this article, and referred to as the Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook, published by the division, and any applicable federal aviation regulations, 
including, but not limited to, Part 77 (commencing with Section 77.1) of Title 14 of the Code 
of Federal Regulations as part of the general and specific plans for the county and for each 
affected city. 

(3) If the county does not comply with this subdivision on or before May 1, 1995, then a 
commission shall be established in accordance with this article. 

(e) (1) A commission need not be formed in a county if all of the following conditions are met: 
(A) The county has only one public use airport that is owned by a city. 
(B) (i) The county and the affected city adopt the elements in paragraph (2) of subdivision 

(d), as part of their general and specific plans for the county and the  affected city. 

(ii) The general and specific plans shall be submitted, upon adoption, to the Division of 
Aeronautics.  If the county and the affected city do not submit the elements specified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d), on or before May 1, 1996, then a commission 
shall be established in accordance with this article. 

Item F - 130 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

21670.2. Application to Counties Having over 4 Million in Population 
(a) Sections 21670 and 21670.1 do not apply to the County of Los Angeles.  In that county, the 

county regional planning commission has the responsibility for coordinating the airport planning 
of public agencies within the county.  In instances where impasses result relative to this planning, 
an appeal may be made to the county regional planning commission by any public agency involved.  
The action taken by the county regional planning commission on an appeal may be overruled by a 
four-fifths vote of the governing body of a public agency whose planning led to the appeal. 

(b) By January 1, 1992, the county regional planning commission shall adopt the airport land use 
compatibility plans required pursuant to Section 21675. 

(c) Sections 21675.1, 21675.2, and 21679.5 do not apply to the County of Los Angeles until January 1, 
1992.  If the airport land use compatibility plans required pursuant to Section 21675 are not 
adopted by the county regional planning commission by January 1, 1992, Sections 21675.1 and 
21675.2 shall apply to the County of Los Angeles until the airport land use compatibility plans are 
adopted. 

21670.3  San Diego County 
(a) Sections 21670 and 21670.1 do not apply to the County of San Diego.  In that county, the San 

Diego County Regional Airport Authority, as established pursuant to Section 170002, shall be 
responsible for the preparation, adoption, and amendment of an airport land use compatibility plan 
for each airport in San Diego County. 

(b) The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority shall engage in a public collaborative planning 
process when preparing and updating an airport land use compatibility plan. 

21670.4. Intercounty Airports 
(a) As used in this section, “intercounty airport” means any airport bisected by a county line through 

its runways, runway protection zones, inner safety zones, inner turning zones, outer safety zones, 
or sideline safety zones, as defined by the department’s Airport Land Use Planning Handbook and 
referenced in the airport land use compatibility plan formulated under Section 21675. 

(b) It is the purpose of this section to provide the opportunity to establish a separate airport land use 
commission so that an intercounty airport may be served by a single airport land use planning 
agency, rather than having to look separately to the airport land use commissions of the affected 
counties. 

(c) In addition to the airport land use commissions created under Section 21670 or the alternatives 
established under Section 21670.1, for their respective counties, the boards of supervisors and city 
selection committees for the affected counties, by independent majority vote of each county’s two 
delegations, for any intercounty airport, may do either of the following: 

(1) Establish a single separate airport land use commission for that airport.  That commission 
shall consist of seven members to be selected as follows: 
(A) One representing the cities in each of the counties, appointed by that county’s city 

selection committee. 
(B) One representing each of the counties, appointed by the board of supervisors of each 

county. 

Item F - 131 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–7 

(C) One from each county having expertise in aviation, appointed by a selection committee 
comprised of the managers of all the public airports within that county. 

(D) One representing the general public, appointed by the other six members of the 
commission. 

(2) In accordance with subdivision (a) or (b) of Section 21670.1, designate an existing appropriate 
entity as that airport’s land use commission. 

21671.  Airports Owned by a City, District, or County 
In any county where there is an airport operated for the general public which is owned by a city or 
district in another county or by another county, one of the representatives provided by paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (b) of Section 21670 shall be appointed by the city selection committee of mayors of the 
cities of the county in which the owner of that airport is located, and one of the representatives 
provided by paragraph (2) subdivision (b) of Section 21670 shall be appointed by the board of 
supervisors of the county in which the owner of that airport is located. 

21671.5. Term of Office 
(a) Except for the terms of office of the members of the first commission, the term of office of each 

member shall be four years and until the appointment and qualification of his or her successor.  
The members of the first commission shall classify themselves by lot so that the term of office of 
one member is one year, of two members is two years, of two members is three years, and of two 
members is four years.  The body that originally appointed a member whose term has expired shall 
appoint his or her successor for a full term of four years.  Any member may be removed at any 
time and without cause by the body appointing that member.  The expiration date of the term of 
office of each member shall be the first Monday in May in the year in which that member’s term is 
to expire.  Any vacancy in the membership of the commission shall be filled for the unexpired 
term by appointment by the body which originally appointed the member whose office has 
become vacant.  The chairperson of the commission shall be selected by the members thereof. 

(b) Compensation, if any, shall be determined by the board of supervisors. 

(c) Staff assistance, including the mailing of notices and the keeping of minutes and necessary 
quarters, equipment, and supplies, shall be provided by the county.  The usual and necessary 
operating expenses of the commission shall be a county charge. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this article, the commission shall not employ any 
personnel either as employees or independent contractors without the prior approval of the board 
of supervisors. 

(e) The commission shall meet at the call of the commission chairperson or at the request of the 
majority of the commission members.  A majority of the commission members shall constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business.  No action shall be taken by the commission except by the 
recorded vote of a majority of the full membership. 

(f) The commission may establish a schedule of fees necessary to comply with this article.  Those fees 
shall be charged to the proponents of actions, regulations, or permits, shall not exceed the 
estimated reasonable cost of providing the service, and shall be imposed pursuant to Section 66016 
of the Government Code.  Except as provided in subdivision (g), after June 30, 1991, a 

Item F - 132 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

commission that has not adopted the airport land use compatibility plan required by Section 21675 
shall not charge fees pursuant to this subdivision until the commission adopts the plan. 

 (g) In any county that has undertaken by contract or otherwise completed airport land use 
compatibility plans for at least one-half of all public use airports in the county, the commission 
may continue to charge fees necessary to comply with this article until June 30, 1992, and, if the 
airport land use compatibility plans are complete by that date, may continue charging fees after 
June 30, 1992.  If the airport land use compatibility plans are not complete by June 30, 1992, the 
commission shall not charge fees pursuant to subdivision (f) until the commission adopts the land 
use plans. 

21672.  Rules and Regulations 
Each commission shall adopt rules and regulations with respect to the temporary disqualification of its 
members from participating in the review or adoption of a proposal because of conflict of interest and 
with respect to appointment of substitute members in such cases. 

21673.  Initiation of Proceedings for Creation by Owner of Airport 
In any county not having a commission or a body designated to carry out the responsibilities of a 
commission, any owner of a public airport may initiate proceedings for the creation of a commission by 
presenting a request to the board of supervisors that a commission be created and showing the need 
therefor to the satisfaction of the board of supervisors. 

21674.  Powers and Duties 
The commission has the following powers and duties, subject to the limitations upon its jurisdiction set 
forth in Section 21676: 

(a) To assist local agencies in ensuring compatible land uses in the vicinity of all new airports and in 
the vicinity of existing airports to the extent that the land in the vicinity of those airports is not 
already devoted to incompatible uses. 

(b) To coordinate planning at the state, regional, and local levels so as to provide for the orderly de-
velopment of air transportation, while at the same time protecting the public health, safety, and 
welfare. 

(c) To prepare and adopt an airport land use compatibility plan pursuant to Section 21675. 

(d) To review the plans, regulations, and other actions of local agencies and airport operators pursuant 
to Section 21676. 

(e) The powers of the commission shall in no way be construed to give the commission jurisdiction 
over the operation of any airport. 

(f) In order to carry out its responsibilities, the commission may adopt rules and regulations consistent 
with this article. 

Item F - 133 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–9 

21674.5. Training of Airport Land Use Commission’s Staff 
(a) The Department of Transportation shall develop and implement a program or programs to assist 

in the training and development of the staff of airport land use commissions, after consulting with 
airport land use commissions, cities, counties, and other appropriate public entities. 

(b) The training and development program or programs are intended to assist the staff of airport land 
use commissions in addressing high priority needs, and may include, but need not be limited to, 
the following: 

(1) The establishment of a process for the development and adoption of airport land use 
compatibility plans. 

(2) The development of criteria for determining the airport influence area. 

(3) The identification of essential elements that should be included in the airport land use 
compatibility plans. 

(4) Appropriate criteria and procedures for reviewing proposed developments and determining 
whether proposed developments are compatible with the airport use. 

(5) Any other organizational, operational, procedural, or technical responsibilities and functions 
that the department determines to be appropriate to provide to commission staff and for 
which it determines there is a need for staff training or development. 

(c) The department may provide training and development programs for airport land use commission 
staff pursuant to this section by any means it deems appropriate.  Those programs may be 
presented in any of the following ways: 

(1) By offering formal courses or training programs. 

(2) By sponsoring or assisting in the organization and sponsorship of conferences, seminars, or 
other similar events. 

(3) By producing and making available written information. 

(4) Any other feasible method of providing information and assisting in the training and 
development of airport land use commission staff. 

21674.7. Airport Land Use Planning Handbook 
(a) An airport land use commission that formulates, adopts or amends an airport land use 

compatibility plan shall be guided by information prepared and updated pursuant to Section 
21674.5 and referred to as the Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the Division of 
Aeronautics of the Department of Transportation. 

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature to discourage incompatible land uses near existing airports.  
Therefore, prior to granting permits for the renovation or remodeling of an existing building, 
structure, or facility, and before the construction of a new building, it is the intent of the 
Legislature that local agencies shall be guided by the height, use, noise, safety, and density criteria 
that are compatible with airport operations, as established by this article, and referred to as the 
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook, published by the division, and any applicable federal 
aviation regulations, including, but not limited to, Part 77 (commencing with Section 77.1) of Title 
14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, to the extent that the criteria has been incorporated into 
the plan prepared by a commission pursuant to Section 21675.  This subdivision does not limit the 

Item F - 134 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

jurisdiction of a commission as established by this article.  This subdivision does not limit the 
authority of local agencies to overrule commission actions or recommendations pursuant to 
Sections 21676, 21676.5, or 21677. 

21675.  Land Use Plan 
(a) Each commission shall formulate an airport land use compatibility plan that will provide for the 

orderly growth of each public airport and the area surrounding the airport within the jurisdiction of 
the commission, and will safeguard the general welfare of the inhabitants within the vicinity of the 
airport and the public in general.  The commission airport land use compatibility plan shall include 
and shall be based on a long-range master plan or an airport layout plan, as determined by the 
Division of Aeronautics of the Department of Transportation, that reflects the anticipated growth 
of the airport during at least the next 20 years.  In formulating an airport land use compatibility 
plan, the commission may develop height restrictions on buildings, specify use of land, and 
determine building standards, including soundproofing adjacent to airports, within the airport 
influence area.  The airport land use compatibility plan shall be reviewed as often as necessary in 
order to accomplish its purposes, but shall not be amended more than once in any calendar year. 

(b) The commission shall include, within its airport land use compatibility plan formulated pursuant to 
subdivision (a), the area within the jurisdiction of the commission surrounding any military airport 
for all of the purposes specified in subdivision (a).  The airport land use compatibility plan shall be 
consistent with the safety and noise standards in the Air Installation Compatible Use Zone 
prepared for that military airport. This subdivision does not give the commission any jurisdiction 
or authority over the territory or operations of any military airport. 

(c) The airport influence area shall be established by the commission after hearing and consultation 
with the involved agencies. 

(d) The commission shall submit to the Division of Aeronautics of the department one copy of the 
airport land use compatibility plan and each amendment to the plan. 

(e) If an airport land use compatibility plan does not include the matters required to be included 
pursuant to this article, the Division of Aeronautics of the department shall notify the commission 
responsible for the plan. 

21675.1. Adoption of Land Use Plan 
(a) By June 30, 1991, each commission shall adopt the airport land use compatibility plan required 

pursuant to Section 21675, except that any county that has undertaken by contract or otherwise 
completed airport land use compatibility plans for at least one-half of all public use airports in the 
county, shall adopt that airport land use compatibility plan on or before June 30, 1992. 

(b) Until a commission adopts an airport land use compatibility plan, a city or county shall first submit 
all actions, regulations, and permits within the vicinity of a public airport to the commission for 
review and approval.  Before the commission approves or disapproves any actions, regulations, or 
permits, the commission shall give public notice in the same manner as the city or county is 
required to give for those actions, regulations, or permits.  As used in this section, “vicinity” means 
land that will be included or reasonably could be included within the airport land use compatibility 
plan.  If the commission has not designated an airport influence area for the airport land use 
compatibility plan, then “vicinity” means land within two miles of the boundary of a public airport. 

Item F - 135 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–11 

(c) The commission may approve an action, regulation, or permit if it finds, based on substantial 
evidence in the record, all of the following: 

(1) The commission is making substantial progress toward the completion of the airport land use 
compatibility plan. 

(2) There is a reasonable probability that the action, regulation, or permit will be consistent with 
the airport land use compatibility plan being prepared by the commission. 

(3) There is little or no probability of substantial detriment to or interference with the future 
adopted airport land use compatibility plan if the action, regulation, or permit is ultimately 
inconsistent with the airport land use compatibility plan. 

(d) If the commission disapproves an action, regulation, or permit, the commission shall notify the city 
or county.  The city or county may overrule the commission, by a two-thirds vote of its governing 
body, if it makes specific findings that the proposed action, regulation, or permit is consistent with 
the purposes of this article, as stated in Section 21670. 

(e) If a city or county overrules the commission pursuant to subdivision (d), that action shall not 
relieve the city or county from further compliance with this article after the commission adopts the 
airport land use compatibility plan. 

(f) If a city or county overrules the commission pursuant to subdivision (d) with respect to a publicly 
owned airport that the city or county does not operate, the operator of the airport is not liable for 
damages to property or personal injury resulting from the city’s or county’s decision to proceed 
with the action, regulation, or permit. 

(g) A commission may adopt rules and regulations that exempt any ministerial permit for single-family 
dwellings from the requirements of subdivision (b) if it makes the findings required pursuant to 
subdivision (c) for the proposed rules and regulations, except that the rules and regulations may 
not exempt either of the following: 

(1) More than two single-family dwellings by the same applicant within a subdivision prior to June 
30, 1991. 

(2) Single-family dwellings in a subdivision where 25 percent or more of the parcels are 
undeveloped. 

21675.2. Approval or Disapproval of Actions, Regulations, or Permits 
(a) If a commission fails to act to approve or disapprove any actions, regulations, or permits within 60 

days of receiving the request pursuant to Section 21675.1, the applicant or his or her representative 
may file an action pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure to compel the 
commission to act, and the court shall give the proceedings preference over all other actions or 
proceedings, except previously filed pending matters of the same character. 

(b) The action, regulation, or permit shall be deemed approved only if the public notice required by 
this subdivision has occurred.  If the applicant has provided seven days advance notice to the commis-
sion of the intent to provide public notice pursuant to this subdivision, then, not earlier than the date of 
the expiration of the time limit established by Section 21675.1, an applicant may provide the required 
public notice.  If the applicant chooses to provide public notice, that notice shall include a description 
of the proposed action, regulation, or permit substantially similar to the descriptions which are com-
monly used in public notices by the commission, the location of any proposed development, the appli-
cation number, the name and address of the commission, and a statement that the action, regulation, or 

Item F - 136 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–12 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

permit shall be deemed approved if the commission has not acted within 60 days.  If the applicant has 
provided the public notice specified in this subdivision, the time limit for action by the commission 
shall be extended to 60 days after the public notice is provided.  If the applicant provides notice pursu-
ant to this section, the commission shall refund to the applicant any fees which were collected for 
providing notice and which were not used for that purpose. 

(c) Failure of an applicant to submit complete or adequate information pursuant to Sections 65943 to 
65946, inclusive, of the Government Code, may constitute grounds for disapproval of actions, 
regulations, or permits. 

(d) Nothing in this section diminishes the commission’s legal responsibility to provide, where 
applicable, public notice and hearing before acting on an action, regulation, or permit. 

21676.  Review of Local General Plans 
(a) Each local agency whose general plan includes areas covered by an airport land use compatibility 

plan shall, by July 1, 1983, submit a copy of its plan or specific plans to the airport land use com-
mission.  The commission shall determine by August 31, 1983, whether the plan or plans are 
consistent or inconsistent with the airport land use compatibility plan.  If the plan or plans are 
inconsistent with the airport land use compatibility plan, the local agency shall be notified and that 
local agency shall have another hearing to reconsider its airport land use compatibility plans.  The 
local agency may propose to overrule the commission after the hearing by a two-thirds vote of its 
governing body if it makes specific findings that the proposed action is consistent with the 
purposes of this article stated in Section 21670.  At least 45 days prior to the decision to overrule 
the commission, the local agency governing body shall provide the commission and the division a 
copy of the proposed decision and findings.  The commission and the division may provide 
comments to the local agency governing body within 30 days of receiving the proposed decision 
and findings.  If the commission or the division’s comments are not available within this time limit, 
the local agency governing body may act without them.  The comments by the division or the 
commission are advisory to the local agency governing body.  The local agency governing body 
shall include comments from the commission and the division in the final record of any final 
decision to overrule the commission, which may only be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the 
governing body. 

(b) Prior to the amendment of a general plan or specific plan, or the adoption or approval of a zoning 
ordinance or building regulation within the planning boundary established by the airport land use 
commission pursuant to Section 21675, the local agency shall first refer the proposed action to the 
commission.  If the commission determines that the proposed action is inconsistent with the 
commission’s plan, the referring agency shall be notified.  The local agency may, after a public 
hearing, propose to overrule the commission by a two-thirds vote of its governing body if it makes 
specific findings that the proposed action is consistent with the purposes of this article stated in 
Section 21670.  At least 45 days prior to the decision to overrule the commission, the local agency 
governing body shall provide the commission and the division a copy of the proposed decision and 
findings.  The commission and the division may provide comments to the local agency governing 
body within 30 days of receiving the proposed decision and findings.  If the commission or the 
division’s comments are not available within this time limit, the local agency governing body may 
act without them.  The comments by the division or the commission are advisory to the local 
agency governing body.  The local agency governing body shall include comments from the 
commission and the division in the public record of any final decision to overrule the commission, 
which may only be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the governing body. 

Item F - 137 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–13 

(c) Each public agency owning any airport within the boundaries of an airport land use compatibility 
plan shall, prior to modification of its airport master plan, refer any proposed change to the airport 
land use commission.  If the commission determines that the proposed action is inconsistent with 
the commission’s plan, the referring agency shall be notified.  The public agency may, after a public 
hearing, propose to overrule the commission by a two-thirds vote of its governing body if it makes 
specific findings that the proposed action is consistent with the purposes of this article stated in 
Section 21670.  At least 45 days prior to the decision to overrule the commission, the public 
agency governing body shall provide the commission and the division a copy of the proposed 
decision and findings.  The commission and the division may provide comments to the public 
agency governing body within 30 days of receiving the proposed decision and findings.  If the 
commission or the division’s comments are not available within this time limit, the public agency 
governing body may act without them.  The comments by the division or the commission are 
advisory to the public agency governing body.  The public agency governing body shall include 
comments from the commission and the division in the final decision to overrule the commission, 
which may only be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the governing body. 

(d) Each commission determination pursuant to subdivision (b) or (c) shall be made within 60 days 
from the date of referral of the proposed action.  If a commission fails to make the determination 
within that period, the proposed action shall be deemed consistent with the airport land use 
compatibility plan. 

21676.5. Review of Local Plans 
(a) If the commission finds that a local agency has not revised its general plan or specific plan or 

overruled the commission by a two-thirds vote of its governing body after making specific findings 
that the proposed action is consistent with the purposes of this article as stated in Section 21670, 
the commission may require that the local agency submit all subsequent actions, regulations, and 
permits to the commission for review until its general plan or specific plan is revised or the specific 
findings are made.  If, in the determination of the commission, an action, regulation, or permit of 
the local agency is inconsistent with the airport land use compatibility plan, the local agency shall 
be notified and that local agency shall hold a hearing to reconsider its plan.  The local agency may 
propose to overrule the commission after the hearing by a two-thirds vote of its governing body if 
it makes specific findings that the proposed action is consistent with the purposes of this article as 
stated in Section 21670.  At least 45 days prior to the decision to overrule the commission, the 
local agency governing body shall provide the commission and the division a copy of the proposed 
decision and findings.  The commission and the division may provide comments to the local 
agency governing body within 30 days of receiving the proposed decision and findings.  If the 
commission or the division’s comments are not available within this time limit, the local agency 
governing body may act without them.  The comments by the division or the commission are 
advisory to the local agency governing body.  The local agency governing body shall include 
comments from the commission and the division in the final decision to overrule the commission, 
which may only be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the governing body. 

(b) Whenever the local agency has revised its general plan or specific plan or has overruled the 
commission pursuant to subdivision (a), the proposed action of the local agency shall not be 
subject to further commission review, unless the commission and the local agency agree that 
individual projects shall be reviewed by the commission. 

Item F - 138 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–14 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

21677.  Marin County Override Provisions 
Notwithstanding the two-thirds vote required by Section 21676, any public agency in the County of 
Marin may overrule the Marin County Airport Land Use Commission by a majority vote of its 
governing body.  At least 45 days prior to the decision to overrule the commission, the public agency 
governing body shall provide the commission and the division a copy of the proposed decision and 
findings.  The commission and the division may provide comments to the public agency governing 
body within 30 days of receiving the proposed decision and findings.  If the commission or the 
division’s comments are not available within this time limit, the public agency governing body may act 
without them.  The comments by the division or the commission are advisory to the public agency 
governing body.  The public agency governing body shall include comments from the commission and 
the division in the public record of the final decision to overrule the commission, which may be 
adopted by a majority vote of the governing body. 

21678.  Airport Owner’s Immunity 
With respect to a publicly owned airport that a public agency does not operate, if the public agency 
pursuant to Section 21676, 21676.5, or 21677 overrules a commission’s action or recommendation, the 
operator of the airport shall be immune from liability for damages to property or personal injury caused 
by or resulting directly or indirectly from the public agency’s decision to overrule the commission’s 
action or recommendation. 

21679.  Court Review 
(a) In any county in which there is no airport land use commission or other body designated to 

assume the responsibilities of an airport land use commission, or in which the commission or 
other designated body has not adopted an airport land use compatibility plan, an interested party 
may initiate proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction to postpone the effective date of a 
zoning change, a zoning variance, the issuance of a permit, or the adoption of a regulation by a 
local agency, that directly affects the use of land within one mile of the boundary of a public 
airport within the county. 

(b) The court may issue an injunction that postpones the effective date of the zoning change, zoning 
variance, permit, or regulation until the governing body of the local agency that took the action 
does one of the following: 

(1) In the case of an action that is a legislative act, adopts a resolution declaring that the proposed 
action is consistent with the purposes of this article stated in Section 21670. 

(2) In the case of an action that is not a legislative act, adopts a resolution making findings based 
on substantial evidence in the record that the proposed action is consistent with the purposes 
of this article stated in Section 21670. 

(3) Rescinds the action. 

(4) Amends its action to make it consistent with the purposes of this article stated in Section 
21670, and complies with either paragraph (1) or (2), whichever is applicable. 

(c) The court shall not issue an injunction pursuant to subdivision (b) if the local agency that took the 
action demonstrates that the general plan and any applicable specific plan of the agency 
accomplishes the purposes of an airport land use compatibility plan as provided in Section 21675. 

Item F - 139 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–15 

(d) An action brought pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be commenced within 30 days of the decision 
or within the appropriate time periods set by Section 21167 of the Public Resources Code, 
whichever is longer. 

(e) If the governing body of the local agency adopts a resolution pursuant to subdivision (b) with 
respect to a publicly owned airport that the local agency does not operate, the operator of the 
airport shall be immune from liability for damages to property or personal injury from the local 
agency’s decision to proceed with the zoning change, zoning variance, permit, or regulation. 

(f) As used in this section, “interested party” means any owner of land within two miles of the 
boundary of the airport or any organization with a demonstrated interest in airport safety and 
efficiency. 

21679.5. Deferral of Court Review 
(a) Until June 30, 1991, no action pursuant to Section 21679 to postpone the effective date of a 

zoning change, a zoning variance, the issuance of a permit, or the adoption of a regulation by a 
local agency, directly affecting the use of land within one mile of the boundary of a public airport, 
shall be commenced in any county in which the commission or other designated body has not 
adopted an airport land use compatibility plan, but is making substantial progress toward the 
completion of the airport land use compatibility plan. 

(b) If a commission has been prevented from adopting the airport land use compatibility plan by June 
30, 1991, or if the adopted airport land use compatibility plan could not become effective, because 
of a lawsuit involving the adoption of the airport land use compatibility plan, the June 30, 1991 
date in subdivision (a) shall be extended by the period of time during which the lawsuit was 
pending in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(c) Any action pursuant to Section 21679 commenced prior to January 1, 1990, in a county in which 
the commission or other designated body has not adopted an airport land use compatibility plan, 
but is making substantial progress toward the completion of the airport land use compatibility 
plan, which has not proceeded to final judgment, shall be held in abeyance until June 30, 1991. If 
the commission or other designated body adopts an airport land use compatibility plan on or 
before June 30, 1991, the action shall be dismissed.  If the commission or other designated body 
does not adopt an airport land use compatibility plan on or before June 30, 1991, the plaintiff or 
plaintiffs may proceed with the action. 

(d) An action to postpone the effective date of a zoning change, a zoning variance, the issuance of a 
permit, or the adoption of a regulation by a local agency, directly affecting the use of land within 
one mile of the boundary of a public airport for which an airport land use compatibility plan has 
not been adopted by June 30, 1991, shall be commenced within 30 days of June 30, 1991, or within 
30 days of the decision by the local agency, or within the appropriate time periods set by Section 
21167 of the Public Resources Code, whichever date is later. 

Item F - 140 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–16 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

AERONAUTICS LAW 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 

Division 9, Part 1 
Chapter 3—Regulation of Aeronautics 

(excerpts) 

 

21402.  Ownership; Prohibited Use of Airspace 
The ownership of the space above the land and waters of this State is vested in the several owners of 
the surface beneath, subject to the right of flight described in Section 21403.  No use shall be made of 
such airspace which would interfere with such right of flight; provided, that any use of property in 
conformity with an original zone of approach of an airport shall not be rendered unlawful by reason of 
a change in such zone of approach. 

21403.  Lawful Flight; Flight Within Airport Approach Zone 
(a) Flight in aircraft over the land and waters of this state is lawful, unless at altitudes below those 

prescribed by federal authority, or unless conducted so as to be imminently dangerous to persons 
or property lawfully on the land or water beneath.  The landing of an aircraft on the land or waters 
of another, without his or her consent, is unlawful except in the case of a forced landing or 
pursuant to Section 21662.1.  The owner, lessee, or operator of the aircraft is liable, as provided by 
law, for damages caused by a forced landing. 

(b) The landing, takeoff, or taxiing of an aircraft on a public freeway, highway, road, or street is 
unlawful except in the following cases: 

(1) A forced landing. 

(2) A landing during a natural disaster or other public emergency if the landing has received prior 
approval from the public agency having primary jurisdiction over traffic upon the freeway, 
highway, road, or street. 

(3) When the landing, takeoff, or taxiing has received prior approval from the public agency 
having primary jurisdiction over traffic upon the freeway, highway, road or street. 

The prosecution bears the burden of proving that none of the exceptions apply to the act which is 
alleged to be unlawful. 

(c) The right of flight in aircraft includes the right of safe access to public airports, which includes the 
right of flight within the zone of approach of any public airport without restriction or hazard.  The 
zone of approach of an airport shall conform to the specifications of Part 77 of the Federal 
Aviation Regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration, Department of Transportation. 

Item F - 141 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–17 

AERONAUTICS LAW 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 

Division 9, Part 1 
Chapter 4—Airports and Air Navigation Facilities 

Article 2.7—Regulation of Obstructions 
(excerpts) 

 

21655.  Proposed Site for Construction of State Building Within Two Miles of Airport 
Boundary  

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if the proposed site of any state building or other 
enclosure is within two miles, measured by air line, of that point on an airport runway, or runway 
proposed by an airport master plan, which is nearest the site, the state agency or office which proposes 
to construct the building or other enclosure shall, before acquiring title to property for the new state 
building or other enclosure site or for an addition to a present site, notify the Department of 
Transportation, in writing, of the proposed acquisition.  The department shall investigate the proposed 
site and, within 30 working days after receipt of the notice, shall submit to the state agency or office 
which proposes to construct the building or other enclosure a written report of the investigation and its 
recommendations concerning acquisition of the site. 

If the report of the department does not favor acquisition of the site, no state funds shall be expended 
for the acquisition of the new state building or other enclosure site, or the expansion of the present site, 
or for the construction of the state building or other enclosure, provided that the provisions of this 
section shall not affect title to real property once it is acquired. 

21658.  Construction of Utility Pole or Line in Vicinity of Aircraft Landing Area 
No public utility shall construct any pole, pole line, distribution or transmission tower, or tower line, or 
substation structure in the vicinity of the exterior boundary of an aircraft landing area of any airport 
open to public use, in a location with respect to the airport and at a height so as to constitute an 
obstruction to air navigation, as an obstruction is defined in accordance with Part 77 of the Federal 
Aviation Regulations, Federal Aviation Administration, or any corresponding rules or regulations of the 
Federal Aviation Administration, unless the Federal Aviation Administration has determined that the 
pole, line, tower, or structure does not constitute a hazard to air navigation.  This section shall not apply 
to existing poles, lines, towers, or structures or to the repair, replacement, or reconstruction thereof if 
the original height is not materially exceeded and this section shall not apply unless just compensation 
shall have first been paid to the public utility by the owner of any airport for any property or property 
rights which would be taken or damaged hereby. 

21659.  Hazards Near Airports Prohibited 
(a) No person shall construct or alter any structure or permit any natural growth to grow at a height 

which exceeds the obstruction standards set forth in the regulations of the Federal Aviation 
Administration relating to objects affecting navigable airspace contained in Title 14 of the Code of 

Item F - 142 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–18 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

Federal Regulations, Part 77, Subpart C, unless a permit allowing the construction, alteration, or 
growth is issued by the department. 

(b) The permit is not required if the Federal Aviation Administration has determined that the 
construction, alteration, or growth does not constitute a hazard to air navigation or would not 
create an unsafe condition for air navigation.  Subdivision (a) does not apply to a pole, pole line, 
distribution or transmission tower, or tower line or substation of a public utility. 

(c) Section 21658 is applicable to subdivision (b). 

Item F - 143 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–19 

AERONAUTICS LAW 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 

Division 9, Part 1, Chapter 4 
Article 3—Regulation of Airports 

(excerpts) 

 

21661.5. City Council or Board of Supervisors and ALUC Approvals 
(a) No political subdivision, any of its officers or employees, or any person may submit any 

application for the construction of a new airport to any local, regional, state, or federal agency 
unless the plan for such construction is first approved by the board of supervisors of the county, 
or the city council of the city, in which the airport is to be located and unless the plan is submitted 
to the appropriate commission exercising powers pursuant to Article 3.5 (commencing with 
Section 21670) of Chapter 4 of  Part 1 of Division 9, and acted upon by such commission in 
accordance with the provisions of such article. 

 (b) A county board of supervisors or a city council may, pursuant to Section 65100 of the 
Government Code, delegate its responsibility under this section for the approval of a plan for 
construction of new helicopter landing and takeoff areas, to the county or city planning agency. 

21664.5. Amended Airport Permits; Airport Expansion Defined 
(a) An amended airport permit shall be required for every expansion of an existing airport.  An 

applicant for an amended airport permit shall comply with each requirement of this article 
pertaining to permits for new airports.  The department may by regulation provide for exemptions 
from the operation of this section pursuant to Section 21661, except that no exemption shall be 
made limiting the applicability of subdivision (e) of Section 21666, pertaining to environmental 
considerations, including the requirement for public hearings in connection therewith. 

(b) As used in this section, “airport expansion” includes any of the following: 

(1) The acquisition of runway protection zones, as defined in Federal Aviation Administration 
Advisory Circular 150/1500-13 [sic. – should be 150/5300-13], or of any interest in land for 
the purpose of any other expansion as set forth in this section. 

(2) The construction of a new runway. 

(3) The extension or realignment of an existing runway. 

(4) Any other expansion of the airport’s physical facilities for the purpose of accomplishing or 
which are related to the purpose of paragraph (1), (2), or (3). 

(c) This section does not apply to any expansion of an existing airport if the expansion commenced 
on or prior to the effective date of this section and the expansion met the approval, on or prior to 
that effective date, of each governmental agency that required the approval by law. 

Item F - 144 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–20 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

PLANNING AND ZONING LAW 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

Title 7—Planning and Land Use 
Division 1—Planning and Zoning 

Chapter 3—Local Planning 
Article 5—Authority for and Scope of General Plans 

(excerpts) 

 

65302.3. General and Applicable Specific Plans; Consistency with Airport Land Use 
Plans; Amendment; Nonconcurrence Findings 

(a) The general plan, and any applicable specific plan prepared pursuant to Article 8 (commencing 
with Section 65450), shall be consistent with the plan adopted or amended pursuant to Section 
21675 of the Public Utilities Code. 

(b) The general plan, and any applicable specific plan, shall be amended, as necessary, within 180 days 
of any amendment to the plan required under Section 21675 of the Public Utilities Code. 

(c) If the legislative body does not concur with any of the provisions of the plan required under 
Section 21675 of the Public Utilities Code, it may satisfy the provisions of this section by adopting 
findings pursuant to Section 21676 of the Public Utilities Code. 

(d) In each county where an airport land use commission does not exist, but where there is a military 
airport, the general plan, and any applicable specific plan prepared pursuant to Article 8 
(commencing with Section 65450), shall be consistent with the safety and noise standards in the 
Air Installation Compatible Use Zone prepared for that military airport.  

Item F - 145 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–21 

PLANNING AND ZONING LAW 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

Title 7, Division 1 
Chapter 4.5—Review and Approval of Development Projects 

Article 3—Application for Development Projects 
(excerpts) 

 

Note: The following government code sections are referenced in Section 21675.2(c) of the ALUC statutes. 

65943.  Completeness of Application; Determination; Time; Specification of Parts 
not Complete and Manner of Completion 

(a) Not later than 30 calendar days after any public agency has received an application for a 
development project, the agency shall determine in writing whether the application is complete and 
shall immediately transmit the determination to the applicant for the development project.  If the 
written determination is not made within 30 days after receipt of the application, and the 
application includes a statement that it is an application for a development permit, the application 
shall be deemed complete for purposes of this chapter.  Upon receipt of any resubmittal of the 
application, a new 30-day period shall begin, during which the public agency shall determine the 
completeness of the application.  If the application is determined not to be complete, the agency’s 
determination shall specify those parts of the application which are incomplete and shall indicate 
the manner in which they can be made complete, including a list and thorough description of the 
specific information needed to complete the application.  The applicant shall submit materials to 
the public agency in response to the list and description. 

(b) Not later than 30 calendar days after receipt of the submitted materials, the public agency shall 
determine in writing whether they are complete and shall immediately transmit that determination 
to the applicant.  If the written determination is not made within that 30-day period, the 
application together with the submitted materials shall be deemed complete for the purposes of 
this chapter. 

(c) If the application together with the submitted materials are determined not to be complete 
pursuant to subdivision (b), the public agency shall provide a process for the applicant to appeal 
that decision in writing to the governing body of the agency or, if there is no governing body, to 
the director of the agency, as provided by that agency.  A city or county shall provide that the right 
of appeal is to the governing body or, at their option, the planning commission, or both. 

There shall be a final written determination by the agency of the appeal not later than 60 calendar 
days after receipt of the applicant’s written appeal.  The fact that an appeal is permitted to both the 
planning commission and to the governing body does not extend the 60-day period.  
Notwithstanding a decision pursuant to subdivision (b) that the application and submitted 
materials are not complete, if the final written determination on the appeal is not made within that 
60-day period, the application with the submitted materials shall be deemed complete for the 
purposes of this chapter. 

(d) Nothing in this section precludes an applicant and a public agency from mutually agreeing to an 
extension of any time limit provided by this section. 

Item F - 146 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–22 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

(e) A public agency may charge applicants a fee not to exceed the amount reasonably necessary to 
provide the service required by this section.  If a fee is charged pursuant to this section, the fee 
shall be collected as part of the application fee charged for the development permit. 

65943.5. 
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any appeal pursuant to subdivision (c) of 

Section 65943 involving a permit application to a board, office, or department within the California 
Environmental Protection Agency shall be made to the Secretary for Environmental Protection. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any appeal pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
Section 65943 involving an application for the issuance of an environmental permit from an en-
vironmental agency shall be made to the Secretary for Environmental Protection under either of 
the following circumstances: 

(1) The environmental agency has not adopted an appeals process pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
Section 65943. 

(2) The environmental agency declines to accept an appeal for a decision pursuant to subdivision 
(c) of Section 65943. 

(c) For purposes of subdivision (b), “environmental permit” has the same meaning as defined in 
Section 72012 of the Public Resources Code, and “environmental agency” has the same meaning 
as defined in Section 71011 of the Public Resources Code, except that “environmental agency” 
does not include the agencies described in subdivisions (c) and (h) of Section 71011 of the Public 
Resources Code. 

65944.  Acceptance of Application as Complete; Requests for Additional 
Information; Restrictions; Clarification, Amplification, Correction, etc; Prior 
to Notice of Necessary Information 

(a) After a public agency accepts an application as complete, the agency shall not subsequently request 
of an applicant any new or additional information which was not specified in the list prepared 
pursuant to Section 65940.  The agency may, in the course of processing the application, request 
the applicant to clarify, amplify, correct, or otherwise supplement the information required for the 
application. 

(b) The provisions of subdivision (a) shall not be construed as requiring an applicant to submit with 
his or her initial application the entirety of the information which a public agency may require in 
order to take final action on the application.  Prior to accepting an application, each public agency 
shall inform the applicant of any information included in the list prepared pursuant to Section 
65940 which will subsequently be required from the applicant in order to complete final action on 
the application. 

(c) This section shall not be construed as limiting the ability of a public agency to request and obtain 
information which may be needed in order to comply with the provisions of Division 13 
(commencing with Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code. 

(d) (1) After a public agency accepts an application as complete, and if the project applicant has  
  identified that the proposed project is located within 1,000 feet of a military installation or 

within special use airspace or beneath a low-level flight path in accordance with Section 
65940, the public agency shall provide a copy of the complete application to any branch of the 

Item F - 147 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–23 

United States Armed Forces that has provided the Office of Planning and Research with a 
single California mailing address within the state for the delivery of a copy of these 
applications.  This subdivision shall apply only to development applications submitted to a 
public agency 30 days after the Office of Planning and Research has notified cities, counties, 
and cities and counties of the availability of Department of Defense information on the 
Internet pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 65940. 

(2) Except for a project within 1,000 feet of a military installation, the public agency is not 
required to provide a copy of the application if the project is located entirely in an “urbanized 
area.”  An urbanized area is any urban location that meets the definition used by the United 
State Department of Commerce’s Bureau of Census for “urban” and includes locations with 
core census block groups containing at least 1,000 people per square mile and surrounding 
census block groups containing at least 500 people per square mile. 

(e) Upon receipt of a copy of the application as required in subdivision (d), any branch of the United 
States Armed Forces may request consultation with the public agency and the project applicant to 
discuss the effects of the proposed project on military installations, low-level flight paths, or special 
use airspace, and potential alternatives and mitigation measures. 

(f) (1) Subdivisions (d), (e), and (f) as these relate to low-level flight paths, special use airspace, and 
urbanized areas shall not be operative until the United States Department of Defense 
provides electronic maps of low-level flight paths, special use airspace, and military 
installations, at a scale and in an electronic format that is acceptable to the Office of Planning 
and Research. 

 (2) Within 30 days of a determination by the Office of Planning and Research that the 
information provided by the Department of Defense is sufficient and in an acceptable scale 
and format, the office shall notify cities, counties, and cities and counties of the availability of 
the information on the Internet.  Cities, counties, and cities and counties shall comply with 
subdivision (d) within 30 days of receiving this notice from the office. 

65945.  Notice of Proposal to Adopt or Amend Certain Plans or Ordinances by City 
or County, Fee; Subscription to Periodically Updated Notice as Alternative, 
Fee 

(a) At the time of filing an application for a development permit with a city or county, the city or 
county shall inform the applicant that he or she may make a written request to retrieve notice from 
the city or county of a proposal to adopt or amend any of the following plans or ordinances: 

(1) A general plan. 

(2) A specific plan. 

(3) A zoning ordinance. 

(4) An ordinance affecting building permits or grading permits. 

The applicant shall specify, in the written request, the types of proposed action for which notice is 
requested.  Prior to taking any of those actions, the city or county shall give notice to any applicant 
who has requested notice of the type of action proposed and whose development project is 
pending before the city or county if the city or county determines that the proposal is reasonably 
related to the applicant’s request for the development permit.  Notice shall be given only for those 
types of actions which the applicant specifies in the request for notification. 

Item F - 148 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–24 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

The city or county may charge the applicant for a development permit, to whom notice is provided 
pursuant to this subdivision, a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual cost of providing that notice.  
If a fee is charged pursuant to this subdivision, the fee shall be collected as part of the application 
fee charged for the development permit. 

(b) As an alternative to the notification procedure prescribed by subdivision (a), a city or county may 
inform the applicant at the time of filing an application for a development permit that he or she 
may subscribe to a periodically updated notice or set of notices from the city or county which lists 
pending proposals to adopt or amend any of the plans or ordinances specified in subdivision (a), 
together with the status of the proposal and the date of any hearings thereon which have been set. 

Only those proposals which are general, as opposed to parcel-specific in nature, and which the city 
or county determines are reasonably related to requests for development permits, need be listed in 
the notice.  No proposals shall be required to be listed until such time as the first public hearing 
thereon has been set.  The notice shall be updated and mailed at least once every six weeks; except 
that a notice need not be updated and mailed until a change in its contents is required. 

The city or county may charge the applicant for a development permit, to whom notice is provided 
pursuant to this subdivision, a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual cost of providing that notice, 
including the costs of updating the notice, for the length of time the applicant requests to be sent 
the notice or notices. 

65945.3. Notice of Proposal to Adopt or Amend Rules or Regulations Affecting 
Issuance of Permits by Local Agency other than City or County; Fee 

At the time of filing an application for a development permit with a local agency, other than a city or 
county, the local agency shall inform the applicant that he or she may make a written request to receive 
notice of any proposal to adopt or amend a rule or regulation affecting the issuance of development 
permits. 

Prior to adopting or amending any such rule or regulation, the local agency shall give notice to any 
applicant who has requested such notice and whose development project is pending before the agency 
if the local agency determines that the proposal is reasonably related to the applicant’s request for the 
development permit. 

The local agency may charge the applicant for a development permit, to whom notice is provided 
pursuant to this section, a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual cost of providing that notice.  If a fee 
is charged pursuant to this section, the fee shall be collected as part of the application fee charged for 
the development permit. 

65945.5. Notice of Proposal to Adopt or Amend Regulation Affecting Issuance of 
Permits and Which Implements Statutory Provision by State Agency 

At the time of filing an application for a development permit with a state agency, the state agency shall 
inform the applicant that he or she may make a written request to receive notice of any proposal to 
adopt or amend a regulation affecting the issuance of development permits and which implements a 
statutory provision. 

Prior to adopting or amending any such regulation, the state agency shall give notice to any applicant 
who has requested such notice and whose development project is pending before the state agency if the 

Item F - 149 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–25 

state agency determines that the proposal is reasonably related to the applicant’s request for the 
development permit. 

65945.7. Actions, Inactions, or Recommendations Regarding Ordinances, Rules or 
Regulations; Invalidity or Setting Aside Ground of Error Only if Prejudicial 

No action, inaction, or recommendation regarding any ordinance, rule, or regulation subject to this 
Section 65945, 65945.3, or 65945.5 by any legislative body, administrative body, or the officials of any 
state or local agency shall be held void or invalid or be set aside by any court on the ground of any 
error, irregularity, informality, neglect or omission (hereinafter called “error”) as to any matter 
pertaining to notices, records, determinations, publications, or any matters of procedure whatever, 
unless after an examination of the entire case, including evidence, the court shall be of the opinion that 
the error complained of was prejudicial, and that by reason of such error the party complaining or 
appealing sustained and suffered substantial injury, and that a different result would have been probable 
if such error had not occurred or existed.  There shall be no presumption that error is prejudicial or that 
injury was done if error is shown. 

65946.  [Replaced by AB2351 Statutes of 1993] 

Item F - 150 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–26 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

PLANNING AND ZONING LAW 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

Title 7, Division 1  
Chapter 9.3—Mediation and Resolution of Land Use Disputes 

(excerpts) 

 

66030. 
(a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 

(1) Current law provides that aggrieved agencies, project proponents, and affected residents may 
bring suit against the land use decisions of state and local governmental agencies.  In practical 
terms, nearly anyone can sue once a project has been approved. 

(2) Contention often arises over projects involving local general plans and zoning, redevelopment 
plans, the California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 
21000) of the Public Resources Code), development impact fees, annexations and in-
corporations, and the Permit Streamlining Act (Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 
65920)). 

(3) When a public agency approves a development project that is not in accordance with the law, 
or when the prerogative to bring suit is abused, lawsuits can delay development, add 
uncertainty and cost to the development process, make housing more expensive, and damage 
California’s competitiveness.  This litigation begins in the superior court, and often progresses 
on appeal to the Court of Appeal and the Supreme Court, adding to the workload of the 
state’s already overburdened judicial system. 

(b) It is, therefore, the intent of the Legislature to help litigants resolve their differences by establishing 
formal mediation processes for land use disputes.  In establishing these mediation processes, it is 
not the intent of the Legislature to interfere with the ability of litigants to pursue remedies through 
the courts. 

66031. 
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any action brought in the superior court relating to 

any of the following subjects may be subject to a mediation proceeding conducted pursuant to this 
chapter: 

(1) The approval or denial by a public agency of any development project. 

(2) Any act or decision of a public agency made pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code). 

(3) The failure of a public agency to meet the time limits specified in Chapter 4.5 (commencing 
with Section 65920), commonly known as the Permit Streamlining Act, or in the Subdivision 
Map Act (Division 2 (commencing with Section 66410)). 

(4) Fees determined pursuant to Sections 53080 to 53082, inclusive, or Chapter 4.9 (commencing 
with Section 65995). 

Item F - 151 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–27 

(5) Fees determined pursuant to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 66000). 

(6) The adequacy of a general plan or specific plan adopted pursuant to Chapter 3 (commencing 
with Section 65100). 

(7) The validity of any sphere of influence, urban service area, change of organization or 
reorganization, or any other decision made pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Division 3 (commencing with Section 56000) of 
Title 5). 

(8) The adoption or amendment of a redevelopment plan pursuant to the Community 
Redevelopment Law (Part 1 (commencing with Section 33000) of Division 24 of the Health 
and Safety Code). 

(9) The validity of any zoning decision made pursuant to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
65800). 

(10) The validity of any decision made pursuant to Article 3.5 (commencing with Section 21670) of 
Chapter 4 of Part 1 of Division 9 of the Public Utilities Code. 

(b) Within five days after the deadline for the respondent or defendant to file its reply to an action, the 
court may invite the parties to consider resolving their dispute by selecting a mutually acceptable 
person to serve as a mediator, or an organization or agency to provide a mediator. 

(c) In selecting a person to serve as a mediator, or an organization or agency to provide a mediator, 
the parties shall consider the following: 

(1) The council of governments having jurisdiction in the county where the dispute arose. 

(2) Any subregional or countywide council of governments in the county where the dispute arose. 

(3) Any other person with experience or training in mediation including those with experience in 
land use issues, or any other organization or agency which can provide a person with ex-
perience or training in mediation, including those with experience in land use issues. 

(d) If the court invites the parties to consider mediation, the parties shall notify the court within 30 
days if they have selected a mutually acceptable person to serve as a mediator.  If the parties have 
not selected a mediator within 30 days, the action shall proceed.  The court shall not draw any 
implication, favorable or otherwise, from the refusal by a party to accept the invitation by the court 
to consider mediation.  Nothing in this section shall preclude the parties from using mediation at 
any other time while the action is pending. 

Item F - 152 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–28 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

PLANNING AND ZONING LAW 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

Title 7—Planning and Land Use 
Division 2—Subdivisions 

Chapter 3—Procedure 
Article 3—Review of Tentative Map by Other Agencies 

(excerpts) 

 

66455.9. 
Whenever there is consideration of an area within a development for a public school site, the advisory 
agency shall give the affected districts and the State Department of Education written notice of the 
proposed site. The written notice shall include the identification of any existing or proposed runways 
within the distance specified in Section 17215 of the Education Code. If the site is within the distance 
of an existing or proposed airport runway as described in Section 17215 of the Education Code, the 
department shall notify the State Department of Transportation as required by the section and the site 
shall be investigated by the State Department of Transportation required by Section 17215. 

Item F - 153 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–29 

EDUCATION CODE 
Title 1—General Education Code Provisions 

Division 1—General Education Code Provisions 
Part 10.5—School Facilities 

Chapter 1—School Sites 
Article 1—General Provisions 

(excerpts) 

 

17215. 
(a) In order to promote the safety of pupils, comprehensive community planning, and greater 

educational usefulness of school sites, before acquiring title to or leasing property for a new school 
site, the governing board of each school district, including any district governed by a city board of 
education or a charter school, shall give the State Department of Education written notice of the 
proposed acquisition or lease and shall submit any information required by the State Department 
of Education if the site is within two miles, measured by air line, of that point on an airport runway 
or a potential runway included in an airport master plan that is nearest to the site. 

(b) Upon receipt of the notice required pursuant to subdivision (a), the State Department of 
Education shall notify the Department of Transportation in writing of the proposed acquisition or 
lease.  If the Department of Transportation is no longer in operation, the State Department of 
Education shall, in lieu of notifying the Department of Transportation, notify the United States 
Department of Transportation or any other appropriate agency, in writing, of the proposed 
acquisition for the purpose of obtaining from the department or other agency any information or 
assistance that it may desire to give. 

(c) The Department of Transportation shall investigate the proposed site and, within 30 working days 
after receipt of the notice, shall submit to the State Department of Education a written report of its 
findings including recommendations concerning acquisition or lease of the site.  As part of the 
investigation, the Department of Transportation shall give notice thereof to the owner and 
operator of the airport who shall be granted the opportunity to comment upon the site.  The 
Department of Transportation shall adopt regulations setting forth the criteria by which a site will 
be evaluated pursuant to this section. 

(d) The State Department of Education shall, within 10 days of receiving the Department of 
Transportation’s report, forward the report to the governing board of the school district or charter 
school.  The governing board or charter school may not acquire title to or lease the property until 
the report of the Department of Transportation has been received.  If the report does not favor 
the acquisition or lease of the property for a school site or an addition to a present school site, the 
governing board or charter school may not acquire title to or lease the property.  If the report does 
favor the acquisition or lease of the property for a school site or an addition to a present school 
site, the governing board or charter school shall hold a public hearing on the matter prior to 
acquiring or leasing the site. 

(e) If the Department of Transportation’s recommendation does not favor acquisition or lease of the 
proposed site, state funds or local funds may not be apportioned or expended for the acquisition 
of that site, construction of any school building on that site, or for the expansion of any existing 
site to include that site. 

Item F - 154 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–30 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

(f) This section does not apply to sites acquired prior to January 1, 1966, nor to any additions or 
extensions to those sites. 

Item F - 155 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–31 

EDUCATION CODE 
Title 3—Postsecondary Education 
Division 7—Community Colleges 

Part 49—Community Colleges, Education Facilities 
Chapter 1—School Sites 
Article 2—School Sites 

(excerpts) 

 

81033.  Investigation:  Geologic and Soil Engineering Studies; Airport in Proximity 
(c) To promote the safety of students, comprehensive community planning, and greater educational 

usefulness of community college sites, the governing board of each community college district, if 
the proposed site is within two miles, measured by air line, of that point on an airport runway, or a 
runway proposed by an airport master plan, which is nearest the site and excluding them if the 
property is not so located, before acquiring title to property for a new community college site or 
for an addition to a present site, shall give the board of governors notice in writing of the proposed 
acquisition and shall submit any information required by the board of governors. 

Immediately after receiving notice of the proposed acquisition of property which is within two 
miles, measured by air line, of that point on an airport runway, or a runway proposed by an airport 
master plan, which is nearest the site, the board of governors shall notify the Division of 
Aeronautics of the Department of Transportation, in writing, of the proposed acquisition.  The 
Division of Aeronautics shall make an investigation and report to the board of governors within 30 
working days after receipt of the notice.  If the Division of Aeronautics is no longer in operation, 
the board of governors shall, in lieu of notifying the Division of Aeronautics, notify the Federal 
Aviation Administration or any other appropriate agency, in writing, of the proposed acquisition 
for the purpose of obtaining from the authority or other agency such information or assistance as 
it may desire to give. 

The board of governors shall investigate the proposed site and within 35 working days after receipt 
of the notice shall submit to the governing board a written report and its recommendations 
concerning acquisition of the site.  The governing board shall not acquire title to the property until 
the report of the board of governors has been received.  If the report does not favor the 
acquisition of the property for a community college site or an addition to a present community 
college site, the governing board shall not acquire title to the property until 30 days after the 
department’s report is received and until the board of governors’ report has been read at a public 
hearing duly called after 10 days’ notice published once in a newspaper of general circulation 
within the community college district, or if there is no such newspaper, then in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the county in which the property is located. 

(d) If, with respect to a proposed site located within two miles of an operative airport runway, the 
report of the board of governors submitted to a community college district governing board under 
subdivision (c) does not favor the acquisition of the site on the sole or partial basis of the 
unfavorable recommendation of the Division of Aeronautics of the Department of 
Transportation, no state agency or officer shall grant, apportion, or allow to such community 
college district for expenditure in connection with that site, any state funds otherwise made 
available under any state law whatever for a community college site acquisition or college building 

Item F - 156 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–32 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

construction, or for expansion of existing sites and buildings, and no funds of the community 
college district or of the county in which the district lies shall be expended for such purposes; 
provided that provisions of this section shall not be applicable to sites acquired prior to January 1, 
1966, nor any additions or extensions to such sites. 

If the recommendations of the Division of Aeronautics are unfavorable, such recommendations 
shall not be overruled without the express approval of the board of governors and the State 
Allocation Board. 

Item F - 157 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–33 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT STATUTES 
PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 

Division 13—Environmental Quality 
Chapter 2.6—General 

(excerpts) 

 

21096.  Airport Planning 
(a) If a lead agency prepares an environmental impact report for a project situated within airport land 

use compatibility plan boundaries, or, if an airport land use compatibility plan has not been 
adopted, for a project within two nautical miles of a public airport or public use airport, the 
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the Division of Aeronautics of the 
Department of Transportation, in compliance with Section 21674.5 of the Public Utilities Code 
and other documents, shall be utilized as technical resources to assist in the preparation of the 
environmental impact report as the report relates to airport-related safety hazards and noise 
problems. 

(b) A lead agency shall not adopt a negative declaration for a project described in subdivision (a) 
unless the lead agency considers whether the project will result in a safety hazard or noise problem 
for persons using the airport or for persons residing or working in the project area. 

Item F - 158 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–34 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
Division 4—Real Estate 

Part 2—Regulation of Transactions 
Chapter 1—Subdivided Lands 

Article 2—Investigation, Regulation and Report 
(excerpts) 

 

11010. 
(a) Except as otherwise provided pursuant to subdivision (c) or elsewhere in this chapter, any person 

who intends to offer subdivided lands within this state for sale or lease shall file with the 
Department of Real Estate an application for a public report consisting of a notice of intention 
and a completed questionnaire on a form prepared by the department. 

(b) The notice of intention shall contain the following information about the subdivided lands and the 
proposed offering: 

[Sub-Sections (1) through (12) omitted] 

(13) (A) The location of all existing airports, and of all proposed airports shown on the general 
plan of any city or county, located within two statute miles of the subdivision.  If the 
property is located within an airport influence area, the following statement shall be 
included in the notice of intention: 

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY 

This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known 
as an airport influence area.  For that reason, the property may be subject to some of 
the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations 
(for example:  noise, vibration, or odors).  Individual sensitivities to those 
annoyances can vary from person to person.  You may wish to consider what airport 
annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before you complete your 
purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you. 

(B) For purposes of this section, an “airport influence area,” also known as an “airport 
referral area,” is the area in which current or future airport-related noise, overflight, 
safety, or airspace protection factors may significantly affect land uses or necessitate 
restrictions on those uses as determined by an airport land use commission. 

Item F - 159 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–35 

CIVIL CODE 
Division 2—Property 

Part 4—Acquisition of Property 
Title 4—Transfer 

Chapter 2—Transfer of Real Property 
Article 1.7—Disclosure of Natural Hazards Upon Transfer of Residential Property 

(excerpts) 

 

1103. 
(a) Except as provided in Section 1103.1, this article applies to any transfer by sale, exchange, 

installment land sale contract, as defined in Section 2985, lease with an option to purchase, any 
other option to purchase, or ground lease coupled with improvements, of any real property 
described in subdivision (c), or residential stock cooperative, improved with or consisting of not 
less than one nor more than four dwelling units. 

(b) Except as provided in Section 1103.1, this article shall apply to a resale transaction entered into on 
or after January 1, 2000, for a manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and 
Safety Code, that is classified as personal property intended for use as a residence, or a 
mobilehome, as defined in Section 18008 of the Health and Safety Code, that is classified as 
personal property intended for use as a residence, if the real property on which the manufactured 
home or mobilehome is located is real property described in subdivision (c). 

(c) This article shall apply to the transactions described in subdivisions (a) and (b) only if the 
transferor or his or her agent are required by one or more of the following to disclose the 
property’s location within a hazard zone: 

(1) A person who is acting as an agent for a transferor of real property that is located within a 
special flood hazard area (any type Zone “A” or “V”) designated by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, or the transferor if he or she is acting without an agent, shall disclose to 
any prospective transferee the fact that the property is located within a special flood hazard 
area if either: 
(A) The transferor, or the transferor’s agent, has actual knowledge that the property is within 

a special flood hazard area. 
(B) The local jurisdiction has compiled a list, by parcel, of properties that are within the 

special flood hazard area and a notice has been posted at the offices of the county 
recorder, county assessor, and county planning agency that identifies the location of the 
parcel list. 

(2) … is located within an area of potential flooding … shall disclose to any prospective 
transferee the fact that the property is located within an area of potential flooding … 

(3) … is located within a very high fire hazard severity zone, designated pursuant to Section 
51178 of the Public Resources Code … shall disclose to any prospective transferee the fact 
that the property is located within a very high fire hazard severity zone and is subject to the 
requirements of Section 51182 … 

Item F - 160 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–36 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

(4) … is located within an earthquake fault zone, designated pursuant to Section 2622 of the 
Public Resources Code … shall disclose to any prospective transferee the fact that the 
property is located within a delineated earthquake fault zone … 

(5) … is located within a seismic hazard zone, designated pursuant to Section 2696 of the Public 
Resources Code … shall disclose to any prospective transferee the fact that the property is 
located within a seismic hazard zone … 

(6) … is located within a state responsibility area determined by the board, pursuant to Section 
4125 of the Public Resources Code, shall disclose to any prospective transferee the fact that 
the property is located within a wildland area that may contain substantial forest fire risks and 
hazards and is subject to the requirements of Section 4291 … 

(d) Any waiver of the requirements of this article is void as against public policy. 

1103.1. 
(a) This article does not apply to the following transfers: 

(1) Transfers pursuant to court order, including, but not limited to, transfers ordered by a probate 
court in administration of an estate, transfers pursuant to a writ of execution, transfers by any 
foreclosure sale, transfers by a trustee in bankruptcy, transfers by eminent domain, and 
transfers resulting from a decree for specific performance. 

(2) Transfers to a mortgagee by a mortgagor or successor in interest who is in default, transfers to 
a beneficiary of a deed of trust by a trustor or successor in interest who is in default, transfers 
by any foreclosure sale after default, transfers by any foreclosure sale after default in an 
obligation secured by a mortgage, transfers by a sale under a power of sale or any foreclosure 
sale under a decree of foreclosure after default in an obligation secured by a deed of trust or 
secured by any other instrument containing a power of sale, or transfers by a mortgagee or a 
beneficiary under a deed of trust who has acquired the real property at a sale conducted 
pursuant to a power of sale under a mortgage or deed of trust or a sale pursuant to a decree of 
foreclosure or has acquired the real property by a deed in lieu of foreclosure. 

(3) Transfers by a fiduciary in the course of the administration of a decedent’s estate, 
guardianship, conservatorship, or trust. 

(4) Transfers from one coowner to one or more other coowners. 

(5) Transfers made to a spouse, or to a person or persons in the lineal line of consanguinity of 
one or more of the transferors. 

(6) Transfers between spouses resulting from a judgment of dissolution of marriage or of legal 
separation of the parties or from a property settlement agreement incidental to that judgment. 

(7) Transfers by the Controller in the course of administering Chapter 7 (commencing with 
Section 1500) of Title 10 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure. 

(8) Transfers under Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 3691) or Chapter 8 (commencing with 
Section 3771) of Part 6 of Division 1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

(9) Transfers or exchanges to or from any governmental entity. 

(b) Transfers not subject to this article may be subject to other disclosure requirements, including 
those under Sections 8589.3, 8589.4, and 51183.5 of the Government Code and Sections 2621.9, 

Item F - 161 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–37 

2694, and 4136 of the Public Resources Code.  In transfers not subject to this article, agents may 
make required disclosures in a separate writing. 

1103.2. 
(a) The disclosures required by this article are set forth in, and shall be made on a copy of, the 

following Natural Hazard Disclosure Statement: [content omitted]. 

(b) If an earthquake fault zone, seismic hazard zone, very high fire hazard severity zone, or wildland 
fire area map or accompanying information is not of sufficient accuracy or scale that a reasonable 
person can determine if the subject real property is included in a natural hazard area, the transferor 
or transferor’s agent shall mark “Yes” on the Natural Hazard Disclosure Statement.  The 
transferor or transferor’s agent may mark “No” on the Natural Hazard Disclosure Statement if he 
or she attaches a report prepared pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 1103.4 that verifies the 
property is not in the hazard zone.  Nothing in this subdivision is intended to limit or abridge any 
existing duty of the transferor or the transferor’s agents to exercise reasonable care in making a 
determination under this subdivision. 

[Sub-Sections (c) through (h) omitted] 

[Section 1103.3 omitted] 

1103.4. 
(a) Neither the transferor nor any listing or selling agent shall be liable for any error, inaccuracy, or 

omission of any information delivered pursuant to this article if the error, inaccuracy, or omission 
was not within the personal knowledge of the transferor or the listing or selling agent, and was 
based on information timely provided by public agencies or by other persons providing 
information as specified in subdivision (c) that is required to be disclosed pursuant to this article, 
and ordinary care was exercised in obtaining and transmitting the information. 

(b) The delivery of any information required to be disclosed by this article to a prospective transferee 
by a public agency or other person providing information required to be disclosed pursuant to this 
article shall be deemed to comply with the requirements of this article and shall relieve the 
transferor or any listing or selling agent of any further duty under this article with respect to that 
item of information. 

(c) The delivery of a report or opinion prepared by a licensed engineer, land surveyor, geologist, or 
expert in natural hazard discovery dealing with matters within the scope of the professional’s 
license or expertise, shall be sufficient compliance for application of the exemption provided by 
subdivision (a) if the information is provided to the prospective transferee pursuant to a request 
therefor, whether written or oral.  In responding to that request, an expert may indicate, in writing, 
an understanding that the information provided will be used in fulfilling the requirements of 
Section 1103.2 and, if so, shall indicate the required disclosures, or parts thereof, to which the 
information being furnished is applicable.  Where that statement is furnished, the expert shall not 
be responsible for any items of information, or parts thereof, other than those expressly set forth 
in the statement. 

(1) In responding to the request, the expert shall determine whether the property is within an 
airport influence area as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 11010 of the Business and 
Professions Code.  If the property is within an airport influence area, the report shall contain 
the following statement:  

Item F - 162 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–38 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY 

This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known 
as an airport influence area.  For that reason, the property may be subject to some of 
the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations 
(for example: noise, vibration, or odors).  Individual sensitivities to those annoyances 
can vary from person to person.  You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, 
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and 
determine whether they are acceptable to you. 

[Remainder of Article 1.7 omitted] 

Item F - 163 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–39 

CIVIL CODE 
Division 2, Part 4 

Title 6—Common Interest Developments 
(excerpts) 

 

1353. 
(a) (1) A declaration, recorded on or after January 1, 1986, shall contain a legal description of the 

common interest development, and a statement that the common interest development is a 
community apartment project, condominium project, planned development, stock 
cooperative, or combination thereof.  The declaration shall additionally set forth the name of 
the association and the restrictions on the use or enjoyment of any portion of the common 
interest development that are intended to be enforceable equitable servitudes.  If the property 
is located within an airport influence area, a declaration, recorded after January 1,  2004, shall 
contain the following statement: 

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY 

This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known 
as an airport influence area.  For that reason, the property may be subject to some of 
the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations 
(for example: noise, vibration, or odors).  Individual sensitivities to those annoyances 
can vary from person to person.  You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, 
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and 
determine whether they are acceptable to you. 

 (2) For purposes of this section, an “airport influence area,” also known as an “airport referral 
area,” is the area in which current or future airport-related noise, overflight, safety, or airspace 
protection factors may significantly affect land uses or necessitate restrictions on those uses as 
determined by an airport land use commission. 

(3) [Omitted] 

(4) The statement in a declaration acknowledging that a property is located in an airport influence 
area does not constitute a title defect, lien, or encumbrance. 

(b) The declaration may contain any other matters the original signator of the declaration or the 
owners consider appropriate. 

Item F - 164 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–40 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY SUMMARY 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 

Sections 21670 et seq. 
Airport Land Use Commission Statutes 

And Related Statutes 
 

1967 Original ALUC statute enacted. 

 Establishment of ALUCs required in each county containing a public airport served by a 
certificated air carrier. 

 The purpose of ALUCs is indicated as being to make recommendations regarding height 
restrictions on buildings and the use of land surrounding airports. 

1970 Assembly Bill 1856 (Badham) Chapter 1182, Statutes of 1970—Adds provisions which: 

 Require ALUCs to prepare comprehensive land use plans. 

 Require such plans to include a long-range plan and to reflect the airport’s forecast growth 
during the next 20 years. 

 Require ALUC review of airport construction plans (Section 21661.5). 

 Exempt Los Angeles County from the requirement of establishing an ALUC. 

1971 The function of ALUCs is restated as being to require new construction to conform to 
Department of Aeronautics standards. 

1973 ALUCs are permitted to establish compatibility plans for military airports. 

1982 Assembly Bill 2920 (Rogers) Chapter 1041, Statutes of 1982—Adds major changes which: 

 More clearly articulate the purpose of ALUCs. 

 Eliminate reference to “achieve by zoning.” 

 Require consistency between local general and specific plans and airport land use 
commission plans; the requirements define the process for attaining consistency, they do 
not establish standards for consistency. 

 Eliminate the requirement for proposed individual development projects to be referred to 
an ALUC for review once local general/specific plans are consistent with the ALUC’s 
plan. 

 Require that local agencies make findings of fact before overriding an ALUC decision. 

 Change the vote required for an override from 4/5 to 2/3. 

1984 Assembly Bill 3551 (Mountjoy) Chapter 1117, Statutes of 1984—Amends the law to: 

 Require ALUCs in all counties having an airport which serves the general public unless a 
county and its cities determine an ALUC is not needed. 

 Limit amendments to compatibility plans to once per year. 

 Allow individual projects to continue to be referred to the ALUC by agreement. 

 Extend immunity to airports if an ALUC action is overridden by a local agency not 
owning the airport. 

Item F - 165 of 335



 ST A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G  AP P E N D I X  A 
  

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) A–41 

 Provide state funding eligibility for preparation of compatibility plans through the 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program process. 

1987 Senate Bill 633 (Rogers) Chapter 1018, Statutes of 1987—Makes revisions which: 

 Require that a designated body serving as an ALUC include two members having 
“expertise in aviation.” 

 Allows an interested party to initiate court proceedings to postpone the effective date of a 
local land use action if a compatibility plan has not been adopted. 

 Delete sunset provisions contained in certain clauses of the law.  Allows reimbursement for 
ALUC costs in accordance with the Commission on State Mandates. 

1989 Senate Bill 255 (Bergeson) Chapter 54, Statutes of 1989— 

 Sets a requirement that comprehensive land use plans be completed by June 1991. 

 Establishes a method for compelling ALUCs to act on matters submitted for review. 

 Allows ALUCs to charge fees for review of projects. 

 Suspends any lawsuits that would stop development until the ALUC adopts its plan or 
until June 1, 1991. 

1989 Senate Bill 235 (Alquist) Chapter 788, Statutes of 1989—Appropriates $3,672,000 for the 
payment of claims to counties seeking reimbursement of costs incurred during fiscal years 
1985-86 through 1989-90 pursuant to state-mandated requirement (Chapter 1117, Statutes of 
1984) for creation of ALUCs in most counties.  This statute was repealed in 1993. 

1990 Assembly Bill 4164 (Mountjoy) Chapter 1008, Statutes of 1990—Adds section 21674.5 
requiring the Division of Aeronautics to develop and implement a training program for ALUC 
staffs. 

1990 Assembly Bill 4265 (Clute) Chapter 563, Statutes of 1990—With the concurrence of the 
Division of Aeronautics, allows ALUCs to use an airport layout plan, rather than a long-range 
airport master plan, as the basis for preparation of a compatibility plan. 

1990 Senate Bill 1288 (Beverly) Chapter 54, Statutes of 1990—Amends Section 21670.2 to give Los 
Angeles County additional time to prepare compatibility plans and meet other provisions of 
the ALUC statutes. 

1991 Senate Bill 532 (Bergeson) Chapter 140, Statutes of 1991— 

 Allows counties having half of their compatibility plans completed or under preparation 
by June 30, 1991, an additional year to complete the remainder. 

 Allows ALUCs to continue to charge fees under these circumstances. 

 Fees may be charged only until June 30, 1992, if plans are not completed by then. 

1993 Senate Bill 443 (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review) Chapter 59, Statutes of 1993—
Amends Section 21670(b) to make the formation of ALUCs permissive rather than mandatory 
as of June 30, 1993.  (Note:  Section 21670.2 which assigns responsibility for coordinating the 
airport planning of public agencies in Los Angeles County is not affected by this amendment.) 

1994 Assembly Bill 2831 (Mountjoy) Chapter 644, Statutes of 1994 —Reinstates the language in 
Section 21670(b) mandating establishment of ALUCs, but also provides for an alternative 
airport land use planning process.  Lists specific actions which a county and affected cities 
must take in order for such alternative process to receive Caltrans approval.  Requires that 

Item F - 166 of 335



AP P E N D I X  A  S T A TE LAW S R E LA T E D TO  A I R PO R T LA ND  US E P LA N NI N G 
  

A–42 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 
Amendment) 

ALUCs be guided by information in the Caltrans Airport Land Use Planning Handbook when 
formulating airport land use plans. 

1994 Senate Bill 1453 (Rogers) Chapter 438, Statutes of 1994—Amends California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) statutes as applied to preparation of environmental documents affecting 
projects in the vicinity of airports.  Requires lead agencies to use the Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook as a technical resource when assessing the airport-related noise and safety impacts of 
such projects. 

1997 Assembly Bill 1130 (Oller) Chapter 81, Statutes of 1997—Added Section 21670.4 concerning 
airports whose planning boundary straddles a county line. 

2000 Senate Bill 1350 (Rainey) Chapter 506, Statutes of 2000—Added Section 21670(f) clarifying 
that special districts are among the local agencies to which airport land use planning laws are 
intended to apply. 

2001 Assembly Bill 93 (Wayne) Chapter 946, Statutes of 2001—Added Section 21670.3 regarding 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority’s responsibility for airport planning within San 
Diego County. 

2002 Assembly Bill 3026 (Committee on Transportation) Chapter 438, Statutes of 2002—Changes 
the term “comprehensive land use plan” to “airport land use compatibility plan.” 

2002 Assembly Bill 2776 (Simitian) Chapter 496, Statutes of 2002—Requires information regarding 
the location of a property within an airport influence area be disclosed as part of certain real 
estate transactions effective January 1, 2004. 

2002 Senate Bill 1468 (Knight) Chapter 971, Statutes of 2002—Changes ALUC preparation of 
airport land use compatibility plans for military airports from optional to required.  Requires 
that the plans be consistent with the safety and noise standards in the Air Installation 
Compatible Use Zone for that airport.  Requires that the general plan and any specific plans 
be consistent with these standards where there is military airport, but an airport land use 
commission does not exist. 

2003 Assembly Bill 332 (Mullin) Chapter 351, Statutes of 2003—Clarifies that school districts and 
community college districts are subject to compatibility plans.  Requires local public agencies 
to notify ALUC and Division of Aeronautics at least 45 days prior to deciding to overrule the 
ALUC. 

2004 Senate Bill 1223 (Committee on Transportation) Chapter 615, Statutes of 2004—Technical 
revisions eliminating most remaining references to the term “comprehensive land use plan” 
and replacing it with “airport land use compatibility plan.”  Also replaces the terms “planning 
area” and “study area” with “airport influence area.” 

2005 Assembly Bill 1358 (Mullin) Chapter 29, Statutes of 2005—Requires a school district to notify 
the Department of Transportation before leasing property for a new school site. Also makes 
these provisions applicable to charter schools. 

Item F - 167 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX B 

 

Item F - 168 of 335



APPENDIX B 

FEDERAL AVIATION REGULATIONS PART 77 
OBJECTS AFFECTING NAVIGABLE AIRSPACE 

 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–1 

 

Amdt.  77-13, Effective January 18, 2011 

 

Subpart A 
GENERAL 

77.1 PURPOSE. 

This part establishes: 

(a) The requirements to provide notice to the FAA of certain proposed construction, or the alteration 
of existing structures; 

(b) The standards used to determine obstructions to air navigation, and navigational and    
communication facilities; 

(c) The process for aeronautical studies of obstructions to air navigation or navigational facilities to 
determine the effect on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace, air navigation facilities or 
equipment; and 

(d) The process to petition the FAA for discretionary review of determinations, revisions, and 
extensions of determinations. 

77.3 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this part: 

“Non-precision instrument runway” means a runway having an existing instrument approach procedure 
utilizing air navigation facilities with only horizontal guidance, or area type navigation equipment, for 
which a straight-in non-precision instrument approach procedure has been approved, or planned, and 
for which no precision approach facilities are planned, or indicated on an FAA planning document or 
military service military airport planning document. 

Planned or proposed airport is an airport that is the subject of at least one of the following documents 
received by the FAA: 

(1) Airport proposals submitted under 14 CFR Part 157. 

(2) Airport Improvement Program requests for aid. 

(3) Notices of existing airports where prior notice of the airport construction or alteration was not 
provided as required by 14 CFR Part 157. 

(4) Airport layout plans. 

Item F - 169 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

(5) DOD proposals for airports used only by the U.S. Armed Forces. 

(6) DOD proposals on joint-use (civil-military) airports. 

(7) Completed airport site selection feasibility study. 

“Precision instrument runway” means a runway having an existing instrument approach procedure 
utilizing an Instrument Landing System (ILS), or a Precision Approach Radar (PAR). It also means a 
runway for which a precision approach system is planned and is so indicated by an FAA-approved 
airport layout plan; a military service approved military airport layout plan; any other FAA planning 
document, or military service military airport planning document. 

“Public use airport” is an airport available for use by the general public without a requirement for prior 
approval of the airport owner or operator. 

“Seaplane base” is considered to be an airport only if its sea lanes are outlined by visual markers. 

“Utility runway” means a runway that is constructed for and intended to be used by propeller driven 
aircraft of 12,500 pounds maximum gross weight and less. 

“Visual runway” means a runway intended solely for the operation of aircraft using visual approach 
procedures, with no straight-in instrument approach procedure and no instrument designation 
indicated on an FAA-approved airport layout plan, a military service approved military airport layout 
plan, or by any planning document submitted to the FAA by competent authority. 

Subpart B 
NOTICE REQUIREMENTS 

 77.5 APPLICABILITY. 

(a) If you propose any construction or alteration described in §77.9, you must provide adequate notice 
to the FAA of that construction or alteration. 

(b) If requested by the FAA, you must also file supplemental notice before the start date and upon 
completion of certain construction or alterations that are described in §77.9. 

(c) Notice received by the FAA under this subpart is used to: 

(1) Evaluate the effect of the proposed construction or alteration on safety in air commerce and 
the efficient use and preservation of the navigable airspace and of airport traffic capacity at 
public use airports; 

(2) Determine whether the effect of proposed construction or alteration is a hazard to air 
navigation; 

(3) Determine appropriate marking and lighting recommendations, using FAA Advisory Circular 
70/7460–1, Obstruction Marking and Lighting; 

(4) Determine other appropriate measures to be applied for continued safety of air navigation; 
and 

Item F - 170 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–3 

(5) Notify the aviation community of the construction or alteration of objects that affect the 
navigable airspace, including the revision of charts, when necessary. 

77.7 FORM AND TIME OF NOTICE. 

(a) If you are required to file notice under §77.9, you must submit to the FAA a completed FAA 
Form 7460–1, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration. FAA Form 7460–1 is available at 
FAA regional offices and on the Internet. 

(b) You must submit this form at least 45 days before the start date of the proposed construction or 
alteration or the date an application for a construction permit is filed, whichever is earliest. 

(c) If you propose construction or alteration that is also subject to the licensing requirements of the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC), you must submit notice to the FAA on or before 
the date that the application is filed with the FCC. 

(d) If you propose construction or alteration to an existing structure that exceeds 2,000 ft. in height 
above ground level (AGL), the FAA presumes it to be a hazard to air navigation that results in an 
inefficient use of airspace. You must include details explaining both why the proposal would not 
constitute a hazard to air navigation and why it would not cause an inefficient use of airspace. 

(e) The 45-day advance notice requirement is waived if immediate construction or alteration is 
required because of an emergency involving essential public services, public health, or public 
safety. You may provide notice to the FAA by any available, expeditious means. You must file a 
completed FAA Form 7460–1 within 5 days of the initial notice to the FAA. Outside normal 
business hours, the nearest flight service station will accept emergency notices. 

77.9 CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATION REQUIRING NOTICE. 

If requested by the FAA, or if you propose any of the following types of construction or alteration, you 
must file notice with the FAA of: 

(a) Any construction or alteration that is more than 200 ft. AGL at its site. 

(b) Any construction or alteration that exceeds an imaginary surface extending outward and upward at 
any of the following slopes: 

(1) 100 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 20,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest runway 
of each airport described in paragraph (d) of this section with its longest runway more than 
3,200 ft. in actual length, excluding heliports. 

(2) 50 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 10,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest runway of 
each airport described in paragraph (d) of this section with its longest runway no more than 
3,200 ft. in actual length, excluding heliports. 

(3) 25 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 5,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest landing and 
takeoff area of each heliport described in paragraph (d) of this section. 

(c) Any highway, railroad, or other traverse way for mobile objects, of a height which, if adjusted 
upward 17 feet for an Interstate Highway that is part of the National System of Military and 
Interstate Highways where overcrossings are designed for a minimum of 17 feet vertical distance, 
15 feet for any other public roadway, 10 feet or the height of the highest mobile object that would 

Item F - 171 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

normally traverse the road, whichever is greater, for a private road, 23 feet for a railroad, and for a 
waterway or any other traverse way not previously mentioned, an amount equal to the height of 
the highest mobile object that would normally traverse it, would exceed a standard of paragraph 
(a) or (b) of this section. 

(d) Any construction or alteration on any of the following airports and heliports: 

(1) A public use airport listed in the Airport/Facility Directory, Alaska Supplement, or Pacific 
Chart Supplement of the U.S. Government Flight Information Publications; 

(2) A military airport under construction, or an airport under construction that will be available 
for public use; 

(3) An airport operated by a Federal agency or the DOD. 

(4) An airport or heliport with at least one FAA-approved instrument approach procedure. 

(e) You do not need to file notice for construction or alteration of: 

(1) Any object that will be shielded by existing structures of a permanent and substantial nature 
or by natural terrain or topographic features of equal or greater height, and will be located in 
the congested area of a city, town, or settlement where the shielded structure will not 
adversely affect safety in air navigation; 

(2) Any air navigation facility, airport visual approach or landing aid, aircraft arresting device, or 
meteorological device meeting FAA-approved siting criteria or an appropriate military service 
siting criteria on military airports, the location and height of which are fixed by its functional 
purpose; 

(3) Any construction or alteration for which notice is required by any other FAA regulation. 

(4) Any antenna structure of 20 feet or less in height, except one that would increase the height 
of another antenna structure. 

77.11 SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE REQUIREMENTS. 

(a) You must file supplemental notice with the FAA when: 

(1) The construction or alteration is more than 200 feet in height AGL at its site; or 

(2) Requested by the FAA. 

(b) You must file supplemental notice on a prescribed FAA form to be received within the time limits 
specified in the FAA determination. If no time limit has been specified, you must submit 
supplemental notice of construction to the FAA within 5 days after the structure reaches its 
greatest height. 

(c) If you abandon a construction or alteration proposal that requires supplemental notice, you must 
submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after the project is abandoned. 

(d) If the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA 
within 5 days after the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed. 

Item F - 172 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–5 

Subpart C 
Standards for Determining Obstructions to  

Air Navigation or Navigational Aids or Facilities 

77.13 APPLICABILITY. 

This subpart describes the standards used for determining obstructions to air navigation, navigational 
aids, or navigational facilities. These standards apply to the following: 

(a) Any object of natural growth, terrain, or permanent or temporary construction or alteration, 
including equipment or materials used and any permanent or temporary apparatus. 

(b) The alteration of any permanent or temporary existing structure by a change in its height, 
including appurtenances, or lateral dimensions, including equipment or material used therein. 

77.15 SCOPE. 

(a) This subpart describes standards used to determine obstructions to air navigation that may affect 
the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace and the operation of planned or existing air 
navigation and communication facilities. Such facilities include air navigation aids, communication 
equipment, airports, Federal airways, instrument approach or departure procedures, and approved 
off-airway routes. 

(b) Objects that are considered obstructions under the standards described in this subpart are 
presumed hazards to air navigation unless further aeronautical study concludes that the object is 
not a hazard. Once further aeronautical study has been initiated, the FAA will use the standards in 
this subpart, along with FAA policy and guidance material, to determine if the object is a hazard to 
air navigation. 

(c) The FAA will apply these standards with reference to an existing airport facility, and airport 
proposals received by the FAA, or the appropriate military service, before it issues a final 
determination. 

(d) For airports having defined runways with specially prepared hard surfaces, the primary surface for 
each runway extends 200 feet beyond each end of the runway. For airports having defined strips 
or pathways used regularly for aircraft takeoffs and landings, and designated runways, without 
specially prepared hard surfaces, each end of the primary surface for each such runway shall 
coincide with the corresponding end of the runway. At airports, excluding seaplane bases, having a 
defined landing and takeoff area with no defined pathways for aircraft takeoffs and landings, a 
determination must be made as to which portions of the landing and takeoff area are regularly 
used as landing and takeoff pathways. Those determined pathways must be considered runways, 
and an appropriate primary surface as defined in §77.19 will be considered as longitudinally 
centered on each such runway. Each end of that primary surface must coincide with the 
corresponding end of that runway. 

(e) The standards in this subpart apply to construction or alteration proposals on an airport (including 
heliports and seaplane bases with marked lanes) if that airport is one of the following before the 
issuance of the final determination: 

Item F - 173 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

(1) Available for public use and is listed in the Airport/Facility Directory, Supplement Alaska, or 
Supplement Pacific of the U.S. Government Flight Information Publications; or 

(2) A planned or proposed airport or an airport under construction of which the FAA has 
received actual notice, except DOD airports, where there is a clear indication the airport will 
be available for public use; or, 

(3) An airport operated by a Federal agency or the DOD; or, 

(4) An airport that has at least one FAA-approved instrument approach. 

77.17 OBSTRUCTION STANDARDS. 

(a) An existing object, including a mobile object, is, and a future object would be an obstruction to air 
navigation if it is of greater height than any of the following heights or surfaces: 

(1) A height of 499 feet AGL at the site of the object. 

(2) A height that is 200 feet AGL, or above the established airport elevation, whichever is higher, 
within 3 nautical miles of the established reference point of an airport, excluding heliports, 
with its longest runway more than 3,200 feet in actual length, and that height increases in the 
proportion of 100 feet for each additional nautical mile from the airport up to a maximum of 
499 feet. 

(3) A height within a terminal obstacle clearance area, including an initial approach segment, a 
departure area, and a circling approach area, which would result in the vertical distance 
between any point on the object and an established minimum instrument flight altitude within 
that area or segment to be less than the required obstacle clearance. 

(4) A height within an en route obstacle clearance area, including turn and termination areas, of a 
Federal Airway or approved off-airway route, that would increase the minimum obstacle 
clearance altitude. 

(5) The surface of a takeoff and landing area of an airport or any imaginary surface established 
under §77.19, 77.21, or 77.23. However, no part of the takeoff or landing area itself will be 
considered an obstruction. 

(b) Except for traverse ways on or near an airport with an operative ground traffic control service 
furnished by an airport traffic control tower or by the airport management and coordinated with 
the air traffic control service, the standards of paragraph (a) of this section apply to traverse ways 
used or to be used for the passage of mobile objects only after the heights of these traverse ways 
are increased by: 

(1) 17 feet for an Interstate Highway that is part of the National System of Military and 
Interstate Highways where overcrossings are designed for a minimum of 17 feet vertical 
distance. 

(2) 15 feet for any other public roadway. 

(3) 10 feet or the height of the highest mobile object that would normally traverse the road, 
whichever is greater, for a private road. 

(4) 23 feet for a railroad. 

Item F - 174 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–7 

(5) For a waterway or any other traverse way not previously mentioned, an amount equal to the 
height of the highest mobile object that would normally traverse it. 

77.19 CIVIL AIRPORT IMAGINARY SURFACES. 

The following civil airport imaginary surfaces are established with relation to the airport and to each 
runway. The size of each such imaginary surface is based on the category of each runway according to 
the type of approach available or planned for that runway. The slope and dimensions of the approach 
surface applied to each end of a runway are determined by the most precise approach procedure 
existing or planned for that runway end. 

(a) Horizontal surface. A horizontal plane 150 feet above the established airport elevation, the 
perimeter of which is constructed by Swinging arcs of a specified radii from the center of each end 
of the primary surface of each runway of each airport and connecting the adjacent arcs by lines 
tangent to those arcs. The radius of each arc is: 

(1) 5,000 feet for all runways designated as utility or visual; 

(2) 10,000 feet for all other runways. The radius of the arc specified for each end of a runway 
will have the same arithmetical value. That value will be the highest determined for either end 
of the runway. When a 5,000-foot arc is encompassed by tangents connecting two adjacent 
10,000-foot arcs, the 5,000-foot arc shall be disregarded on the construction of the perimeter 
of the horizontal surface. 

(b) Conical surface. A surface extending outward and upward from the periphery of the horizontal 
surface at a slope of 20 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 4,000 feet. 

(c) Primary surface. A surface longitudinally centered on a runway. When the runway has a specially 
prepared hard surface, the primary surface extends 200 feet beyond each end of that runway; but 
when the runway has no specially prepared hard surface, the primary surface ends at each end of 
that runway. The elevation of any point on the primary surface is the same as the elevation of the 
nearest point on the runway centerline. The width of the primary surface is: 

(1) 250 feet for utility runways having only visual approaches. 

(2) 500 feet for utility runways having non-precision instrument approaches. 

(3) For other than utility runways, the width is: 

(i) 500 feet for visual runways having only visual approaches. 

(ii) 500 feet for non-precision instrument runways having visibility minimums greater than 
three-fourths statue mile. 

(iii) 1,000 feet for a non-precision instrument runway having a non-precision instrument 
approach with visibility minimums as low as three-fourths of a statute mile, and for 
precision instrument runways. 

(iv) The width of the primary surface of a runway will be that width prescribed in this 
section for the most precise approach existing or planned for either end of that runway. 

(d) Approach surface. A surface longitudinally centered on the extended runway centerline and 
extending outward and upward from each end of the primary surface. An approach surface is 

Item F - 175 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

applied to each end of each runway based upon the type of approach available or planned for that 
runway end. 

(1) The inner edge of the approach surface is the same width as the primary surface and it 
expands uniformly to a width of: 

(i) 1,250 feet for that end of a utility runway with only visual approaches; 

(ii) 1,500 feet for that end of a runway other than a utility runway with only visual 
approaches; 

(iii) 2,000 feet for that end of a utility runway with a non-precision instrument approach; 

(iv) 3,500 feet for that end of a non-precision instrument runway other than utility, having 
visibility minimums greater that three-fourths of a statute mile; 

(v) 4,000 feet for that end of a non-precision instrument runway, other than utility, having a 
non-precision instrument approach with visibility minimums as low as three-fourths 
statute mile; and 

(vi) 16,000 feet for precision instrument runways. 

(2) The approach surface extends for a horizontal distance of: 

(i) 5,000 feet at a slope of 20 to 1 for all utility and visual runways; 

(ii) 10,000 feet at a slope of 34 to 1 for all non-precision instrument runways other than 
utility; and  

(iii) 10,000 feet at a slope of 50 to 1 with an additional 40,000 feet at a slope of 40 to 1 for 
all precision instrument runways. 

(3) The outer width of an approach surface to an end of a runway will be that width prescribed 
in this subsection for the most precise approach existing or planned for that runway end. 

(e) Transitional surface. These surfaces extend outward and upward at right angles to the runway 
centerline and the runway centerline extended at a slope of 7 to 1 from the sides of the primary 
surface and from the sides of the approach surfaces. Transitional surfaces for those portions of the 
precision approach surface which project through and beyond the limits of the conical surface, 
extend a distance of 5,000 feet measured horizontally from the edge of the approach surface and at 
right angles to the runway centerline. 

 77.21 DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE (DOD) AIRPORT IMAGINARY SURFACES. 

(a) Related to airport reference points. These surfaces apply to all military airports. For the purposes 
of this section, a military airport is any airport operated by the DOD. 

(1) Inner horizontal surface. A plane that is oval in shape at a height of 150 feet above the 
established airfield elevation. The plane is constructed by scribing an arc with a radius of 
7,500 feet about the centerline at the end of each runway and interconnecting these arcs with 
tangents. 

Item F - 176 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–9 

(2) Conical surface. A surface extending from the periphery of the inner horizontal surface 
outward and upward at a slope of 20 to 1 for a horizontal distance of 7,000 feet to a height of 
500 feet above the established airfield elevation. 

(3) Outer horizontal surface. A plane, located 500 feet above the established airfield elevation, 
extending outward from the outer periphery of the conical surface for a horizontal distance 
of 30,000 feet. 

(b) Related to runways. These surfaces apply to all military airports. 

(1) Primary surface. A surface located on the ground or water longitudinally centered on each 
runway with the same length as the runway. The width of the primary surface for runways is 
2,000 feet. However, at established bases where substantial construction has taken place in 
accordance with a previous lateral clearance criteria, the 2,000-foot width may be reduced to 
the former criteria. 

(2) Clear zone surface. A surface located on the ground or water at each end of the primary 
surface, with a length of 1,000 feet and the same width as the primary surface. 

(3) Approach clearance surface. An inclined plane, symmetrical about the runway centerline 
extended, beginning 200 feet beyond each end of the primary surface at the centerline 
elevation of the runway end and extending for 50,000 feet. The slope of the approach 
clearance surface is 50 to 1 along the runway centerline extended until it reaches an elevation 
of 500 feet above the established airport elevation. It then continues horizontally at this 
elevation to a point 50,000 feet from the point of beginning. The width of this surface at the 
runway end is the same as the primary surface, it flares uniformly, and the width at 50,000 is 
16,000 feet. 

(4) Transitional surfaces. These surfaces connect the primary surfaces, the first 200 feet of the 
clear zone surfaces, and the approach clearance surfaces to the inner horizontal surface, 
conical surface, outer horizontal surface or other transitional surfaces. The slope of the 
transitional surface is 7 to 1 outward and upward at right angles to the runway centerline. 

77.23 HELIPORT IMAGINARY SURFACES. 

(a) Primary surface. The area of the primary surface coincides in size and shape with the designated 
take-off and landing area. This surface is a horizontal plane at the elevation of the established 
heliport elevation. 

(b) Approach surface. The approach surface begins at each end of the heliport primary surface with 
the same width as the primary surface, and extends outward and upward for a horizontal distance 
of 4,000 feet where its width is 500 feet. The slope of the approach surface is 8 to 1 for civil 
heliports and 10 to 1 for military heliports. 

(c) Transitional surfaces. These surfaces extend outward and upward from the lateral boundaries of 
the primary surface and from the approach surfaces at a slope of 2 to 1 for a distance of 250 feet 
measured horizontally from the centerline of the primary and approach surfaces. 

 

Item F - 177 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Subpart D 
AERONAUTICAL STUDIES AND DETERMINATIONS 

77.25 APPLICABILITY. 

(a) This subpart applies to any aeronautical study of a proposed construction or alteration for which 
notice to the FAA is required under 77.9. 

(b) The purpose of an aeronautical study is to determine whether the aeronautical effects of the 
specific proposal and, where appropriate, the cumulative impact resulting from the proposed 
construction or alteration when combined with the effects of other existing or proposed 
structures, would constitute a hazard to air navigation. 

(c) The obstruction standards in subpart C of this part are supplemented by other manuals and 
directives used in determining the effect on the navigable airspace of a proposed construction or 
alteration. When the FAA needs additional information, it may circulate a study to interested 
parties for comment. 

77.27 INITIATION OF STUDIES. 

The FAA will conduct an aeronautical study when: 

(a) Requested by the sponsor of any proposed construction or alteration for which a notice is 
submitted; or 

(b) The FAA determines a study is necessary. 

 77.29 EVALUATING AERONAUTICAL EFFECT. 

(a) The FAA conducts an aeronautical study to determine the impact of a proposed structure, an 
existing structure that has not yet been studied by the FAA, or an alteration of an existing 
structure on aeronautical operations, procedures, and the safety of flight. These studies include 
evaluating: 

(1) The impact on arrival, departure, and en route procedures for aircraft operating under visual 
flight rules; 

(2) The impact on arrival, departure, and en route procedures for aircraft operating under 
instrument flight rules; 

(3) The impact on existing and planned public use airports; 

(4) Airport traffic capacity of existing public use airports and public use airport development 
plans received before the issuance of the final determination; 

(5) Minimum obstacle clearance altitudes, minimum instrument flight rules altitudes, approved 
or planned instrument approach procedures, and departure procedures; 

(6) The potential effect on ATC radar, direction finders, ATC tower line-of-sight visibility, and 
physical or electromagnetic effects on air navigation, communication facilities, and other 
surveillance systems; 

Item F - 178 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–11 

(7) The aeronautical effects resulting from the cumulative impact of a proposed construction or 
alteration of a structure when combined with the effects of other existing or proposed 
structures. 

(b) If you withdraw the proposed construction or alteration or revise it so that it is no longer 
identified as an obstruction, or if no further aeronautical study is necessary, the FAA may 
terminate the study. 

77.31 DETERMINATIONS. 

(a) The FAA will issue a determination stating whether the proposed construction or alteration would 
be a hazard to air navigation, and will advise all known interested persons. 

(b) The FAA will make determinations based on the aeronautical study findings and will identify the 
following: 

(1) The effects on VFR/IFR aeronautical departure/arrival operations, air traffic procedures, 
minimum flight altitudes, and existing, planned, or proposed airports listed in §77.15(e) of 
which the FAA has received actual notice prior to issuance of a final determination. 

(2) The extent of the physical and/or electromagnetic effect on the operation of existing or 
proposed air navigation facilities, communication aids, or surveillance systems. 

(c) The FAA will issue a Determination of Hazard to Air Navigation when the aeronautical study 
concludes that the proposed construction or alteration will exceed an obstruction standard and 
would have a substantial aeronautical impact. 

(d) A Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation will be issued when the aeronautical study 
concludes that the proposed construction or alteration will exceed an obstruction standard but 
would not have a substantial aeronautical impact to air navigation. A Determination of No Hazard 
to Air Navigation may include the following: 

(1) Conditional provisions of a determination. 

(2) Limitations necessary to minimize potential problems, such as the use of temporary 
construction equipment. 

(3) Supplemental notice requirements, when required. 

(4) Marking and lighting recommendations, as appropriate. 

(e) The FAA will issue a Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation when a proposed structure 
does not exceed any of the obstruction standards and would not be a hazard to air navigation. 

77.33 EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF DETERMINATIONS. 

(a) A determination issued under this subpart is effective 40 days after the date of issuance, unless a 
petition for discretionary review is received by the FAA within 30 days after issuance. The 
determination will not become final pending disposition of a petition for discretionary review. 

Item F - 179 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B     F ED E RA L  A V I AT I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7  
 

B–12 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

(b) Unless extended, revised, or terminated, each Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation 
issued under this subpart expires 18 months after the effective date of the determination, or on the 
date the proposed construction or alteration is abandoned, whichever is earlier. 

(c) A Determination of Hazard to Air Navigation has no expiration date. 

77.35 EXTENSIONS, TERMINATIONS, REVISIONS AND CORRECTIONS. 

(a) You may petition the FAA official that issued the Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation 
to revise or reconsider the determination based on new facts or to extend the effective period of 
the determination, provided that: 

(1) Actual structural work of the proposed construction or alteration, such as the laying of a 
foundation, but not including excavation, has not been started; and 

(2) The petition is submitted at least 15 days before the expiration date of the Determination of 
No Hazard to Air Navigation. 

(b) A Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation issued for those construction or alteration 
proposals not requiring an FCC construction permit may be extended by the FAA one time for a 
period not to exceed 18 months. 

(c) A Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation issued for a proposal requiring an FCC 
construction permit may be granted extensions for up to 18 months, provided that: 

(1) You submit evidence that an application for a construction permit/license was filed with the 
FCC for the associated site within 6 months of issuance of the determination; and 

(2) You submit evidence that additional time is warranted because of FCC requirements; and 

(3) Where the FCC issues a construction permit, a final Determination of No Hazard to Air 
Navigation is effective until the date prescribed by the FCC for completion of the 
construction. If an extension of the original FCC completion date is needed, an extension of 
the FAA determination must be requested from the Obstruction Evaluation Service (OES). 

(4) If the Commission refuses to issue a construction permit, the final determination expires on 
the date of its refusal. 

Item F - 180 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G ULA TI O NS PA R T 7 7     AP P E N D I X  B  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) B–13 

Subpart E 
PETITIONS FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW 

77.37 GENERAL. 

(a) If you are the sponsor, provided a substantive aeronautical comment on a proposal in an 
aeronautical study, or have a substantive aeronautical comment on the proposal but were not 
given an opportunity to state it, you may petition the FAA for a discretionary review of a 
determination, revision, or extension of a determination issued by the FAA. 

(b) You may not file a petition for discretionary review for a Determination of No Hazard that is 
issued for a temporary structure, marking and lighting recommendation, or when a proposed 
structure or alteration does not exceed obstruction standards contained in subpart C of this part. 

77.39 Contents of a petition. 

(a) You must file a petition for discretionary review in writing and it must be received by the FAA 
within 30 days after the issuance of a determination under 77.31, or a revision or extension of the 
determination under 77.35. 

(b) The petition must contain a full statement of the aeronautical basis on which the petition is made, 
and must include new information or facts not previously considered or presented during the 
aeronautical study, including valid aeronautical reasons why the determination, revisions, or 
extension made by the FAA should be reviewed. 

(c) In the event that the last day of the 30-day filing period falls on a weekend or a day the Federal 
government is closed, the last day of the filing period is the next day that the government is open. 

(d) The FAA will inform the petitioner or sponsor (if other than the petitioner) and the FCC 
(whenever an FCC-related proposal is involved) of the filing of the petition and that the 
determination is not final pending disposition of the petition. 

 77.41 Discretionary review results. 

(a) If discretionary review is granted, the FAA will inform the petitioner and the sponsor (if other 
than the petitioner) of the issues to be studied and reviewed. The review may include a request for 
comments and a review of all records from the initial aeronautical study. 

(b) If discretionary review is denied, the FAA will notify the petitioner and the sponsor (if other than 
the petitioner), and the FCC, whenever a FCC-related proposal is involved, of the basis for the 
denial along with a statement that the determination is final. 

(c) After concluding the discretionary review process, the FAA will revise, affirm, or reverse the 
determination. 

Item F - 181 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–14 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

Exhibit B1 

FAR Part 77 Imaginary Surfaces 

 

Source: Federal Aviation Regulations Part 77 

 

 

Item F - 182 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G UL A TI O NS  P A R T 7 7      AP P E N D I X  B  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) B–15 

Exhibit B2 

FAR Part 77 Notification Form 
FAA Form 7460-1 

 

 

   

Item F - 183 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–16 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 

Exhibit B3 

Online Submittal of  
“Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration” 

 

Historically a paper form called a “7460-1” was required to be submitted to the FAA for any project 
proposed on airport property and certain projects near airports.  Recently, the FAA has moved from paper 
forms to an on-line system of evaluating the effects of a proposed project on the national airspace system.     

 The on-line system can be accessed at https://oeaaa.faa.gov.  

This new system  allows project proponents to submit and track their proposal as it progresses through the 
FAA evaluation process.   

The purpose of this guidance is to supplement and clarify the FAA user guide for the 7460 website. 

 available at: https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/content/OEexternal_Guide_v3.1.pdf                         

We recommend that the user first read the entire guide provided by the FAA, and then use this document to 
clarify some of the more complicated aspects of the online 7460 system. 

WHEN A PROJECT MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE FAA 
CFR Title 14 Part 77.13 states that any person/organization who intends to sponsor any of the following 
construction or alterations must notify the Administrator of the FAA:  

 Any construction or alteration exceeding 200 ft above ground level 

 Any construction or alteration:  
• within 20,000 ft of a public use or military airport which exceeds a 

100:1 surface from any point on the runway of each airport with at 
least one runway more than 3,200 ft 

• within 10,000 ft of a public use or military airport which exceeds a 50:1 
surface from any point on the runway of each airport with its longest 
runway no more than 3,200 ft 

• within 5,000 ft of a public use heliport which exceeds a 25:1 surface 

 Any highway, railroad or other traverse way whose prescribed adjusted height would exceed the above 
noted standards 

 When requested by the FAA 

 Any construction or alteration located on a public use airport or heliport regardless of height or 
location. 

Create an account 
Before accessing the features of the website, the user will be required to create a username and password to 
access the website.  

The FAA has been 
continuously improving the 
oe/aaa website to be more 
user friendly and increase the 
on-line functionality. The look 
and feel of the website may 
change in the future, but the 
majority of the content should 
remain as is. 

Item F - 184 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G UL A TI O NS  P A R T 7 7      AP P E N D I X  B  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) B–17 

 

 

Once a user has created an account, they will be able to log in and will be directed to the OE/AAA Portal 
Page. This page displays a summary of any projects which have been entered into the website, categorized 
by off-airport and on-airport projects. 

Adding a Sponsor 
Before a user can enter project specific information, a project sponsor must be created. A sponsor is the 
person who is ultimately responsible for the construction or alteration.  All FAA correspondence will be 
addressed to the sponsor.  The sponsor could be the airport manager for projects proposed by the airport, 
or the developer proposing off airport construction.  To create a sponsor contact, click “Add New 
Sponsor” on the “portal” page. From there the user can add sponsors for various projects. 

Item F - 185 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–18 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 

When the user selects “Add New Sponsor”, they will be presented with the following screen: 

 

 

NOTE: The party submitting 
information through the FAA 
website DOES NOT have to 
be the same as the sponsor. 
Often, a consultant or other 
party under direction from the 
sponsor makes the submittal 
through the website 

 

Item F - 186 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G UL A TI O NS  P A R T 7 7      AP P E N D I X  B  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) B–19 

 

Creating a New Submittal 

There are two options for creating a new 7460 submittal. Again on the left side, either click “Add New Case 
(off airport)” or “Add New Case (on airport)”  

 

There are some differences in the required fields for “on airport” vs. “off airport” but the differences are 
minor and self explanatory.  One tip: for off airport submittals there is a field for “requested 
marking/lighting”.  If the user does not have a preference, select other from the pull down menu and in the 
“other field” state “no preference”.  

Item F - 187 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–20 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 
 The most common “notice of” is construction.  Select from pull down menu. 
 Latitude and longitude must be entered for the structure/construction 

activity. 
 Most 7460 submittals will require multiple points with lat/long unless the 7460 is for a pole/tower/ or 

other single point object. Buildings and construction areas all require points indicating the extents of the 
building or area. More information is provided below on how to add additional points to a submittal. 

 There is a field to describe the activity taking place. In some complex activities the field does not 
provide enough room for the required text. An additional explanatory letter can be attached.  Additional 
information is provided in this section on how to add a letter or document to the submittal. 

 Red asterisks indicate the required fields. 
 Unless there has been a previous aeronautical study for this submittal leave the “prior study” fields 

blank.  
 Only select “common frequency bands” if the proposed structure will transmit a signal.    

If the submittal is a building or construction area that is more than a single lat/long point the user must save 
the data first. Click save at the bottom of the page. This will bring up a summary screen of the case. To add 
more points click “clone” under the heading “actions”. 

Accurate lat/long and site 
elevation is critical for an 
accurate airspace 
determination.  

It is recommended that 
survey quality data be 
obtained from a recent 
survey, a GPS unit, or 
worst case, scaled from a 
topo quad. 

Item F - 188 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G UL A TI O NS  P A R T 7 7      AP P E N D I X  B  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) B–21 

  

The clone tool copies all the relevant information to a new page where an additional lat/long and elevation 
can be entered.  However, the clone process does not number the various points of a proposed project. 
When entering the details for a point (see Image 5) it is helpful if the user assigns a number to the point and 
references the total number of points for the project (e.g. point 2 of 20). The numbering can be included in 
the project “description/remarks” field for each point.   

It should be noted that each individual point associated with a project (e.g. each corner of a building) is 
evaluated individually, thus the importance of including a numbering system (2 of 20) in the text/description 
box.  

Once done, click “save” again. Now the user will see two records under the “project summary” heading.  
Continue this process of cloning for all the remaining points.   

Once all the points have been entered, each point must be verified. There is a red X with the words “verify 
map” indicating the user has not verified the location. Click Verify Map, a popup will display the lat/long 
point on a topo map and the user must verify that it is in the correct location. After clicking “verify map” on 
the popup, the red X will become a blue checkmark.  It seems to be more efficient to enter all of the points 
associated with a project and then return to verify each point on the map at one time. 

Item F - 189 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–22 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 

All on-airport project submittals must have a “project sketch” included. Under the “actions” column select 
“upload a PDF”. Once you have uploaded a sketch for all the points associated with the project the red X 
under “sketch” will turn to a green check mark.  Off-airport projects do not require a “project sketch”, but 
the user can still upload one for informational purposes. 

If the user needs to add any other information such as an explanatory letter, clicking on “upload a PDF” 
will allow the user to upload more documents, although only one at a time. Keep in mind that if additional 
PDFs or information are being provided, like the project sketch it must be uploaded to every point 
associated with the project. 

Once the maps have been verified and sketches uploaded for all points associated with the case, the user will 
be able to submit the 7460 to the FAA for review. 

Status of Submitted Projects 

To check the status of a submittal, click on either “my cases (off airport)” or “my cases (on airport)” to see a 
list of what has been submitted. Each of the multiple points associated with one project will be listed as if 
they are separate, although still associated. The points will have a status: 

Item F - 190 of 335



F E D E RA L  A V I A T I O N RE G UL A TI O NS  P A R T 7 7      AP P E N D I X  B  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) B–23 

 

 

Project Status Definitions:    

Draft: Cases that have been saved by the user but have not been submitted to the FAA.  

Waiting: Cases that have not been submitted to the FAA and are waiting for an action from the user, either 
to verify the map or attach a sketch.  

Accepted: Cases that have been submitted to the FAA.  

Add Letter: Cases that have been reviewed by the FAA and require additional information from the user.  

Work in Progress: Cases that are being evaluated by the FAA.  

Determined: Cases that have a completed aeronautical study and an FAA determination.  

Terminated: Cases that are no longer valid.  

These definitions are also shown at the bottom of the summary screen. 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Item F - 191 of 335



AP P E N D I X  B      F E DE RA L  A V I A T I O N R E G U L A TI O N S  P A R T  7 7  
 

B–24 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 
This page was left intentionally blank. 

Item F - 192 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX C 

 

Item F - 193 of 335



APPENDIX C 

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY CONCEPTS 
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–1 

INTRODUCTION 
This appendix provides basic information regarding the concepts and rationale used to develop the 
compatibility policies and maps set forth in Chapter 2 of this LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan.  Some of the material is excerpted directly from the California Airport Land Use Plan-
ning Handbook published by the California Division of Aeronautics in January 2002.  Other portions are 
based upon concepts that evolved from technical input obtained during review and discussion of pre-
liminary drafts of key policies. 

State law requires that airport land use commissions “be guided by” the information presented in the 
Handbook.  Despite the statutory reference to it, though, the Handbook does not constitute formal state 
policy or regulation.  Indeed, adjustment of the guidelines to fit the circumstances of individual airports 
is suggested by the Handbook.  The Handbook guidance and the information in this appendix does not 
supersede or otherwise take precedence over the policies contained in the LA/Ontario International Air-
port Land Use Compatibility Plan.   

As outlined in the Handbook, the noise and safety compatibility concerns fall into four categories:    

 Noise:  As defined by cumulative noise exposure contours describing noise from aircraft opera-
tions near an airport. 

 Overflight:  The impacts of routine aircraft flight over a community. 

 Safety:  From the perspective of minimizing the risks of aircraft accidents beyond the runway en-
vironment. 

 Airspace Protection:  Accomplished by limits on the height of structures and other objects in the 
airport vicinity and restrictions on other uses that potentially pose hazards to flight. 

The documentation in the remainder of this appendix is organized under the four compatibility catego-
ries.  Under each of the four compatibility category headings, the discussion is organized around four 
topics: 

 Compatibility Objective:  The objective to be sought by establishment and implementation of the 
compatibility policies; 

 Measurement:  The scale on which attainment of the objectives can be measured; 

 Compatibility Strategies:  The types of strategies which, when formulated as compatibility policies, 
can be used to accomplish the objectives; and 

 Basis for Setting Criteria:  The factors which should be considered in setting the respective compat-
ibility criteria. 

Item F - 194 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–2  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

NOISE 
Noise is perhaps the most basic airport land use compatibility concern.  Certainly, it is the most notice-
able form of airport impact.  

Compatibility Objective 
The purpose of noise compatibility policies is to avoid establishment of new noise-sensitive land uses in 
portions of an airport influence area that are exposed to significant levels of aircraft noise, taking into 
account the characteristics of the airport and the community surrounding the airport. 

Measurement 
For the purposes of airport land use compatibility planning, noise generated by the operation of aircraft 
to, from, and around an airport is primarily measured in terms of the cumulative noise levels of all air-
craft operations.  In California, the cumulative noise level metric established by state regulations, in-
cluding for measurement of airport noise, is the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL).  Cumula-
tive noise level metrics measure the noise levels of all aircraft operating at an airport on an average day 
(1/365) of the year.  The calculations take into account not only the number of operations of each air-
craft type and the noise levels they produce, but also their distribution geographically (the runways and 
flight tracks used) and by time of day.  To reflect an assumed greater community sensitivity to nighttime 
and evening noise, the CNEL metric counts events during these periods as being louder than actually 
measured. 

Cumulative noise level metrics provide a single measure of the average sound level in decibels (dB) to 
which any point near an airport is exposed over the course of a day.  Although the maximum noise lev-
els produced by individual aircraft are a major component of the calculations, cumulative noise level 
metrics do not explicitly measure these peak values.  Cumulative noise levels are usually illustrated on 
airport area maps as contour lines connecting points of equal noise exposure.  Mapped noise contours 
primarily show areas of significant noise exposures—ones affected by high concentrations of aircraft 
takeoffs and landings. 

For civilian airports, noise contours are typically calculated using the Federal Aviation Administration’s 
Integrated Noise Model (INM) computer program.  The input information that generate this model are 
of two basic types:  standardized data regarding aircraft performance and noise levels generated (this 
data can be adjusted for a particular airport if necessary); and airport-specific data including aircraft 
types and number of operations, time of day of aircraft operations, runway usage distribution, and the 
location and usage of flight tracks.  Airport elevation and surrounding topographic data can also be en-
tered.  For airports with airport traffic control towers, some of these inputs can be obtained from rec-
orded data.  Noise monitoring and radar flight tracking data available for airports in metropolitan areas 
are other sources of valuable information.  At most airports, though, the individual input variables must 
be estimated. 

Compatibility Strategies 
The basic strategy for achieving noise compatibility in an airport’s vicinity is to limit development of 
land uses that are particularly sensitive to noise.  The most acceptable land uses are ones that either    
involve few people (especially people engaged in noise-sensitive activities) or generate significant noise 
levels themselves (such as other transportation facilities or some industrial uses). 

Item F - 195 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–3 

California state law regards any residential land uses as normally incompatible where the noise exposure 
exceeds 65 dB CNEL (although the state airport noise regulations explicitly apply only to identified 
“noise problem airports” in the context of providing the ability of these airports to operate under a 
noise variance from the State, the Handbook and other state guidelines extend this criterion to all air-
ports as discussed below).  This standard, however, is set with respect to high-activity airports, particu-
larly major air carrier airports, in urban locations, where ambient noise levels are generally higher than 
in suburban and rural areas.  As also discussed below and as provided in the Handbook, a lower thresh-
old of incompatibility is often appropriate at certain airports, particularly around airports in suburban or 
rural locations where the ambient noise levels are lower than those found in more urban areas. 

In places where the noise exposure is not so severe as to warrant exclusion of new residential develop-
ment, the ideal strategy is to have very low densities—that is, parcels large enough that the dwelling can 
be placed in a less impacted part of the property.  In urban areas, however, this strategy is seldom via-
ble.  The alternative for such locations is to encourage high-density, multi-family residential develop-
ment with little, if any, outdoor areas, provided that the 45 dB CNEL interior noise standard and limita-
tions based upon safety are not exceeded.  Compared to single-family subdivisions, ambient noise levels 
are typically higher in multi-family developments, outdoor living space is less, and sound insulation fea-
tures can be more easily added to the buildings.  All of these factors tend to make aircraft noise less in-
trusive. 

Sound insulation is an important requirement for residential and other noise-sensitive indoor uses in 
high noise areas.  The California Building Code requires that sufficient acoustic insulation be provided 
in any habitable rooms of new hotels, motels, dormitories, dwellings other than detached single-family 
residences to assure that aircraft noise is reduced to an interior noise level of 45 dB CNEL or less.  To 
demonstrate compliance with this standard, an acoustical analysis must be done for any residential 
structure proposed to be located where the annual CNEL exceeds 65 dB.  The Compatibility Plan further 
requires dedication of an avigation easement as a condition for development approval in locations 
where these standards come into play. 

Basis for Setting Criteria 
Compatibility criteria related to cumulative noise levels are well-established in federal and state laws and 
regulations.  The California Airport Noise Regulations (California Code of Regulations Section 5000 et 
seq.) states that: 

“The level of noise acceptable to a reasonable person residing in the vicinity of an airport is es-
tablished as a community noise equivalent level (CNEL) value of 65 dB for purposes of these 
regulations. This criterion level has been chosen for reasonable persons residing in urban residen-
tial areas where houses are of typical California construction and may have windows partially 
open. It has been selected with reference to speech, sleep and community reaction.” 

No airport declared by a county’s board of supervisors as having a “noise problem” is to operate in a 
manner that result in incompatible uses being located within the 65 dB CNEL contour.  Incompatible 
uses are defined as being:  residences of all types; public and private schools; hospitals and convalescent 
homes; and places of worship.  However, these uses are not regarded as incompatible where acoustical 
insulation necessary to reduce the interior noise level to 45 dB CNEL has been installed or the airport 
proprietor has acquired an avigation easement for aircraft noise. 

As noted in the regulations, the 65 dB CNEL standard is set with respect to urban areas.  For many air-
ports and many communities, 65 dB CNEL is too high to be considered acceptable to “reasonable per-
sons.”  Through a process called “normalization,” adjustments can be made to take into account such 

Item F - 196 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–4  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

factors as the background noise levels of the community and previous exposure to particular noise 
sources.  This process suggests, for example, that 60 dB CNEL may be a more suitable criterion for 
suburban communities not exposed to significant industrial noise and 55 dB CNEL may be appropriate 
for quiet suburban or rural communities remote from industrial noise and truck traffic.  On the other 
hand, even though exceeding state standards, 70 dB CNEL may be regarded as an acceptable noise ex-
posure in noisy urban residential communities near industrial areas and busy roads. 

Industrial activity and transportation noise are undoubtedly two of the most prominent contributors to 
background noise levels in a community.  According to a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
study however, the variable that correlates best with ambient noise levels across a broad range of com-
munities is population density (Population Distribution of the United States as a Function of Outdoor Noise Level, 
EPA Report No. 550/9-74-009, June 1974).  This study established the following formula as a means 
of estimating the typical background noise level of a community: 

DNLEPA = 22 + 10 * log(p) 

where “p” is the population density measured in people per square statute mile. 

These factors are reflected in the policies of this Compatibility Plan.  The Compatibility Plan considers the 
70 dB CNEL the maximum normally acceptable noise exposure for new multi-family residential and 65 
dB CNEL for new single-family residential development near LA/Ontario International Airport. The 
Compatibility Plan also establishes noise insulation standards for residential and nonresidential develop-
ment in areas exposed to noise levels of 65 dB CNEL or greater.  Based upon the above EPA equation, 
these criteria are a minimum of 5 dB above the predicted ambient noise levels in the respective com-
munities.  

Similar considerations come into play with respect to establishing maximum acceptable noise exposure 
for nonresidential land uses, particularly those that are noise sensitive.  For schools, lodging, and other 
such uses, a higher noise exposure may be tolerated in noisy urban communities than in quieter subur-
ban and rural areas.  For uses that are not noise sensitive or which generate their own noise, the maxi-
mum acceptable noise exposure levels tend to be the same regardless of ambient noise conditions.  The 
criteria listed in Chapter 2 of this Compatibility Plan are set with these various factors in mind. 

OVERFLIGHT 
Experience at many airports has shown that noise-related concerns do not stop at the boundary of the 
outermost mapped CNEL contours.  Many people are sensitive to the frequent presence of aircraft 
overhead even at low levels of noise.  These reactions can mostly be expressed in the form of annoyance.  

The Handbook notes that at many airports, particularly air carrier airports, complaints often come from 
locations beyond any of the defined noise contours.  Indeed, heavily used flight corridors to and from 
metropolitan areas are known to generate noise complaints 50 miles or more from the associated air-
port.  The basis for such complaints may be a desire and expectation that outside noise sources not be 
intrusive—or, in some circumstances, even distinctly audible—above the quiet, natural background 
noise level.  Elsewhere, especially in locations beneath the traffic patterns of general aviation airports, a 
fear factor also contributes to some individuals’ sensitivity to aircraft overflights. 

While these impacts may be important community concerns, the question of importance here is wheth-
er any land use planning actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate the impacts or otherwise address the 
concerns.  Commonly, when overflight impacts are under discussion in a community, the focus is on 
modification of the flight routes.  Indeed, some might argue that overflight impacts should be ad-

Item F - 197 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–5 

dressed solely through the aviation side of the equation—not only flight route changes, but other modi-
fications to where, when, and how aircraft are operated.  Such changes are not always possible because 
of terrain, aircraft performance capabilities, FAA regulations, and other factors.  In any case, though, 
ALUCs, or other designated bodies, are particularly limited in their ability to deal with overflight con-
cerns.  Most significantly, they have no authority over aircraft operations.  The most they can do to 
bring about changes is to make requests or recommendations.  Even with regard to land use, the au-
thority of ALUCs/designated bodies extends only to proposed new development and the delineation of 
an airport’s overall influence area.  The authority and responsibility for implementing the Compatibility 
Plan’s policies and criteria rests with the local governments. 

These limitations notwithstanding, there are steps which ALUCs/designated bodies can and should 
take to help minimize overflight impacts. 

Compatibility Objective 
The compatibility objective with respect to overflight is the same as for noise:  avoid new land use de-
velopment that can disrupt activities and lead to annoyance and complaints.  However, given the exten-
sive geographic area over which the impacts occur, this objective is unrealistic except relatively close to 
the airport.  A feasible objective of overflight compatibility policies therefore is to help notify people 
about the presence of overflights near airports so that they can make informed decisions regarding ac-
quisition or lease of property in the affected areas. 

Measurement 
Cumulative noise metrics such as CNEL are well-suited for use in establishing land use compatibility 
policy criteria and are the only noise metrics for which widely accepted standards have been adopted.  
However, these metrics are not very helpful in determining the extent of overflight impact areas.  Loca-
tions where overflight concerns may be significant are typically well beyond where noise contours can 
be drawn with precision.  Flight tracks tend to be quite divergent and noise monitoring data is seldom 
available.  Moreover, even if the contours could be drawn precisely, the noise levels they would indicate 
may not be much above the ambient noise levels. 

For the purposes of airport land use compatibility planning, two other forms of noise exposure infor-
mation are more useful.  One measure is the momentary, maximum sound level (Lmax) experienced on 
the ground as the aircraft flies over while landing at and taking off from a runway.  These noise levels 
can be depicted in the form of a noise “footprint” as shown in Figure C1 for a variety of airline and 
general aviation aircraft.  Each of these footprints is broadly representative of those produced by other 
aircraft similar to the ones shown.  The actual sound level produced by any single aircraft takeoff or 
landing will vary not only among specific makes and models of aircraft, but also from one operation to 
another of identical aircraft. 

In examining the footprints, two additional points are important to note.  One is the importance of the 
outermost contour.  This noise level (65 dBA Lmax) is the level at which interference with speech begins 
to be significant.  Land uses anywhere within the noise footprint of a given aircraft would experience a 
noise level, even if only briefly, that could be disruptive to outdoor conversation.  Indoors, with win-
dows closed, the aircraft noise level would have to be at least 20 dBA louder to present similar impacts.  
A second point to note concerns the differences among various aircraft, particularly business jets.  As 
the data shows, business jets manufactured in the 1990s are much quieter than those of 10 and 20 years 
earlier.  The impacts of the 1990s era jets are similar to those of twin-engine piston aircraft and jets be-
ing made in the 2000s are quieter yet.  At many general aviation airports, the size of the CNEL con-
tours is driven by a relatively small number of operations by the older, noisier business jets.  These air-

Item F - 198 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–6  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

craft are gradually disappearing from the nationwide aircraft fleet and are likely to be gone within 20 
years, but at this point in time it is uncertain when they will be completely eliminated. 

Another useful form of overflight information is a mapping of the common flight tracks used by air-
craft when approaching and departing an airport.  Where available, recorded radar data is an ideal 
source for flight track mapping.  Even more revealing is to refine the simple flight track mapping with 
data such as the frequency of use and/or aircraft altitudes.  Chapter 1 includes a sample of actual flight 
tracks and flight altitudes of aircraft using LA/Ontario International Airport.  

Compatibility Strategies 
The ideal land use compatibility strategy with respect to overflight annoyance is to avoid development 
of new residential and other noise-sensitive uses in the affected locations.  However, as mentioned be-
fore this approach is not practical and other strategies need to be explored. 

The strategy emphasized in this Compatibility Plan is to help people with above-average sensitivity to air-
craft overflights—people who are highly annoyed by overflights—to avoid living in locations where fre-
quent overflights occur.  This strategy involves making people aware of an airport’s proximity and its 
current and potential aircraft noise impacts on the community before they move to the area.  This can 
be accomplished through buyer awareness measures such as dedication of avigation or overflight ease-
ments, recorded deed notices, and/or real estate disclosure statements.  In new residential develop-
ments, posting of signs in the real estate sales office and/or at key locations in the subdivision itself can 
be further means of alerting the initial purchasers about the impacts (signs, however, generally do not 
remain in place beyond the initial sales period and therefore are of little long-term value). 

A second strategy is to minimize annoyance by promoting land uses that tend to mask or reduce the in-
trusiveness of aircraft noise.  Although this strategy does not directly appear in the overflight policies of 
this Compatibility Plan, the objectives of the plan would be well-served if local jurisdictions take this con-
cept into consideration in their own planning efforts. For example, multi-family residential uses would 
be a better choice to place within aircraft overflight areas because they tend to have comparatively little 
outdoor living areas, fewer external walls through which aircraft noise can intrude, and relatively high 
noise levels of their own.  However, low-density single family residential with densities of 1 unit per 
acre are discouraged since background noise levels are likely to be low making residents more suscepti-
ble to aircraft noise.  

Basis for Setting Criteria 
In California, definitive guidance on where overflight impacts are significant or what actions should be 
taken in response comes from a state law that went into effect on January 2004.  California statutes 
(Business and Profession Code Section 11010 and Civil Code Sections 1103 and 1353) now require 
most residential real estate transactions, including new subdivisions, to include disclosure that an airport 
is nearby.  The area encompassed by the disclosure requirements is two miles from the airport or the 
airport influence area established by the county’s airport land use commission.  The law defines the air-
port influence area as “the area in which current or future airport-related noise, overflight, safety, or air-
space protection factors may significantly affect land uses or necessitate restrictions on those uses as de-
termined by an airport land use commission.”   This Compatibility Plan requires that  the disclosure of 
airport proximity be applied to all new residential development within the airport influence area and 
recommends that disclosure be provided as part of all real estate transactions involving private proper-
ty, especially any sale, lease, or rental of residential property.   

Item F - 199 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–7 

SAFETY 
Compared to noise, safety is in many respects a more difficult concern to address in airport land use 
compatibility policies.  A major reason for this difference is that safety policies address uncertain events 
that may occur with occasional aircraft operations, whereas noise policies deal with known, more or less 
predictable events which do occur with every aircraft operation.  Because aircraft accidents happen in-
frequently and the time, place, and consequences of an individual accident’s occurrence cannot be pre-
dicted, the concept of risk is central to the assessment of safety compatibility. 

Compatibility Objective 
The overall objective of safety compatibility criteria is to minimize the risks associated with potential 
off-airport aircraft accidents and emergency landings beyond the runway environment.  There are two 
components to this objective:  

 Safety on the Ground:  The most fundamental safety compatibility component is to provide for the 
safety of people and property on the ground in the event of an aircraft accident near an airport. 

 Safety for Aircraft Occupants:  The other important component is to enhance the chances of surviv-
al of the occupants of an aircraft involved in an accident that takes place beyond the immediate 
runway environment. 

Measurement 
Because aircraft accidents happen infrequently, measuring the risks associated with their occurrence is 
difficult.  It is necessary to look beyond an individual airport in order to assemble enough data to be 
statistically valid.  It is beyond the intent of this discussion to provide statistical data about aircraft acci-
dents.  Much can be found on that topic in the Handbook.  However, certain aspects of aircraft acci-
dents are necessary to discuss in that they have a direct bearing on land use compatibility strategies. 

From the standpoint of land use planning, two variables determine the degree of risk posed by potential 
aircraft accidents:  frequency and consequences. 

The frequency variable measures where and when aircraft accidents occur in the vicinity of an airport.  
More specifically, these two elements can be described as follows: 

 Spatial Element:  The spatial element describes where aircraft accidents can be expected to occur.  
Of all the accidents that take place in the vicinity of airports, what percentage occurs in any given 
location? 

 Time Element:  The time element adds a when variable to the assessment of accident frequency.  In 
any given location around a particular airport, what is the chance that an accident will occur in a 
specified period of time? 

Spatial Distribution of Aircraft Accidents 

Of these two elements, the spatial element is the one most meaningfully applied to land use compatibil-
ity planning around an individual airport.  Looking at airports nationwide, enough accidents have oc-
curred to provide useful data regarding where accidents are most likely to occur.  The Handbook uses 
accident data to define a set of safety zones.  Additionally, the relative concentration of accidents in cer-
tain parts of the airport environs is a key consideration in the establishment of compatibility criteria ap-
plicable within those zones. 

Item F - 200 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–8  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

In contrast, the time element is not very useful for land use compatibility planning purposes for several 
reasons.  First, at any given airport, the number of accidents is, with rare exceptions, too few to be sta-
tistically meaningful in determining where future accidents might occur.  Secondly, a calculation of ac-
cident frequency over time depends upon the size of the area under consideration—the smaller the area 
examined, the less likely it is that an accident will occur in that spot.  Lastly, even if the accident fre-
quency over a period of time is calculated, there are no clear baselines with which to compare the re-
sults. 

The Handbook presents a set of diagrams indicating where accidents are most likely to occur around air-
line and general aviation airports.  Figures C2 and C3 show the spatial distribution of general aviation 
aircraft accidents in the vicinity of airports.  (Note that these charts show data for all general aviation 
accidents in the Handbook database.  Data on accidents associated with different lengths of runway is al-
so provided.  The Handbook accident distribution data plus the generic safety zones for air carrier run-
ways is considered in delineation of the safety zones depicted in Chapter 1 of this Compatibility Plan.) 

The charts reveal several facts: 

 About half of arrival accidents and a third of departure accidents take place within the FAA-
defined runway protection zone for a runway with a low-visibility instrument approach proce-
dure (a 2,500-foot long trapezoid, varying from 1,000 feet wide at the inner edge to 1,750 feet in 
width at the outer end).  This fact lends validity to the importance of the runway protection 
zones as an area within which land use activities should be minimal. 

 Although accident risk levels are the highest within the runway protection zones, a significant 
degree of risk exists well beyond the runway protection zone boundaries.  Among all near-
airport (within 5 miles) accidents, over 80% are concentrated within 1.5 to 2.0 miles of a runways 
end. 

 Arrival accidents tend to be concentrated relatively close to the extended runway centerline.  
Approximately 80% occur within a strip extending 10,000 feet from the runway landing thresh-
old and 2,000 feet to each side of the runway centerline. 

 Departure accidents are comparatively more dispersed laterally from the runway centerline, but 
are concentrated closer to the runway end.  Many departure accidents also occur lateral to the 
runway itself, particularly when the runway is long.  Approximately 80% of the departure acci-
dent sites lie within an area 2,500 feet from the runway centerline and 6,000 feet beyond the 
runway end or adjacent to the runway. 

To provide some sense of order to the scatter of individual accident points, an analysis presented in the 
Handbook involves aggregating the accident location points (the scatter diagrams of where accidents 
have occurred relative to the runway) in a manner that better identifies where the accident sites are 
most concentrated.  The results are presented as risk intensity contours—Figure C2 shows arrival acci-
dent risks and Figure C3 portrays departure accident risks.  The two drawings divide the near-airport 
accident location points into five groups of 20% each (note that only accident sites that were not on a 
runway, but were within 5 miles of an airport are included in the database).  The 20% contour repre-
sents the highest or most concentrated risk intensity, the 40% contour represents the next highest risk 
intensity, and so on up to 80%.  The final 20% of the accident sites are beyond the 80% contour.  Each 
contour is drawn so as to encompass 20% of the points within the most compact area.  The contours 
are irregular in shape.  No attempt has been made to create geometric shapes.  However, the risk con-
tours can serve as the basis for creating geometric shapes that can then be used as safety zones and the 
Handbook contains several examples.   

Item F - 201 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–9 

The Handbook takes the additional step of translating the risk contours into several sets of generic safety 
zones having regular geometric shapes.  Generic safety zones are illustrated for different types and 
lengths of runways.  The shapes of these zones reflect not just the accident distribution data, but also 
the ways in which different phases of aircraft operations create different accident risk characteristics 
near an airport.  For most runways, the Handbook suggests creation of six safety zones.  The locations, 
typical dimensions, and characteristics of the accident risks within each zone are outlined in Table C1.  
The degree of risk exposure within each safety zone is listed below. 

 Zone 1 clearly is exposed to the greatest risk of aircraft accidents.  For civilian airports, the di-
mensions of this zone are established by FAA standards.  FAA encourages airport ownership of 
this zone and provides specific land use standards.  Where the land is not airport owned, the 
FAA says these standards serve as recommendations.   

 Zone 2 lies beyond Zone 1 and also has a significant degree of risk as reflected in both national 
and local accident location data. 

 Zone 3 has less risk than Zone 2, but more than Zones 4, 5, or 6.  Zone 3 encompasses locations 
where aircraft often turn at low altitude while approaching or departing the runway. 

 Zone 4 lies along the extended runway centerline beyond Zone 2 and is especially significant at 
airports that have straight-in instrument approach procedures or a high volume of operations 
that results in an extended traffic pattern.   

 Zone 5 is a unique area lying adjacent to the runway and, for most airports, lies on airport proper-
ty.  The risk is comparable to Zone 4. 

 Zone 6 contains the aircraft traffic pattern.  Although a high percentage of accidents occur within 
Zone 6, for any given runway Zone 6 is larger than all the other zones combined.  Relative to the 
other zones, the risks in Zone 6 are much less, but are still greater than in locations more distant 
from the airport. 

Although accident location data, together with information on how aircraft flight parameters affect 
where accidents occur, are the bases for delineation of the generic safety zones, the Handbook indicates 
that adjustments to the zone sizes and shapes must be made in recognition of airport-specific character-
istics.  Among these characteristics are: 

 The particular mix of aircraft types operating at the airport.  Larger aircraft generally are faster 
than smaller planes and thus fly longer and wider traffic patterns or make straight-in approaches. 

 The overall volume of aircraft operations.  At busy airports, a larger traffic pattern is common 
because aircraft have to get in sequence for landing. 

 Nearby terrain or other airports.  These physical features may, for example, limit a traffic pattern 
to a single side of the airport or dictate “nonstandard” approach and departure routes. 

 Instrument approach procedures.  Aircraft following these procedures typically fly long, straight-
in, gradual descents to the runway.  In some cases, though, an approach route may be aligned at 
an angle to the runway rather than straight in. 

 Existence of an air traffic control tower.  When a tower is present, controllers may direct or al-
low pilots to fly unusual routes in order to expedite traffic flow.  By comparison, at relatively 
busy but non-towered airports, aircraft mostly follow the “standard” pattern dictated by federal 
aviation regulations. 

Item F - 202 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–10  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 A dominant direction of traffic flow.  As reflected in the Handbook analysis of accident loca-
tions, landing aircraft tend to follow routes directly in line with the runway during final descent 
and thus accident sites also are concentrated along this alignment.  Departing aircraft are more 
likely to turn to head to their intended destination and the accident pattern is thus more dis-
persed.  On runways where the flow of aircraft operations is almost always in one direction, this 
distinction in accident patterns is considered. 

Radar data is particularly helpful in showing exactly where aircraft fly when approaching or departing an 
airport.  This data can be used to further support adjustments to the safety zones based upon the above 
characteristics.   

Accident Consequences 

The consequences variable describes what happens when an aircraft accident occurs.  Specific measures 
can be defined in terms of deaths, injuries, property damage, or other such characteristics.  In many re-
spects, the consequences component of aircraft accident risk assessment is a more important variable 
than accident frequency.  Not only can a single accident cost many lives, it can indirectly force opera-
tional changes or even airport closure. 

Relatively little data is available specifically documenting the consequences of aircraft accidents.  Except 
with regard to numbers of deaths or injuries to people on the ground, data on various aspects of air-
craft accidents must be used to infer what the consequences have been.  Swath size is one useful piece 
of information.  It indicates the area over which accident debris is spread.  Swath size in turn depends 
upon the type of aircraft and the nature of the accident:  was the aircraft in controlled flight (an engine 
failure for example), but then collided with something on the ground or did a catastrophic event (such 
as a mid-air collision or stall-spin) result in the aircraft making an uncontrolled descent?  For small gen-
eral aviation aircraft, the swath size data suggests that a controlled emergency landing in which the air-
craft occupants have a strong chance of surviving is possible in an area about the size of a football field:  
75 feet by 300 feet or about 0.5 acre.  For larger aircraft, the minimum flight speed is so much higher 
that the consequences for people on board and anyone on the ground are likely to be high regardless of 
the land use or terrain characteristics. 

Compatibility Strategies 
The relatively low numbers of deaths and injuries from aircraft accidents is sometimes cited as indicat-
ing that the risks are low.  Clearly, though, the more people occupying the critical areas around airports, 
the greater the risks are.  Aircraft accidents may be rare occurrences, but when they occur, the conse-
quences can be severe. 

From a land use compatibility perspective, it is therefore essential to avoid conditions that can lead to 
catastrophic results.  Basically, the question is:  what land use planning measures can be taken to reduce 
the severity of an aircraft accident if one occurs in a particular location near an airport?  Although there 
is a significant overlap, specific strategies must consider both components of the safety compatibility 
objective:  protecting people and property on the ground; and, primarily for general aviation airports, 
enhancing safety for aircraft occupants.  In each case, the primary strategy is to limit the intensity of use 
(the number of people concentrated on the site) in locations most susceptible to an off-airport aircraft 
accident.  This is accomplished by three types of criteria. 

Item F - 203 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–11 

Density and Intensity Limitations 

Establishing criteria that limits the maximum number of dwellings or people in areas close to the air-
port is the most direct method of reducing the potential severity of an aircraft accident.  In setting these 
criteria, consideration must be given to the two different forms of aircraft accidents:  those in which the 
aircraft is descending, but is flying and under directional control of the pilot; and those in which the air-
craft is out of control as it falls.  Limits on usage intensity—the number of people per acre—must take 
into account both types of potential aircraft accidents.  The policies in Chapter 2 address both of these 
circumstances.  Limiting the average usage intensity over a site reduces the risks associated with either 
type of accident.  In most types of land use development, though, people are not spread equally 
throughout the site.  To minimize the risks from an uncontrolled accident, the policies also limit the ex-
tent to which people can be concentrated and development can be clustered in any small area. 

Open Land Requirements 

Requirements of undeveloped open land near an airport addresses the objective of enhancing safety for 
the occupants of an aircraft forced to make an emergency landing away from a runway.  If sufficiently 
large and clear of obstacles, open land areas can be valuable for light aircraft anywhere near an airport.  
For large and high-performance aircraft, however, open land has little value for emergency landing pur-
poses and is useful primarily where it is an extension of the clear areas immediately adjoining a runway. 

Highly Risk-Sensitive Uses 

Certain critical types of land uses—particularly schools, hospitals, and other uses in which the mobility 
of occupants is effectively limited—should be avoided near the ends of runways regardless of the num-
ber of people involved.  Critical community infrastructure also should be avoided near airports.  These 
types of facilities include power plants, electrical substations, public communications facilities and other 
facilities, the damage or destruction of which could cause significant adverse effects to public health 
and welfare well beyond the immediate vicinity of the facility.  Lastly, aboveground storage of large 
quantities (6,000 gallons or greater) of highly flammable or hazardous materials may pose high risks if 
involved in an aircraft accident and therefore are incompatible close to runway ends. 

Basis for Setting Criteria 
As with noise contours, risk data by itself does not answer the question of what degree of land use re-
strictions should be established in response to the risks.  Although most compatibility policies restrict 
certain land use activities in locations beyond the runway protection zones, the size of the area in which 
restrictions are established and the specific restrictions applied vary from one county to another. 

Data useful in defining the geographic extent of airport safety areas was discussed above.  To set safety 
compatibility criteria applicable within these zones presents the fundamental question of what is safe.  
Expressed in another way:  what is an acceptable risk?  In one respect, it may seem ideal to reduce risks to 
a minimum by prohibiting most types of land use development from areas near airports.  However, as 
addressed in the Handbook, there are usually costs associated with such high degrees of restrictiveness.  
In practice, safety criteria are set on a progressive scale with the greatest restrictions established in loca-
tions with the greatest potential for aircraft accidents. 

Little established guidance is available to ALUCs/designated bodies regarding how restrictive to make 
safety criteria for various parts of an airport’s environs.  Unlike the case with noise, there are no formal 
federal or state laws or regulations which set safety criteria for airport area land uses for civilian airports 
except within runway protection zones (and with regard to airspace obstructions as described separately in 

Item F - 204 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–12  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

the next section).  Federal Aviation Administration safety criteria primarily are focused on the runway 
and its immediate environment.  Runway protection zones—then called clear zones—were originally es-
tablished mostly for the purpose of protecting the occupants of aircraft which overrun or land short of 
a runway.  Now, they are defined by the FAA as intended to enhance the protection of people and 
property on the ground. 

The most useful place from which ALUCs/designated bodies can begin to determine appropriate safety 
compatibility criteria for airport environs is the Handbook itself.  Although not regulatory in nature, state 
law obligates ALUCs/designated bodies to “be guided by” the information presented in the Handbook.  
Suggested usage intensity limitations, measured in terms of people per acre, are set forth along with 
other safety criteria.  Reference should be made to that document for detailed description of the sug-
gested criteria.  Three risk-related variables discussed in the Handbook are worth noting here, however. 

 Runway Proximity:  In general, the areas of highest risk are closest to the runway ends and second-
arily along the extended runway centerline.  However, many common aircraft flight tracks do not 
follow along the runway alignment, particularly on departures.  Also, where an aircraft crashes 
may not be along the flight path that was intended to be followed.  As indicated in Figures C2 
and C3, these factors affect the risk distribution. 

 Urban versus Rural Areas:  Irrespective of airports, people living in urban areas face different types 
of risks than those living in rural areas.  The cost of avoiding risks differs between these two set-
tings as well.  The Handbook acknowledges these differences by indicating that usage intensities 
can be higher in heavily developed urban areas compared to partially undeveloped suburban are-
as or minimally developed rural locations, yet be equivalent in terms of the level of acceptable 
risk. 

 Existing versus Proposed Uses:  Another distinction in compatibility policies can be drawn between 
existing and proposed development.  It is reasonable for safety-related policies to be established 
which prohibit certain types of new development while considering identical existing develop-
ment to be acceptable.  The Handbook notes that cost is an important factor in this regard.  The 
range of risks can be divided into three levels (see page 9-15 of the Handbook).  At the bottom of 
this scale are negligible and acceptable risks for which no action is necessary.  At the top are in-
tolerable risks for which action is necessary regardless of the cost.  In between are risks that are 
significant, but tolerable.  Whether action should be taken to reduce these risks depends upon 
the costs involved.  Typically, the cost of removing an incompatible development is greater than 
the cost of avoiding its construction in the first place. 

Preparation of this Compatibility Plan has been greatly guided by the Handbook information.  The Hand-
book, though, also recognizes the importance of tailoring compatibility plans to local circumstances.  
Such has been the case with the safety compatibility criteria included in this Compatibility Plan.   

AIRSPACE PROTECTION 
Relatively few aircraft accidents are caused by land use conditions that are hazards to flight.  The poten-
tial exists, however, and protecting against it is essential to airport land use safety compatibility.  In ad-
dition, and importantly, land use conditions that are hazards to flight may impact the continued viability 
of airport operations and limit the ability of an airport to operate in the manner identified by the airport 
proprietor in an adopted airport master plan and airport layout plan. 

Item F - 205 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) C–13 

Compatibility Objective 
Because airspace protection is in effect a safety factor, its objective can likewise be thought of in terms 
of risk.  Specifically, the objective is to avoid development of land use conditions that, by posing haz-
ards to flight, can increase the risk of an accident occurring.  The particular hazards of concern are:  

 Airspace obstructions; 

 Wildlife hazards, particularly bird strikes; and 

 Land use characteristics that pose other potential hazards to flight by creating visual or electronic 
interference with air navigation. 

The purpose of airspace protection policies is to ensure that structures and other uses do not cause 
hazards to aircraft in flight within the airport vicinity.  Hazards to flight include physical obstructions to 
the navigable airspace, wildlife hazards (particularly bird strikes), and land use characteristics that create 
visual or electronic interference with aircraft navigation or communication.  This is accomplished by 
creating policies that place limits on the height of structures and other objects within the airport vicinity 
and restrictions on other uses that potentially pose hazards to flight. 

Measurement 
The measurement of requirements for airspace protection around an airport is a function of several var-
iables including:  the dimensions and layout of the runway system; the type of operating procedures es-
tablished for the airport; and, indirectly, the performance capabilities of aircraft operated at the airport. 

 Airspace Obstructions:  Whether a particular object constitutes an airspace obstruction depends up-
on two factors:  the height of the object relative to the runway elevation; and its proximity to the 
airport.  The acceptable height of objects near an airport is most commonly determined by ap-
plication of standards set forth in Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77, Objects Affecting 
Navigable Airspace.  These regulations establish a three-dimensional space in the air above an air-
port.  Any object which penetrates this volume of airspace is considered to be an “obstruction” 
and may affect the aeronautical use of the airspace.  Additionally, as described below, another set 
of airspace protection surfaces is defined by the U.S. Standard for Terminal Instrument Procedures, 
known as TERPS.  Although the intended function of these standards is in design of instrument 
approach and departure procedures, they can be important in land use compatibility planning in 
situations where ground elevations near an airport exceed the FAR Part 77 criteria. 

 Wildlife and Other Hazards to Flight:  The significance of other potential hazards to flight is princi-
pally measured in terms of the hazards’ specific characteristics and their distance from the airport 
and/or its normal traffic patterns. 

Compatibility Strategies 
Compatibility strategies for the protection of airport airspace are directly associated with individual 
types of hazards: 

 Airspace Obstructions:  Buildings, antennas, other types of structures, and trees should be limited in 
height so as not to pose a potential hazard to flight. 

 Wildlife and Other Hazards to Flight:  Land uses that may create other types of hazards to aircraft in 
flight near an airport should be avoided or modified to remove the potential hazard. 

Item F - 206 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–14  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Basis for Setting Criteria 
The criteria for determining airspace obstructions have been long-established in FAR Part 77.  Also, 
state of California regulation of obstructions under the State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code, 
Section 21659) is based on FAR Part 77 criteria.  A shortcoming of FAR Part 77 criteria, however, is 
that they often are too generic to fit the conditions specific to individual airports.  The airspace protec-
tion surfaces defined in these regulations can be either more or less restrictive than appropriate for a 
particular airport.  The surfaces can be less restrictive than essential in instances where an instrument 
approach procedure or its missed approach segment are not aligned with the runway.  FAR Part 77 also 
does not take into account instrument departure procedures which, at some airports, can have critical 
airspace requirements.  Oppositely, FAR Part 77 provides no useful guidance as to acceptable heights 
of objects located where the ground level already penetrates the airspace surfaces. 

To define airspace protection surfaces better suited to these situations, reference must be made the 
TERPS standards mentioned above.  These standards are used for creation of instrument approach and 
departure procedures.  Thus they exactly match the procedures in effect at an individual airport.  Unlike 
the FAR Part 77 surfaces, the elevations of which are set relative to the runway end elevations irrespec-
tive of surrounding terrain and obstacles, the TERPS surface elevations are directly determined by the 
location and elevation of critical obstacles. By design, neither the ground nor any obstacles can pene-
trate a TERPS surface.  However, construction of a tall object that penetrates a TERPS surface can dic-
tate immediate modifications to the location and elevation of the surfaces and directly cause minimum 
flight visibility and altitudes to be raised or the instrument course to be realigned.  In severe instances, 
obstructions can force a procedure to be cancelled altogether.  A significant downside to use of TERPS 
surfaces for compatibility planning purposes is that they are highly complex compared to the relative 
simplicity of FAR Part 77 surfaces.  Also, the configuration and/or elevations of TERPS surfaces can 
change not only in response to new obstacles, but as implementation of new navigational technologies 
permits additional or modified instrument procedures to be established at an airport. 

In the Compatibility Policy Map: Airspace Protection Zones presented in Chapter 2 of this Compatibility 
Plan, primary reliance is placed upon FAR Part 77 criteria.  Where an instrument approach procedure is 
established, the associated TERPS surfaces are depicted as well.  In most locations, the TERPS surfaces 
are well above the underlying terrain and present no significant constraint on land use development.  As 
a precaution to help ensure that tall towers or antennas located on high terrain do not penetrate a 
TERPS surface, places where the ground elevation comes within 100 feet of a TERPS surface are  
shown on the map.  

Among other hazards to flight, bird strikes no doubt represent the most widespread concern.  The 
FAA recommends that uses known to attract birds—sanitary landfills being a primary example—be 
kept at least 10,000 feet away from any runway used by turbine-powered aircraft.  More information re-
garding criteria for avoidance of uses that can attract wildlife to airports can be found in FAA Advisory 
Circulars 150/5200-34 and 150/5300-33. 

Other flight hazards include land uses that may cause visual or electronic hazards to aircraft in flight or 
taking off or landing at the airport.  Specific characteristics to be avoided include sources of glare or 
bright lights, distracting lights that could be mistaken for airport lights, sources of dust, steam, or 
smoke that may impair pilot visibility, and sources of electrical interference with aircraft communica-
tions or navigation. 

Item F - 207 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  C–15 

Table C1 

Safety Zone Aircraft Accident Risk Characteristic 

Zone Description 
Nominal Dimensions 

(California Airport Land Use 
Planning Handbook) 

Relative 
Risk 
Level 

Nature of Accident 
Risk 

% of Accidents 
in Zone 

(Handbook Database) 

1 
Runway Protection 
Zone 
  and 
within Runway 
Primary Surface 

primarily on airport 
property; airport 
ownership encour-
aged 

Depending upon approach 
visibility minimums: 1,200 feet 
minimum, 2,700 feet maxi-
mum beyond runway ends; 
125 to 500 feet from center-
line adjacent to runway (zone 
dimensions established by 
FAA standards) 

Acreage (one runway end):  8 
to 79 (RPZ only) 

Very 
High 

Landing undershoots 
and overshoots; over-
runs on aborted takeoffs; 
loss of control on takeoff 

Arrivals: 28%–56% 
Departures: 23%–
29% 
Total: 33%–39% 

2 
Inner Safety Zone Along extended runway cen-

terline, to a distance of 2,000 
feet minimum, 6,000 feet 
maximum beyond runway 
ends  

Acreage (one runway end): 
44 to 114 

High Aircraft at low altitude 
with limited directional 
options in emergencies: 
typically under 400 feet 
on landing; on takeoff, 
engine at maximum 
stress 

Arrivals: 9%–15% 
Departures: 3%–28% 
Total: 8%–22% 

3 
Inner Turning Zone Fan-shaped area adjacent to 

Zone 2 extending 2,000 feet 
minimum, 4,000 feet maxi-
mum from runway ends 

Acreage (one runway end): 
50 to 151 

Moderate Turns at low altitude on 
arrival for aircraft flying 
tight base leg present 
stall-spin potential; likely 
touchdown area if emer-
gency at low altitude on 
takeoff, especially to left 
of centerline 

Arrivals: 2%–6% 
Departures: 5%–9% 
Total: 4%–7% 

4 
Outer Safety Zone Along extended runway cen-

terline extending 3,500 feet 
minimum, 10,000 feet maxi-
mum beyond runway ends  

Acreage (one runway end): 
35 to 92 

Low to 
Moderate 

Low altitude overflight   for 
aircraft on straight-in ap-
proaches, especially in-
strument approaches; on 
departure, aircraft  nor-
mally complete transition 
from takeoff power and 
flap settings to climb 
mode and begin turns to 
en route heading 

Arrivals: 3%–8% 
Departures: 2%–4% 
Total: 2%–6% 

5 
Sideline Zone 
primarily on airport 
property 

Adjacent to runway, 500 feet 
minimum, 1,000 feet maxi-
mum from centerline  

Acreage: varies with runway 
length 

Low to 
Moderate 

Low risk on landing; 
moderate risk from loss 
of directional control on 
takeoff, especially with 
twin-engine aircraft 

Arrivals: 1%–3% 
Departures: 5%–8% 
Total: 3%–5% 

6 
Traffic Pattern 
Zone  
(applicable only to 
general aviation 
runways) 

Oval area around other 
zones: 5,000 feet minimum, 
10,000 feet maximum beyond 
runway ends; 4,500 feet min-
imum, 6,000 feet maximum 
from runway centerline  

Acreage: varies with runway 
length 

Low Significant percentage of 
accidents, but spread 
over wide area; widely 
varied causes 

Arrivals: 10%–21% 
Departures: 24%–
39% 
Total: 18%–29% 

 
 
 

Item F - 208 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–16  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Figure C1 

Noise Footprints of Selected Aircraft 
 

Item F - 209 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  C–17 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Figure C1, continued 

Item F - 210 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–18  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Figure C2 

General Aviation Accident Distribution Contours 
All Arrivals 

Item F - 211 of 335



A I R PO R T LA ND  US E CO M PAT I B I L I T Y  CO NC E P TS     AP P E N DI X  C  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  C–19 

Figure C3 

General Aviation Accident Distribution Contours 
All Departures 
 
 

 

Item F - 212 of 335



AP P E N D I X  C      A I RP O RT  L AN D  US E CO M PA TI B I L I T Y  CON C E P TS 
 

C–20  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 
This page was left intentionally blank. 

Item F - 213 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX D 

 

Item F - 214 of 335



APPENDIX D 

METHODS FOR DETERMINING CONCENTRATIONS OF PEOPLE 
 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) D–1 

INTRODUCTION 
The underlying safety compatibility criteria utilized in this Compatibility Plan is “usage intensity”—the 
maximum number of people per acre that can be present in a given area at any one time.  If a proposed 
use exceeds the maximum intensity, it is considered incompatible and inconsistent with the 
compatibility planning policies.  The usage intensity concept is identified in the California Airport Land 
Use Planning Handbook as the measure best suited for assessment of land use safety compatibility with 
airports.  The Handbook is published by the California Division of Aeronautics and is required under 
state law to be used as a guide in preparation of airport land use compatibility plans. 

It is recognized, though, that “people per acre” is not a common measure in other facets of land use 
planning.  This Compatibility Plan therefore also utilizes the more common measure of floor area ratio 
(FAR) as a means of implementing the usage intensity criteria on the local level.  This appendix both 
provides guidance on how the usage intensity determination can be made and defines the relationships 
between this measure, FAR, and other measures found in land use planning.  For a discussion of the 
rationale for use of people per acre as a measure of risk exposure, see Appendix C. 

COUNTING PEOPLE 
The most difficult part about calculating land use intensity is estimating the number of people expected 
to use a particular facility under normal circumstances.  All people—not just employees, but also 
customers and visitors—who may be on the property at any single point in time, whether indoors or 
outdoors, must be counted.  The only exceptions are for rare special events, such as an air show at an 
airport, for which a facility is not designed and normally not used and for which extra safety 
precautions can be taken as appropriate. 

Ideally, the actual number of people for which the facility is designed would be known.  For example, 
the number of seats in a proposed movie theater can be determined with high accuracy once the theater 
size is decided.  Other buildings, though, may be built as a shell and the eventual number of occupants 
not known until a specific tenant is found.  Furthermore, even then, the number of occupants can 
change as future tenants change.  Even greater uncertainty is involved with relatively open uses not 
having fixed seating—retail stores or sports parks, for example. 

When a clear number of measurable occupancy does not exist, other sources must be relied upon to 
estimate the number of people in a proposed development. 

Survey of Similar Uses 
A survey of similar uses already in existence is one option, however gathering data can be time-
consuming and costly.  Also, unless the survey sample is sufficiently large enough and conducted at 

Item F - 215 of 335



AP P E N D I X  D      M E T H O DS  FO R D E TE R MI NI NG  C O N CE N TR A TI O NS O F P E O P L E  
 

D–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

various times, inconsistent numbers may result.  Except for uncommon uses for which occupancy 
levels cannot be estimated through other means, surveys may not be appropriate. 

Maximum Occupancy 
A second option for estimating the number of people who will be on a site is to rely upon data 
indicating the maximum occupancy of a building measured in terms of occupancy load factors—the 
number of square feet per occupant.  The number of people on the site, assuming limited outdoor or 
peripheral uses, can be calculated by dividing the total floor area of a proposed use by the occupancy 
load factor.  The challenge of this methodology lies in establishing realistic figures for square feet per 
occupant.  The number varies greatly from one use to another and, for some uses, occupancy load 
factors can change over time as well. 

A commonly used source of maximum occupancy data is the standards set in the California Building 
Code (CBC).  The chart reproduced as Table D1 indicates the occupancy load factors for various types 
of uses.  The CBC is intended primarily for purposes of structural design, fire and safety and represents 
a legal maximum occupancy in most jurisdictions.  A CBC-based methodology consequently results in 
occupancy numbers that are higher than normal maximum usage in most instances.  The numbers also 
are based upon usable floor area and do not take into account corridors, stairs, building equipment 
rooms, and other functions that are part of a building’s gross square footage.  Surveys of actual 
occupancy load factors conducted by various agencies have indicated that many retail and office uses 
are generally occupied at no more than 50% of their maximum occupancy levels, even at the busiest 
times of day.  Therefore, the Handbook indicates that the number of people calculated for office and 
retail uses can usually be divided in half to reflect the actual occupancy levels before making the final 
people-per-acre determination.  Even with this adjustment, the CBC-based methodology typically 
produces intensities at the high end of the likely range. 

Another source of data on square footage per occupant comes from the facility management industry.  
The data is used to help businesses determine how much building space they need to build or lease and 
thus tends to be more generous than the CBC standards.  The numbers vary not only by the type of 
facility, as with the CBC, but also by type of industry.  The following are selected examples of square 
footage per employee gathered from a variety of sources. 
 Call centers 150 – 175 
 Typical offices 180 – 250 
 Law, finance, real estate offices 300 – 325 
 Research & development, light industry 300 – 500 
 Health services 500 

The numbers above do not take into account the customers who may also be present for certain uses.  
For retail business, dining establishments, theaters, and other uses where customers outnumber 
employees, either direct measures of occupancy—the number of seats, for example—or other 
methodologies must be used to estimate the potential number of people on the site.  

Parking Space Requirements 
For many jurisdictions and a wide variety of uses, the number of people present on a site can be 
calculated based upon the number of automobile parking spaces that are required.  Certain limitations 
and assumptions must be considered when applying this methodology, however.  An obvious limitation 
is that parking space requirements can be correlated with occupancy numbers only where nearly all 

Item F - 216 of 335



M E T H O D S  FOR  DE T E R MI NI N G  C O N CE N TR A TI O NS O F P E O P L E      AP P E N DI X  D  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) D–3 

users arrive by private vehicle rather than by public transportation, walking, or other method.  
Secondly, the jurisdiction needs to have a well-defined parking ordinance that lists parking space 
requirements for a wide range of land uses.  For most uses, these requirements are typically stated in 
terms of the number of parking spaces that must be provided per 1,000 square feet of gross building 
size or a similar ratio.  Lastly, assumptions must be made with regard to the average number of people 
who will arrive in each car. 

Both of the critical ratios associated with this methodology—parking spaces to building size and 
occupants to vehicles—vary from one jurisdiction to another even for the same types of uses.  
Research of local ordinances and other sources, though, indicates that the following ratios are typical. 

 Parking Space Ratios—These examples of required parking space requirements are typical of 
those found in ordinances adopted by urban and suburban jurisdictions.  The numbers are ratios 
of spaces required per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area.  Gross floor area is normally measured 
to the outside surfaces of a building and includes all floor levels as well as stairways, elevators, 
storage, and mechanical rooms. 
• Small Restaurants 10.0 
• Medical Offices 4.0 – 5.7 
• Shopping Centers 4.0 – 5.0 
• Health Clubs 3.3 – 5.0 
• Business Professional Offices 3.3 – 4.0 
• Retail Stores 3.0 – 3.5 
• Research & Development 2.5 – 4.0 
• Manufacturing 2.0 – 2.5 
• Furniture, Building Supply Stores 0.7 – 1.0 

 Vehicle Occupancy—Data indicating the average number of people occupying each vehicle 
parking at a particular business or other land use can be found in various transportation surveys.  
The numbers vary both from one community or region to another and over time, thus current 
local data is best if available.  The following data represent typical vehicle occupancy for different 
trip purposes. 
• Work 1.05 – 1.2 
• Education 1.2 – 2.0 
• Medical 1.5 – 1.7 
• Shopping 1.5 – 1.8 
• Dining, Social, Recreational 1.7 – 2.3 

USAGE INTENSITY RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER DEVELOPMENT MEASURES 

Calculating Usage Intensities 
Once the number of people expected in a particular development—both over the entire site and within 
individual buildings—has been estimated, the usage intensity can be calculated.  The criteria in 
Chapter 2 of this Compatibility Plan are measured in terms of the average intensity over the entire project 
site. 

 

Item F - 217 of 335



AP P E N D I X  D      M E T H O DS  FO R D E TE R MI NI NG  C O N CE N TR A TI O NS O F P E O P L E  
 

D–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

The average intensity is calculated by dividing the total number of people on the site by the site size.  A 
10-acre site expected to be occupied by as many as 1,000 people at a time, thus would have an average 
intensity of 100 people per acre.  The site size equals the total size of the parcel or parcels to be 
developed. 

Having calculated the usage intensities of a proposed development, a comparison can be made with the 
criteria set forth in the Compatibility Plan to determine whether the proposal is consistent or inconsistent 
with the policies. 

Comparison with Floor Area Ratio 
As noted earlier, usage intensity or people per acre is not a common metric in land use planning.  Floor 
area ratio or FAR—the gross square footage of the buildings on a site divided by the site size—is a 
more common measure in land use planning.  Some counties and cities adopt explicit FAR limits in 
their zoning ordinance or other policies.  Those that do not set FAR limits often have other 
requirements such as, a maximum number of floors a building can have, minimum setback distances 
from the property line, and minimum number of parking spaces.  These requirements effectively limit 
the floor area ratio as well. 

To facilitate local jurisdiction implementation, the Safety Compatibility Criteria table in Chapter 2 has 
been structured around FAR measures to determine usage intensity limits for many types of 
nonresidential land use development.  To utilize FAR in this manner, a critical additional piece of 
information is necessary to overcome the major shortcoming of FAR as a safety compatibility measure.  
The problem with FAR is that it does not directly correlate with risks to people because different types 
of buildings with the same FAR can have vastly different numbers of people inside—a low-intensity 
warehouse versus a high-intensity restaurant, for example.  For FAR to be applied as a factor in setting 
development limitations, assumptions must be made as to how much space each person (employees 
and others) in the building will occupy.  The Safety Compatibility Criteria table therefore indicates the 
assumed occupancy load factor for various land uses.  Mathematically, the relationship between usage 
intensity and FAR is: 

 FAR = (allowable usage intensity) x (occupancy load factor) 
     43,560 
Where usage intensity is measured in terms of people per acre and occupancy load factor as square feet per 
person. 

Selection of the usage intensity, occupancy level, and FAR numbers that appear in the Safety 
Compatibility Criteria table was done in an iterative manner that considered each of the components 
both separately and together.  Usage intensities were initially set with respect to guidelines provided in 
the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (see Appendix C of this Compatibility Plan).  Occupancy 
levels were derived from the CBC, but were adjusted based upon additional research from both local 
and national sources in the manner discussed earlier in this appendix.  The FAR limits were initially 
calculated from these other two numbers using the formula above. 

Comparison with Parking Space Requirements 
As discussed above, many jurisdictions have adopted parking space requirements that vary from one 
land use type to another.  Factoring in an estimated vehicle occupancy rate for various land uses as 
described earlier, the occupancy load factor can be calculated.  For example, a typical parking space 
requirement for office uses is 4.0 spaces per 1,000 square feet or 1 space per 250 square feet.  If each   

Item F - 218 of 335



M E T H O D S  FOR  DE T E R MI NI N G  C O N CE N TR A TI O NS O F P E O P L E      AP P E N DI X  D  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) D–5 

vehicle is assumed to be occupied by 1.1 persons, the equivalent occupancy load factor would be 1 
person per 227 square feet.  This number falls squarely within the range noted above that was found 
through separate research of norms used by the facility management industry. 

As an added note, the occupancy load factor of 215 square feet per person indicated in the Safety 
Compatibility Criteria table for office uses is slightly more conservative than the above calculation 
produces.  This means that, for a given usage intensity standard, the FAR limit in the table is slightly 
more restrictive than would result from a higher occupancy load factor. 

 

 

Item F - 219 of 335



AP P E N D I X  D      M E T H O DS  FO R D E TE R MI NI NG  C O N CE N TR A TI O NS O F P E O P L E  
 

D–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment)  

 
 

Table D1 

Occupant Load Factors 
California Building Code 
 
 
  Minimum 
 Use Square Feet per Occupant 

 1. Aircraft Hangars (no repair) 500 
 2. Auction Rooms 7 
 3. Assembly Areas, Concentrated Use (without fixed seats) 7 
   Auditoriums 
   Churches and Chapels 
   Dance Floors 
   Lobby Accessory to Assembly Occupancy 
   Lodge Rooms 
   Reviewing Stands 
   Stadiums 
  Waiting Areas 3 
 4. Assembly Areas, Less Concentrated Use 15 
   Conference Rooms 
   Dining Rooms 
   Drinking Establishments  
   Exhibit Rooms 
   Gymnasiums 
   Lounges 
   Stages 
  Gaming 11 
 5. Bowling Alley (assume no occupant load for bowling lanes) 4 
 6. Children’s Homes and Homes for the Aged 80 
 7. Classrooms 20 
 8. Congregate Residences 200 
 9. Courtrooms 40 
 10. Dormitories 50 
 11. Dwellings 300 
 12. Exercising Rooms 50 
 13. Garage, Parking 200 
 14. Health-Care Facilities 80 
   Sleeping Rooms 120 
   Treatment Rooms 240 
 15. Hotels and Apartments 200 
 16. Kitchen – Commercial  200 
 17. Library Reading Room 50 
   Stack Areas 100 
 18. Locker Rooms 50 
 19. Malls Varies 
 20. Manufacturing Areas 200 
 21. Mechanical Equipment Room 300 
 22. Nurseries for Children (Daycare) 35 
 23. Offices 100 
 24. School Shops and Vocational Rooms 50 
 25. Skating Rinks 50 on the skating area; 15 on the deck 
 26. Storage and Stock Rooms 300 
 27. Stores – Retail Sales Rooms 
   Basements and Ground Floors 30 
   Upper Floors 60 
 28. Swimming Pools 50 for the pool area; 15 on the deck 
 29. Warehouses 500 
 30. All Others 100 
 

Source:  California Building Code (2001), Table 10-A 

Item F - 220 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX E 

 

Item F - 221 of 335



APPENDIX E 

SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS 
 

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) E–1 

The City of Ontario is responsible for compatibility planning around LA/Ontario International Airport 
and implementing the compatibility criteria set forth in the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan.  Chapter 1 describes how general plans and specific plans can be modified to achieve 
consistency with compatibility plans.  However, implementation of airport land use compatibility plans 
go beyond general plan consistency, other types of documents are also needed to assist with 
implementing Compatibility Plan policies.  Samples of such implementation documents are included in 
this appendix. 

General Plan Consistency Checklist 
A Compatibility Plan is separate and distinct from a jurisdiction’s other land use policy documents—
general plans, specific plans, and zoning ordinances—yet all of the documents are expected to be made 
consistent with each other through incorporation of the compatibility policies into the general plans 
and zoning ordinances.  To meet the consistency test, a general plan/policy document must do two 
things: 

 It must specifically address compatibility planning issues, either directly or through reference to a 
zoning ordinance or other policy document; and 

 It must avoid direct conflicts with compatibility planning criteria. 
 
Table E1 provides counties and cities with modifications necessary to make their general plans and 
other local policies consistent with the compatibility plan.   

Airport Combining Zone Ordinance 
Chapter 1 of this Compatibility Plan describes one option for achieving consistency, the adoption of an 
airport overlay zone.  An airport overlay zone is one way of collecting various airport-related 
development conditions into one local policy document.  Adoption of an airport overlay zone is not 
required, but is suggested as an option.  Table E2 describes some of the potential components of an 
airport overlay zone. 

Buyer Awareness Measures 
Buyer awareness is an umbrella category for several types of implementation documents all of which 
have the objective of ensuring that prospective buyers within an airport influence area, particularly 
residential property, are informed about the airport’s impact on the property.  The LA/Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan policies include each of these measures. 

 Avigation Easement—Avigation easements transfer certain property rights from the owner of the 
underlying property to the owner of an airport or, in the case of military airports, to a local 
government agency on behalf of the federal government (the U.S. Department of Defense is not 

Item F - 222 of 335



AP P E N D I X  E      S A MP L E  I M P L E ME N T A TI O N DO C U M E N T S  
 

E–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

authorized to accept avigation easements).  Specific easement dedication requirements are set forth 
in Chapter 2.  Also, airports may require avigation easements in conjunction with programs for noise 
insulation of existing structures in the airport vicinity.  A sample of a standard avigation easement is 
included in Table E3. 

 Recorded Overflight Notification— A recorded overflight notification informs property owners 
that the property is subject to aircraft overflight and generation of noise and other impacts.  No 
restrictions on the heights of objects, requirements for marking or lighting of objects, or access to 
the property for these purposes are included.  An overflight notification serves only as buyer 
acceptance of overflight conditions.  Suggested wording of an overflight notification is included in 
Table E4.  Unlike an avigation easement, overflight easement, or other type of easement, an 
overflight notification is not a conveyance of property rights.  However, like an easement, an 
overflight notification is recorded on the property deed and therefore remains in effect with sale of 
the property to subsequent owners.  Overflight notifications are generally appropriate in areas 
outside the 65 dB CNEL noise contour, outside Safety Zones, and within areas where the height of 
structures and other objects would not pose a significant potential of being airspace obstruction 
hazards. 

 Real Estate Disclosure—Local jurisdictions can also establish a policy indicating that information 
about an airport’s influence area should be disclosed to prospective buyers for all properties within 
an airport-vicinity as part of a title transfer.  The advantage of this type of program is that it applies 
to previously existing land uses as well as to new development.  The requirement for disclosure of 
information about the proximity of an airport has been present in state law for some time, but 
legislation adopted in 2002 and effective in January 2004 explicitly ties the requirement to the airport 
influence areas established by airport land use commissions (see Appendix A for excerpts from 
sections of the Business and Professions Code and Civil Code that define these requirements).  With 
certain exceptions, these statutes require disclosure of a property’s location within an airport 
influence area under any of the following three circumstances:  (1) sale or lease of subdivided lands; 
(2) sale of common interest developments; and (3) sale of residential real property.  In each case, the 
disclosure statement to be used is defined by state law as follows: 

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY 

This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is 

known as an airport influence area.  For that reason, the property may be 

subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with   

proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors).  

Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person.  

You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated 

with the property before you complete your purchase and determine 

whether they are acceptable to you. 

Project Comment Worksheet Submittal Information 
As described in Chapter 2, proposed major land use actions submitted through the ONT Inter-Agency 
Notification Process must include sufficient information to enable a comprehensive review of the 
proposed action.  Table E5 provides a sample of the type of information needed for project submittals. 

Item F - 223 of 335



S A MP LE I M PLE M E N TA TI ON  D O C U ME N T S     AP P E N DI X  E  
 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) E–3 

Table E1 

General Plan Consistency Checklist 

This checklist is intended to assist counties and cities with modifications necessary to make their general plans and other 
local policies consistent with the compatibility plan.  It is also designed to facilitate compatibility reviews of these local plans 
and policies. 

COMPATIBILITY CRITERIA 
General Plan Document  

The following items typically appear directly in a general 
plan document.  Amendment of the general plan will be re-
quired if there are any conflicts with the compatibility plan. 
 Land Use Map—No direct conflicts should exist be-

tween proposed new land uses indicated on a general 
plan land use map and the land use compatibility crite-
ria. 
 Residential densities (dwelling units per acre) should 

not exceed the set limits. Differences between gross 
and net densities and the potential for secondary 
dwellings on single parcels (see below) may need to 
be taken into account. 

 Proposed nonresidential development needs to be 
assessed with respect to applicable intensity limits 
(see below). 

 No new land uses of a type listed as specifically 
prohibited should be shown within affected areas. 

 
 Noise Element—General plan noise elements typically 

include criteria indicating the maximum noise exposure 
for which residential development is normally accepta-
ble.  This limit must be made consistent with the equiva-
lent compatibility plan criteria.   

 
 Hazard Element—Incorporate airspace protection poli-

cies. These should be based upon Part 77 of the Fed-
eral Aviation Regulations, but may include exceptions 
for objects within the high terrain zone.   

 
 

 

 

 

Item F - 224 of 335



APPENDIX E     SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS 
 

E–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 
 

Table E2 

Sample Airport Overlay Zone Components 

An airport overlay zone might include some or all of the following components: 

 Airspace Protection—An airport overlay district 
should include airspace protection policies that estab-
lish restrictions on the height of buildings, antennas, 
trees, and other objects as necessary to protect the 
airspace needed for operation of the airport.  These 
restrictions should be based upon the current version 
of the Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 77, 
Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, Subpart C.  
Additions or adjustment to take into account instru-
ment approach (TERPS) surfaces should be made as 
necessary.  Provisions prohibiting smoke, glare, bird 
attractions, and other hazards to flight should also be 
included.  

 FAA Notification Requirements—An airport overlay 
zone can be used to ensure that project developers 
are informed about the need for compliance with the 
notification requirements of FAR Part 77.  Subpart B 
of the regulations requires that the proponent of any 
project which exceeds a specified set of height criteria 
submit a Notice of Proposed Construction or Altera-
tion (Form 7460-1) to the Federal Aviation Administra-
tion prior to commencement of construction.  The 
height criteria associated with this notification re-
quirement are lower than those spelled out in Part 77, 
Subpart C, which define airspace obstructions.  The 
purpose of the notification is to determine if the pro-
posed construction would constitute a potential haz-
ard or obstruction to flight.  Notification is not required 
for proposed structures that would be shielded by ex-
isting structures or by natural terrain of equal or 
greater height, where it is obvious that the proposal 
would not adversely affect air safety. 

 State Regulation of Obstructions—State law pro-
hibits anyone from constructing or altering a structure 
or altering a structure or permitting an object of natu-
ral growth to exceed the heights established by FAR 
Part 77, Subpart C, unless the FAA has determined 
the object would or does not constitute a hazard to air 
navigation (Public Utilities Code, Section 21659).  Ad-
ditionally, a permit from the Department of Transpor-
tation is required for any structure taller than 500 feet 
above the ground unless the height is reviewed and 
approved by the Federal Communications Commis-
sion or the FAA (Section 21656). 

 Designation of High Noise-Impact Areas—
California state statutes require that multi-family resi-
dential structures in high-noise exposure areas be 
constructed so as to limit the interior noise to a Com-
munity Noise Equivalent Level of no more than 45 dB.  
An airport overlay district can be used to indicate the 
locations where special construction techniques may 
be necessary in order to ensure compliance with this 
requirement.  This requirement also includes single-
family dwellings. 

 Maximum Densities/Intensities—Airport noise and 
safety compatibility criteria are frequently expressed 
in terms of dwelling units per acre for residential uses 
and people per acre for other land uses.  These 
standards can either be directly included in an airport 
overlay zone or used to modify the underlying land 
use designations.  For residential land uses, the cor-
relation between the compatibility criteria and land 
use designations is direct.  For other land uses, the 
method of calculating the intensity limitations needs to 
be defined.  Alternatively, a matrix can be established 
indicating whether each specific type of land use is 
compatible with each compatibility zone.  To be use-
ful, the land use categories need to be more detailed 
than typically provided by general plan or zoning ordi-
nance land use designations. 

 Real Estate Disclosure Policies—The geographic 
extent and specific language of recommended real 
estate disclosure statements can be described in an 
airport overlay zone. 

 

  Source: California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002) 

Item F - 225 of 335



SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS     APPENDIX E 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) E–5 

 

Table E3 

Typical Avigation Easement 
 
 

AVIGATION EASEMENT 

 

This indenture made this _____ day of ____________, 20__, between _________________________ hereinafter 
referred to as Grantor, and the City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA)OIAA, a political subdivi-
sion in the State of California, that owns and operates LA/Ontario International Airport in the City of Ontario, State 
of California, hereinafter referred to as Grantee. 

The Grantor, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
does hereby grant to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, a perpetual and assignable easement over the following 
described parcel of land in which the Grantor holds a fee simple estate.  The property which is subject to this ease-
ment is depicted as _____________________ on “Exhibit A” attached and is more particularly described as follows: 

[Insert legal description of real property] 

The easement applies to the Airspace above an imaginary plane over the real property.  The plane is described as fol-
lows: 

The imaginary plane above the hereinbefore described real property, as such plane is defined by Part 77 of the Federal 
Aviation Regulations, and consists of a plane [describe approach, transition, or horizontal surface]; the elevation of 
said plane being based upon the LA/Ontario International Airport official runway end elevation of 944 feet Above 
Mean Sea Level (AMSL), as determined by the LA/Ontario International Airport Layout Plan,  the approximate di-
mensions of which said plane are described and shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by ref-
erence. 

The aforesaid easement and right-of-way includes, but is not limited to: 

(1) For the use and benefit of the public, the easement and continuing right to fly, or cause or permit the flight by 
any and all persons, or any aircraft, of any and all kinds now or hereafter known, in, through, across, or about 
any portion of the Airspace hereinabove described; and  

(2) The easement and right to cause or create, or permit or allow to be caused and created within all space above 
the existing surface of the hereinabove described real property and any and all Airspace laterally adjacent to said 
real property, such noise, vibration, currents and other effects of air illumination and fuel consumption as may 
be inherent in, or may arise or occur from or during the operation of aircraft of any and all kinds, now or here-
after known or used, for navigation of or flight in air; and  

(3) A continuing right to clear and keep clear from the Airspace any portions of buildings, structures or improve-
ments of any kinds, and of trees or other objects, including the right to remove or demolish those portions of 
such buildings, structures, improvements, trees, or other things which extend into or above said Airspace, and 
the right to cut to the ground level and remove, any trees which extend into or above the Airspace; and 

(4) The right to mark and light, or cause or require to be marked and lighted, as obstructions to air navigation, any 
and all buildings, structures or other improvements, and trees or other objects, which extend into or above the 
Airspace; and 

(5) The right of ingress to, passage within, and egress from the hereinabove described real property, for the pur-
poses described in subparagraphs (3) and (4) above at reasonable times and after reasonable notice. 

 

Item F - 226 of 335



APPENDIX E     SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS 
 

E–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 
Table E3, continued 

 

For and on behalf of itself, its successors and assigns, the Grantor hereby covenants with the Los Angeles 
World Airports (LAWA)OIAA, for the direct benefit of the real property constituting the LA/Ontario Interna-
tional Airport hereinafter described, that neither the Grantor, nor its successors in interest or assigns will con-
struct, install, erect, place or grow, in or upon the hereinabove described real property, nor will they permit or 
allow any building structure, improvement, tree, or other object to extend into or above the Airspace so as to 
constitute an obstruction to air navigation or to obstruct or interfere with the use of the easement and rights-
of-way herein granted. 

The easements and rights-of-way herein granted shall be deemed both appurtenant to and for the direct benefit 
of that real property which constitutes the LA/Ontario International Airport, in the City of Ontario, State of 
California; and shall further be deemed in gross, being conveyed to the Grantee for the benefit of the Grantee 
and any and all members of the general public who may use said easement or right-of-way, in landing at, taking 
off from or operating such aircraft in or about the LA/Ontario International Airport, or  in otherwise flying 
through said Airspace. 

Grantor, together with its successors in interest and assigns, hereby waives its right to legal action against 
Grantee, its successors or assigns for monetary damages or other redress due to impacts, as described in para-
graph (2) of the granted rights of easement, associated with aircraft operations in the air or on the ground at the 
airport, including future increases in the volume or changes in location of said operations.  Furthermore, 
Grantee, its successors, and assigns shall have no duty to avoid or mitigate such damages through physical 
modification of airport facilities or establishment or modification of aircraft operational procedures or re-
strictions.  However, this waiver shall not apply if the airport role or character of its usage (as identified in an 
adopted airport master plan, for example) changes in a fundamental manner which could not reasonably have 
been anticipated at the time of the granting of this easement and which results in a substantial increase in the in 
the impacts associated with aircraft operations.  Also, this grant of easement shall not operate to deprive the 
Grantor, its successors or assigns of any rights which may from time to time have against any air carrier or pri-
vate operator for negligent or unlawful operation of aircraft. 

These covenants and agreements run with the land and are binding upon the heirs, administrators, executors, 
successors and assigns of the Grantor, and, for the purpose of this instrument, the real property firstly here-
inabove described is the servient tenement and said Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA)OIAA is the domi-
nant tenement. 

DATED: 

STATE OF } 

s 

COUNTY OF } 

On _____________________, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State 
personally appeared __________________, and ________________ known to me to be the persons whose 
names are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same. 

         WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

__________________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

SSource: California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook  (January 2002) 

Item F - 227 of 335



SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS     APPENDIX E 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) E–7 

Table E4 

Sample Overflight Notification 

 
 

OVERFLIGHT NOTIFICATION 

 

This Overflight Notification concerns the real property situated in the City of _______________________, State 
of California, described as ______________________________ [APN No.: ____]. 

This Overflight Notification provides notification of the condition of the above described property in recognition 
of, and in compliance with, CALIFORNIA BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE Section 11010 and CALIFORNIA CIV-

IL CODE Sections 1102.6, 1103.4 and 1353, effective January 1, 2004, and related state and local regulations and 
consistent with policies of the Alternative Process for the City of Ontario and other participating local jurisdic-
tions for overflight notification provided in the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY:  This property is located in the vicinity of an airport and within the airport influence 
area.  The property may be subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to an airport and aircraft 
operations (for example:  noise, vibration, overflights or odors).  Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to 
person.  You should consider what airport annoyances, if any, affect the Property before you complete your purchase and whether they 
are acceptable to you. 

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has regulatory authority over the operation of aircraft in flight and 
on the runway and taxiway surfaces at LA/Ontario International Airport.  The FAA is, therefore, exclusively re-
sponsible for airspace and air traffic management, including ensuring the safe and efficient use of navigable air-
space, developing air traffic rules, assigning the use of airspace and controlling air traffic.  Please contact the 
FAA for more detailed information regarding overflight and airspace protection issues associated with the op-
eration of military aircraft. 

 Airport maintains information regarding hours of operation and other relevant information regarding airport 
operations.  Please contact your local airport operator for more detailed information regarding airport specific 
operational issues including hours of operation.   

This Overflight Notification shall run with the Property and shall be binding upon all parties having or acquiring any 
right, title or interest in the Property.   

Effective Date:_________, 20__ 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item F - 228 of 335



APPENDIX E     SAMPLE IMPLEMENTATION DOCUMENTS 
 

E–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Table E5 

Sample Project Submittal Information  
 

 

 Property location data (assessor’s parcel number, street address, subdivision lot number). 
 An accurately scaled map depicting the project site location in relationship to the LA/Ontario International 

Airport boundary and runways. 
 A description of the proposed use(s), current general plan and zoning designations, and the type of land 

use action being sought from the local agency (e.g., zoning variance, special use permit, building permit). 
 If applicable, a detailed site plan and supporting data showing:  site boundaries and size; existing uses 

that will remain; location of existing and proposed structures, open spaces, and water bodies; ground ele-
vations (above mean sea level) and elevations of tops of structures and trees.  Additionally: 
 For residential uses, an indication of the potential or proposed number of dwelling units per acre 

(excluding any secondary units). 
 For nonresidential uses, the total floor area for each type of proposed use, the number of auto park-

ing spaces, and, if known, the number of people potentially occupying the total site or portions 
thereof at any one time. 

 Identification of any features, during or following construction that would increase the attraction of birds or 
cause other wildlife hazards to aircraft operations on the airport or in its environs.  Such features include, 
but are not limited to the following: 
 Open water areas. 
 Sediment ponds, retention basins. 
 Detention basins that hold water for more than 48 hours. 
 Artificial wetlands. 

 Identification of any characteristics that could create electrical interference, confusing or bright lights, 
glare, smoke, or other electrical or visual hazards to aircraft flight. 

 Any environmental document (initial study, draft environmental impact report, etc.) that may have been 
prepared for the project. 

 Any staff reports regarding the project that may have been presented to local agency decision makers. 
 Other relevant information that is determined to be necessary by the affected agency to enable a com-

prehensive review of the proposed action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Item F - 229 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX F 

 

Item F - 230 of 335



APPENDIX F 
LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) F–1 

Exhibit F1  

Alternative Process Resolution No. 95-34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 231 of 335



APPENDIX F     LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 

F–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 
Exhibit F1, Continued 

 
 

Item F - 232 of 335



LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING DOCUMENTS     APPENDIX F 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) F–3 

Exhibit F1, Continued 

 
 
 

Item F - 233 of 335



APPENDIX F     LA/ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 

F–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

 
Exhibit F2  
Alternative Process Language Approval Letter from California Division of Aeronautics 

 
 
 
Exhibit F – 3 
Alternative Process Final Approval Letter from California Division of Aeronautics 

(Pending) 
 

 
 

Item F - 234 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX G 

 

Item F - 235 of 335



APPENDIX G 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) G–1 

Above Ground Level (AGL):  An elevation datum given in feet above ground level. 

Accident Potential Zones (APZs):  A set of safety-related zones defined by AICUZ studies for areas 
beyond the ends of military airport runways.  Typically, three types of zones are established:  a clear 
zone closest to the runway end, then APZ I and APZ II.  The potential for aircraft accidents and the 
corresponding need for land use restrictions is greatest with the clear zone and diminishes with in-
creased distance from the runway. 

Air Carriers:  The commercial system of air transportation, consisting of the certificated air carriers, air 
taxis (including commuters), supplemental air carriers, commercial operators of large aircraft, and air 
travel clubs. 

Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ):  A land use compatible plan prepared by the U.S. 
Department of Defense for military airfields.  AICUZ plans serve as recommendations to local gov-
ernments bodies having jurisdiction over land uses surrounding these facilities. 

Aircraft Accident:  An occurrence incident to flight in which, as a result of the operation of an aircraft, 
a person (occupant or nonoccupant) receives fatal or serious injury or an aircraft receives substantial 
damage. 

 Except as provided below, substantial damage means damage or structural failure that adversely af-
fects the structural strength, performance, or flight characteristics of the aircraft, and that would 
normally require major repair or replacement of the affected component. 

 Engine failure, damage limited to an engine, bent fairings or cowling, dented skin, small puncture 
holes in the skin or fabric, ground damage to rotor or propeller blades, damage to landing gear, 
wheels, tires, flaps, engine accessories, brakes, or wingtips are not considered substantial damage. 

Aircraft Incident:  A mishap associated with the operation of an aircraft in which neither fatal or seri-
ous injuries nor substantial damage to the aircraft occur. 

Aircraft Mishap:  The collective term for an aircraft accident or an incident. 

Aircraft Operation:  The airborne movement of aircraft at an airport or about an en route fix or at 
other point where counts can be made.  There are two types of operations: local and itinerant. An oper-
ation is counted for each landing and each departure, such that a touch-and-go flight is counted as two 
operations.  (FAA Stats) 

Airport:  An area of land or water that is used or intended to be used for the landing and taking off of 
aircraft, and includes its buildings and facilities if any.  (FAR 1) 

Airport Elevation:  The highest point of an airport’s useable runways, measured in feet above mean 
sea level.  (AIM) 

Item F - 236 of 335



AP P E N D I X  G      G L O S S A R Y  O F T E R MS  
 

G–2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC):  A commission authorized under the provisions of Califor-
nia Public Utilities Code, Section 21670 et seq. and established (in any county within which a public-use 
airport is located) for the purpose of promoting compatibility between airports and the land uses sur-
rounding them. 

Airport Layout Plan (ALP):  A scale drawing of existing and proposed airport facilities, their location 
on an airport, and the pertinent clearance and dimensional information required to demonstrate con-
formance with applicable standards. 

Airport Master Plan (AMP):  A long-range plan for development of an airport, including descriptions 
of the data and analyses on which the plan is based. 

Airport Reference Code (ARC):  A coding system used to relate airport design criteria to the opera-
tion and physical characteristics of the airplanes intended to operate at an airport.  (Airport Design AC)   

Airports, Classes of:  For the purposes of issuing a Site Approval Permit, The California Department 
of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics classifies airports into the following categories:  (CCR) 

 Agricultural Airport or Heliport:  An airport restricted to use only be agricultural aerial applicator air-
craft (FAR Part 137 operators). 

 Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Landing Site:  A site used for the landing and taking off of EMS heli-
copters that is located at or as near as practical to a medical emergency or at or near an medical fa-
cility and  

(1) has been designated an EMS landing site by an officer authorized by a public safety agency, as 
defined in PUC Section 21662.1, using criteria that the public safety agency has determined is 
reasonable and prudent for the safe operation of EMS helicopters and 

(2) is used, over any twelve month period, for no more than an average of six landings per month 
with a patient or patients on the helicopter, except to allow for adequate medical response to a 
mass casualty event even if that response causes the site to be used beyond these limits, and 

(3) is not marked as a permitted heliport as described in Section 3554 of these regulations and 

(4) is used only for emergency medical purposes. 

 Heliport on Offshore Oil Platform:  A heliport located on a structure in the ocean, not connected to the 
shore by pier, bridge, wharf, dock or breakwater, used in the support of petroleum exploration or 
production. 

 Personal-Use Airport:  An airport limited to the non-commercial use of an individual owner or family 
and occasional invited guests. 

 Public-Use Airport:  An airport that is open for aircraft operations to the general public and is listed 
in the current edition of the Airport/Facility Directory that is published by the National Ocean Service 
of the U.S. Department of Commerce. 

 Seaplane Landing Site:  An area of water used, or intended for use, for landing and takeoff of sea-
planes. 

 Special-Use Airport or Heliport:  An airport not open to the general public, access to which is con-
trolled by the owner in support of commercial activities, public service operations, and/or personal 
use. 

Item F - 237 of 335



G LO SS A R Y O F TE R M S     AP P E N DI X  G  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) G–3 

 Temporary Helicopter Landing Site:  A site, other than an emergency medical service landing site at or 
near a medical facility, which is used for landing and taking off of helicopters and 

(1) is used or intended to be used for less than one year, except for recurrent annual events and 

(2) is not marked or lighted to be distinguishable as a heliport and 

(3) is not used exclusively for helicopter operations. 

Ambient Noise Level:  The level of noise that is all encompassing within a given environment for 
which a single source cannot be determined.  It is usually a composite of sounds from many and varied 
sources near to and far from the receiver. 

Approach Protection Easement:  A form of easement that both conveys all of the rights of an aviga-
tion easement and sets specified limitations on the type of land uses allowed to be developed on the 
property. 

Approach Speed:  The recommended speed contained in aircraft manuals used by pilots when making 
an approach to landing.  This speed will vary for different segments of an approach as well as for air-
craft weight and configuration.  (AIM) 

Aviation-Related Use:  Any facility or activity directly associated with the air transportation of per-
sons or cargo or the operation, storage, or maintenance of aircraft at an airport or heliport.  Such uses 
specifically include runways, taxiways, and their associated protected areas defined by the Federal Avia-
tion Administration, together with aircraft aprons, hangars, fixed base operations, terminal buildings, 
etc. 

Avigation Easement:  A type of easement that typically conveys the following rights: 

 A right-of-way for free and unobstructed passage of aircraft through the airspace over the property 
at any altitude above a surface specified in the easement (usually set in accordance with FAR Part 
77 criteria). 

 A right to subject the property to noise, vibrations, fumes, dust, and fuel particle emissions associ-
ated with normal airport activity. 

 A right to prohibit the erection or growth of any structure, tree, or other object that would enter 
the acquired airspace. 

 A right-of-entry onto the property, with proper advance notice, for the purpose of removing, mark-
ing, or lighting any structure or other object that enters the acquired airspace. 

 A right to prohibit electrical interference, glare, misleading lights, visual impairments, and other 
hazards to aircraft flight from being created on the property. 

Based Aircraft:  Aircraft stationed at an airport on a long-term basis. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA):  Statutes adopted by the state legislature for the 
purpose of maintaining a quality environment for the people of the state now and in the future.  The 
Act establishes a process for state and local agency review of projects, as defined in the implementing 
guidelines, that may adversely affect the environment. 

Ceiling:  Height above the earth’s surface to the lowest layer of clouds or obscuring phenomena.  
(AIM) 

Item F - 238 of 335



AP P E N D I X  G      G L O S S A R Y  O F T E R MS  
 

G–4 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Circling Approach/Circle-to-Land Maneuver:  A maneuver initiated by the pilot to align the aircraft 
with a runway for landing when a straight-in landing from an instrument approach is not possible or 
not desirable.  (AIM) 

Clear Zone:  The military airport equivalent of runway protection zones at civilian airports. 

Combining District:  A zoning district that establishes development standards in areas of special con-
cern over and above the standards applicable to basic underlying zoning districts. 

Commercial Activities:  Airport-related activities that may offer a facility, service or commodity for 
sale, hire or profit.  Examples of commodities for sale are:  food, lodging, entertainment, real estate, 
petroleum products, parts and equipment.  Examples of services are:  flight training, charter flights, 
maintenance, aircraft storage, and tiedown.  (CCR) 

Commercial Operator:  A person who, for compensation or hire, engages in the carriage by aircraft in 
air commerce of persons or property, other than as an air carrier.  (FAR 1) 

Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL):  The noise metric adopted by the State of California 
for evaluating airport noise.  It represents the average daytime noise level during a 24-hour day, adjust-
ed to an equivalent level to account for the lower tolerance of people to noise during evening and 
nighttime periods relative to the daytime period.  (State Airport Noise Standards) 

Compatibility Plan:  As used herein, a plan, usually adopted by an Airport Land Use Commission that 
sets forth policies for promoting compatibility between airports and the land uses that surround them.  
Often referred to as a Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP). 

Controlled Airspace:  Any of several types of airspace within which some or all aircraft may be subject 
to air traffic control.  (FAR 1) 

Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL):  The noise metric adopted by the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency for measurement of environmental noise.  It represents the average daytime noise 
level during a 24-hour day, measured in decibels and adjusted to account for the lower tolerance of 
people to noise during nighttime periods.  The mathematical symbol is Ldn. 

Decibel (dB):  A unit measuring the magnitude of a sound, equal to the logarithm of the ratio of the 
intensity of the sound to the intensity of an arbitrarily chosen standard sound, specifically a sound just 
barely audible to an unimpaired human ear.  For environmental noise from aircraft and other transpor-
tation sources, an A-weighted sound level (abbreviated dBA) is normally used.  The A-weighting scale ad-
justs the values of different sound frequencies to approximate the auditory sensitivity of the human ear. 

Deed Notice:  A formal statement added to the legal description of a deed to a property and on any 
subdivision map.  As used in airport land use planning, a deed notice would state that the property is 
subject to aircraft overflights.  Deed notices are used as a form of buyer notification as a means of en-
suring that those who are particularly sensitive to aircraft overflights can avoid moving to the affected 
areas. 

Designated Body:  A local government entity, such as a regional planning agency or a county planning 
commission, chosen by the county board of supervisors and the selection committee of city mayors to 
act in the capacity of an airport land use commission. 

Displaced Threshold:  A landing threshold that is located at a point on the runway other than the 
designated beginning of the runway (see Threshold).  (AIM) 

Item F - 239 of 335



G LO SS A R Y O F TE R M S     AP P E N DI X  G  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) G–5 

Easement:  A less-than-fee-title transfer of real property rights from the property owner to the holder 
of the easement. 

Equivalent Sound Level (Leq):  The level of constant sound that, in the given situation and time peri-
od, has the same average sound energy as does a time-varying sound. 

FAR Part 77:  The part of the Federal Aviation Regulations that deals with objects affecting navigable 
airspace. 

FAR Part 77 Surfaces:  Imaginary airspace surfaces established with relation to each runway of an air-
port.  There are five types of surfaces:  (1) primary; (2) approach; (3) transitional; (4) horizontal; and (5) 
conical. 

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA):  The U.S. government agency that is responsible for ensur-
ing the safe and efficient use of the nation’s airports and airspace. 

Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR):  Regulations formally issued by the FAA to regulate air com-
merce. 

Findings:  Legally relevant subconclusions that expose a government agency’s mode of analysis of 
facts, regulations, and policies, and that bridge the analytical gap between raw data and ultimate deci-
sion. 

Fixed Base Operator (FBO):  A business that operates at an airport and provides aircraft services to 
the general public including, but not limited to, sale of fuel and oil; aircraft sales, rental, maintenance, 
and repair; parking and tiedown or storage of aircraft; flight training; air taxi/charter operations; and 
specialty services, such as instrument and avionics maintenance, painting, overhaul, aerial application, 
aerial photography, aerial hoists, or pipeline patrol. 

General Aviation:  That portion of civil aviation that encompasses all facets of aviation except air car-
riers.  (FAA Stats) 

Glide Slope:  An electronic signal radiated by a component of an ILS to provide vertical guidance for 
aircraft during approach and landing. 

Global Positioning System (GPS):  A navigational system that utilizes a network of satellites to de-
termine a positional fix almost anywhere on or above the earth.  Developed and operated by the U.S. 
Department of Defense, GPS has been made available to the civilian sector for surface, marine, and 
aerial navigational use.  For aviation purposes, the current form of GPS guidance provides en route aer-
ial navigation and selected types of nonprecision instrument approaches.  Eventual application of GPS 
as the principal system of navigational guidance throughout the world is anticipated. 

Helipad:  A small, designated area, usually with a prepared surface, on a heliport, airport, land-
ing/takeoff area, apron/ramp, or movement area used for takeoff, landing, or parking of helicopters.  
(AIM) 

Heliport:  A facility used for operating, basing, housing, and maintaining helicopters.  (HAI) 

Infill:  Development that takes place on vacant property largely surrounded by existing development, 
especially development that is similar in character. 

Instrument Approach Procedure:  A series of predetermined maneuvers for the orderly transfer of 
an aircraft under instrument flight conditions from the beginning of the initial approach to a landing or 

Item F - 240 of 335



AP P E N D I X  G      G L O S S A R Y  O F T E R MS  
 

G–6 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

to a point from which a landing may be made visually.  It is prescribed and approved for a specific air-
port by competent authority (refer to Nonprecision Approach Procedure and Precision Approach Procedure).  
(AIM) 

Instrument Flight Rules (IFR):  Rules governing the procedures for conducting instrument flight.  
Generally, IFR applies when meteorological conditions with a ceiling below 1,000 feet and visibility less 
than 3 miles prevail.  (AIM) 

Instrument Landing System (ILS):  A precision instrument approach system that normally consists 
of the following electronic components and visual aids:  (1) Localizer; (2) Glide Slope; (3) Outer Mark-
er; (4) Middle Marker; (5) Approach Lights.  (AIM) 

Instrument Operation:  An aircraft operation in accordance with an IFR flight plan or an operation 
where IFR separation between aircraft is provided by a terminal control facility.  (FAA ATA) 

Instrument Runway:  A runway equipped with electronic and visual navigation aids for which a preci-
sion or nonprecision approach procedure having straight-in landing minimums has been approved.  
(AIM) 

Inverse Condemnation:  An action brought by a property owner seeking just compensation for land 
taken for a public use against a government or private entity having the power of eminent domain.  It is 
a remedy peculiar to the property owner and is exercisable by that party where it appears that the taker 
of the property does not intend to bring eminent domain proceedings. 

Land Use Density:  A measure of the concentration of land use development in an area.  Mostly the 
term is used with respect to residential development and refers to the number of dwelling units per 
acre.  Unless otherwise noted, policies in this compatibility plan refer to gross rather than net acreage. 

Land Use Intensity:  A measure of the concentration of nonresidential land use development in an 
area.  For the purposes of airport land use planning, the term indicates the number of people per acre 
attracted by the land use.  Unless otherwise noted, policies in this compatibility plan refer to gross rather 
than net acreage. 

Large Airplane:  An airplane of more than 12,500 pounds maximum certificated takeoff weight.  (Air-
port Design AC) 

Localizer (LOC):  The component of an ILS that provides course guidance to the runway.  (AIM) 

Mean Sea Level (MSL):  An elevation datum given in feet from mean sea level. 

Minimum Descent Altitude (MDA):  The lowest altitude, expressed in feet above mean sea level, to 
which descent is authorized on final approach or during circle-to-land maneuvering in execution of a 
standard instrument approach procedure where no electronic glide slope is provided.  (FAR 1) 

Missed Approach:  A maneuver conducted by a pilot when an instrument approach cannot be com-
pleted to a landing.  (AIM) 

National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB):  The U.S. government agency responsible for in-
vestigating transportation accidents and incidents. 

Navigational Aid (Navaid):  Any visual or electronic device airborne or on the surface that provides 
point-to-point guidance information or position data to aircraft in flight.  (AIM) 

Item F - 241 of 335



G LO SS A R Y O F TE R M S     AP P E N DI X  G  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) G–7 

Noise Contours:  Continuous lines of equal noise level usually drawn around a noise source, such as 
an airport or highway.  The lines are generally drawn in 5-decibel increments so that they resemble ele-
vation contours in topographic maps. 

Noise Level Reduction (NLR):  A measure used to describe the reduction in sound level from envi-
ronmental noise sources occurring between the outside and the inside of a structure. 

Nonconforming Use:  An existing land use that does not conform to subsequently adopted or 
amended zoning or other land use development standards. 

Nonprecision Approach Procedure:  A standard instrument approach procedure in which no elec-
tronic glide slope is provided.  (FAR 1) 

Nonprecision Instrument Runway:  A runway with an approved or planned straight-in instrument 
approach procedure that has no existing or planned precision instrument approach procedure.  (Airport 
Design AC) 

Obstruction:  Any object of natural growth, terrain, or permanent or temporary construction or altera-
tion, including equipment or materials used therein, the height of which exceeds the standards estab-
lished in Subpart C of Federal Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace. 

Overflight:  Any distinctly visible and/or audible passage of an aircraft in flight, not necessarily directly 
overhead. 

Overflight Easement:  An easement that describes the right to overfly the property above a specified 
surface and includes the right to subject the property to noise, vibrations, fumes, and emissions.  An 
overflight easement is used primarily as a form of buyer notification. 

Overflight Zone:  The area(s) where aircraft maneuver to enter or leave the traffic pattern, typically 
defined by the FAR Part 77 horizontal surface. 

Overlay Zone:  See Combining District. 

Planning Area Boundary:  An area surrounding an airport designated by an ALUC for the purpose of 
airport land use compatibility planning conducted in accordance with provisions of the State Aero-
nautics Act. 

Precision Approach Procedure:  A standard instrument approach procedure where an electronic 
glide slope is provided.  (FAR 1) 

Precision Instrument Runway:  A runway with an existing or planned precision instrument approach 
procedure.  (Airport Design AC) 

Referral Area:  The area around an airport defined by the planning area boundary adopted by an air-
port land use commission within which certain land use proposals are to be referred to the commission 
for review. 

Runway Protection Zone (RPZ):  An area (formerly called a clear zone) off the end of a runway used 
to enhance the protection of people and property on the ground.  (Airport Design AC) 

Safety Zone:  For the purpose of airport land use planning, an area near an airport in which land use 
restrictions are established to protect the safety of the public from potential aircraft accidents. 

Single-Event Noise:  As used in herein, the noise from an individual aircraft operation or overflight. 

Item F - 242 of 335



AP P E N D I X  G      G L O S S A R Y  O F T E R MS  
 

G–8 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

Single Event Noise Exposure Level (SENEL):  A measure, in decibels, of the noise exposure level 
of a single event, such as an aircraft flyby, measured over the time interval between the initial and final 
times for which the noise level of the event exceeds a threshold noise level and normalized to a refer-
ence duration of one second.  SENEL is a noise metric established for use in California by the state 
Airport Noise Standards and is essentially identical to Sound Exposure Level (SEL). 

Site Approval Permit:  A written approval issued by the California Department of Transportation au-
thorizing construction of an airport in accordance with approved plans, specifications, and conditions.  
Both public-use and special-use airports require a site approval permit.  (CCR) 

Small Airplane:  An airplane of 12,500 pounds or less maximum certificated takeoff weight.  (Airport 
Design AC) 

Sound Exposure Level (SEL):  A time-integrated metric (i.e., continuously summed over a time peri-
od) that quantifies the total energy in the A-weighted sound level measured during a transient noise 
event.  The time period for this measurement is generally taken to be that between the moments when 
the A-weighted sound level is 10 dB below the maximum. 

Straight-In Instrument Approach:  An instrument approach wherein a final approach is begun with-
out first having executed a procedure turn; it is not necessarily completed with a straight-in landing or 
made to straight-in landing weather minimums.  (AIM) 

Taking:  Government appropriation of private land for which compensation must be paid as required 
by the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution.  It is not essential that there be physical seizure or 
appropriation for a taking to occur, only that the government action directly interferes with or substan-
tially disturbs the owner’s right to use and enjoyment of the property. 

Terminal Instrument Procedures (TERPS):  Procedures for instrument approach and departure of 
aircraft to and from civil and military airports.  There are four types of terminal instrument procedures:  
precision approach, nonprecision approach, circling, and departure. 

Threshold:  The beginning of that portion of the runway usable for landing (also see Displaced Thresh-
old).  (AIM) 

Touch-and-Go:  An operation by an aircraft that lands and departs on a runway without stopping or 
exiting the runway.  (AIM) 

Traffic Pattern:  The traffic flow that is prescribed for aircraft landing at, taxiing on, or taking off from 
an airport.  The components of a typical traffic pattern are upwind leg, crosswind leg, downwind leg, 
base leg, and final approach.  (AIM) 

Visual Approach:  An approach where the pilot must use visual reference to the runway for landing 
under VFR conditions. 

Visual Flight Rules (VFR):  Rules that govern the procedures for conducting flight under visual con-
ditions.  VFR applies when meteorological conditions are equal to or greater than the specified mini-
mum-generally, a 1,000-foot ceiling and 3-mile visibility. 

Visual Runway:  A runway intended solely for the operation of aircraft using visual approach proce-
dures, with no straight-in instrument approach procedure and no instrument designation indicated on 
an FAA-approved airport layout plan.  (Airport Design AC) 

Item F - 243 of 335



G LO SS A R Y O F TE R M S     AP P E N DI X  G  
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) G–9 

Zoning:  A police power measure, enacted primarily by units of local government, in which the com-
munity is divided into districts or zones within which permitted and special uses are established, as are 
regulations governing lot size, building bulk, placement, and other development standards.  Require-
ments vary from district to district, but they must be uniform within districts.  A zoning ordinance con-
sists of two parts:  the text and a map. 

 

Glossary Sources 

FAR 1:  Federal Aviation Regulations Part 1, Definitions and Abbreviations 

AIM:  Aeronautical Information Manual 

Airport Design AC:  Federal Aviation Administration, Airport Design Advisory Circular 150/5300-13 

CCR:  California Code of Regulations, Title 21, Section 3525 et seq., Division of Aeronautics 

FAA ATA:  Federal Aviation Administration, Air Traffic Activity 

FAA Stats:  Federal Aviation Administration, Statistical Handbook of Aviation 

HAI:  Helicopter Association International 

NTSB:  National Transportation and Safety Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 244 of 335



AP P E N D I X  G      G L O S S A R Y  O F T E R MS  
 

G–10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011July 2018 Amendment) 

This page was left intentionally blank. 

Item F - 245 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX H 

 

Item F - 246 of 335



 APPENDIX H 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–1 

California Environmental Quality Act 
Environmental Checklist Forms 
 
 
Project Name: LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP or Compatibility 
Plan”) 
 
Project Sponsor:  City of Ontario – Planning Department, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California, 91764 
 
Contact Person:  Lorena Mejia, Associate Planner, (909) 395‐2276 
 
Project  Location:    LA/Ontario  International Airport  (ONT)  is  located  in  southwestern  San Bernardino 
County,  within  the  City  of  Ontario.    The  City  of  Ontario  is  located  approximately  40  miles  from 
downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from downtown San Bernardino, and 30 miles from Orange County as 
illustrated on Figure H1. ONT is classified as a primary commercial service airport, owned by the City of 
Los Angeles and operated by Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA).   

The geographic scope of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)  is the Airport  Influence Area 
(AIA),  the  area  in  which  current  or  future  airport‐related  noise,  safety,  airspace  protection  and/or 
overflight  factors may  affect  land  uses  or  necessitate  restrictions  on  those  uses.  The  AIA  includes 
portions  of  the  Cities  of  Ontario,  Fontana,  Upland, Montclair,  Rancho  Cucamonga,  Chino,  Pomona, 
Claremont  and  unincorporated  portions  of  San  Bernardino,  Riverside  and  Los  Angeles  Counties  as 
illustrated in Figure H2.  

Project  Description:    The  function  of  the  ALUCP  is  to  promote  compatibility  between  ONT  and 
surrounding  land uses as provided  in the State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code, section 21670 et 
seq.).  The proposed ALUCP provides specific limitations and conditions for developing future residential, 
commercial and other noise and risk sensitive uses surrounding ONT.   The proposed ALUCP consists of 
several  components  including:  airport  and  land  use  information,  compatibility  policies  and  criteria, 
compatibility zone maps and procedural policies. The proposed ALUCP for ONT would supplement the 
Airport Environs section of The Ontario Plan  (Ontario’s General Plan), which currently serves as ONT’s 
airport land use plan, by providing land use compatibility policies and criteria for ONT and surrounding 
areas.    The  preparation  of  the  proposed  ALUCP  was  guided  by  the  California  Department  of 
Transportations’ California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002). 

It is important to note that the ALUCP only governs future land uses within the AIA; it does not regulate 
existing uses.   Further, the ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational changes to LA/Ontario 
International Airport (ONT) nor has any authority over operations; all authority over ONT rests with Los 
Angeles World Airports  (LAWA)  and  Federal Aviation Administration  (FAA).    LAWA began  the master 
planning  process  for  ONT,  but  suspended  that  effort  in  2008.    Before  its  planning  process  was 
suspended, LAWA developed a tentative proposal for reconfiguration of the runway system that would 

City of Ontario
Planning Department
303 East “B” Street
Ontario, California

Phone: (909) 395‐2036
Fax: (909) 395‐2420

Item F - 247 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–2                                                LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

accommodate  potential  future  passenger  and  air  cargo  volume  in  2030.    The  State  Aeronautics  Act 
requires that the ALUCP “be based on a long‐range master plan or an airport layout plan, as determined 
by the Division of Aeronautics of the Department of Transportation that reflects the anticipated growth 
of the airport during at least the next 20 years.”  (Pub. Utilities Code, § 21675(a).)  Therefore, while the 
ALUCP  includes an airport  layout plan that shifts ONT’s runways to the east and south for airport  land 
use planning purposes, the City has no approval authority over that  layout, nor does  inclusion of that 
layout  in  the ALUCP  facilitate expansion of ONT’s operations.   Any  such expansion would have  to be 
approved by LAWA as part of an Airport Master Plan.   

General Plan Designation:  General Plan Designations vary within ONT’s AIA. 

Zoning:  Zoning varies within ONT’s AIA. 

Other  public  agencies whose  approval  is  required  (e.g.,  permits,  financing  approval  or  participation 
agreement):   The Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan requires approval from the California Division of 
Aeronautics  and  participation  agreements  from  the  affected  jurisdictions  within  the  County  of  San 
Bernardino.   

Environmental  Factors  Potentially  Affected:  The  environmental  factors  checked  below  would  be 
potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" 
as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 

  Aesthetics    Agriculture Resources   Air Quality 

  Biological Resources    Cultural Resources   Geology / Soils 

  Greenhouse Gas Emissions    Hazards & Hazardous Materials   Hydrology / Water Quality

  Land Use / Planning    Mineral Resources   Noise

  Population / Housing    Public Services   Recreation 

  Transportation / Traffic    Utilities / Service Systems   Mandatory Findings of Significance

 

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency): 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

  I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION will be prepared. 

  I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be 
a  significant  effect  in  this  case  because  revisions  in  the  project  have  been made  by  or  agreed  to  by  the 
project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

  I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT is required. 

Item F - 248 of 335



LA/

 

 

/On

 

 

 

 
 
Sign
Nam
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

tario

I 
m
d
o
b

I 
p
p
N
p

nat
me 

o Inte

find
mitig
ocu

on th
but it

find
pote
pursu
NEGA
proje

ure
(pr

erna

d  th
gate
ume
he e
t mu

d  th
ntia
uan
ATIV
ect, 

:  
int 

ation

hat 
ed" i
nt p
earli
ust a

hat a
ally s
t  to
VE D
not

or t

nal A

the
imp
purs
ier a
ana

alth
sign
o  ap
DEC
hing

type

Airpo

e  pr
act 
suan
anal
lyze

oug
ifica
pplic
LAR
g fu

e): L

ort L

opo
on t
nt to
lysis
e on

gh  th
ant 
cable
RATI
rthe

Lore

and 

osed
the 
o ap
s as 
ly th

he p
effe
e  st
ON,
er is

ena 

d Use

d  pr
env

pplic
des
he e

prop
ects 
tand
,  inc
 req

Me

e Co

ojec
viron
cable
scrib
effec

pose
(a) 

dard
clud
quire

ejia 

ompa

ct M
nme
e leg
bed 
cts t

ed p
hav
s,  a
ing 
ed. 

atibi

MAY
ent, 
gal 
on 
that 

proj
ve be
and 
rev

ility P

Y  ha
but
stan
atta
 rem

ect 
een
(b) 

visio

Plan

ave 
t at 
ndar
ache
main

cou
 ana
hav
ns o

n (Ad

a  "
leas
rds, 
ed s
n to 

uld 
alyz
ve b
or m

dopt

pot
st o
and

shee
be a

hav
ed a
been
mitig

ted A

enti
ne e
d 2)
ets. 
add

e a 
adeq
n  av
gatio

O N T

April

ially
effe
 has
 An
ress

sign
quat
void
on m

T  A L

l 19,

y  sig
ct 1
s be
 EN
sed.

nific
tely
ed 
mea

L U C

, 201

gnifi
1) ha
een 
VIR
. 

cant
y in a
or m
asur

Da
Tit

P  E

11)

ican
as b
add
ONM

t eff
an e
mitig
res  t

te: 
le: A

N VI

nt"   
een
dres
MEN

fect 
earli
gate
that

Jan
Ass

R O N

or 
n ad
sed 
NTA

on 
ier E
ed p
t are

nuar
ocia

N M E

"po
equ
by 

AL  IM

the
EIR o
purs
e  im

ry 2
ate 

E N T

oten
uate
mit
MPA

e en
or N
suan
mpos

26, 2
Pla

A L  

ntial
ly a
igat
ACT 

nviro
NEGA
nt  to
sed 

201
nne

R E V

ly  s
naly
tion 
REP

onm
ATIV
o  th
upo

1 
er 

V I E W

signi
yzed
me

PORT

ment
VE D
hat e
on  t

W   A

ifica
d in 
easu
T  is 

t, be
DECL
earl
the 

A P P

ant 
an 

ures 
req

ecau
LARA
ier 
pro

E N D

H

unle
earl
bas
quire

use 
ATIO
EIR 
opos

D I X

–3

ess 
lier 
sed 
ed, 

all 
ON 
or 

sed 

H       

Item F - 249 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–4                                                LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 

 

 

This page was left intentionally blank.

Item F - 250 of 335



 
O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W      A P P E N D I X  H     

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)               H–5                           
             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 251 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–6                                                                                                                  LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 252 of 335



 
 

O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  H    
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–7 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

1.  AESTHETICS  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (d):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes  to existing  land uses or  the environment, nor would  it authorize 
new  forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general 
plan.  Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing 
general plans.   Therefore, the proposed ALUCP would not directly or  indirectly affect a scenic vista, 
damage  scenic  resources,  degrade  the  existing  visual  character  or  quality  of  the  site  or  its 
surroundings, or create a new source of  light or glare, and, as such, would not directly  impact  the 
environment  or  result  in  any  direct  impacts  to  aesthetics.    Also,  the  proposed  ALUCP would  not 
encourage  levels of development  in any area  located within the Airport  Influence Area  (AIA) above 
those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the environmental effects were 
already adequately analyzed in their respective certified general plan environmental documentation.  
Therefore, there would be no impact. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Have  a  substantial  adverse  effect  on  a  scenic 
vista?        X 

(b) Substantially  damage  scenic  resources, 
including,  but  not  limited  to,  trees,  rock 
outcroppings,  and  historic  buildings  within  a 
state scenic highway? 

      X 

(c) Substantially  degrade  the  existing  visual 
character  or  quality  of  the  site  and  its 
surroundings? 

      X 

(d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare 
which would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

      X 

Item F - 253 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–8                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

2.  AGRICULTURAL & FOREST RESOURCES  
(In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies 
may  refer  to  the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model  (1997) prepared by  the 
California Department of Conservation as an optional model  to use  in assessing  impacts on agriculture and 
farmland.    In  determining  whether  impacts  to  forest  resources,  including  timberland,  are  significant 
environmental  effects,  lead  agencies may  refer  to  information  compiled  by  the  California  Department  of 
Forestry  and  Fire  Protection  regarding  the  state’s  inventory  of  forest  land,  including  the  Forest  and Range 
Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology 
provided in Forest protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board.)  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (e):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes  to existing  land uses or  the environment, nor would  it authorize 
new  forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general 
plan.  Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing 
general plans.   Therefore,  the proposed ALUCP would not:  (a) directly or  indirectly  convert Prime 
Farmland, Unique  Farmland,  or  Farmland  of  Statewide  Importance  (collectively,  "Farmland")  to  a 
non‐agricultural  use;  or  (b)  conflict with  existing  zoning  for  agricultural  use,  or  a Williamson  Act 
contract; or (c) conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or 
timberland  zoned  Timberland  Production  (as  defined  by  Government  Code  section  51104(g);  (d) 
result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non‐forest use, since there is no forest 
land within  the Airport  Influence Area  (AIA);  (e)  involve other changes  in  the existing environment 
that, due to their location or nature, could result in the conversion of Farmland to a non‐agricultural 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Convert  Prime  Farmland,  Unique  Farmland,  or 
Farmland  of  Statewide  Importance  (Farmland),  as 
shown  on  the  maps  prepared  pursuant  to  the 
Farmland Mapping  and Monitoring  Program  of  the 
California Resources Agency, to non‐agricultural use? 

      X 

(b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a 
Williamson Act contract?        X 

(c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, 
forest  land  (as  defined  in  Public  Resources  Code 
section  12220(g)),  timberland  (as  defined  by  Public 
Resources  Code  section  4526),  or  timberland  zoned 
Timberland  Production  (as  defined  by  Government 
Code section 51104(g))? 

      X 

(d) Result  in  the  loss  of  forest  land  or  conversion  of 
forest land to non‐forest use?        X 

(e) Involve  other  changes  in  the  existing  environment 
which, due to their location or nature, could result in 
conversion  of  Farmland,  to  non‐agricultural  use  or 
conversion of forest land to non‐forest use? 

      X 

Item F - 254 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–9 

use.  The proposed ALUCP would not encourage levels of development in any area located within the 
AIA above  those projected within  the affected agencies general plans, of which  the environmental 
effects were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan  environmental 
documentation.  In addition, the General Plan Land Use Designation Consistency Analysis (Appendix I) 
evaluated potential general plan  inconsistencies with the proposed ALUCP and did not  identify any 
agricultural or forest general plan land use designations within the AIA. Therefore, there would be no 
impact. 

 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 255 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–10                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

3.  AIR QUALITY  
(Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management or air 
pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.)  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (e):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Additionally,  the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational  changes  to 
LA/Ontario  International  Airport  (ONT)  nor  does  the  City  have  any  authority  over  operations;  all 
authority over ONT rests with Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) and Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA).   
 
Although the City of Ontario, the City of Fontana and the County of San Bernardino will have to adjust 
their General Plan policies  to  account  for  the  additional development  restrictions  contained  in  the 
ALUCP,  those  adjustments  will  not  authorize  development  beyond  what  was  assumed  in  the 
development  of  the  South  Coast  Air Quality Management  Plan.    Therefore,  the  ALUCP would  not 
directly or indirectly conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan; violate 
any air quality  standard or  contribute  substantially  to an existing or projected air quality  violation; 
result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region 
is non‐attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standards; expose sensitive 
receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations; or create objectionable odors affecting a substantial 
number of people; and, as  such, would not  impact  the environment or  result  in any  impacts  to air 
quality.  The proposed ALUCP would not encourage levels of development in any area located within 
the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Conflict  with  or  obstruct  implementation  of  the 
applicable air quality plan?        X 

(b) Violate  any  air  quality  standard  or  contribute 
substantially  to an existing or projected air quality 
violation? 

      X 

(c) Result  in  a  cumulatively  considerable  net  increase 
of any criteria pollutant for which the project region 
is  non‐attainment  under  an  applicable  federal  or 
state  ambient  air  quality  standard  (including 
releasing  emissions  that  exceed  quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

      X 

(d) Expose  sensitive  receptors  to  substantial  pollutant 
concentrations?        X 

(e) Create  objectionable  odors  affecting  a  substantial 
number of people?        X 

Item F - 256 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–11 

which  the  environmental  effects  were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified 
general plan environmental documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 257 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–12                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

4.  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (f):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Additionally,  the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational  changes  to 
LA/Ontario  International  Airport  (ONT)  nor  does  the  City  have  any  authority  over  operations;  all 
authority over ONT rests with Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) and Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA).  Therefore,  the  ALUCP  would  not  directly  or  indirectly  impact  biological  resources  or  their 
habitat, or conflict with applicable policies protecting biological resources or an adopted or approved 
habitat conservation plan, and, as such, would not directly  impact  the environment or  result  in any 
direct  impacts  to  biological  resources.  The  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  encourage  levels  of 
development in any area located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within 
the  affected  agencies’  general  plans,  of which  the  environmental  effects were  already  adequately 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Have  a  substantial  adverse  effect,  either  directly  or 
through  habitat  modifications,  on  any  species 
identified  as  a  candidate,  sensitive,  or  special  status 
species  in  local  or  regional  plans,  policies,  or 
regulations,  or  by  the  California  Department  of  Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

      X 

(b) Have  a  substantial  adverse  effect  on  any  riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community identified 
in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the 
California Department  of  Fish  and Game  or U.S.  Fish 
and Wildlife Service? 

      X 

(c) Have  a  substantial  adverse  effect  on  federally 
protected wetlands  as defined by  Section 404 of  the 
Clean Water Act (including, but not  limited to, marsh, 
vernal  pool,  coastal,  etc.)  through  direct  removal, 
filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

      X 

(d) Interfere  substantially  with  the  movement  of  any 
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or 
with  established native  resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

      X 

(e) Conflict  with  any  local  policies  or  ordinances 
protecting  biological  resources,  such  as  a  tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

      X 

(f) Conflict  with  the  provisions  of  an  adopted  Habitat 
Conservation  Plan,  Natural  Community  Conservation 
Plan or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

      X 

Item F - 258 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–13 

analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general plan environmental documentation.   Therefore,  there 
would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 259 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–14                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

5.  CULTURAL RESOURCES 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (d):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Therefore,  the proposed ALUCP would not directly or  indirectly  cause a  substantial adverse 
change  in  the  significance of a historical  resource or an  archaeological  resource; directly destroy a 
unique paleontological  resource or  site or unique  geologic  feature; or disturb  any human  remains, 
including  those  interred outside of  formal  cemeteries,  and,  as  such, would not directly  impact  the 
environment or  result  in  any direct  impacts  to  cultural  resources.  The proposed ALUCP would  not 
encourage  levels of development  in any area  located within  the Airport  Influence Area  (AIA) above 
those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the environmental effects were 
already adequately analyzed  in their respective certified general plan environmental documentation.  
Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Cause  a  substantial  adverse  change  in  the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in 
§ 15064.5? 

      X 

(b) Cause  a  substantial  adverse  change  in  the 
significance  of  an  archaeological  resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

      X 

(c) Directly  or  indirectly  destroy  a  unique 
paleontological  resource  or  site  or  unique 
geologic feature? 

      X 

(d) Disturb  any  human  remains,  including  those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries?        X 

Item F - 260 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–15 

6.  GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (e):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.  Therefore, the proposed ALUCP would not expose people or structures to potential substantial 
adverse effects involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, strong seismic ground shaking, seismic‐
related  ground  failure,  liquefaction,  or  landslides;  result  in  substantial  soil  erosion  or  the  loss  of 
topsoil; be  located on a geologic unit or  soil  that  is unstable, potentially  resulting  in on‐ or off‐site 
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse; be located on expansive soil; or have 
soils  incapable  of  adequately  supporting  the  use  of  septic  tanks;  and,  as  such, would  not  directly 
impact  the environment or  result  in any direct  impacts  to geology and  soils.   The proposed ALUCP 
would not encourage levels of development in any area located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) 
above those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the environmental effects 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Expose people or  structures  to potential  substantial 
adverse  effects,  including  the  risk  of  loss,  injury  or 
death involving: 

      X 

(i) Rupture  of  a  known  earthquake  fault,  as 
delineated  on  the  most  recent  Alquist‐Priolo 
Earthquake  Fault  Zoning  Map  issued  by  the 
State Geologist  for  the area or based on other 
substantial evidence of a known  fault? Refer to 
Division  of  Mines  and  Geology  Special 
Publication 42. 

      X 

(ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?        X 

(iii) Seismic‐related  ground  failure,  including 
liquefaction?        X 

(iv) Landslides?        X 

(b) Result  in  substantial  soil  erosion  or  the  loss  of 
topsoil?        X 

(c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, 
or  that  would  become  unstable  as  a  result  of  the 
project,  and  potentially  result  in  on‐  or  off‐site 
landslide,  lateral  spreading,  subsidence,  liquefaction 
or collapse? 

      X 

(d) Be  located  on  expansive  soil,  as  defined  in  Table 
18‐1‐B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating 
substantial risks to life or property? 

      X 

(e) Have  soils  incapable  of  adequately  supporting  the 
use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal 
systems  where  sewers  are  not  available  for  the 
disposal of wastewater? 

      X 

Item F - 261 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–16                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan  environmental 
documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 262 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–17 

7.  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (a)  &  (b):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Additionally,  the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational  changes  to 
LA/Ontario  International  Airport  (ONT)  nor  does  the  City  have  any  authority  over  operations;  all 
authority over ONT rests with Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) and Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA).   The proposed ALUCP would not encourage  levels of development  in any area  located within 
the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within the affected agencies general plans, of 
which  the  environmental  effects  were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified 
general  plan  environmental  documentation.    Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP  will  not  cause  any 
increase in greenhouse gas emissions, and there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact  No Impact 

(a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

      X 

(b) Conflict  with  an  applicable  plan,  policy  or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emission of greenhouse gases? 

      X 

Item F - 263 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–18                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

8.  HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  –  (d)  &  (f)  –  (h):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new 
development, construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it 
authorize new forms of development that are not otherwise permitted by the relevant  jurisdiction’s 
general plan.  Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in 
existing general plans.  Additionally, the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational 
changes  to  LA/Ontario  International  Airport  (ONT)  nor  does  the  City  have  any  authority  over 
operations; all authority over ONT rests with Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) and Federal Aviation 
Administration  (FAA).   Also,  the proposed ALUCP does not  involve  the  transport, use, or disposal of 
hazardous  materials;  the  emission  or  handling  of  hazardous  or  acutely  hazardous  materials, 
substances,  or  waste;  or  the  location  of  a  building,  structure,  or  public  facility  on  a  hazardous 
materials site compiled by the State of California pursuant to Government Code section 65962.5.  The 
proposed ALUCP would  not  affect  the  incidence  of  hazardous material  safety  hazards  in  the  area; 

 
Would the proposed project 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Create  a  significant  hazard  to  the  public  or  the 
environment  through  the  routine  transport,  use  or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

      X 

(b) Create  a  significant  hazard  to  the  public  or  the 
environment  through  reasonably  foreseeable  upset 
and  accident  conditions  involving  the  release  of 
hazardous materials into the environment? 

      X 

(c) Emit  hazardous  emissions  or  handle  hazardous or 
acutely  hazardous  materials,  substances  or  waste 
within  one‐quarter  mile  of  an  existing  or  proposed 
school? 

      X 

(d) Be  located  on  a  site  which  is  included  on  a  list  of 
hazardous  materials  sites  compiled  pursuant  to 
Government  Code  section  65962.5  and,  as  a  result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

      X 

(e) For  a project  located within  an  airport  land use plan 
or, where  such  a  plan  has  not  been  adopted, within 
two  miles  of  a  public  airport  or  public  use  airport, 
would the project result  in a safety hazard  for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

    X   

(f) For  a  project within  the  vicinity  of  a  private  airstrip, 
would the project result  in a safety hazard  for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

      X 

(g) Impair  implementation of or physically  interfere with 
an  adopted  emergency  response  plan  or  emergency 
evacuation plan? 

      X 

(h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, 
injury  or  death  involving  wildfires,  including  where 
wildlands  are  adjacent  to  urbanized  areas  or  where 
residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

      X 

Item F - 264 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–19 

result  in hazardous emissions within one‐quarter mile of an existing or proposed  school; affect any 
sites  included on a  list of hazardous materials  sites; create a significant hazard  to  the public or  the 
environment; or affect emergency response plans or the  incidence of wildland fires  in the area. The 
proposed ALUCP would not encourage  levels of development  in any area  located within  the Airport 
Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the 
environmental  effects were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan 
environmental documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
Threshold  (e):   Pursuant  to  the State Aeronautics Act,  the proposed ALUCP establishes criteria and 
Safety Zones by which safety hazards relating to aircraft activity would be evaluated.  The criteria are 
intended to reduce the risk of exposure to the hazards of an off‐airport aircraft accident by  limiting 
residential  densities  and  concentrations  of  people within  the  Safety  Zones.    The  Safety  Zones  are 
completely contained within the City of Ontario and land uses were designated in the Ontario Plan to 
be consistent with airport operations.  The proposed ALUCP further reduces risks of aircraft accident 
occurrence  by  setting  policies  that,  consistent with  existing  federal  regulations,  limit  the  height  of 
structures, trees, and other objects that might penetrate the airport’s airspace as defined by Part 77 
of the Federal Aviation Regulations, TERPS and FAA criteria. The extent of the areas where regulations 
apply are illustrated in Appendix I. 
 
The  proposed  ALUCP  would  also  decrease  airport‐related  safety  hazards  by  limiting  incompatible 
development within  the  Safety  Zones.  The proposed ALUCP would  result  in  a beneficial  impact by 
reducing the number of people exposed to airport‐related safety hazards, including aircraft accidents, 
consistent with  the objectives of  the  State Aeronautics Act.   Due  to  the  reasons  stated above,  the 
proposed ALUCP would not directly or  indirectly  impact  the environment or  result  in any direct or 
indirect impacts relating to hazards and hazardous materials, but could limit development in areas of 
concern.  Therefore, any potential impact would be less than significant. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 265 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–20                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

9.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS  
Thresholds  (a)  ‐  (j):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.        Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  violate  any  water  quality  standards;  affect 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially Significant 
Unless Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Violate  any  water  quality  standards  or  waste 
discharge requirements?        X 

(b) Substantially  deplete  groundwater  supplies  or 
interfere  substantially  with  groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit 
in  aquifer  volume  or  a  lowering  of  the  local 
groundwater  table  level  (e.g.,  the  production 
rate of pre‐existing nearby wells would drop to 
a  level which would  not  support  existing  land 
uses  or  planned  uses  for which  permits  have 
been granted)? 

      X 

(c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of  the  site  or  area,  including  through  the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river,  in 
a  manner  which  would  result  in  substantial 
erosion or siltation on‐ or off‐site? 

      X 

(d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of  the  site  or  area,  including  through  the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 
substantially  increase  the  rate  or  amount  of 
surface runoff  in a manner which would result 
in flooding on‐ or off‐site? 

      X 

(e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed  the  capacity  of  existing  or  planned 
storm  water  drainage  systems  or  provide 
substantial  additional  sources  of  polluted 
runoff? 

      X 

(f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?       X 

(g) Place  housing within  a  100‐year  flood  hazard 
area  as  mapped  on  a  federal  Flood  Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map? 

      X 

(h) Place  within  a  100‐year  flood  hazard  area 
structures  which  would  impede  or  redirect 
flood flows? 

      X 

(i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of  loss,  injury  or  death  involving  flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a 
levee or dam? 

      X 

(j) Expose  people  or  structures  to  inundation  by 
seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?        X 

Item F - 266 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–21 

groundwater  supplies;  substantially  alter  drainage  patterns;  or  expose  people  or  structures  to  a 
significant risk involving flooding, seiche, tsunami or mudflow; and, as such, would not directly impact 
the environment or result in any direct impacts to hydrology and water quality.  The proposed ALUCP 
would not encourage levels of development in any area located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) 
above those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the environmental effects 
were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan  environmental 
documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 267 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–22                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

10.  LAND USE PLANNING 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (a)  &  (c):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.  ONT has operated as an airport since the 1920s, and the City has long planned for appropriate 
land  uses  surrounding  ONT.    Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  physically  divide  an 
established community or conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan, and would not directly or indirectly impact the environment or result in any direct 
or indirect impacts to land use and planning.  Also, the proposed ALUCP would not encourage levels of 
development in any area located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within 
the  affected  agencies’  general  plans,  of which  the  environmental  effects were  already  adequately 
analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general plan environmental documentation.   Therefore,  there 
would be no impacts. 
 
Threshold (b):  The proposed ALUCP may require that affected agencies alter their general plans and 
zoning to reflect the noise and safety restrictions set forth in its policies.    
 
The  proposed  ALUCP  is  a  mitigating  document  that  establishes  land  use  measures  designed  to 
minimize  the public’s exposure  to excessive noise and  safety hazards around  the ONT.   Appendix  I 
evaluates  potential  inconsistencies  between  the  proposed  ALUCP  and  the  general  plan  land  use 
designations  of  affected  agencies  and  did  not  identify  any  general  plan  land  use  inconsistencies. 
Moreover,  state  law  (Gov.  Code  §65302.3)  requires  that  applicable  general  plans  be  revised  if 
necessary to be consistent with an adopted ALUCP. 
  
It is important to note that the ALUCP is intended, pursuant to Public Utilities Code section 21670 et 
seq.,  to protect public health, safety, and welfare,  through  the adoption of  land use measures  that 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact  No Impact 

(a) Physically divide an established community?       X 

(b) Conflict  with  any  applicable  land  use  plan, 
policy,  or  regulation  of  an  agency  with 
jurisdiction over  the project  (including, but not 
limited  to  the  general  plan,  specific  plan,  local 
coastal program, or  zoning ordinance)  adopted 
for  the  purpose  of  avoiding  or  mitigating  an 
environmental effect? 

    X   

(c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation 
plan or natural community conservation plan?        X 

Item F - 268 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–23 

minimize the public's exposure to excessive noise and safety hazards; and  is guided by the California 
Airport  Land Use Planning Handbook.   As  required by  state  law,  the proposed ALUCP  for ONT  sets 
policies and criteria consistent with the State Aeronautics Act and within the parameters identified in 
the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook. Therefore, any potential  impacts would be  less 
than significant. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 269 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–24                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

11.  MINERAL RESOURCES  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
The proposed ALUCP does not propose or  involve  any new development,  construction, or physical 
changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new forms of development 
that are not otherwise permitted by the relevant jurisdiction’s general plan.  Rather, it overlays further 
limitations  on  top  of  planned  land  use  designations  found  in  existing  general  plans.    Further,  no 
mineral  resources are  located within  the noise and  safety  zones potentially affected by  the ALUCP.  
Therefore, the proposed ALUCP would not cause the  loss of availability of a known mineral resource 
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state, or result in the loss of availability 
of a locally‐important mineral resource recovery site. As such, the proposed ALUCP would not directly 
or  indirectly  impact the environment or result  in any direct or  indirect  impacts to mineral resources.  
The  proposed  ALUCP would  not  encourage  levels  of  development  in  any  area  located within  the 
Airport  Influence Area  (AIA)  above  those  projected within  the  affected  agencies’  general  plans,  of 
which  the  environmental  effects  were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified 
general plan environmental documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Result  in  the  loss  of  availability  of  a  known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state? 

      X 

(b) Result  in  the  loss  of  availability  of  a  locally 
important  mineral  resource  recovery  site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan 
or other land use plan? 

      X 

Item F - 270 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–25 

12.  NOISE  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (b)  ‐  (d) &  (f):   The proposed ALUCP does not propose or entail any new development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Additionally,  the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational  changes  to 
LA/Ontario  International  Airport  (ONT)  nor  does  the  City  have  any  authority  over  operations;  all 
authority over ONT rests with Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA) and Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA).   Pursuant to the State Aeronautics Act, the proposed ALUCP establishes the criteria by which 
the  public's  exposure  to  airport‐related  noise  would  be  evaluated  and  reduced  by  limiting  the 
development of noise sensitive  land uses within the 65 + dB CNEL.   Therefore, the proposed ALUCP 
would not result in the exposure of people to increased noise or vibration levels, and, as such, would 
not impact their respective environment or result in any impacts related to noise.   
 
Thresholds (a) & (e): The proposed ALUCP is a mitigating document that addresses land use measures 
to minimize the public’s exposure to excessive noise and safety hazards around the ONT.  Appendix I 
evaluated  potential  inconsistencies  between  the  proposed  ALUCP  and  the  general  plan  land  use 
designations  of  affected  agencies  and  did  not  identify  any  general  plan  land  use  inconsistencies. 
Moreover,  state  law  (Gov.  Code  §65302.3)  requires  that  applicable  general  plans  be  revised  as 
necessary to be consistent with an adopted ALUCP. 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially Significant 
Unless Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise 
levels in excess of standards established in the 
local  general  plan  or  noise  ordinance,  or 
applicable standards of other agencies? 

    X   

(b) Exposure  of  persons  to  or  generation  of 
excessive  groundborne  vibration  or 
groundborne noise levels? 

      X 

(c) A  substantial  permanent  increase  in  ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project? 

      X 

(d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient  noise  levels  in  the  project  vicinity 
above levels existing without the project? 

      X 

(e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan  or,  where  such  a  plan  has  not  been 
adopted, within  two miles of  a public  airport 
or public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working  in the project area 
to excessive noise levels? 

    X   

(f) For  a  project within  the  vicinity  of  a  private 
airstrip,  would  the  project  expose  people 
residing  or  working  in  the  project  area  to 
excessive noise levels? 

      X 

Item F - 271 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–26                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

It is important to note that the ALUCP is intended, pursuant to Public Utilities Code section 21670 et 
seq.,  to protect public health, safety, and welfare,  through  the adoption of  land use measures  that 
minimize the public's exposure to excessive noise and safety hazards; and  is guided by the California 
Airport  Land Use Planning Handbook.   As  required by  state  law,  the proposed ALUCP  for ONT  sets 
policies and criteria consistent with the State Aeronautics Act and within the parameters identified in 
the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook. Therefore, any potential  impacts would be  less 
than significant.  
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 272 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–27 

13.  POPULATION AND HOUSING 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds (a)  ‐ (c): The proposed ALUCP would not directly or  indirectly  induce population growth; 
rather,  it would  limit the  location and distribution of residential and non‐residential  land uses within 
the Noise and Safety Zones to minimize potential noise impacts and safety concerns.   
 
The Noise  Impact  Zones  limits  new  residential  development within  65  db  CNEL  and  prohibits  new 
residential land uses within the 70 dB CNEL noise contour.  To evaluate the potential population and 
housing  displacement  the  General  Plan  Land  Use  Designation  Consistency  Analysis  (Appendix  I) 
identified and evaluated potential land use inconsistencies within the Noise Impact Zones.  The Noise 
Analysis identified one jurisdiction, the City of Ontario, to have a Low Density Residential general plan 
land  use  designation  within  the  65  dB  CNEL.  However,  because  the  areas  identified  are  already 
developed,  the  restriction  on  additional  new  development  would  not  result  in  displacement  of 
potential housing units since  the proposed ALUCP does not apply  to existing development and only 
addresses future development.   
 
The Safety Zones  identified within the proposed ALUCP are contained within the City of Ontario and 
Safety  Analysis  portion  of  Appendix  I  identified  Low  Density  Residential  general  plan  land  use 
designations within the safety zones.   However, because the areas  identified are already developed, 
the restriction on additional new development within that zone would not result  in displacement of 
potential housing units, since the proposed ALUCP does not apply to existing development and only 
addresses  future development.   Therefore,  there  is no  impact since  the proposed ALUCP would not 
result in any direct impacts to population and housing; create the displacement of existing residential 
dwelling units, commercial,  industrial or public use structures thereby necessitating the construction 
of replacement housing, facilities, or infrastructure in other areas. 
 
 

 
 Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Induce  substantial  population  growth  in  an  area, 
either  directly  (for  example,  by  proposing  new 
homes and businesses) or  indirectly  (for example, 
through extension of road or other infrastructure)? 

      X 

(b) Displace  substantial  numbers  of  existing  housing, 
necessitating  the  construction  of  replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

      X 

(c) Displace  substantial  numbers  of  people, 
necessitating  the  construction  of  replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

      X 

Item F - 273 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–28                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

14.  PUBLIC SERVICES 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds (a): The proposed ALUCP does not propose or involve any new development, construction, 
or physical  changes  to existing  land uses or  the environment, nor would  it authorize new  forms of 
development that are not otherwise permitted by the relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.   Rather,  it 
overlays  further  limitations on top of planned  land use designations  found  in existing general plans.  
Additionally, the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational changes to LA/Ontario 
International Airport  (ONT) nor does  the City have any authority over operations; all authority over 
ONT  rests  with  Los  Angeles  World  Airports  (LAWA)  and  Federal  Aviation  Administration  (FAA). 
Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  create  a  need  for  any  new  or  physically  altered 
governmental  facilities.    As  such,  the  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  result  in  any  direct  or  indirect 
impacts related to public services. The proposed ALUCP would not  increase  levels of development  in 
any area  located within  the Airport  Influence Area  (AIA) above  those projected within  the affected 
agencies general plans, of which the environmental effects were already adequately analyzed in their 
respective  certified  general  plan  environmental  documentation.    Therefore,  there  would  be  no 
impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
   

 
 
 

Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact  No Impact 

(a) Result  in  substantial  adverse  physical  impacts 
associated  with  the  provision  of  new  or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need 
for  new  or  physically  altered  governmental 
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant  environmental  impacts,  in order  to 
maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response 
times or other performance objectives  for any 
of the public services: 

      X 

(i) Fire protection?        X 

(ii) Police protection?        X 

(iii) Schools?        X 

(iv) Parks?        X 

(v) Other public facilities?        X 

Item F - 274 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–29 

15.  RECREATION 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (a)  &  (b):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.    Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP would  not  increase  the  use  of  existing  neighborhood  and 
regional parks or other  recreational  facilities and does not  require  the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment, and, as such, 
would  not  result  in  any  direct  or  indirect  impacts  to  recreation.  The  proposed  ALUCP would  not 
increase levels of development in any area located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those 
projected within the affected agencies general plans, of which the environmental effects were already 
adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan  environmental  documentation.  
Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact  No Impact 

(a) Increase  the use of existing neighborhood 
and  regional  parks  or  other  recreational 
facilities  such  that  substantial  physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or 
be accelerated? 

      X 

(b) Does  the  project  include  recreational 
facilities  or  require  the  construction  or 
expansion  of  recreational  facilities  that 
have  an  adverse  physical  effect  on  the 
environment? 

      X 

Item F - 275 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–30                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

16.  TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (a)  ‐  (g):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Additionally, the ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational changes to LA/Ontario 
International Airport  (ONT) nor does  the City have any authority over operations; all authority over 
ONT  rests  with  Los  Angeles  World  Airports  (LAWA)  and  Federal  Aviation  Administration  (FAA).  
Therefore,  the proposed ALUCP would not:  (a)  conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures  of  effectiveness  for  the  performance  of  the  circulation  system,  taking  into 
account all modes of transportation  including mass transit; (b) conflict with an applicable congestion 
management  program,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  level  of  service  standards  and  travel  demand 
measures,  or  other  standards  established  by  the  county  congestion  management  agency  for 
designated roads or highways; (c) result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase 
in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks; (d) increase hazards due 
to a design  feature  (e.g.,  sharp  curves or dangerous  intersections) or  incompatible uses  (e.g.,  farm 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Conflict with  an  applicable  plan,  ordinance  or  policy 
establishing  measures  of  effectiveness  for  the 
performance  of  the  circulation  system,  taking  into 
account  all  modes  of  transportation  including  mass 
transit  and  non‐motorized  travel  and  relevant 
components  of  the  circulation  system,  including  but 
not  limited  to  intersections,  streets,  highways  and 
freeways,  pedestrian  and  bicycle  paths,  and  mass 
transit? 

      X 

(b) Conflict  with  an  applicable  congestion  management 
program,  including, but not  limited to,  level of service 
standards  and  travel  demand  measures,  or  other 
standards  established  by  the  county  congestion 
management  agency  for  designated  roads  or 
highways? 

      X 

(c) Result  in  a  change  in  air  traffic  patterns,  including 
either  an  increase  in  traffic  levels  or  a  change  in 
location that results in substantial safety risks? 

      X 

(d) Substantially  increase hazards due to a design feature 
(e.g.,  sharp  curves  or  dangerous  intersections)  or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

      X 

(e) Result in inadequate emergency access?       X 
(f) Result in inadequate parking capacity?        X 
(g) Conflict  with  adopted  policies,  plans,  or  programs 

regarding  public  transit,  bicycle,  or  pedestrian 
facilities,  or  otherwise  decrease  the  performance  or 
safety of such facilities? 

      X 

Item F - 276 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–31 

equipment); (e) result in inadequate emergency access; (f) result in inadequate parking capacity or; (g) 
conflict  with  adopted  policies,  plans,  or  programs  regarding  public  transit,  bicycle,  or  pedestrian 
facilities, or otherwise decrease  the performance or safety of such  facilities.   As such,  the proposed 
ALUCP would  not  result  in  any  direct  or  indirect  impacts  related  to  transportation  or  traffic.  The 
proposed ALUCP would  not  increase  levels  of  development  in  any  area  located within  the Airport 
Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within the affected agencies’ general plans, of which the 
environmental  effects were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified  general  plan 
environmental documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 277 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–32                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

17.  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS  

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds  (a)  ‐  (g):  The  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  propose  or  involve  any  new  development, 
construction, or physical changes to existing land uses or the environment, nor would it authorize new 
forms of development  that are not otherwise permitted by  the  relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.  
Rather, it overlays further limitations on top of planned land use designations found in existing general 
plans.   Therefore,  the proposed ALUCP would not  result  in  the  construction of new wastewater or 
stormwater  facilities,  and  would  not  require  additional  water  supplies,  or  wastewater  or  landfill 
capacity,  and,  as  such,  would  not  result  in  any  direct  or  indirect  impacts  to  utilities  and  service 
systems. The proposed ALUCP would not  increase  levels of development  in any area  located within 
the Airport Influence Area (AIA) above those projected within the affected agencies general plans, of 
which  the  environmental  effects  were  already  adequately  analyzed  in  their  respective  certified 
general plan environmental documentation.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

(a) Exceed  wastewater  treatment  requirements  of  the 
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?        X 

(b) Require or result  in  the construction of new water or 
wastewater  treatment  facilities  or  expansion  of 
existing  facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

      X 

(c) Require  or  result  in  the  construction  of  new  storm 
water  drainage  facilities  or  expansion  of  existing 
facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could  cause 
significant environmental effects? 

      X 

(d) Have  sufficient water  supplies  available  to  serve  the 
project  from  existing  entitlements  and  resources,  or 
are new or expanded entitlements needed? In making 
this determination, the City shall consider whether the 
project  is  subject  to  the  water  supply  assessment 
requirements  of Water  Code  Section  10910,  et.  Seq. 
(SB 610), and  the  requirements of Government Code 
Section 664737 (SB 221). 

      X 

(e) Result  in  a  determination  by  the  wastewater 
treatment  provider,  which  serves  or  may  serve  the 
project,  that  it  has  adequate  capacity  to  serve  the 
project's  projected  demand  in  addition  to  the 
provider's existing commitments? 

      X 

(f) Be  served  by  a  landfill  with  sufficient  permitted 
capacity  to  accommodate  the  project's  solid  waste 
disposal needs? 

      X 

(g) Comply  with  federal,  state,  and  local  statutes  and 
regulations related to solid waste?        X 

Item F - 278 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–33 

18.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE  
 

 
DISCUSSION OF EFFECTS 
Thresholds (a): The proposed ALUCP does not propose or involve any new development, construction, 
or physical  changes  to existing  land uses or  the environment, nor would  it authorize new  forms of 
development that are not otherwise permitted by the relevant  jurisdiction’s general plan.   Rather,  it 
overlays  further  limitations on top of planned  land use designations  found  in existing general plans.  
Additionally, the proposed ALUCP does not propose any physical or operational changes to LA/Ontario 
International Airport  (ONT) nor does  the City have any authority over operations; all authority over 
ONT  rests  with  Los  Angeles  World  Airports  (LAWA)  and  Federal  Aviation  Administration  (FAA).  
Therefore,  the  proposed  ALUCP  does  not  have  the  potential  to  degrade  the  quality  of  the 
environment;  substantially  reduce  the  habitat  of  a  fish  or wildlife  species;  cause  a  fish  or wildlife 
population  to drop below self‐sustaining  levels;  threaten  to eliminate a plant or animal community; 
reduce  the  number  or  restrict  the  range  of  a  rare  or  endangered  plant  or  animal;  or  eliminate 
important examples of  the major periods of California history or prehistory; have  impacts  that are 
individually  limited,  but  cumulatively  considerable;  or  have  environmental  effects which will  cause 
substantial  adverse  effects  on  human  beings.  The  proposed  ALUCP  would  not  increase  levels  of 
development  in any area  located within  the AIA above  those projected  for  these areas  in  the  local 

 
Would the proposed project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Potentially 
Significant 
Unless 

Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact  No Impact 

(a) Does the project have the potential to degrade 
the  quality  of  the  environment,  substantially 
reduce the habitat or a fish or wildlife species, 
cause  a  fish  or  wildlife  population  to  drop 
below  self‐sustaining  levels,  threaten  to 
eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce 
the number or  restrict  the  range of a  rare or 
endangered  plant  or  animal  or  eliminate 
important  examples  of  the major  periods  of 
California history or prehistory? 

      X 

(b) Does the project have the potential to achieve 
short‐term  environmental  goals  to  the 
disadvantage  of  long‐term  environmental 
goals? 

    X   

(c) Does  the  project  have  impacts  that  are 
individually  limited,  but  cumulatively 
considerable?  ("Cumulatively  considerable" 
means that the incremental effects of a project 
are  considerable when  viewed  in  connection 
with the effects of past projects, the effects of 
other  current  project,  and  the  effects  of 
probable future projects.) 

    X   

(d) Does  the  project  have  environmental  effects 
that will  cause  substantial  adverse  effects  on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

    X   

Item F - 279 of 335



  
A P P E N D I X  H    O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W     

 

H–34                                           LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

agencies  respective  general  plans,  of  which  the  environmental  effects  were  already  adequately 
analyzed in the certified general plan environmental documentation. 
 
Nothing in the proposed ALUCP would result in indirect impacts such as the construction of housing, 
development of other types of land uses, or the expansion of any infrastructure, that would require an 
analysis of potentially significant  impacts to wildlife, their habitats,  important examples of California 
history, or human beings.  In addition,  the proposed ALUCP would not  result  in  the displacement of 
existing  residential  dwelling  units,  commercial,  industrial,  or  public  use  structures  thereby 
necessitating  the  construction  of  replacement  housing,  facilities,  or  infrastructure  in  other  areas, 
which may  result  in potentially significant  impacts  to wildlife,  their habitats,  important examples of 
California history, or human beings.  Therefore, there would be no impacts. 
 
Thresholds  (b)  ‐  (d): The proposed ALUCP  regulates  future  incompatible  land uses specific  to noise, 
airspace  protection,  safety  and  overflight  impacts  around  ONT. Moreover,  because  the  proposed 
ALUCP  is  regulatory  in nature and will not result  in any new development, construction, or physical 
changes to existing land uses or the environment, it has no potential to create cumulatively significant 
environmental  impacts.  Indeed,  the proposed ALUCP  serves as a mitigation plan designed  to avoid 
certain  noise  and  safety  impacts  that might  otherwise  be  cumulatively  significant.  Therefore,  any 
potential impact would be less than significant. 
 
MITIGATION 
None Required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 280 of 335



 
 O N T  A L U C P  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  H        

 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) H–35 

REFERENCE MATERIALS 

The following reference materials are hereby  incorporated by reference and made a part of this  Initial 
Study pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15150: 

1. State of California Department of Transportation Division of Aeronautics, California Airport Land 
Use Planning Handbook, (Last updated January 2002) 

2. Proposed Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for LA/Ontario International Airport 
3. California State Aeronautics Act, Pub. Util. Code, §§ 21001 et seq. 
4. Ontario General Plan Final EIR/Master Environmental Assessment 
5. City of Ontario General Plan (The Ontario Plan) adopted January 2010 
6. General Plan of the following cities: Fontana, Montclair, Upland, Rancho Cucamonga and Chino.  
7. The General Plan of the Counties of Riverside and San Bernardino.   

 
All  documents  listed  above  are  on  file,  and  are  available  for  public  review, with  the  City  of Ontario 
Planning Department, 200 N. Cherry Avenue, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395‐2036. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 281 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX I 

 

Item F - 282 of 335



APPENDIX I 
GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION 

 CONSISTENCY ANALYSIS 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) I –1 

The General Plan  Land Use Designation Consistency Analysis  (GP Consistency Analysis)  evaluates  the 
potential for conflict with existing general plan land use designations that may result from implementing 
the  proposed  compatibility  policies  and  criteria  of  the  LA/ONT  Airport  Land  Use  Compatibility  Plan 
(Compatibility Plan) within  the Airport  Influence Area  (AIA).   All  four  compatibility  factors  (overflight, 
airspace protection, noise, safety) were evaluated as part of the GP Consistency Analysis.     A series of 
maps were created as part of the analysis evaluating potential general plan land use inconsistencies with 
the proposed Compatibility Plan.  

Overflight Analysis Summary:   None of ONT’s overflight policies  regulate  the use or development of 
land but  they do  include provisions  for real estate disclosure and/or overflight notification, consistent 
with state law.   

Airspace  Protection  Analysis  Summary:  Federal  Aviation  Administration  (FAA)  FAR  Part  77  airspace 
protection regulations were designed to ensure that structures and other uses do not cause hazards to 
aircraft  in  flight within  the  vicinity  an  airport.   Hazards  to  flight  include  physical  obstructions  to  the 
navigable  airspace, wildlife  hazards,  particularly  bird  strikes,  and  land  use  characteristics  that  create 
visual or electronic interference with aircraft navigation or communication.   

The  policies  that  protect  airspace  protection  surfaces  implement  existing  federal  and  state  law.  
Therefore,  the Compatibility Plan addresses  the Federal Aviation Administration's Part 77 notification 
requirements, as well as the obstruction criteria identified in Part 77 and the United States Standard for 
Terminal  Instrument Procedures. These policies don’t displace  future development and/or  land uses. 
Figure I8 illustrates the extent of airspace protection surfaces for ONT.  

Noise Analysis Summary: The noise policies restrict the development of future noise‐sensitive land uses 
within areas exposed to 65+ dB CNEL.  Under the proposed Compatibility Plan, most noise‐sensitive land 
uses, including low density residential land uses (less than 8 du/ac), would not be compatible within the 
65+ CNEL  noise contours and, therefore, could have the potential to be displaced in areas surrounding 
ONT  that are exposed  to 65 + dB CNEL.   Noise Analysis Figures  I 1  ‐  I 7  represent  those areas where 
general  plan  land  use  designations  could  be  considered  incompatible  and  future  land  uses  could  be 
potentially prohibited and displaced  to areas outside of  the  impact area.   Potential displacement was 
evaluated  for residential and mixed‐use general plan  land use designations within the City of Ontario.  
Parcels  that  are  contained  within  or  traversed  by  the  65+  dB  CNEL  were  evaluated  for  potential 
displacement.   Within the City of Ontario, the analysis  identified  four areas  labeled  (A – D) where the 
65+ db CNEL had a potential for displacement (Figure I 2).   

Area A contains the Guasti and Multi‐Modal Mixed Use Land Use Designations that allow multi‐
family residential uses with a density range of 25‐65 du/ac and 20‐80 du/ac respectively.  The 65 
dB  CNEL  contour  traverses  portions  of  the  Guasti  and  Multi‐Modal  Mixed  Use  areas  as 

Item F - 283 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–2                                               LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

illustrated  in  Figure  I  3.   However,  these Mixed Use  areas  can  be  developed by  keeping  the 
residential components out of the 65+ dB CNEL or may develop within by meeting the following 
requirements: (1) the residential development is more than 8 dwelling units per acre (PolicyN1); 
(2)  45  dB  interior  noise  levels  are  attained  (Policy  N4)  and;  (3)  an  avigation  easement  is 
dedicated to the Airport owner (Policy SP1).  There is no displacement of potential housing units 
within  Area  A  since  development  may  still  occur  by  implementing  the  Policies  within  the 
Compatibility Plan.  

Area  B  contains  sensitive  land  use  designations  (e.g.,  Low  and Medium  Density  Residential) 
within the 65 dB CNEL contour that have already been developed.  Since these land uses exist, 
the Compatibility Plan will not cause displacement in Area B as illustrated in Figure I 4. 

Area C  contains portions of  the East Holt Mixed Use area  that allows multi‐family  residential 
land uses with a density range of 14 – 40 du/ac (Figure I 5).  East Holt Mixed Use area can also 
be  developed  by  keeping  the  residential  components  out  of  the  65+  dB  CNEL  or  developing 
within by meeting the  following requirements:  (1) the residential development  is more than 8 
dwelling units per acre (PolicyN1); (2) 45 dB interior noise levels are attained (Policy N4) and; (3) 
an avigation easement is dedicated to the Airport owner (Policy SP1).  There is no displacement 
of potential housing units within Area C since development may still occur by implementing the 
Policies within the Compatibility Plan. 

Area  D  contains  blocks  of  low  density  residential  uses  (2‐  5  du/ac)  that  have  already  been 
developed.  Since  these  areas  have  been  developed  the  Compatibility  Plan  will  not  cause 
displacement in Area D (Figure I 6).  This area does contain vacant parcels scattered throughout 
that are considered infill and would be allowed to develop with a residential use as long as a 45 
dB  interior noise  level  is  attained  (Policy N4)  and  an  avigation  easement  is  dedicated  to  the 
Airport owner (Policy SP1). Therefore there is no housing displacement within Area D.  

The 65 dB CNEL noise contours also affect portions of the City of Fontana and unincorporated parts of 
San  Bernardino  County.  The  areas  affecting  Fontana  and  San  Bernardino  County  contain  Industrial 
general plan use designations which are consistent with the Compatibility Plan. Also,  it  is  important to 
note that the majority of these affected areas are developed and the Compatibility Plan does not apply 
to existing land uses (Figure I 7). 

Safety  Analysis  Summary:    Five  safety  zones  around  ONT  would  affect  both  the  intensity  of 
development  (i.e., number of people allowed per acre of  land) and total permissible  floor area of any 
future  building  developed.  The  five  safety  zones  are  based  on  criteria  established  by  the  California 
Department  of  Transportation  (Caltrans),  as  described  in  the  California  Airport  Land  Use  Handbook 
(January 2002), and intended to reduce risk to persons and property on the ground and in the air. The 
safety portion of this analysis is illustrated in Figures I 9 ‐ I 11.  

The objective of  the Safety Analysis  is  to  identify  the Compatibility Plan's potential  to displace  future 
residential development within the reconfigured Safety Zones. The policies and criteria are intended to 
reduce risk by limiting land uses and concentrations of people within the immediate vicinity of ONT.  The 

Item F - 284 of 335



 
 G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W   A P P E N D I X  I        

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) I–3 

Safety Zones identified within the proposed Compatibility Plan reconfigures and updates existing Safety 
Zones to be consistent with the 2002 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook.  The reconfigured 
Safety Zones are completely contained within  the City of Ontario.   The Safety Analysis  identified Low 
Density Residential general plan  land use designations within  the Safety Zones; however,  those areas 
have already been developed and, as existing uses, are not subject to the Compatibility Plan.  Since the 
Compatibility  Plan does not  apply  to  existing  land uses  and only  applies  to  future development,  the 
reconfiguration of the Safety Zones will not result in the displacement of existing or future housing units. 
Consistent with state law the Compatibility Plan also restricts land uses such as schools within the safety 
zones.  The GP Consistency Analysis identified the location of existing schools and found that there were 
no public schools currently located within the proposed safety zones.  

GIS Data Sources 

The GP Consistency Analysis was a Geographic Information System (GIS) based study, utilizing GIS data 
sets  of  general  plan  land  use  designations  and  Compatibility  Plan  policies  and  criteria  to  establish 
thresholds for the analysis. The GIS data utilized for the analysis was acquired from the cities of Ontario, 
Montclair, Upland, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino, counties of San Bernardino and Riverside, and Mead & 
Hunt, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item F - 285 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–4                                               LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

 

This page was left intentionally blank. 

 

 

Item F - 286 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I     

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                               I–5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 1 depicted above shows the overall extent of the noise impact zones.  The first layer of the noise analysis began with identifying what jurisdictions may 
be subject to residential land use restrictions as outlined within the compatibility plan.   Specifically, what undeveloped areas, if any, have a residential general 
plan land use designation and fall within the noise impact zones? Utilizing GIS the City of Ontario, Fontana and unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County 
were identified as being within the noise impact zones.  

Item F - 287 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–6                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure  I 2  illustrates  the  results of  the general plan  land use consistency analysis  for  the City of Ontario,  focusing on noise  impact zones.   The GIS analysis 
concentrated on identifying areas within the noise impact zone that have a residential general plan land use designation and any other land use designations 
that have a residential component.  The areas identified as having a residential land use designations are identified on the map and labeled A – D. Each area 
was analyzed further to account for any potential displacement of future residential development. 

Item F - 288 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I    

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                             I–7                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 3 Area A, shown in yellow hatched marks indicates that the 65 dB noise impact zone crosses through sections of Mixed Use Areas 4 and 6.  These mixed 
use areas are described within the Ontario Plan as being able to develop with multi‐family residential uses.  There is no displacement of potential housing units 
within Area A since development may still occur by implementing policies set forth within the Compatibility Plan.   

Item F - 289 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–8                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 4 Area B, shown in yellow hatched mark shows that the 65 dB noise impact zone, shown in green crosses through sections of residential general plan 
land use designations.  Because these areas are built out they are not subject to the compatibility plan.  

 

Item F - 290 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I    

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                             I–9                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 5 Area C, shown in the yellow hatched mark shows that the 65 dB noise impact zone crosses through sections of Mixed Use Area 2.  This mixed use 
area does allow multi‐family residential development to occur.   However, there  is no displacement of potential housing units within Area C since residential 
uses may still occur by implementing the policies set forth within the Compatibility Plan.   

Item F - 291 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–10                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure  I  6  Area  D,  shown  in  red  hatched marks  shows  that  the  65  dB  noise  impact  zone  crosses  through  sections  of  residential  general  plan  land  use 
designations.    However  these  areas  are  built  out  with  residential  land  uses  and  are  not  subject  to  the  compatibility  plan.  There  are  some  scattered 
undeveloped parcels throughout the area that would be considered infill development as defined by the compatibility plan and therefore would be allowed to 
develop with residential uses consistent with existing surrounding conditions.  

Item F - 292 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I    

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                             I–11                                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 7 illustrates the results of the general plan land use consistency analysis for the City of Fontana and unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County 
which are in the sphere of influence of Fontana. The GIS analysis concentrated on identifying areas if any within the noise impact zone that have a residential 
general plan land use designation. There were no areas identified as having a residential land use designation within the noise impact zones. Therefore, there is 
no potential for displacement of future residential development.  As shown above the land uses that fall within the noise impact zone are industrial land uses.  

Item F - 293 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–12                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 8 illustrates allowable building heights that were calculated by utilizing FAR Part 77 standards, TERPS procedures and other FAA criteria.  The airspace 
protection standards do not affect general plan  land use designation  types.   These standards may  require an aeronautical  review by  the FAA and may set 
height  limitations on a proposed structure within  the affected areas as shown above.   Height  limitations vary  from parcel  to parcel and new development 
throughout the affected areas must take into consideration height limitations set in place by the FAA, State of California and this compatibility plan.  

Item F - 294 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I    

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                             I–13                                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 9 depicted above shows the overall extent of the safety zones within the City of Ontario.  The first layer of the safety analysis began with identifying 
residential  land  use  designations within  the  City  of Ontario,  since  safety  zone  restrictions  as  outlined within  the  compatibility  plan,  do  not  support  new 
residential  development.       As  shown  above  Industrial  general  plan  land  use  designations  are  dominant  on  the  east  side  of  the  airport,  but  there were 
residential land uses identified on the west side of the airport.  

Item F - 295 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–14                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 10 depicts the second layer of the safety analysis focusing on the residential land use designations west of the airport.  Some of the residential general 
plan  designation  areas  shown  above  include  an  Industrial  and  Business  Park  overlay.  These  overlays  were  put  in  place  to  allow  existing  residential 
neighborhoods to transition into industrial areas over time. As shown above, area in red is developed with residential uses and therefore, there would be no 
displacement.  

Item F - 296 of 335



 
G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I ST E N C Y  R E V I E W    A P P E N D I X  I    

 

 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)                                                                                                             I–15                                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 11 depicted above shows the overall extent of the safety zones and noise impact zones in comparison to existing schools and public facilities within the 
City of Ontario.   Consistent with state  law,  the compatibility plan sets policies against placing new or expanding existing schools and some public  facilities 
within the noise and safety impact zones.  This inventory shows that there are no schools currently located within the safety zones but there are two schools 
located within the noise impact zones, Euclid Elementary and R.O.P. Training Center .  

Item F - 297 of 335



 
A P P E N D I X  I    G E N E R A L  P L A N  C O N S I S T E N C Y  R E V I E W  

 
 

I–16                                                                                                              LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure I 12 depicted above shows the extent of the overflight notification zones.  

Figure I 12 
Overflight Notification 

Zones 

Item F - 298 of 335



Ontario International  
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

APPENDIX J 

 

Item F - 299 of 335



APPENDIX J 
HIGH TERRAIN ZONE &  

EXISTING AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTIONS STUDY 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –1 

Introduction  

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) FAR Part 77 airspace protection regulations were designed 
to ensure that structures and other uses do not cause hazards to aircraft in flight within the vicinity 
an airport.  Hazards to flight include physical obstructions to the navigable airspace, wildlife 
hazards, particularly bird strikes, and land use characteristics that create visual or electronic 
interference with aircraft navigation or communication.  Typically, proposed structures that 
penetrate FAR Part 77, Subpart B are considered an airspace obstruction and require an 
aeronautical review by the FAA.  However, FAR Part 77, Subpart B, Section 77.15 of the 
regulations also stipulate that “FAA review is not required for new structures that would penetrate 
the airport’s airspace surfaces if the proposed structure would be shielded by existing structures of 
a permanent and substantial character of equal or greater height or by natural terrain or 
topographic features of equal or greater height, and would be located in the congested area of a 
city, town, or settlement where it is evident beyond all reasonable doubt that the structure so 
shielded will not adversely affect safety in air navigation.” 
 

High Terrain Zone Study Area Setting  

The underlying topography of an airport’s airspace imaginary surfaces can play a significant factor 
in determining the allowable height of a structure.  Allowable heights north of ONT are reduced 
due to the rising terrain sloping upwards towards the San Gabriel Mountains and, in some areas, 
the natural terrain pierces the imaginary surfaces.  The  rising terrain area north of ONT, referred 
to as the High Terrain Zone within this study, is confined to portions of Upland, Ontario and 
Rancho Cucamonga.  The High Terrain Zone study area is highly developed with a combination of 
residential, industrial and commercial land uses with a limited number of vacant parcels scattered 
throughout that could accommodate infill development.   
 

Methodology 

This study utilized GIS methods and field surveys to identify existing obstructions within the High 
Terrain Zone study area.  GIS 3D Analyst modeling techniques were utilized to calculate the 
allowable heights by taking the underlying ground elevation and comparing it to the elevation of 
the controlling portions of the FAR Part 77, TERPS, and OEI surfaces.  The GIS 3D Analyst 
produced a 2-dimensional color-banded map with each color band representing a range of the 
distance, measured in vertical feet, between the ground and overlying surface.  The map illustrates 
the allowable height range of a structure.  The color coded bands are typically divided at 10 or 20 
foot intervals as shown in Figure J-1.  The areas north of ONT resulted in a series of concentric 
like elliptical shapes, with the inner-most elliptical shapes having allowable heights of less than 30 

Item F - 300 of 335



AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

J – 2 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

feet.  The outer-most elliptical shapes have allowable heights of up to 120 feet.  The 70 foot color- 
coded concentric elliptical shape was digitized into a shapefile and is identified as the High Terrain 
Zone and the project study area.  
 
A windshield reconnaissance survey was conducted establishing that trees and Southern California 
Edison (SCE) power poles are the tallest objects in the vicinity.  SCE was contacted for GIS pole 
height and location data but they did not have that data available.  However, SCE did indicate that 
pole heights vary and SCE poles north of the airport varied in size, with some poles reaching 
heights greater than 80 feet.  Since SCE pole data was not available, the City of Ontario conducted 
a sample survey of existing SCE pole heights within the High Terrain Zone study area.  There were 
a total of 28 poles examined by City of Ontario surveyors.  The City surveyors recorded an 
elevation height at the top and base of each pole to determine each SCE pole height.  Figure J1 
identifies the locations of the SCE poles surveyed and displays the allowable heights within the 
High Terrain Zone study area.  The sample survey of SCE poles are cataloged on pages J9 - J17, 
showing a detail of the pole location and pole data.  Figure J2 displays the entire study area and 
shows the location of each pole with the associated pole height labeled above its location.  Figure 
J2 also demonstrates how existing SCE poles have heights of up to 70 feet within areas of 
allowable heights of less than 30 feet.   
 
An important note to make regarding the High Terrain Zone study area is that the outermost 
concentric elliptical shape allows for heights of up to 70 feet and the inner most elliptical shape 
allows heights that are significantly reduced and, in some areas, less than 0 feet. The diagram below 
illustrates the rising terrain, the Part 77 imaginary airspace protection surfaces, and existing 
obstructions imaginary line.    

This survey also focused on locating concentrations of trees that pierce the imaginary surfaces.  
Figures J3 and J4 show the tree locations within the public right-of-way in conjunction with the 
associated height range.  Figures J3 and J4 reflect street tree information for the City of Ontario. 
The City of Rancho Cucamonga did not have GIS data available for street trees within the public 

Existing Rising 
Terrain 

Part 77 Imaginary 
Surfaces 

Existing Obstruction Imaginary Line 

High Terrain Zone Cross Section of Existing Obstructions 

70’ 

70’ 

70’ 

Item F - 301 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J – 3 

right-of-way but did provide their “Street Tree Designations per Street” document.  This study 
relied on city street tree documents, SCE pole data and reconnaissance information to document 
existing airspace obstructions within the High Terrain Zone study area. The existing conditions and 
obstructions documented within the study area concentrated around major streets focusing on 
street trees, SCE Poles and any other obstructions can be found on pages J18 - J32.  Street Tree 
information for the City of Rancho Cucamonga can be found on pages J33 - J36. 

 
Findings/Recommendations 

The City of Ontario conducted this study to document existing obstructions and help establish a 
threshold for new construction within the High Terrain Zone study area.  Based on evidence 
provided in this study, it is recommended that a threshold of 70 feet be established within the High 
Terrain Zone study area for new construction due to the height of existing obstructions, which is 
consistent with FAR Part 77, Subpart B, Section 77.15.  Therefore, a proposed structure of up to 
70 feet in height (subject to local agency zoning limits) within the High Terrain Zone Study Area 
should be exempt from FAA aeronautical reviews.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 302 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J – 4 

 

 

 

This page was left intentionally blank. 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 303 of 335



Pole ID 1 

Pole # 748823E 

Pole 
Height 

53.10 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1085.85 Top 
1032.75 Base 

Pole ID 2 

Pole # 748842 

Pole 
Height 

44.63 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1148.46 Top 
1103.83 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 3 

Pole # 4387034E 

Pole 
Height 

70.07 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1210.42 Top 
1140.35 Base 

Notes: 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –9 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 304 of 335



Pole ID 4 

Pole # 870510E 

Pole 
Height 

68.93 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1155.20 Top 
1086.27 Base 

Pole ID 5 

Pole # 1683056E 

Pole 
Height 

61.23 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1086.77 Top 
1025.54 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 6 

Pole # H4214V 

Pole 
Height 

34.19 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1069.04 Top 
1034.85 Base 

Notes: 

J – 10 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 305 of 335



Pole ID 7 

Pole # 1986184E 

Pole 
Height 

63.38 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1194.70 Top 
1131.32 Base 

Pole ID 8 

Pole # 4310171E 

Pole 
Height 

48.44 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1206.83 Top 
1158.39 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 9 

Pole # 1138368E 

Pole 
Height 

43.13 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1202.98 Top 
1159.85 Base 

Notes: 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –11 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 306 of 335



Pole ID 10 

Pole # 1527073E 

Pole 
Height 

56.26 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1145.28 Top 
1089.02 Base 

Pole ID 11 

Pole # 1240442E 

Pole 
Height 

47.83 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1119.37 Top 
1071.54 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 12 

Pole # 987288E 

Pole 
Height 

37.44 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1085.16 Top 
1047.72 Base 

Notes: 

J – 12 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 307 of 335



Pole ID 13 

Pole # 4568409E 

Pole 
Height 

38.84 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1062.76 Top 
1023.92 Base 

Pole ID 14 

Pole # H30853Y 

Pole 
Height 

38.71 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1094.89 Top 
1056.18 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 15 

Pole # 309726E 

Pole 
Height 

69.42 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1165.93 Top 
1096.51 Base 

Notes: 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –13 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 308 of 335



Pole ID 16 

Pole # H16749Y 

Pole 
Height 

37.87 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1164.81 Top 
1126.94 Base 

Pole ID 17 

Pole # 4270031E 

Pole 
Height 

67.50 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1157.08 Top 
1089.58 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 18 

Pole # 4439574E 

Pole 
Height 

71.78 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1108.87 Top 
1037.09 Base 

Notes: 

J – 14 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 309 of 335



Pole ID 19 

Pole # 4568409E 

Pole 
Height 

64.68 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1122.78 Top 
1058.10 Base 

Pole ID 20 

Pole # 452282E 

Pole 
Height 

46.00 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1124.13 Top 
1078.13 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 21 

Pole # 4168379E 

Pole 
Height 

60.38 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1084.82 Top 
1024.44 Base 

Notes: 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –15 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 310 of 335



Pole ID 22 

Pole # 4072044E 

Pole 
Height 

64.92 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1134.83 Top 
1069.91 Base 

Pole ID 23 

Pole # 4428319E 

Pole 
Height 

60.86 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1091.88 Top 
1031.02 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 24 

Pole # 4024696E 

Pole 
Height 

49.18 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1078.32 Top 
1029.14 Base 

Notes: 

J – 16 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 311 of 335



Pole ID 25 

Pole # 1377501E 

Pole 
Height 

58.64 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1147.25 Top 
1088.61 Base 

Pole ID 26 

Pole # 4246899E 

Pole 
Height 

47.49 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1114.70 Top 
1067.21 Base 

Notes: 

Notes: 

Pole ID 27  
28  

Pole # 4632148E  
4087861E 

Pole 
Height 

60.83 ft 
56.75 ft 

Pole 
MSL 

1089.55 Top 
1028.72 Base 
 
1092.20 Top 
1035.45 Base 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –17 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 312 of 335



A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

F 

G 

H 

I 

J 

K 

L 

M 

N 

O 

P 

Q 

R 

S 

T 

J – 18 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 313 of 335



A Looking North on Sultana Ave at E St Intersection B Looking East on H St on Euclid Ave Intersection 

C Looking North on Sultana Ave at E St Intersection D Looking East on H St near Euclid Ave Intersection 

E Looking East on 4th St at Columbia Ave Intersection F Looking South on Sultana Ave at Princeton St Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –19 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 314 of 335



G Looking South on Campus Ave at H Street Intersection H Looking East on 6th Street on Campus Ave Intersection 

I  Looking West on Yale St at Campus Ave Intersection J Looking West on Princeton St at Campus Ave Intersection 

K Looking East on 4th St at Campus Ave Intersection L Looking East on F St at Campus Ave Intersection 

Notes: 
 

J – 20 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 315 of 335



M Looking North on Campus Ave at E St Intersection N Looking West on Granada Ct at Berlyn Ave Intersection 

O Looking West on 5th St at Berlyn Ave Intersection P Looking South on Berlyn Ave at 6th St Intersection 

Q Looking East on 7th St at 11th Ave Intersection R Looking East on 6th St near Hope Ave Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –21 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 316 of 335



S Looking East on G St at Allyn Ave Intersection T Looking North on Berlyn Ave at E St Intersection 

U Looking North on Cucamonga Ave at G St Intersection V Looking North on Grove Ave at G St Intersection 

W Looking East on I St at Cucamonga Ave Intersection X Looking East on 4th St at Cucamonga Ave Intersection 

Notes: 
 

J – 22 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 317 of 335



U 
V 

W 

X 

Y 

Z 

AA 

BB 

CC 
DD 

EE 

FF 

GG 

HH 

II 

JJ 

KK 

LL 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –23 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 318 of 335



Y Looking East on G St at Allyn Ave Intersection Z Looking North on Berlyn Ave at E St Intersection 

AA Looking North on Cucamonga Ave at G St Intersection BB Looking North on Grove Ave at G St Intersection 

CC Looking East on I St at Cucamonga Ave Intersection DD Looking East on 4th St at Cucamonga Ave Intersection 

Notes: 
 

J – 24 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 319 of 335



EE Looking North on Calaveras Ave at El Morado Ct Intersection FF Looking North on Imperial Ave at El Morado Ct Intersection 

GG Looking North Glenn Ave at 6th St Intersection HH Looking West on Alvarado St  

II Looking South on Baker Av at Olive St Intersection JJ Looking East on 7th St at Baker Av Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –25 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 320 of 335



Notes: 

MM 
NN 

OO 

PP 
QQ 

RR 

SS 

J – 26 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 321 of 335



KK Looking East on 6th St at Baker Ave Intersection LL Looking North on Baker Ave at 4th St Intersection 

MM Looking South on Sacramento Ave at 4th St Intersection NN Looking North on Vineyard Ave at Jay St Intersection 

OO Looking East on 5th St at Vineyard Ave Intersection PP Looking East on 6th St at Vineyard Ave Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –27 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 322 of 335



VV 

OO 

UU 

TT 

WW 

YY 

J – 28 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 323 of 335



QQ Looking West on 5th St at Vineyard Ave Intersection RR Looking South on Vineyard Ave at 7th St Intersection 

SS Looking East on 6th St at Cucamonga Canyon Wash Bridge TT Looking South on Archibald Ave near 7th St Intersection 

UU Looking East on 6th St at Archibald Ave Intersection VV Looking North on Archibald Ave at 4th St Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –29 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 324 of 335



ZZ 

AAA 

BBB 

CCC 

DDD EEE 

FFF 

GGG 

J – 30 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 325 of 335



WW Looking East on 4th St at Turner Ave Intersection XX Looking North on Hermosa Ave at 4th St Intersection 

YY Looking South on Hermosa Ave near 6th St Intersection ZZ Looking North on Haven Ave at 4th St Intersection 

AAA Looking East on 4th St at Haven Ave Intersection BBB Looking South on Haven Ave at 7th St Intersection 

Notes: 
 

LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –31 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 326 of 335



CCC Looking West on 6th St at Cleveland Ave Intersection DDD Looking North on Cleveland Ave at 4th St Intersection 

EEE Looking North on Milliken Ave at 4th St Intersection FFF Looking West on 4th St at Milliken Ave Intersection 

GGG Looking South on Milliken at 5th St Intersection 

Notes: 
 

J – 32 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 327 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –33 

Rancho Cucamonga Street Tree Information 

Common 
Name: 

London Plane Tree 

Botanical 
Name: 

Platanus acerifolia 

Mature 
Height 
Range: 

40 ft - 80 ft 

Spread: 30 ft - 40 ft 

The map below identifies the streets where  
the London Plane Tree can be found within 
the City of Rancho Cucamonga. Tree 
information was obtained 
from the Sunset Western 
Garden Book. 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 328 of 335



Notes: 
 

J – 34 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

Rancho Cucamonga Street Tree Information 

Common 
Name: 

n/a 

Botanical 
Name: 

Magnolia Grandiflora ‘Majestic 
Beauty’ 

Mature 
Height 
Range: 

35 ft - 50 ft 

Spread: 20 ft 

The map below identifies the streets where  
the Magnolia Grandiflora can be found within 
the City of Rancho Cucamonga. Tree 
information was obtained from the Sunset 
Western Garden Book. 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 329 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J –35 

Rancho Cucamonga Street Tree Information 

Common 
Name: 

Bottle Tree 

Botanical 
Name: 

Brachychiton populneus 

Mature 
Height 
Range: 

30 ft - 50 ft 

Spread: 30 ft  

The map below identifies the streets where  
the Bottle Tree can be found within the City of 
Rancho Cucamonga. Tree information was 
obtained from the Sunset 
Western Garden Book. 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Item F - 330 of 335



Notes: 
 

J – 36 LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) 

Rancho Cucamonga Street Tree Information 

Common 
Name: 

Canary Island Pine 

Botanical 
Name: 

Pinus canariensis 

Mature 
Height 
Range: 

50 ft - 80 ft 

Spread: 20 ft - 35 ft 

The map below identifies the streets where  
the Canary Island Pine can be found within 
the City of Rancho Cucamonga. Tree 
information was obtained from the Sunset 
Western Garden Book. 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Item F - 331 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  J – 5 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Figure J1 

High Terrain Zone Study Area 
& SCE Pole Locations 

Street Name 

(Orientation) 
Pole separations  

(average in feet) 

Sultana Avenue 
(North - South) 

130 ft - 200 ft 

Campus Avenue 
(North - South) 

120 ft - 200 ft 

Grove Avenue 
(North - South) 

100ft - 150 ft 

Vineyard Avenue 
(North - South) 

200ft 

Archibald Avenue 
(North - South) 

150 ft - 200 ft 

Haven Avenue 
(North - South) 

150 ft 

Sixth Street 
(East - West) 

100ft - 230 ft 

Fourth Street 
(East - West) 

120ft - 190 ft 

This figure, J1 shows the geographic 
location of each SCE Pole surveyed and 
outlines the High Terrain Zone study 
area. This figure also illustrates the re-
sults of the GIS 3D Analyst which calcu-
lated the allowable heights by taking the 
underlying ground elevation and com-
paring it to the elevation of the control-
ling portions of the FAR Part 77, TERPS, 
and OEI surfaces.  The 2-dimensional  
map produced a color banded map, with 
each color band representing a range of 
allowable heights.  

Also, included as part of this exhibit is 
the table below which lists the average 
SCE pole separation on the major 
streets, where SCE poles were sur-
veyed. The distance between SCE poles  
within the study area range from 100ft to 
200ft apart.  Although, the map only 
shows the location of poles surveyed, 
there is a multiple number of obstruc-
tions within the study are that are no 
more than 200 feet apart.   

Item F - 332 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J – 6 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Figure J2, shows the geo-
graphic location of each 
SCE pole and its associ-
ated surveyed height. This 
figure only illustrates the 
location of poles sur-
veyed, SCE pole dis-
tances were also exam-
ined and are listed on 
Figure J1.  Although, this 
map does not show each 
SCE pole obstruction 
there is a multiple number 
of obstructions within the 
study are that are no more 
than approximately 200 
feet apart.  Also, the black 
dashed lines on the map 
highlight the major streets 
that were examined as 
part of this study.  

Figure J2 

SCE Pole Height Analysis 

Item F - 333 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011)  J – 7 

H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G  A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y   AP P E N D I X  J  

Figure J3, focuses on street 
trees within the public-right-
of-way in conjunction with 
their associated heights. 
This map also includes SCE 
pole locations and  surveyed 
height.  

This figure also demon-
strates the concentration of 
established street trees 
within areas of the western 
portion of the high terrain 
zone study area.    

Figure J3 

West Side  
Tree Height Analysis  

Item F - 334 of 335



LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (Adopted April 19, 2011) J – 8 

AP P E N D I X  J    H I G H T E R RA I N  ZO N E  &  E X IS T I N G A I R S P A C E  O B S T R U CTI O N S  S T U D Y  

Figure J4, focuses on street 
trees within the public-right-
of-way on the eastern half of 
the High Terrain Zone study 
area in conjunction with their 
associated heights. This 
figure only concentrates on 
street tree information for 
the City of Ontario. Informa-
tion on street trees for the 
City of Rancho Cucamonga 
is provided on pages J33 - 
J36 of this appendix.  

Item F - 335 of 335



Item G - 1 of 1



Item H - 1 of 1





City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 1 of 8 

CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING May 1, 2018 
 
PROCLAMATION OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH MAY 2018 
Action: The City Council proclaimed the month of May as Historic Preservation month. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR FILE NO. PDA17-007: A 
Development Agreement between the City of Ontario and RCCD Inc., for the potential 
development of up to 176 residential units (File No. PMTT16-003/TT 20012) on 37.47 acres of 
land, for property generally located north of Ontario Ranch Road and approximately 400 feet 
west of Turner Avenue, within the Low Density Residential (LDR) district of Planning Area 8A of 
The Avenue Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in 
an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) that was adopted by the City 
Council on December 9, 2006. This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation 
measures shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport 
(ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP) for ONT Airport. (APNs: 0218-201-20, 0218-201-26 and 
0218-201-27); submitted by Ontario RCCD INC. 
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the enacting ordinance. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT AND ZONE CHANGE 
REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PDCA18-001 & PZC18-001: A Development Code Amendment (File No. 
PDCA18-001) to allow used vehicle automobile dealers in the CR (Regional Commercial) zoning 
district, subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit, and a Zone Change (File No. PZC18-
001) from OH (High Intensity Office) to CR (Regional Commercial) on 2.34 acres of land located 
the terminus of Turner Avenue, south of Interstate 10, at 520 North Turner Avenue. The 
environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to The 
Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140), certified by the City of Ontario 
City Council on January 27, 2010, in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001. This project 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0210-551-01) submitted by Carvana, LLC. The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this item on March 27, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0. 
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the enacting ordinances. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT FILE NO. PDCA18-
002: A Development Code Amendment proposing various modifications, clarifications and 
updates to certain provisions of the Ontario Development Code, including Chapter 2.0, Table 
2.02-1 (Review Matrix), Chapter 5.0 (Zoning and Land Use), Chapter 8.0 (Sign Regulations) as it 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 2 of 8 

relates to the ONT (Ontario International Airport) zoning designation, generally located north of 
Mission Boulevard, south of Airport Drive, east of Grove Avenue, and west of Haven Avenue; The 
proposed Development Code Amendment is exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the guidelines promulgated thereunder, pursuant to 
Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. The project is located within the Airport Influence 
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan; City Initiated. The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item on March 
27, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0. 
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the enacting ordinance. 
 
EIGHTEENTH ANNUAL MODEL COLONY AWARDS FILE NO. PHP18-003: Presentation of Model 
Colony Awards to the recipients of the Eighteenth Annual Model Colony Awards; submitted by 
City of Ontario. 
Action: Model Colony Awards were presented to the recipients. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, SPECIFIC PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PSP16-003 AND 
WILLIAMSON ACT CANCELLATION FOR FILE NO. PWIL18-002 (#70-159): A public hearing to 
consider certification of the Environmental Impact Report, (SCH#2017031048) including the 
adoption of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations, for File No. PSP16-003 and a Specific Plan (Colony Commerce Center East) 
request (File No. PSP16-003) to establish land use designations, development standards, design 
guidelines and infrastructure improvements for approximately 94 acres of land, which includes 
the potential development of 2,362,215 square feet of industrial and business park development 
and a Tentative Cancellation of Williamson Act Contract 70-159. The project site is bounded by 
Archibald Avenue to the east, the San Bernardino/Riverside County boundary to the south, the 
Cucamonga Creek Flood Control Channel to the west and Merrill Avenue to the north. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport 
(ONT) and Chino Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of both the ONT Airport and Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP). (APNs: 
218-311-02, 218-311-03, 218-311-07, 218-311-08, 218-311-10 & 218-311-13); submitted by 
CapRock Partners Land & Development Fund I, L.P. The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item on March 27, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0. 
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the enacting ordinance. 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING May 7, 2018 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT17-
012: A Tentative Parcel Map (TT 19910) to subdivide 0.52 acre of land into 3 lots, located at 419 
East Maitland Street, within the MDR-11 (Low-Medium Density Residential - 5.1 to 11.0 DU/Acre) 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 3 of 8 

zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of 
the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1049-343-16) 
submitted by CRC Investments, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP & DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 
FILE NOS. PMTT17-017 (PM 19919) AND PDEV13-029: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT17-
017/PM 19919) to consolidate 30-lots into 1-parcel in conjunction with a Development Plan (File 
No. PDEV13-029) to add 42,112 square feet to an existing 30,124 square foot industrial building 
for property on 4.9 acres of land, located at 617 E. Sunkist within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development 
Projects) & Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1049-232-21) submitted by Agrigold Joint 
Venture. Planning Commission action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-039: 
A Development Plan to construct a 5.77-acre employee parking lot for UPS, on 6.89 acres of land, 
located at northwest corner of Haven Avenue and Francis Street, within the Business Park land 
use district of the ACCO Airport Center Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15304 and 
15311 (Classes 4 and 11, Minor Alterations to Land and Accessory Structures) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0211-263-32) submitted by UPS. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-040: 
A Development Plan to construct a 2.8-acre truck-trailer parking lot for UPS, on 3.95 acres of 
land, located on a triangular-shaped area bordered by Metro Way on the south, Excise Avenue 
on the east, and Francis Street on the northwest, within the Business Park land use district of the 
ACCO Airport Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 4 of 8 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15304 and 15311 (Classes 4 
and 11, Minor Alterations to Land and Accessory Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0211-263-38, 0211-263-39 and 0211-263-40) submitted by 
UPS. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board approved the project subject to conditions. 

 
 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING May 7, 2018 
 

Meeting Cancelled 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING May 15, 2018 
 
CITY OF ONTARIO 2018 CEQA GUIDELINES AMENDMENT: An Amendment to the City’s local 
guidelines for implementing the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in order to make 
them consistent with current provisions and interpretations of CEQA. City Initiated. 
Action: The City Council adopted a resolution approving the amendment. 
 
FINAL WRITTEN REPORT FOR INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 3056, A TEMPORARY 
MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF NEW BUSINESS LICENSES OR NEW ENTITLEMENTS FOR 
COMPOSTING (GREEN WASTE AND MANURE) FACILITIES:  A written report issued 10 days prior 
to the expiration of Ordinance No. 3056 describing the measures taken to alleviate the conditions 
which led to the adoption of the moratorium in compliance with Government Code Section 
65858 (d). City Initiated. 
Action: The City Council accepted the report. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND APPEAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PCUP17-021 AND PDEV17-046: An appeal of the 
Planning Commission’s approval of a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-046) to construct a 
4,500 square-foot self-service carwash (Fast 5 Xpress) in conjunction with a Conditional Use 
Permit (File No. PCUP17-021) to establish and operate the drive-thru carwash, on 0.93 acres of 
land, within the Commercial land use designation of the Grove Avenue Specific Plan, located at 
2345 S. Grove Avenue. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 5 of 8 

Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0216-081-25) submitted by Sylvia DeVries. The Planning 
Commission approved this item on March 27, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0. 
Action: The City Council denied the appeal and upheld the Planning Commission’s action to 
approve the project. 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING May 21, 2018 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-011: 
A Development Plan to construct an 8-unit apartment project on 0.29 acres of land, located at 
214 North Vine Avenue and 422 West B Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development 
Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1048-572-13 
and 1048-572-11) submitted by AB Holdings, Inc. Planning Commission Action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FILE NO. PCUP18-015, AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-051: A Conditional Use Permit (File No. 
PCUP18-015) to establish three (3) drive-thru restaurants (1,800 square-foot, 3,000 square-foot 
and 3,320 square-foot) in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-051) to 
construct a 94,782 square-foot commercial development on 10.06 acres of land located within 
the Retail district of Planning Area 10B of The Avenue Specific Plan, located at the southwest 
corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Haven Avenue. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously analyzed in The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) that was certified by the 
City Council on December 19, 2006. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0218-412-02) 
submitted by Frontier Real Estate Investments. Planning Commission Action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-059: 
A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-059) to construct a 27,593 square foot industrial building 
on 1.57 acres of land within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district, located at southeast corner 
of Taylor Avenue and Sunkist Street. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 6 of 8 

of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent 
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APNs: 1049-212-05, 1049-212-06, 1049-212-07, 1049-212-08, 1049-212-09, 1049-212-
10, 1049-212-11 & 1049-212-12) submitted by Harrie Cohen. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board approved the project subject to conditions. 

 
 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING May 21, 2018 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PCUP17-027: A Conditional Use Permit request to construct a detached two-story (24-feet in 
height) accessory structure totaling 1,520 square feet, consisting of a 790 square foot first floor 
2-car garage and a 730 square foot second floor accessory dwelling unit, on 0.18 acres of land 
located at 530 West Nevada Street, within the LDR-5 (Low-Density Residential) zoning district. 
The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1-Existing Facilities) of the CEQA guidelines. 
The project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT), 
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1049-293-18) submitted by Mr. Fernando Solis. 
Action: The Zoning Administrator approved the Conditional Use Permit subject to conditions. 

 
 
PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MEETING May 22, 2018 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PUD17-004: A Planned Unit Development establishing land use designations, and development 
standards and guidelines to facilitate the development of an 8-unit apartment project on 0.29 
acres of land, located at 214 North Vine Avenue and 422 West B Street, within the MU-1 
(Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 
(Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence 
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); 
(APNs: 1048-572-13 and 1048-572-11) submitted by AB Holdings, LLC. City Council action is 
required. 
Action: The Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the project. 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 7 of 8 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-011: 
A Development Plan to construct an 8-unit apartment project on 0.29 acres of land, located at 
214 North Vine Avenue and 422 West B Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development 
Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1048-572-13 
and 1048-572-11) submitted by AB Holdings, LLC 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT17-
012: A Tentative Parcel Map (TT 19910) to subdivide 0.52 acre of land into 3 lots, located at 419 
East Maitland Street, within the MDR-11 (Low-Medium Density Residential - 5.1 to 11.0 DU/Acre) 
zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of 
the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1049-343-16) submitted by CRC 
Investments, LLC. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP & DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 
FILE NOS. PMTT17-017 (PM 19919) AND PDEV13-029: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT17-
017/PM 19919) to consolidate 30-lots into 1-parcel in conjunction with a Development Plan (File 
No. PDEV13-029) to add 35,368 square feet to an existing 30,124 square foot industrial building 
for property on 4.9 acres of land, located at 617 E. Sunkist within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development 
Projects) & Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1049-232-21) submitted by Agrigold Joint 
Venture. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FILE NO. PCUP18-015, AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-051: A Conditional Use Permit (File No. 
PCUP18-015) to establish three drive-thru restaurants (1,800 square feet, 3,000 square feet and 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2018 Page 8 of 8 

3,320 square feet) in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-051) to construct a 
94,782 square-foot commercial development on 10.06 acres of land located within the Retail 
district of Planning Area 10B of The Avenue Specific Plan, located at the southwest corner of 
Ontario Ranch Road and Haven Avenue. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously analyzed in The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) that was certified by the 
City Council on December 19, 2006. This project introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0218-412-02) 
submitted by Frontier Real Estate Investments. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDA17-004:  A Development Agreement (File No. PDA17-004) between the City of Ontario and 
Colony Commerce Center LLC, to establish the terms and conditions for the potential 
development of up to 1,379,501 square feet of industrial development on 57.58 acres of land 
generally located on the southeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Carpenter Avenue at 9467 East 
Merrill Avenue, within Planning Area 1 of the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan. The 
environmental impacts of this project were analyzed in the EIR (SCH# 2015061023) prepared for 
the Colony Commerce Center West Specific Plan (File No. PSP15-001) that was certified by the 
City Council on October 3, 2017. All adopted mitigation measures of the related EIR shall be a 
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and Chino 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of both the 
ONT Airport and Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans. (APNs: 0218-292-05 and 0218-311-
11); submitted by Colony Commerce Center LLC. City Council Action Required. 
Action: The Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the project. 

 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2017 Page 1 of 5 

PADV18-002: Submitted by City of Ontario 
City initiated Housing Element Available Land Inventory amendment to update the list through 
PZC17-001 and include new high density development. 
 
PADV18-003: Submitted by City of Ontario and Huerta del Valle 
Administrative Use Permit to establish a Community Garden and Urban Farm with incidental on-
site composting, and an on-site Produce Sales Stand, located at 1105 South Campus Avenue, 
within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APNs: 1049-451-
19, 1049-451-15, 1049-451-08, and 1049-451-05). 
 
PALU18-001: Submitted by City of Ontario 
CITY OF ONTARIO - A General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA18-001) to change the Land Use 
Designation from Office Commercial to Industrial, and a Specific Plan Amendment (File No. 
PSPA18-002) to the California Commerce Center Specific Plan, changing the land use from 
Commercial/Food/Hotel to Rail Industrial, on 2.05 acres of land located at the southeast corner 
of Haven Avenue and Francis Street (APN: 0211-281-56). 
 
PALU18-002: Submitted by City of Rancho Cucamonga 
CITY OF RANCHO CUCAMONGA - A request to construct a new 74.75-FT grain storage silo within 
the Ontario International Airport Airspace Protection Zone's High Terrain Zone, located at 9535 
Archibald Avenue, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730. A previous request was processed on the 
project site for a 92-FT tall addition to an existing warehouse building. See Federal Aviation 
Administration "Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation" (2014-AWP-874-0E, 2014-AWP-
1354-0E, and 2014-AWP-1364-0E). 
 
PALU18-003: Submitted by City of Ontario 
CITY OF ONTARIO - A General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA 16-002) to change the land use 
designation on 47.06 acres of land from Business Park (0.60 FAR) to Industrial (0.55 FAR), and a 
Specific Plan (File No. PSP16-002 -West Ontario Commerce Center) establishing land use 
designations, development standards, design guidelines and infrastructure improvements on 
approximately 119 acres of land, and includes the potential development of up to 2,905,510 SF 
of industrial and business park development. The project site is bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue 
on the north, Cucamonga Creek Channel on the east, Merrill Avenue on the south, and Carpenter 
Avenue on the west. 
 
PALU18-004: Submitted by City of Ontario 
An amendment to the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP) to 
[1] eliminate the reconfiguration of the ONT runway system that were part of LAWA's ONT 
Master Planning efforts, [2] update the Policy Maps and text to reflect the current runway 
system, and [3] update airport ownership from LAWA to OIAA throughout the document. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2017 Page 2 of 5 

PCUP18-016: Submitted by Kids Empire Ontario, LLC 
A Conditional Use Permit to establish a 14,253-square foot children’s indoor fitness playground 
on 0.32 acres of land located at 130 West G Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) 
zoning district (APN: 1048-271-19). 
 
PCUP18-017: Submitted by Skingenix Inc. 
A Conditional Use Permit to establish a drug manufacturing facility within an existing 33,080-
square foot industrial use building on a 0.89-acre parcel of land located at 1785 South Performa 
Avenue, within the Industrial land use district of the Corsair Specific Plan (APN: 0211-242-46). 
 
PDET18-002: Submitted by Janell Crossley 
A Determination of Use to establishment whether a banquet facility is similar to, and of no 
greater intensity than other allowed land uses within the Mountain Village Specific Plan. 
 
PDEV18-016: Submitted by Tectonic Engineering 
A Development Plan to construct small cell wireless telecommunications facilities (for Verizon 
Wireless) attached to existing utility poles at various locations throughout the City, within City 
rights-of-way (APN: 1048-542-16). 
 
PGPA18-002: Submitted by The Galloway Group 
An Amendment to the Land Use Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The 
Ontario Plan, changing the land use designation on 30.63 acres of land from General Commercial/ 
Business Park to Business Park, located at the southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Hamner 
Avenue, within the Edenglen Specific Plan, and modifying Exhibit LU-03 (Future Buildout Table) 
to be consistent with this land use designation change (APN: 218-171-27). 
 
PMTT18-007: Submitted by TK Management Systems, LLC 
A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into 18 single family lots, located at 991 
and 1103 South Benson, within the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture – 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning 
district (APN's 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-06). 
 
PMTT18-008: Submitted by Toan Nguyen 
A Tentative Tract Map (TT 20144) to subdivide one-acre of land into 4 numbered lots and 3 
lettered (common) lots, located at 2004 South Palmetto Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APN: 1014-532-04). 
 
PSGN18-058: Submitted by Fluoresco Services/ Everbrite 
A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign (north elevation) for BEST BUY, located at 2104 East 
Jay Street, within the Meredith Avenue Specific Plan (APN: 0110-311-50). 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2017 Page 3 of 5 

PSGN18-059: Submitted by Signtech Electrical Advertising 
A Sign Plan for the installation of three new wall signs and new sign faces for three monument 
signs for AT&T, located at 2200 East Grove Avenue, within the Grove Avenue Specific Plan (APN: 
1051-151-12). 
 
PSGN18-060: Submitted by Temeka Advertising 
A Sign Plan for the installation of one wall sign for MORTGAGE SOLUTIONS OF COLORADO, 
located at 3130-B East Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Ontario Center Specific Plan (APN: 
0210-571-19). 
 
PSGN18-061: Submitted by Americas Instant Signs 
A Sign Plan for the installation of one wall sign for BALDA STEVANATO GROUP, located at 4501 
East Wall Street, within the California Commerce Center Specific Plan (APN: 0238-221-11). 
 
PSGN18-062: Submitted by Eddy Hsieh 
A Sign Plan for the installation of two wall signs for D GRILL BOY, located at 4323 East Mills Circle, 
Suite 104, within the Ontario Mills Specific Plan (APN: 0238-014-49). 
 
PSGN18-063: Submitted by USA Threading Salon 
A Sign Plan for a temporary banner sign for USA THREADING SALON, located at 2536 South Grove 
Avenue, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district (APN: 1051-321-51). 
5/23/2018 to 6/22/2018. 
 
PSGN18-064: Submitted by SignTech Electrical Advertising 
A Sign Plan for the reface of two existing wall signs (north and south elevations) for EAST WEST 
BANK, located at 3237 East Guasti Road, Suite 110, within the Centrelake Specific Plan (APN: 
0210-551-18). 
 
PSGN18-065: Submitted by Sono Bello 
A Sign Plan for the installation of one wall sign (east Elevation) for SONO BELLO, located at 3281 
East Guasti Road, Suite 550, within the Centrelake Specific Plan (APN: 0210-551-19) 
 
PSGN18-066: Submitted by Golden Expresso Transportation 
A Sign Plan for a temporary banner sign for GOLDEN EXPRESSO TRANSPORTATION INC., located 
at 205 West Holt Boulevard, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. 6/1/2018 
to 7/1/2018. 
 
  



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2017 Page 4 of 5 

PSGN18-067: Submitted by Promotion Plus Sign Co. 
A Sign Plan for the installation of replacement signs for a SHELL service station, including canopy 
reface, new logo, reface under-canopy signage (pump number signs, pump face signs), legalize 
and reface existing monument sign with new LED price sign, remove unpermitted signs, reface 
existing legal non-conforming freeway pylon sign (no structural changes), and reface carwash 
signs, located at 1521 East Fourth Street, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential – 25.1 to 
45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APN: 0110-391-33). 
 
PSPA18-003: Submitted by The Galloway Group 
An amendment to the Edenglen Specific Plan, changing the land use designation on 30.63 acres 
of land from Community Commercial and Commercial/Business Park Flex Zone to Business Park, 
and revising related standards/guidelines within the Business Park land use designation, located 
at southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Hamner Avenue (APNs: 218-171-27, 218-171-19 & 
218-171-21). Related File: PGPA18-002. 
 
PTUP18-031: Submitted by Montecito Baptist Church 
A Temporary Use Permit for a Pastor's School Conference hosted by Montecito Baptist Church, 
located at 2560 South Archibald Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district 
(APN: 1083-011-02). Event to be held: 6/4/2018 to 6/7/2018. 
 
PTUP18-032: Submitted by Sam's East Inc. 
A Temporary Use Permit for a temporary truck trailer parking facility on 2.0 acres of land, located 
at the Southwest corner Belmont Street and Cucamonga Avenue, at 1010 East Belmont Street, 
within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1049-431-08). 
 
PTUP18-033: Submitted by Taqueria Tamazulena 
A Temporary Use Permit for a 20th anniversary event for Taqueria Tamazulena, located at 635 
East Holt Boulevard, Suite B, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district (APN: 
1048-525-20). Event to be held: 5/20/2018. 
 
PTUP18-034: Submitted by South Gate Engineering 
A Temporary Use Permit for a company picnic for employees and family for South Gate 
Engineering, located at 800 North Archibald Avenue, OS-R (Open Space – Recreation) zoning 
district (APR: 0110-451-01). Event to be held: 6/9/2018. 
 
PTUP18-035: Submitted by Church of God of Prophecy 
A Temporary Use Permit for a church sponsored car wash to raise funds for church vacation bible 
school, located at 1130 South Campus Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 
to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APN: 1049-503-33). Event to be held: 6/2/2018. 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of May 2018 
 
 

6/5/2017 Page 5 of 5 

PTUP18-036: Submitted by KB Homes 
A Temporary Use Permit for a residential tract sales office located at 2075 East Bulletin Privado, 
within the MDR-11 (Low-Medium Density Residential – 5.1 to 11.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APN: 
0110-441-10). Use begins on 7/14/2018 and concludes following sale of the final dwelling. 
 
PTUP18-037: Submitted by Sam's East Inc. 
A Temporary Use Permit to establish a temporary overflow trailer parking facility on a vacant lot 
(1050 East Belmont Street) adjacent to and in conjunction with, an existing 
warehouse/distribution facility located at 1000 South Cucamonga Avenue, within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1049-431-16). 5/1/2018 through 9/20/2021. 
 
PTUP18-038: Submitted by KABC-TV7 
A Temporary Use Permit for the Annual Stuff a Bus fundraiser hosted by KABC-TV7, to be held at 
Mathis Brothers Furniture, located at 4105 East Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Ontario 
Center Specific Plan (APN: 0210-205-12). Event to be held: 6/15/2018. 
 
PVER18-020: Submitted by Cassie Phelps 
Zoning Verification for 701 South Malaga Place (APN: 0238-081-58). 
 
PVER18-021: Submitted by Zoning Analysis Group 
Zoning Verification for 3303 South Archibald Avenue (APN: 0218-141-22). 
 
PVER18-022: Submitted by Richard Smith 
Zoning Verification for 505 West Holt Boulevard (APN: 1049-021-16). 
 
PVER18-023: Submitted by Lionel Jauregui 
Zoning Verification for 520 East State Street (APN: 1049-283-07). 
 
PVER18-024: Submitted by Tammy Pote 
Zoning Verification for 3990 and 3998 East Concours Street (APN: 0210-205-17). 
 
PVER18-025: Submitted by Howard Zoning Association 
Zoning Verification for 2811 East Philadelphia Street (APN: 0211-275-25). 
 
PVER18-026: Submitted by Jesse Regnier 
Zoning Verification for 4721 East Airport Drive (APN: 0238-042-31). 
 
PVER18-027: Submitted by Anna Bennifield 
Zoning Verification for 3663 East Guasti Road (APN: 0210-212-59). 
 


	20180626_PC Agenda
	20180626_Item A-01_Minutes
	REGULAR MEETING: City Hall, 303 East B Street
	Called to order by Chairman Delman at 6:30 PM
	COMMISSIONERS
	Present: Chairman Delman, Vice-Chairman Willoughby, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, and Reyes
	Absent: Downs
	OTHERS PRESENT: Development Director Murphy, Planning Director Wahlstrom, City Attorney Rice, Senior Planner Batres, Senior Planner Noh, Assistant Planner Aguilo, Engineer Bryan Lirley, Building Official Pedro Rico, and Planning Secretary Berendsen
	Brad Robertson, representing AB Holdings, appeared and stated he was available to answer any questions.
	Mr. Reyes wanted clarification of how the project would be managed.
	Mr. Robertson stated these units will be for lease and that AB Holdings takes pride in the ownership and the units will be managed in-house and be well taken care of.
	Mr. Reyes wanted clarification if any of these units were for low income housing or would they be standard rental rates.
	Mr. Robertson stated these will all be standard rental rates.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification on who would be regulating what automobiles are being parked within the garages, so that the garages don’t get filled up and they use more on-street parking.
	Mr. Robertson stated the city requires storage space in excess of the garage, and each unit has a laundry and additional storage within the garage. He stated AB Holdings would manage the parking and they won’t allow for derelict cars to be parked on-s...
	Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification that there is additional storage space built into the garage area.
	Mr. Robertson stated yes, they had included the minimum square footage required for storage within the garage.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of a resolution to approve the Planned Unit Development, File No., PUD17-004, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and...
	It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to adopt a resolution to approve the Development Plan, File No., PDEV17-011, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; REC...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Alcazar appeared.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Willoughby, to adopt a resolution to approve the Tentative Parcel Map, File No., PMTT17-012, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, ...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Steven Ibarra, the representative, appeared and stated he has some issues with the engineering and wants to work with them regarding the clarification of these issues, without holding up the process.
	Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding the improvements being done to get existing to look more like what is being proposed.
	Mr. Ibarra stated that yes just the paint to match and the ban that wraps around the whole facility.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification on the issues with engineering.
	Mr. Ibarra stated he just wanted clarification.
	Mr. Delman wanted to know if this item should be continued so that the applicant can work with engineering.
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated that being that it is only clarification the applicant is seeking, there is no reason to continue the item.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Reyes, seconded by Gregorek, to adopt a resolution to approve the Tentative Parcel Map, File No. PMTT17-017, and the Development Plan, File No. PDEV13-029, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Gavin Reid, from Frontier Real Estate Investments, the developer for the site, appeared and spoke. He stated it has been a pleasure working with all the staff and he is very excited about this project and there is a strong interest in leasing for this...
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification regarding parking shortage.
	Mr. Reid stated they have done other shared parking analysis and try to be conservative and he is comfortable this is going to function successfully.
	Mr. Gage wanted to know if the tenants be comfortable with a future shared parking agreement and if there would be assigned parking.
	Mr. Reid stated that he didn’t have an answer at this time but it is something they will have to work through regarding the future shared parking agreement. He stated they will put CC&Rs in place for the parking as required by engineering.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know the tenant interest.
	Mr. Reid stated they are working with the major tenant Stater Bros. and he expects to be 75 percent pre-leased in the next couple of weeks.
	Mr. Willoughby stated the community will be happy to have a grocery store and the design will fit in nicely for the area.
	Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification regarding the fast food tenants
	Mr. Reid stated Dunkin donuts and nothing else at this time.
	Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification on if shops 1 & 2 would be food or retail, and would it be more fast food or sit-down restaurants.
	Mr. Reid stated the intent is one hundred percent food, with the idea of more of a bar scene with outside patio areas.
	Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on what is the marketing concept being used to secure leases.
	Mr. Reid stated that what is really driving this project is the housing growth in the area and working with Brookfield and they feel this is an amenity to the community. He stated there is a two prong customer demand for the everyday retail customer a...
	Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on areas 1 and 2 and the type of tenants they are looking for there and if the landscape area with the amphitheater would be used for some sort of entertainment.
	Mr. Reid stated yes, that the idea is to get high-end tenants in those areas, especially those located closer to the landscaped area and have entertainment. He stated they want to make sure it is attractive and maybe even close some of the area down a...
	Ron Graybill, appeared and stated he is the 2nd family to live in the community and he is a representative for the people who will be using this area. He stated this is a lot of good information and would like Mr. Noh or Frontier Real Estate Investmen...
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to approve the Conditional Use Permit, File No., PCUP18-015, and the Development Plan, File No. PDEV17-051, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, ...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Tyson Chave, with Prologis, appeared and thanked the staff for all their hard work.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gage, seconded by Reyes, to recommend adoption of a resolution to approve the Development Agreement, File No., PDA17-004, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby;...
	MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION
	Old Business Reports From Subcommittees
	Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee did not meet.
	Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	New Business
	Mr. Reyes stated that Ramone’s Cactus Patch Restaurant was changing uses and wanted to thank staff and photographer for coming out and help preserve the historic aspects that were found there.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification regarding the portables that are at the historic school on 6th Street.
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated this is a temporary situation as they do improvements within the school for approximately two years and then they will relandscape the front of the school.
	Mr. Murphy stated the plans are that the front are will be an expanded parking lot and drop off area, to eliminate all the excess street parking and traffic.
	Mr. Gage and Mr. Delman shared about the California Preservation Foundation Conference in Palo Alto.
	NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION
	Mr. Reyes stated this project is a good example of what is to come within the city and the Wendy’s modern design looks so good and the whole complex is well landscaped.
	Mr. Willoughby stated hats off to the staff for a great project, using mixed uses.
	Mr. Reyes stated the lighting is all natural in the industrial building, from the sky lights.
	Mr. Delman stated this is a great project that will really spice up downtown.
	DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated the monthly reports are in their packet.
	ADJOURNMENT
	Willoughby motioned to adjourn, and the motion carried.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 PM.
	________________________________
	Secretary Pro Tempore
	________________________________

	20180626_Item A-02_PDEV17-052
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-052 Colony Commerce Cennter LLC^01 AR
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-052 Colony Commerce Center LLC^02 RES0
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-052 Colony Commerce Center LLC^03 C.O.A.

	20180626_Item B_PVAR18-001
	20180626 File No PVAR18-001 Inland Christian^01 PC AR
	20180626 File No PVAR18-001 Inland Christian^02 Reso
	20180626 File No PVAR18-001 Inland Christian^03 Planning COA
	20180626 File No PVAR18-001 Inland Christian^04 Dept COA

	20180626_Item C_PDEV15-034
	20180626 File No. PDEV15-034 PC ^01 AR
	20180626 File No. PDEV15-034 PC ^02 RES
	20180626 File No. PDEV15-034 PC ^03 COA

	20180626_Item D_PDEV17-021
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-021 PC ^01 AR
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-021 PC ^02 Reso
	20180626 File No. PDEV17-021 PC ^03 COA

	20180626_Item E_PMTT17-003
	20180626_Item F_PALU18-004
	20180626 File No. PALU18-004_ONT ALUCP Amendment ^01 AR
	20180626 File No. PALU18-004_ONT ALUCP Amendment ^02 Reso
	20180626 File No. PALU18-004_ONT ALUCP Amendment ^03 Attachment A
	ADP845.tmp
	Foreword  ..................................................................................................................................................... I
	Chapter 1:  Background and Methodology
	Chapter 2: Procedural and Compatibility Policies
	Appendix A – State Laws Related to Airport Land Use Planning ....................................................  A-1

	ADP3A68.tmp
	Airport Compatibility Planning
	Introduction
	Five-Step Compatibility Planning Process

	The ONT Compatibility Plan
	Function of the Compatibility Plan
	Airport Influence Area
	Effective Date and Adoption of the Compatibility Plan
	The provisions of the Compatibility Plan will take effect upon the plan’s adoption by the City of Ontario.  Other affected entities within San Bernardino County have options as to how to incorporate pertinent Compatibility Plan provisions into their r...


	The “Alternative Process”
	State Law Requirements
	San Bernardino County Alternative Process

	Methodology for Creating the ONT Compatibility Plan
	ONT Master Plan Status
	Planning for Future Runway Modifications
	Future and Existing Activity Forecasts
	Future and Existing Airfield Configurations

	Special Entities 3 of San Bernardino County
	Native American Tribes
	Los Angeles County
	San Bernardino County 1
	Applicability Matrix
	Federal Agencies
	Riverside County 2
	x
	x
	Required
	x
	x
	x
	x
	Informational
	1  The Cities within San Bernardino County that are required to participate in the Alternative Process include: Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, Chino, Montclair, Fontana and Upland.
	2  The County of Riverside having unincorporated lands within the noise impacted areas of LA/Ontario International Airport has elected to participate in the compatibility planning process for the Airport on a discretionary basis.
	3   See definition for “Special Entity” on page 1-9 of this Chapter.
	Land Use Plan Consistency
	State Law Requirements
	Consistency Options

	Background Information
	Definitions for this Compatibility Plan
	1. Action: A proposed General Plan, Specific Plan, policy document, or individual development project subject to review under the ONT Alternative Process defined in this chapter.  Also, an airport master plan, airport layout plan, and certain types of...
	2. Aeronautics Act:  Except as indicated otherwise, the article of the California Public Utilities Code (Sections 21670 et seq.) pertaining to airport land use commissions and airport land use compatibility planning.
	3. Affected Agency:  Any county, city, or special district having lands within the ONT Airport Influence Area (AIA).  Consistent with state law, each county within the State of California is responsible for its own airport land use compatibility plann...
	(a) Affected Agencies in San Bernardino County:
	 Cities of Ontario, Chino, Fontana, Montclair, Rancho Cucamonga, and Upland.
	 San Bernardino County, as the jurisdiction having control over unincorporated San Bernardino County lands within the AIA.
	 Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA),  a department of the City of Los Angeles, as Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA), the owner and operator of LA/Ontario International Airport.
	 Special entities including school districts, community college districts, and special districts whose boundaries include lands within the San Bernardino County portion of the AIA.
	(b) Affected Agencies outside San Bernardino County:
	 Riverside County, as the jurisdiction having control over unincorporated Riverside County lands within the AIA.
	 The City of Eastvale and any future city that may be incorporated within the affected portion of Riverside County.
	 Riverside County Airport Land Use Commission.
	 Cities of Pomona and Claremont, each of which has jurisdiction over portions of the AIA within Los Angeles County.
	 The Los Angeles County Airport Land Use Commission.

	4. Airport:  LA/Ontario International Airport (ONT), a commercial airport in the City of Ontario that is owned and operated by Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA)Los Angeles World Airports (LAWA).
	5. Airport Influence Area (AIA):  An area, as delineated in Map 2-1 (see Chapter 2), in which current or future airport-related noise, overflight, safety, or airspace protection factors may significantly affect land uses or necessitate restriction on ...
	6. Aviation-Related Use:  Any facility or activity directly associated with the air transportation of persons or cargo or the operation, storage, or maintenance of aircraft at an airport or heliport.  Such uses specifically include runways, taxiways, ...
	7. Alternative Process:  State law provides for what is generally known as the “Alternative Process” wherein counties do not have to form an Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC).  Instead, the County and affected cities having jurisdiction over an airpo...
	8. Compatibility Plan:  This document, the LA/Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.
	9. Local Jurisdiction:  Any county or city within the ONT AIA.
	10. Major Land Use Action:  Actions related to proposed land uses for which compatibility with airport activity is a particular concern.  These types of actions are listed in Table 2-1 of Chapter 2.  Minor actions (e.g., ministerial acts) are not subj...
	11. Special Entity:  Special districts, school districts, and community college districts owning property or having boundaries within the San Bernardino County portions of the Airport Influence Area.

	Table and Map Descriptions
	Table Descriptions
	Map Descriptions



	ADP7F2E.tmp
	Exhibit 1-3
	Airport Activity Data Summary 
	Runway Use Distribution f
	Airport Master Plan Activity 
	Noise Contour Activity e
	This page was left intentionally blank.

	ADP4529.tmp
	Established Airport Compatibility Measures 1

	ONT-RPZ study area map- Exhibit 7_July 2018 Amendments.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ONT-RPZ study area map-MAP C


	ONT-compatibility- Exhibit 8 _July 2018 Amendment.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ONT-compatibility-safety-data


	ONT-compatibility Exhibit 1-9 July 2018 Amendment.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ONT-compatibility-noise-data


	ADP2452.tmp
	Chapter Overview
	Introduction
	Section Descriptions
	Criteria Table Descriptions
	Compatibility Policy Map Descriptions


	ADPEC6F.tmp
	The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process if located anywhere within the Airport Influence Area (Applies to all Affected Jurisdictions):
	 Expansion or creation of the sphere of influence of a city or district (e.g., annexation or incorporation)
	 General Plan,  Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments
	 Major capital improvements (e.g., water, sewer, roads) that would promote urban development in undeveloped or agricultural areas to the extent that such uses are not reflected in a previously reviewed general plan or specific plan.
	 Any proposal for acquisition of a new site or expansion of an existing site by a special district, school district, or community college district.
	 Any proposal for construction or alteration of a structure (including antennae) taller than 200 feet above the ground.
	The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process only if they are located within a safety zone (Applies solely to the City of Ontario):
	 Any proposed land use within Safety Zone 1 that is not an aviation-related use.
	 Public agency acquisition of sites intended for institutional uses including hospitals, schools, jails or prisons.
	 Any discretionary development proposal for projects having a building floor area of 20,000 square feet or greater unless only ministerial approval (e.g., a building permit) is required.
	 Proposed development of airport property if such development is not an aviation-related use or has not previously been included in an airport master plan or community general plan reviewed under the Alternative Process.
	The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process only if they are located within a noise impact zone of 65+ dB CNEL (Applies to the City of Ontario, City of Fontana and unincorporated areas of San ...
	 Residential development, including land divisions, consisting of five or more dwelling units or individual parcels.
	 Any nonresidential use having outdoor dining or gathering functions.
	 Public agency acquisition of sites intended for institutional uses including hospitals, schools, jails or prisons.
	The following types of Major Land Use Actions are subject to the ONT Inter-Agency Notification Process only if they are located within an airspace protection zone (Applies to all Affected Jurisdictions):
	 Any proposed object (including buildings, antennas, and other structures) having a height that requires review by the Federal Aviation Administration in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulations Part 77, Subpart B.
	 Any proposed object (including buildings, antennas, and other structures) that would penetrate the allowable height as defined by Map 2-4 or conflict with the Airspace Protection policies.
	 Any project having the potential to create electrical or visual hazards to aircraft in flight, including:
	 Any project (e.g., water treatment facilities, waste transfer or disposal facilities, parks with open water areas), plan (e.g., Habitat Conservation Plan) or proposal to acquire sites intended for lakes, ponds, wetlands, or sewer treatment ponds whi...
	This page was left intentionally blank.



	20180626_Item G_PMTT17-011_PDEV17-057
	20180626_Item H_PDA17-003
	20180626_Monthly Reports
	20180626_Monthly Report Memo
	20180626_ Monthly Activity Report - Actions
	20180626_ Monthly Activity Report - New Apps
	PADV18-002: Submitted by City of Ontario
	PADV18-003: Submitted by City of Ontario and Huerta del Valle
	PALU18-001: Submitted by City of Ontario
	PALU18-002: Submitted by City of Rancho Cucamonga
	PALU18-003: Submitted by City of Ontario
	PALU18-004: Submitted by City of Ontario
	PCUP18-016: Submitted by Kids Empire Ontario, LLC
	PCUP18-017: Submitted by Skingenix Inc.
	PDET18-002: Submitted by Janell Crossley
	PDEV18-016: Submitted by Tectonic Engineering
	PGPA18-002: Submitted by The Galloway Group
	PMTT18-007: Submitted by TK Management Systems, LLC
	PMTT18-008: Submitted by Toan Nguyen
	PSGN18-058: Submitted by Fluoresco Services/ Everbrite
	PSGN18-059: Submitted by Signtech Electrical Advertising
	PSGN18-060: Submitted by Temeka Advertising
	PSGN18-061: Submitted by Americas Instant Signs
	PSGN18-062: Submitted by Eddy Hsieh
	PSGN18-063: Submitted by USA Threading Salon
	PSGN18-064: Submitted by SignTech Electrical Advertising
	PSGN18-065: Submitted by Sono Bello
	PSGN18-066: Submitted by Golden Expresso Transportation
	PSGN18-067: Submitted by Promotion Plus Sign Co.
	PSPA18-003: Submitted by The Galloway Group
	PTUP18-031: Submitted by Montecito Baptist Church
	PTUP18-032: Submitted by Sam's East Inc.
	PTUP18-033: Submitted by Taqueria Tamazulena
	PTUP18-034: Submitted by South Gate Engineering
	PTUP18-035: Submitted by Church of God of Prophecy
	PTUP18-036: Submitted by KB Homes
	PTUP18-037: Submitted by Sam's East Inc.
	PTUP18-038: Submitted by KABC-TV7
	PVER18-020: Submitted by Cassie Phelps
	PVER18-021: Submitted by Zoning Analysis Group
	PVER18-022: Submitted by Richard Smith
	PVER18-023: Submitted by Lionel Jauregui
	PVER18-024: Submitted by Tammy Pote
	PVER18-025: Submitted by Howard Zoning Association
	PVER18-026: Submitted by Jesse Regnier
	PVER18-027: Submitted by Anna Bennifield





